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Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements in this Annual Report or in pthaterials we have filed or will file with the Setties and
Exchange Commission (“SEC"), as well as informaiimeiuded in oral statements or other written stegets made
or to be made by us, are forward-looking in naaseefined in Section 27A of the Securities Ac1 883,

Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1884, the Private Securities Litigation Reform AE1895. You
can identify these statements by the fact that tleegot relate to matters of a strictly factuahgtorical nature and
generally discuss or relate to forecasts, estin@tesher expectations regarding future events.eGaly, the words
“believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “estimate,” “anticigte,” “project,” “may,” “can,” “could,” “might,” “will” and similar
expressions identify forward-looking statements|uding statements that relate to, such mattepdaamed and
expected capacity increases and utilization; gudteid capital spending; environmental matters;| legaeedings;
exposure to, and effects of hedging of, raw madtand energy costs and foreign currencies; globdlragional
economic, political, and business conditions; etqiéans, strategies, and plans for individual asaed products,
business segments, as well as for the whole Compasi requirements and uses of available casinding plans;
pension expenses and funding; anticipated restingtudivestiture, and consolidation activitiesstoeduction and
control efforts and targets and integration of asglibusinesses. From time to time, forwérdking statements al:
are included in our other periodic reports on Fotdg) and 8-Kijn our press releases and presentations, on oL
site and in other material released to the public.

Forward-looking statements are not historical factguarantees of future performance but instepcesent only
our beliefs at the time the statements were maghkrding future events, which are subject to sigaifi risks,
uncertainties, and other factors, many of whichaartside of our control and certain of which astdd above. Any
or all of the forward-looking statements includadhis Report and in any other reports, presentato public
statements made by us may turn out to be mateialcurate. This can occur as a result of incomesumptions,
in some cases based upon internal estimates ahdesnaf current market conditions and trends, mameent plans
and strategies, economic conditions, or as a caies®g of known or unknown risks and uncertaintiégsny of the
risks and uncertainties mentioned in this Repaorthsas those discussedliiem 1A. Risk Factors, Item 7.
Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial ConditiamdaResults of Operations — Forward-Looking
Statements May Prove Inaccurater in another report or public statement madedywill be important in
determining whether these forward-looking statem@nbve to be accurate. Consequently, neithertoukisolders
nor any other person should place undue reliancauofforwardlooking statements and should recognize that a
results may differ materially from those anticight®y us.

All forward-looking statements made in this Repd made as of the date hereof, and the risk thaalaresults
will differ materially from expectations expressadhis Report will increase with the passage witi We undertat
no obligation, and disclaim any duty, to publiclydate or revise any forwatdeking statements, whether as a re
of new information, future events, changes in oyreetations or otherwise. However, we may makéé&irrt
disclosures regarding future events, trends andntaiaties in our subsequent reports on Forms 106KQ and

8-K to the extent required under the Exchange Bt above cautionary discussion of risks, uncetesrand
possible inaccurate assumptions relevant to ounbss include factors we believe could cause owrahcesults to
differ materially from expected and historical riksuOther factors beyond those listed above dieim 3. Legal
Proceedingbelow, including factors unknown to us and factarewn to us which we have not determined to be
material, could also adversely affect us.

Iltem 1. Business

Basis of Presentation

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the term “Cealae” refers to Celanese Corporation, a Delawangocation,
and not its subsidiaries. The terms the “Compatwe,” “our” and “us” refer to Celanese and its sigigries on a
consolidated basis. The term “Celanese t8&rs to our subsidiary, Celanese US Holdings La Oelaware limite
liability company, formerly known as BCP Crystal Bi®ldings Corp., a Delaware corporation, and reot it
subsidiaries. The term “Purchaser” refers to otsgliary, Celanese Europe Holding GmbH & Co. KGirferly
known as BCP Crystal Acquisition GmbH & Co. KG, ar®an limited partnership, and not its subsidiagasept
where otherwise indicated.
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Overview

Celanese Corporation was formed in 2004 when atifi§i of The Blackstone Group purchased 84% ofritieary
shares of Celanese GmbH, formerly known as CelaA€sea diversified German chemical company. Celanes
Corporation was incorporated in 2005 under the lafttbe state of Delaware and its shares are traddte

New York Stock Exchange under the sym“CE". During the period from 2005 through 2007, &&tse
Corporation purchased the remaining 16% intere€elanese GmbH.

We are a leading, global integrated producer ofntbals and advanced materials. We are one of thiklisdargest
producers of acetyl products, which are intermedifiemicals for nearly all major industries, aslasla leading
global producer of high performance engineeredrpely that are used in a variety of high-value, esel-
applications. As an industry leader, we hold gephially balanced global positions and participatdiversified,
end-use markets. Our operations are primarily &gtat North America, Europe and Asia. We combine a
demonstrated track record of execution, strongoperénce built on our principles and objectives, armdear focus
on growth, productivity and value creation.

Our large and diverse global customer base prignaohsists of major companies in a broad arrapdfstries. For
the year ended December 31, 2009, approximately &78ar net sales were to customers located infiNamerica,
42% to customers in Europe and Africa, 28% to ausis in Asia-Pacific and 3% to customers in SoutieAca.
We have property, plant and equipment in the UnBtedes of $634 million and outside the United &taif

$2,163 million.

Industry

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes industayadobtained from industry publications and suneysvell as
our own internal company surveys. Third-party irtdupublications, surveys and forecasts generadlieghat the
information contained therein has been obtainech fsources believed to be reliable. The statemeg@rding
Celanese’s market position in this document aredbas information derived from, among others,2889 Stanfor
Research Institute International Chemical Econoniesidbook.
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Business Segment Overvie

We operate principally through four business segmexdvanced Engineered Materials, Consumer Spaxsal
Industrial Specialties and Acetyl Intermediates. feother details on our business segments, see Rbto the
consolidated financial statements. The table béllostrates each business segment’s net salegéonak customers
for the year ended December 31, 2009, as well s lmasiness segment’s major products and end-udestaa

Advanced
Engineered Materials Consumer Specialties Industrial Specialties Acetyl Intermediates
2009 Net Sale§) $808 million $1,078 million $974 million $2,220 million
Key Products » Polyacetal products » Acetate tow » Polyvinyl alcohol « Acetic acid
(“POM™) (“PVOH") @
* Acetate flake . . « Vinyl acetate
« Ultra-high molecular + Conventional emulsions monomer (“VAM”)
weight polyethylene * Sunet® sweetener .
(“GUR @®”) . Vlnyl acetate ethylene Acetic anhydride
. Sorbates emulsions (“VAE")
¢ Liquid crystal polymers ) ¢ Acetaldehyde
(“LCP”) ¢ Low-density _
polyethylene resins « Ethyl acetate
¢ Polyphenylene sulfide (“LDPE”)
(“PPS") . « Butyl acetate
¢ Ethylene vinyl acetate
+ Polybutylene (“EVA") resins and « Formaldehyde
terephthalate (“PBT”) compounds
* Polyethylene
terephthalate (“PET")
¢ Long fiber reinforced
thermoplastics“LFRT")
Major End-Use ¢ Fuel system componer < Filter products ¢ Paints ¢ Paints
Markets
* Beverages » Coatings « Coatings
» Conveyor belts
» Confections * Adhesives « Adhesives
» Battery separators
» Baked goods * Building products ¢ Lubricants
» Electronics
¢ Pharmaceuticals ¢ Glass fibers ¢ Detergents
» Seat belt mechanisms
* Textiles « Pharmaceuticals
» Other automotive
« Paper ¢ Films
» Appliances
* Flexible packaging « Textiles

» Electronics
* Lamination products ¢ Inks

 Filtrations
* Medical tubing « Plasticizers
¢ Coatings
¢ Automotive parts * Esters
* Medical Devices
* Solvents

¢ Telecommunication

(M Consolidated net sales of $5,082 million for tharyended December 31, 2009 also includes $2 miltioret
sales from Other Activities, which is attributalibeour captive insurance companies. Net sales éetyh
Intermediates and Consumer Specialties exclude segment sales of $389 million combined for the ysatec
December 31, 200!

(@ The PVOH business was sold July 1, 2(

Competitive Strengths

We benefit from a number of competitive strengthsluding the following:

* Leading Positions

We believe that we are a leading global integratediucer of acetyl, acetate and vinyl emulsion potsl Advance
Engineered Materials and our strategic affiliaRalyplastics Co., Ltd. (“Polyplastics”) and Koreadineering
Plastics Co., Ltd. ("“KEPCO™jre leading producers and suppliers of engineesBaners in North America, Euro|
and the Asia-Pacific region. Our leadership posgiare based on our large share of global productpacity,
operating efficiencies, proprietary production teclogy and competitive cost structures in our mpjaduct lines
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* Proprietary Production Technology and Operating Eegtise

Our production of acetyl products employs induségeing proprietary and licensed technologies uidiclg our
proprietary AOPIu® 2 and AOPIus™ technologies for the production of acetic acid ®#ahtage™ and VAntage
Plus™ vinyl acetate monomer technology. AOPR builds on the industry benchmark with the abiliyincrease
acetic acid production from our current capacityl & million tons per reactor per year to approxehal.5 million
tons per reactor per year at a fraction of the obatnew facility. This technology is applicabteexisting and new
greenfield units. AOPIud" enables increased raw material efficiencies, layparating costs and the ability to
expand plant capacity with minimal investment. Vége™ and VAntage Plug” enable significant increases in
production efficiencies, lower operating costs ammteases in capacity at ten to fifteen percerhefcost of buildin
a new plant.

» Low Cost Producer

Our competitive cost structures are based on ptamuand purchasing economies of scale, vertidabiration,
technical expertise and the use of advanced teopisal.

* Global Reach

We own or lease thirty-two production facilitiesdhighout the world, of which five sites are no lengperating as
of December 31, 2009. We participate in strategittures which operate thirteen additional facsiti®ur
infrastructure of manufacturing plants, terminalarehouses and sales offices provides us with gebtive
advantage in anticipating and meeting the needsioflobal and local customers in well-established growing
markets, while our geographic diversity reducespibtential impact of volatility in any individuabantry or region.
We have a strong, growing presence in Asia, pdatiuin China, and we have a defined strategyatatioue this
growth. For more information regarding our finahamormation with respect to our geographic arezg Note 26
to the consolidated financial statements.

* Strategic Investments

Our strategic investments have enabled us to g&i@ss, minimize costs and accelerate growth inmavkets,
while also generating significant cash flow anch@ags. Our equity investments and cost investmesggesent an
important component of our growth strategy. See=Noto the consolidated financial statementslgerd 1.
Busines— Investmentfor additional information on our equity and castéstments.

« Diversified Products and End-Use Markets

We offer our customers a broad range of productsviride variety of end-use markets. Our diversiBed-use
markets include paints and coatings, textiles, motive applications, consumer and medical appbceasti
performance industrial applications, filter megiaper and packaging, chemical additives, constmictonsumer
and industrial adhesives, and food and beveragécatpns. This product and market diversity redutiee potential
impact of volatility in any individual segment.

Business Strategies

Our strategic foundation is based on the followfimgr pillars which are focused on increasing opagatash flows,
improving profitability, delivering high return dnvestments and increasing shareholder value:

* Focus

We focus on businesses where we have a sustaimadbleroven competitive advantage. We continue tionige ou
business portfolio in order to achieve market, emst technology leadership while expanding our pebdhix into
higher value-added products.
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e Investment

We build on advantaged positions that optimizepmirtfolio of products. In order to improve our coetiive
advantage, we have invested in: our core groupsihiesses through acquisitions; growth in Asiateots! by our
integrated chemical complex in Nanjing, China; ae@ applications of our advanced engineered polymer
products.

» Growth

We aggressively align with our customers and teed-use markets to capture growth. We are quickhaeding in
Asia, the fastest-growing region in the world, d@r to meet increasing demand for our productgpaks of our
strategy, we also continue to develop new prodaetsindustry-leading production technologies ttediver value-
added solutions for our customers.

» Redeployment

We divest non-core assets and revitalize underpenfigy businesses. We have divested or exited bss@sevhere
we no longer maintain a competitive advantage. 8@ @ontinue to make key strategic decisions tdakxe
businesses that have significant potential for mapd performance and enhanced efficiency.

Underlying all of these strategies is a culturexdcution and productivity. We continually seek wéy reduce
costs, increase productivity and improve procedsrielogy. Our commitment to operational excelleiscan
integral part of our strategy to maintain our castantage and productivity leadership.

Business Segments
ADVANCED ENGINEERED MATERIALS

Our Advanced Engineered Materials segment devepppsguces and supplies a broad portfolio of higtigueance
technical polymers for application in automotivel aectronics products, as well as other consumeiiredustrial
applications. Together with our strategic affilgteve are a leading participant in the global tézdirpolymers
industry. The primary products of Advanced EngiedeWaterials are POM, PPS, LFRT, PBT, PET, Gtid
LCP. POM, PPS, LFRT, PBT and PET are used in acdbraage of products including automotive components
electronics, appliances and industrial applicati@IdR®is used in battery separators, conveyor beltsafitin
equipment, coatings and medical devices. Primadynearkets for LCP are electrical and electronics.

Advanced Engineered Materials’ technical polymexrgehchemical and physical properties enabling tlemang

other things, to withstand extreme temperaturesstrehemical reactions with solvents and withstaadturing or
stretching. These products are used in a wide rahgerformance-demanding applications in the awotdra and

electronics sectors as well as in other consumeiradustrial goods.

Advanced Engineered Materials works in concert wgtltustomers to enable innovations and develepare
enhanced products. Advanced Engineered Materiaiss its efforts on developing new markets anticgtipns
for its product lines, often developing custom fatations to satisfy the technical and processiogirements of a
customers applications. For example, Advanced EngineeretéiNéds has collaborated with fuel system supplie
develop an acetal copolymer with the chemical amgkict resistance necessary to withstand expostnat wiesel
fuels in the new generation of common rail diesgjiees. The product can also be used in autombielesender
units where it remains stable at the high operatngperatures present in direct-injection diesgirees and can
meet the requirements of the new generation ofusts.

Advanced Engineered Materials’ customer base ctengignarily of a large number of plastic moldensla
component suppliers, which typically supply oridisguipment manufacturers (“OEMs”). Advanced Engiegl
Materials works with these molders and componeppkers as well as directly with the OEMs to deyesmd
improve specialized applications and systems.

Prices for most of these products, particularlycggdized product grades for targeted applicatigeserally reflect
the value added in complex polymer chemistry, gieniformulation and compounding, and the extensive
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application development services provided. Theseigfized products are not typically susceptibleyclical
swings in pricing.

» Key Products

POM is sold under the trademark Hostafétim all regions but North America, where it is solader the trademark
Celcon®. Polyplastics and KEPCO are leading suppliers@#Pand other engineering resins in the Asia-Pacific
region. POM is used for mechanical parts, includiogr locks and seat belt mechanisms, in automaippdications
and in electrical, consumer and medical applicatguch as drug delivery systems and gears for &gygkances.

The primary raw material for POM is formaldehydéiieh is manufactured from methanol. Advanced Engjiee
Materials currently purchases formaldehyde in thited States from our Acetyl Intermediates segraedt in
Europe, manufactures formaldehyde from purchasetanel.

GURZ®is an engineered material used in heavy-duty autemand industrial applications such as car bgtter
separator panels and industrial conveyor beltajedisas in specialty medical and consumer apphbeceti such as
sports equipment and prostheses. GURicro powder grades are used for high-performaifiees, membranes,
diagnostic devices, coatings and additives forttogniastics and elastomers. G@Rbers are also used in protect
ballistic applications.

Celstrar® and CompeP are long fiber reinforced thermoplastics, which artgextra strength and stiffness, making
them more suitable for larger parts than conveatitirermoplastics and are used in automotive, pramation and
industrial applications.

Polyesters such as CelarfeRBT, Celane® PET, VandaP®, a series of PBT-polyester blends and Riteflexa
thermoplastic polyester elastomer, are used inda wariety of automotive, electrical and consunpgliaations,
including ignition system parts, radiator grillesgctrical switches, appliance and sensor housliggdg,emitting
diodes (“LEDs”) and technical fibers. Raw materi@ispolyesters vary. Base monomers, such as dirheth
terephthalate and purified terephthalic acid (“PT,Agre widely available with pricing dependent soduder
polyester fiber and packaging resins market camuiti Smaller volume specialty co-monomers for tipeeducts
are typically supplied by a limited number of comias.

Liquid crystal polymers, such as Vecfaare used in electrical and electronics applicatiand for precision parts
with thin walls and complex shapes or on high-teeatkware applications.

Fortron®, a PPS product, is used in a wide variety of aotora and other applications, especially those iret
heat and/or chemical resistance, including fuelesygarts, radiator pipes and halogen lamp housoftgem
replacing metal. Other possible application figltsdude non-woven filtration devices such as coaldf power
plants. Fortror® is manufactured by Fortron Industries LLC (“ForttprAdvanced Engineered Materials’ 50%
owned strategic venture with Kureha Corporatiodagan.

* Facilities

Advanced Engineered Materials has polymerizatiommounding and research and technology centergimény,
Brazil, China and the United States.
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» Geographic Region

The following table illustrates the destinatiortloé net sales of the Advanced Engineered Matesedsent by
geographic region.

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination — A@dnced Engineered Materials

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
% of % of % of
$ Segmen $ Segmen $ Segmen
(In millions, except percentages
North America 28t 35% 36E 34% 38¢ 38%
Europe and Africi 40z 50% 552 52% 517 50%
Asia-Pacific 82 10% 10€ 10% 88 8%
South Americe 38 5% 37 4% 37 4%
Total 80¢& 1,06! 1,03(

Advanced Engineered Materials’ sales in Asia arderdirectly and through distributors includingstsategic
affiliates. Polyplastics, KEPCO and Fortron arecactted for under the equity method and therefotenutuded in
Advanced Engineered Materials’ consolidated netssdf Advanced Engineered Materials’ portion of Hales
made by these strategic affiliates were includethéntable above, the percentage of sales solgiia-Racific would
be substantially higher. A number of Advanced Eagned Materials’ POM customers, particularly in éppliance,
electrical components and certain sections of betrenics/telecommunications fields, have moveding and
molding operations to Asia, particularly southefnir@. In addition to our Advanced Engineered Malsraffiliates
we directly service Asian demand by offering oustomers global solutions.

Advanced Engineered Materials’ principal customegesconsumer product manufacturers and supplidheto
automotive industry. These customers primarily pedengineered products, and Advanced Engineeré¢elisla
collaborates with its customers to assist in degualpand improving specialized applications andeays. Advance
Engineered Materials has long-standing relatiorsstijph most of its major customers, but also usstibutors for
its major products, as well as a number of eleatrorarketplaces to reach a larger customer basenbst of
Advanced Engineered Materials’ products, contradtis customers typically have a term of one to tears.

» Competition

Advanced Engineered Materials’ principal competitimclude BASF AG (“BASF”), E. |. DuPont de Nemouaunsd
Company (“DuPont”), DSM N.V., Sabic Innovative Rles and Solvay S.A. Smaller regional competitodude
Asahi Kasei Corporation, Mitsubishi Gas Chemichis,, Chevron Phillips Chemical Company, L.P., Bem S.A.
Lanxess AG, Teijin, Sumitomo, Inc. and Toray Indiest Inc.

CONSUMER SPECIALTIES

The Consumer Specialties segment consists of oetafe Products and Nutrinova businesses. Our AcBratducts
business primarily produces and supplies acetatevitrich is used in the production of filter protsid/Ne also
produce acetate flake which is processed into tcébeer in the form of a tow band. Our Nutrinowasiness
produces and sells Sunétt a high intensity sweetener, and food protectimmedients, such as sorbates, for the
food, beverage and pharmaceutical industries.

» Key Products

Acetate tow is used primarily in cigarette filtevge produce acetate flake by processing wood pitlp acetic
anhydride. We purchase wood pulp that is made feforested trees from major suppliers and prodeeta
anhydride internally. The acetate flake is thethfeir processed into acetate fiber in the form twivaband.
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According to the 2009 Stanford Research Institaterhational Chemical Economics Handbook, as oB206€ are
the world’s leading producer of acetate tow, inaglgdoroduction of our China ventures.

Sales of acetate tow amounted to approximately 6% and 11% of our consolidated net sales foyéaes ende
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

We have an approximate 30% interest in three matwiag China ventures, which are accounted fayass
method investments (see Note 8 to the consolidatadcial statements) that produce acetate flaketew. Our
partner in each of the ventures is the Chinese-stahed tobacco entity, China National Tobacco G@tion. In
addition, approximately 12% of our 2009 acetate $aves were sold directly to China, the largessaaring
country for acetate tow.

Acesulfame potassium, a high intensity sweeteneketed under the trademark Surfeftis used in a variety of
beverages, confections and dairy products througheuwvorld. Sunet® pricing for targeted applications reflects
value added by Nutrinova, through consistent produality and reliable supply. Nutrinova’s stratagyo be the
most reliable and highest quality producer of ghrisduct, to develop new product applications angher into new
markets.

Nutrinove’s food ingredients business consists of the prodn@nd sale of food protection ingredients, sagh
sorbic acid and sorbates, and high intensity sweeseworldwide. Nutrinova’s food protection ingrexis are
mainly used in foods, beverages and personal catpts. The primary raw materials for these preglace ketene
and crotonaldehyde. Sorbates pricing is extrematgisive to demand and industry capacity and iseoessarily
dependent on the prices of raw materials.

* Facilities

Acetate Products has production sites in the Uritiades, Mexico, the United Kingdom and Belgiung an
participates in three manufacturing ventures im@&hi

Nutrinova has a production facility in Germanyvaal as sales and distribution facilities in all joravorld markets

» Geographic Regions

The following table illustrates the destinatiortloé net sales of the Consumer Specialties segnyegeedigraphic

region.
Net Sales to External Customers by Destination — @@umer Specialties
Year Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007
% of % of % of
$ Segmen $ Segmen $ Segmen
(In millions, except percentages)
North America 17€ 16% 194 17% 201 18%
Europe and Africi 452 42% 497 43% 427 39%
Asia-Pacific 40z 3% 41z 36% 437 39%
South Americ: 48 5% 51 4% 46 4%
Total 1,07¢() 1,15t 1,11:

(1) Excludes inte-segment sales of $6 million for the year ended Bdsee 31, 200¢

Sales of acetate tow are principally to the mapbatco companies that account for a majority ofidveide
cigarette production. Our contracts with most af customers are entered into on an annual basis.

Nutrinova primarily markets Sune® to a limited number of large multinational and el customers in the
beverage and food industry under long-term and arcantracts. Nutrinova markets food protectiorréuients

10
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primarily through regional distributors to smalldamedium sized customers and directly through reajieales
offices to large multinational customers in thedaodustry.

» Competition

Acetate Products’ principal competitors include d@hiChemical Industries Ltd. (“Daicel”), Eastmanddtical
Corporation (“Eastman”) and Rhodia S.A.

The principal competitors for Nutrinova’s Sun@tweetener are Holland Sweetener Company, The NugaiS
Company, Ajinomoto Co., Inc., Tate & Lyle PLC areVeral Chinese manufacturers. In sorbates, Nutainov
competes with Nantong AA, Daicel, Yu Yao/Ningbo,né¢aeng AmeriPac and other Chinese manufacturers of
sorbates.

INDUSTRIAL SPECIALTIES

Our Industrial Specialties segment includes our Eions, PVOH and EVA Performance Polymers busiresar
Emulsions business is a global leader which prosladeroad product portfolio, specializing in viagetate ethyler
emulsions, and is a recognized authority on low @datile organic compounds), an environmentatigdly
technology. Our PVOH business was sold in July 2008ekisui Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Sekisui”) for atrmash
purchase price of $168 million. The PVOH businesglpced a broad portfolio of performance PVOH cluatsi
engineered to meet specific customer requireméntsemulsions products are used in a wide arrappfications
including paints and coatings, adhesives, building construction, glass fiber, textiles and pag®¥# Performanci
Polymers offers a complete line of low-density mahylene and specialty ethylene vinyl acetate sesind
compounds. EVA Performance Polymeausdducts are used in many applications includiegifile packaging films
lamination film products, hot melt adhesives, matiabing and devices, automotive carpet and s@tr
encapsulation films.

» Key Products

The products in our Emulsions business include entional vinyl and acrylate based emulsions ant-pigssure
vinyl acetate ethylene emulsions. Emulsions areenfiaain VAM, acrylate esters and styrene. Our Enonlsi
business is a leading producer of vinyl acetatgleti® emulsions in Europe. These products are aéeyponent of
water-based architectural coatings, adhesives wanens, textiles, glass fiber and other application

Sales from the Emulsions business amounted to zippately 15%, 13% and 14% of our consolidated aktssfor
the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 28§jectively.

PVOH is used in adhesives, building products, papatings, films and textiles. The primary raw mialeto
produce PVOH is VAM, while acetic acid is produ@sda by-product. Our PVOH business was sold tos8eki
July 2009.

EVA Performance Polymers produces low-density pblylene and EVA resins and compounds that are instz:
manufacture of hot melt adhesives, automotive t¢atgmination film products, flexible packagingnfis, medical
tubing and solar cell encapsulation films. EVA nssand compounds are produced in high-pressuréoredmom
ethylene and VAM.

* Facilities

The Emulsions business has production sites itttieed States, Canada, China, Spain, Sweden, ttreeNgnds
and Germany. EVA Performance Polymers has a prmfufzcility in Edmonton, Alberta, Canada. Our PVOH
production sites in the United States and Spaireweld to Sekisui in July 2009.
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» Geographic Region
The following table illustrates the destinatiortioé net sales of the Industrial Specialties segrgigteographic

region.
Net Sales to External Customers by Destination — bustrial Specialties
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
% of % of % of
$ Segmen $ Segmen $ Segmen
(In millions, except percentages
North America 382 3% 617 44% 58: 43%
Europe and Africi 504 52% 684 48% 674 50%
Asia-Pacific 78 8% 81 6% 69 5%
South Americe 10 1% 24 2% 20 2%
Total 97¢ 1,40¢ 1,34¢

Industrial Specialties’ products are sold to a dieegroup of regional and multinational custom€rsstomers for
emulsions are manufacturers of water-based paint€@atings, adhesives, paper, building and coctibru
products, glass fiber, non-wovens and textiles. distomers of the PVOH business are primarily eedag the
production of adhesives, paper, films, buildingdarcts and textiles. Customers of EVA PerformandgrRers are
primarily engaged in the manufacture of adhesimatgmotive components, packaging materials, prediemand
solar energy products.

» Competition

Principal competitors in the Emulsions businesfuite The Dow Chemical Company (“Dow”), BASF, Dairen
Wacker and several smaller regional manufacturers.

Principal competitors for the EVA Performance PodymEVA resins and compounds business include DuPon
ExxonMobil Chemical, Arkema and several Asian mactirers.

ACETYL INTERMEDIATES

Our Acetyl Intermediates segment produces and mgatetyl products, including acetic acid, VAMeac
anhydride and acetate esters. These products aeeallg used as starting materials for colorardnts, adhesives,
coatings, and medicines. Other chemicals produtéuis business segment are organic solvents aedriadiates
for pharmaceutical, agricultural and chemical pidu

» Key Products

Acetyl Products Acetyl products include acetic acid, VAM, acetithgdride and acetaldehyde. Acetic acid is
primarily used to manufacture VAM, PTA and otheetgtderivatives. VAM is used in a variety of adives,
paints, films, coatings and textiles. Acetic anligdiis a raw material used in the production ofute$e acetate,
detergents and pharmaceuticals. Acetaldehyde igjarfieedstock for the production of a variety efidatives,
such as pyridines, which are used in agriculturatipcts. We manufacture acetic acid, VAM and acaticydride
for our own use, as well as for sale to third et

Acetic acid and VAM, our basic acetyl intermedigtesducts, are impacted by global supply and demand
fundamentals and are cyclical in nature. The ppialciaw materials in these products are ethylehégwwe
purchase from numerous sources; carbon monoxidehwie purchase under long-term contracts; and ameth
which we purchase under long-term and short-temtraots. With the exception of carbon monoxideséheaw
materials are commodity products available fromidewariety of sources.
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Our production of acetyl products employs leadingppietary and licensed technologies, including mnaprietary
AOPIus® 2 and AOPIus™ technologies for the production of acetic acid ®#dtage™ and VAntage Plug' VAM
technology.

Solvents and DerivativesSolvents and derivatives products include a wanésolvents, formaldehyde and other
chemicals, which in turn are used in the manufactidmpaints, coatings, adhesives and other products

Many solvents and derivatives products are derfk@t our production of acetic acid. Primary procuate:

» Ethyl acetate, an acetate ester that is @&sblysed in coatings, inks and adhesives and imtmufacture of
photographic films and coated papers; and

» Butyl acetate, an acetate ester that is eesblwsed in inks, pharmaceuticals and perfume.

Formaldehyde and formaldehyde derivative produstsarivatives of methanol and are made up ofdheviing
products:

» Formaldehyde, paraformaldehyde and formcelgpamarily used to produce adhesive resins fowpbd,
particle board, coatings, POM engineering resisaanompound used in making polyurethane;

» Amines such as methyl amines, monisopropynohas and butyl amines are used in agrochemicatbjdides
and the treatment of rubber and water; and

» Special solvents, such as crotonaldehyde,iwduie used by the Nutrinova line for the productdsorbates, as
well as raw materials for the fragrance and foagedients industry.

Solvents and derivatives are commodity productsaditarized by cyclicality in pricing. The principaw materials
used in solvents and derivatives products are@aetd, various alcohols, methanol, ethylene anchania. We
manufacture many of these raw materials for our asaas well as for sales to third parties, incigdiur
competitors in the solvents and derivatives businéd&e purchase ethylene from a variety of souM&s.
manufacture acetaldehyde in Europe for our ownaseyell as for sale to third parties.

Sales from acetyl products amounted to approxima@4é%e, 35% and 34% of our consolidated net salethfoyear:
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respsctivales from solvents and derivatives productsuarea to
approximately 10%, 12% and 12% of our consolidatetdsales for the years ended December 31, 2008, &td
2007, respectively.

 Facilities

Acetyl Intermediates has production sites in th@édhStates, China, Mexico, Singapore, Spain, Framd
Germany. As of December 31, 2009, acetic acid adlfl roduction at our Pardies, France location haalsed. In
addition, our Cangrejera, Mexico site no longerdpiced VAM as of December 31, 2009. We also pasdieifn a
strategic venture in Saudi Arabia that producesharadl and methyl tertiary-butyl ether (“MTBE”). Ovilne last
few years, we have continued to shift our productiapacity to lower cost production facilities vehéxpanding in
growth markets, such as China.
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» Geographic Region

The following table illustrates net sales by destion of the Acetyl Intermediates segment by geglgi@region.

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination — Astyl Intermediates

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
% of % of % of
$ Segmen $ Segmen $ Segmen
(In millions, except percentages)
North America 501 22% 743 23% 68E 23%
Europe and Africi 771 35%  1,19¢ 3%  1,18: 40%
Asia-Pacific 884 40% 1,147 36% 96¢& 33%
South Americe 64 3% 11€ 4% 11¢ 4%
Total 2,22((1) 3,19¢1) 2,95:(1)

(1) Excludes inter-segment sales of $383 million, $6iflion and $660 million for the years ended Decem®1,
2009, 2008 and 2007, respective

Acetyl Intermediates markets its products bothdiyeto customers and through distributors.

Acetic acid, VAM and acetic anhydride are globasibesses which have several large customers. Ggnera
supply these global customers under multi-yearrectg. The customers of acetic acid, VAM and aastitydride
produce polymers used in water-based paints, athggaper coatings, polyesters, film modifierarmiaceuticals,
cellulose acetate and textiles. We have long-staniilationships with most of these customers.

Solvents and derivatives are sold to a diversemuoduegional and multinational customers both undelti-year
contracts and on the basis of long-standing relatigs. The customers of solvents and derivativepamarily
engaged in the production of paints, coatings afésives. We manufacture formaldehyde for our osenas well
as for sale to a few regional customers that irelmdnufacturers in the wood products and cheme@atives
industries. The sale of formaldehyde is based @h lomg and short-term agreements. Specialty stdvamd amines
are sold globally to a wide variety of customerangarily in the coatings and resins and the spacjaloducts
industries. These products serve global marketsarsynthetic lubricant, agrochemical, rubber pssg® and other
specialty chemical areas.

» Competition

Our principal competitors in the Acetyl Intermedisitsegment include Atofina S.A., BASF, British Bium PLC,
Chang Chun Petrochemical Co., Ltd., Daicel, DowstEan, DuPont, LyondellBasell Industries, Nipporh&ai,
Perstorp Inc., Jiangsu Sopo Corporation (Group), IStlowa Denko K.K., and Kuraray Co. Ltd.

OTHER ACTIVITIES

Other Activities primarily consists of corporatenter costs, including financing and administrathedivities such as
legal, accounting and treasury functions, inteirestme and expense associated with our financitigitaes, and
our captive insurance companies. Our two wholly-eevoaptive insurance companies are a key compaofient
global risk management program, as well as a fdreeld-insurance for our property, liability and ers
compensation risks. The captive insurance compasses insurance policies to our subsidiaries twige
consistent coverage amid fluctuating costs in tiseriance market and to lower long-term insuransésduy
avoiding or reducing commercial carrier overhead @gulatory fees. The captive insurance compaeian risk a
levels approved by management and obtain reinsareamerage from third parties to limit the net niskained. One
of the captive insurance companies also insurdainghird-party risks.
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INVESTMENTS

We have a significant portfolio of strategic invasnts, including a number of ventures in Asia-Rechorth
America and Europe. In aggregate, these strategastments enjoy significant sales, earnings astl taw. We
have entered into these strategic investmentsd@rdo gain access to local demand, minimize costisaccelerate
growth in areas we believe have significant futusiness potential. See Note 8 to the consolidatadcial
statements for additional information.

The table below represents our significant strategntures as of December 31, 2009:

Year
Location  Ownership Segment Partner(s) Entered
Equity Method Investments
Korea Engineering Plastics Co. L South Korei 5C% Advanced Engineere Mitsubishi Gas Chemici
Materials Company, Inc./Mitsubis|
Corporation 199¢
Polyplastics Co., Ltd Japar 45% Advanced Engineere Daicel Chemica
Materials Industries Ltd 196¢
Fortron Industries LLC us 5C% Advanced Engineere
Materials Kureha Corporatiol 1992
Cost Method Investments
National Methanol Co Saudi Arabi 25% Acetyl Intermediate Saudi Basic Industrie
Corporation (“SABIC”)/
Texas Eastern Arabian
Corporation Ltd 1981
Kunming Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltc China 3C% Consumer Specialtie China National Tobacc
Corporation 199:
Nantong Cellulose Fibers Co. Lt China 31% Consumer Specialtie China National Tobacc
Corporation 198¢€
Zhuhai Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltc China 3C0% Consumer Specialtie China National Tobacc
Corporation 1992

» Major Equity Method Investments

Korea Engineering Plastics Co. Lt Founded in 1987, KEPCO is the leading producqrobfacetal in South Kore
Mitsubishi Gas Chemical Company, Inc. owns 40% Mitdubishi Corporation owns 10% of KEPCO. KEPCO
operates a POM plant in Ulsan, South Korea andcjzates with Polyplastics and Mitsubishi Gas Cheahi
Company, Inc. in a world-scale POM facility in Nang, China.

Polyplastics Co., Ltc We believe Polyplastics is a leading supplierrgfireered plastics in the Asia-Pacific region.
Polyplastics’ principal production facilities ar@chted in Japan, Taiwan, Malaysia and China. We\ae|
Polyplastics is a leading producer and market&®@M in the Asia-Pacific region.

Fortron Industries LLC We believe Fortron Industries LLC (“Fortron”) idesading global producer of PPS.
Fortron’s facility is located in Wilmington, Nort@arolina. We believe Fortron has the leading tetdgyoin linear
polymer applications.

» Major Cost Method Investments

National Methanol Co.“Ibn Sina”). With production facilities in Saudi Arabia, Ibnrairepresents approximately
2% of the world’s methanol production capacity @the world’s eighth largest producer of MTBE. Matol and
MTBE are key global commodity chemical products. Mirectly own a 25% interest in Ibn Sina throughE
Petrochemicals Co., a joint venture with Texas &asfrabian Corporation Ltd. (which also indireatiywns 25%),
with the remainder held by SABIC (50%). SABIC hasponsibility for all product marketing.

China Acetate Products ventured/e hold approximately 30% ownership interests (5@%rd representation) in
three separate Acetate Products production eniiti€hina: the Nantong, Kunming and Zhuhai Cellel&sber
Companies. In each instance, the Chinese stateebt@bacco entity, China National Tobacco Corporgtapntrols
the remainder. The China ventures fund operatisitgguoperating cash flows.
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These cost investments where we own greater tR&%@ownership interest are accounted for undectisemetho
of accounting because we cannot exercise signifioloence over these entities. We determinedweatannot
exercise significant influence over these entities to local government investment in and influeower these
entities, limitations on our involvement in the el@ayday operations and the present inability oféhéties to
provide timely financial information prepared incacdance with generally accepted accounting priasim the
United States (“US GAAP").

* Other Equity Investments

InfraServs. We hold ownership interests in several InfraSenities located in Germany. InfraServs own and
develop industrial parks and provide on-gjemeral and administrative support to tenants.t@ibke below represer
our equity investments in InfraServ ventures aBedember 31, 2009:

Company Ownership %

InfraServ GmbH & Co. Gendorf K 3%
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Knapsack K 27%
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst K 32%

Raw Materials and Energy

We purchase a variety of raw materials and enexgy Sources in many countries for use in our prédanc
processes. We have a policy of maintaining, whezil@ve, multiple sources of supply for materiddewever,
some of our individual plants may have single sesiaf supply for some of their raw materials, sasttarbon
monoxide, steam and acetaldehyde. Although we haga able to obtain sufficient supplies of raw malg, there
can be no assurance that unforeseen developmédhtetaffect our raw material supply. Even if wavie multiple
sources of supply for a raw material, there candassurance that these sources can make up flasthef a major
supplier. There cannot be any guarantee that philitty will not be affected should we be requitedqualify
additional sources of supply to our specificationthe event of the loss of a sole supplier. Initald, the price of
raw materials varies, often substantially, fromnteayear.

A substantial portion of our products and raw materare commaodities whose prices fluctuate as etark
supply/demand fundamentals change. Our producticitities rely largely on fuel oil, natural gas agléctricity for
energy. Most of the raw materials for our Europeperations are centrally purchased by one of cosidiaries,
which also buys raw materials on behalf of thirdipa. We manage our exposure through forward @seh
contracts, long-term supply agreements and mudi-peirchasing and sales agreements. During 2008jdveot
enter into any commodity financial derivative cantis. See Note 2 and Note 22 to the consolidatedhdial
statements for additional information.

We also currently purchase and lease suppliesr@usaprecious metals, such as rhodium, used afysts for the
manufacture of Acetyl Intermediates products. Fecjpus metals, the leases are distributed betaarimimum of
three lessors per product and are divided intora¢eentracts.

Research and Development

All of our businesses conduct research and devedopactivities to increase competitiveness. Ouimasses are
innovation-oriented and conduct research and dpuaat activities to develop new, and optimize éxist
production technologies, as well as to develop cencially viable new products and applications. \WWasider the
amount spent during each of the last three fiseaty on research and development activities taleguate to drive
our strategic initiatives.

Intellectual Property

We attach great importance to patents, trademeoksjrights and product designs in order to pradectinvestment
in research and development, manufacturing andetiagk Our policy is to seek the widest possiblatgetion for
significant product and process developments imaajor markets. Patents may cover processes, piduc
intermediate products and product uses. We aldotegegister trademarks extensively as a
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means of protecting the brand names of our proguttieh brand names become more important once the
corresponding products or process patents haveeekWe protect our trademarks vigorously agaimsingement
and also seek to register design protection whapeopriate.

In most industrial countries, patent protectiorsexior new substances and formulations, as wétirasnique
applications and production processes. Howevedaveusiness in regions of the world where intellatproperty
protection may be limited and difficult to enfor&¥e maintain strict information security policiasdsprocedures
wherever we do business. Such information secpdtigies and procedures include data encryptionfrots over
the disclosure and safekeeping of confidentialrimfation, as well as employee awareness trainingebier, we
monitor our competitors and vigorously defend anfibece infringements on our intellectual propeights.

Neither Celanese nor any particular business segisematerially dependent upon any one particutaept,
trademark, copyright or trade secret.

» Trademarks

AOPIus®2, AOPIus®, VAntage®, VAntage Plus“, BuyTiconaDirecf™, CelaneX?, Celcon®, Celstrar®,
Celvolit®, Compel®, Erkol®, GUR®, Hostaforn®, Impet®, Mowilith ®, Nutrinova®, Riteflex®, Sunett®,
Vandar®, Vectra®, Vinamul®, EcoVAE®, Duroset®, Ateva®, Acetex® and certain other products and services
named in this document are trademarks, servicesmarkegistered trademarks of Celanese. The fanggsinot
intended to be an exhaustive or comprehensiveflisll trademarks, service marks or registeredemnaarks owned

by Celanese. Fortrdhis a registered trademark of Fortron Industries |La®@enture of Celanese.

Environmental and Other Regulation

Matters pertaining to environmental and other rajoihs are discussed li@m 1A. Risk Factorsltem 7.
Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial ConditiamdaResults of Operations — Critical Accounting
Policies and Estimate— Accounting for Commitments and Contingencigsd Note 16 and Note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Employees

As of December 31, 2009, we had 7,400 employeeklwimte. The following table sets forth the approaim
number of employees on a continuing basis.

Employees as of
December 31, 200!

North America

us 2,50(C
Canade 25C
Mexico 70C
Total 3,45(
Europe
Germany 1,60(
Other Europ 1,60(
Total 3,20(
Asia 70C
Rest of World 50
Total 7,40(C

Many of our employees are unionized, particulanlysermany, Canada, Mexico, Brazil, Belgium and Eean
However, in the United States, less than one quafteur employees are unionized. Moreover, in Garynand
France, wages and general working conditions aendhe subject of centrally negotiated collectiaegaining
agreements. Within the limits established by theggeements, our various subsidiaries negotiatettirevith the
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unions and other labor organizations, such as wsrkeuncils, representing the employees. Collectiargaining
agreements between the German chemical employssiasons and unions relating to remuneration galyehave
a term of one year, while in the United Statesredlyear term for collective bargaining agreementgpical. We
offer comprehensive benefit plans for employeesthad families and believe our relations with eoydes are
satisfactory.

Backlog

We do not consider backlog to be a significantéathr of the level of future sales activity. In geal, we do not
manufacture our products against a backlog of srd&oduction and inventory levels are based otethed of
incoming orders as well as projections of futurmdad. Therefore, we believe that backlog informmaigonot
material to understanding our overall businesssiraaild not be considered a reliable indicator afahility to
achieve any particular level of revenue or finahp&formance.

Available Information — Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Filings and Corporate Governance
Materials

We make available free of charge, through our eewebsite (http://www.celanese.com), our annejbrts on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, curmemorts on Form 8-K and amendments to those refiladisor
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) ofSkeurities Exchange Act of 1934, as soon as raaspn
practicable after electronically filing such magérivith, or furnishing it to, the SEC. The SEC ntains an Internet
site that contains reports, proxy and informatitatesnents, and other information regarding issuecfijding
Celanese Corporation, that electronically file vilie SEC at http://www.sec.gov.

We also make available free of charge, throughiernet website, our Corporate Governance Guidslof our
Board of Directors and the charters of each ottiramittees of the Board. Such materials are aladable in print
upon the written request of any shareholder to 1@&sa Corporation, 1601 West LBJ Freeway, Dallaga3e
75234-6034, Attention: Investor Relations.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Many factors could have an effect on our financiahdition, cash flows and results of operations.akgesubject tc
various risks resulting from changing economic,iemmmental, political, industry, business and ficai
conditions. The factors described below representpoincipal risks.

Risks Related to Our Business

The worldwide economic downturn and difficult cortéins in the global capital and credit markets haaéected
and may continue to adversely affect our businesswell as the industries of many of our customarsd
suppliers, which are cyclical in nature

Some of the markets in which our end-use custopeticipate, such as the automotive, electricalstmiction and
textile industries, are cyclical in nature, thusipg a risk to us which is beyond our control. Ehesrkets are
highly competitive, to a large extent driven by arsg markets, and may experience overcapacitgf alhich may
affect demand for and pricing of our products.

Recent declines in consumer and business confidemtepending, together with severe reductionken t
availability and cost of credit and volatility ihe capital and credit markets, have adversely @&fethe business a
economic environment in which we operate and tléitability of our business. Our business is expbserisks
associated with the creditworthiness of our keypfieps, customers and business partners. In p&atiouve are
exposed to risks associated with reduced levedsittfimotive and textile production and declinesimtiousing
market. These conditions have resulted in finanoghbility or other adverse effects at many af suppliers,
customers or business partners. The consequensastofidverse effects could include the interruptid
production at the facilities of our customers, tb@uction, delay or cancellation of customer ordeetays in or the
inability of customers to obtain financing to puask our products, delays or interruptions of thmpkuof raw
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materials we purchase and bankruptcy of custorsapgliers or other creditors. The continuationrof af these
events may adversely affect our cash flow, profiitgland financial condition.

During 2008 and 2009, as a result of the economentiurn, lenders and institutional investors rediuaed, in som
cases, ceased to provide funding to borrowers fedube availability of liquidity and credit to fdrnor support the
continuation and expansion of business operatiamtdwide. Although the markets have stabilized ei2008,
future disruption of the credit markets could adedy affect our customer’s access to credit whighpsrts the
continuation and expansion of their businessesdwadie and could result in contract cancellationsuspensions,
payment delays or defaults by our customers.

We are a company with operations around the worltlaare exposed to general economic, political and
regulatory conditions and risks in the countries imhich we have significant operations.

We operate in the global market and have custoimemany countries. We have major facilities prirhalbcated in
North America, Europe and Asia, and hold interestgentures that operate in the US, Germany, Chiapan, Sou
Korea, Taiwan and Saudi Arabia. Our principal costts are similarly global in scope, and the prifesur most
significant products are typically world marketqas. Consequently, our business and financialtsears affected,
directly and indirectly, by world economic, poldicand regulatory conditions.

In addition to the worldwide economic downturn, ditions such as the uncertainties associated wéth terrorist
activities, epidemics, pandemics, weather or malitinstability in any of the countries in which wperate could
affect us by causing delays or losses in the supptielivery of raw materials and products, as wslincreasing
security costs, insurance premiums and other exgefifiese conditions could also result in or lemgtconomic
recession in the United States, Europe, Asia avéisre.

Moreover, changes in laws or regulations, suchnaspected changes in regulatory requirements @mfuimport
or export licensing requirements), or changes énréporting requirements of the United States, Garor Europee
Union (“EU”") governmental agencies, could incretigecost of doing business in these regions. Arthede
conditions may have an effect on our business maadial results as a whole and may result in vlelatirrent and
future prices for our securities, including ourckto

In particular, we have invested significant resesrin China and other Asian countries. This regigmbwth has
slowed and we may fail to realize the anticipatedddits associated with our investment there amdioancial
results may be adversely impacted.

We are subject to risks associated with the inceghsgolatility in the prices and availability of kenxaw materials
and energy.

We purchase significant amounts of natural gay|etle and methanol from third parties for use ingoduction o
basic chemicals in the Acetyl Intermediates segnmiricipally formaldehyde, acetic acid and VAM. Wee a
portion of our output of these chemicals, in t@sjnputs in the production of further productslirour business
segments. We also purchase significant amount®otivulp for use in our production of cellulosetatein the
Consumer Specialties segment. The price of matiyesie items is dependent on the available suppydi item
and may increase significantly as a result of petida disruptions or strikes. For example, the anpkd shutdown
of our Clear Lake, Texas facility during 2007 tdgatwith other tight supply conditions caused arsiye of acetic
acid and increased the price for such product.

We are exposed to volatility in the prices of cawmaterials and energy. Although we have agreesymoviding
for the supply of natural gas, ethylene, wood palectricity and fuel oil, the contractual prices these raw
materials and energy vary with market conditiond aray be highly volatile. Factors that have caus#dtility in
our raw material prices in the past and which magalin the future include:

. Shortages of raw materials due to increasing depegd from growing uses or new us

. Capacity constraints, e.g., due to constructioayggllabor disruption or involuntary shutdow
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. The general level of business and economic actisitd
. The direct or indirect effect of governmental regian.

If we are not able to fully offset the effects adler energy and raw material costs, or if suchroodities were
unavailable, it could have a significant adverdeafon our financial results.

Failure to develop new products and production tecdtogies or to implement productivity and cost rexdion
initiatives successfully may harm our competitivegition.

Our operating results, especially in our Consunpercilties and Advanced Engineered Materials setpndapend
significantly on the development of commerciallglie new products, product grades and applicatemwiell as
production technologies. If we are unsuccessfalineloping new products, applications and prodagbimcesses
the future, our competitive position and operatiesults may be negatively affected. Likewise, weehandertaken
and are continuing to undertake initiatives inbaliness segments to improve productivity and perdoce and to
generate cost savings. These initiatives may nobbgpleted or beneficial or the estimated costrggs/from such
activities may not be realized.

Recent federal regulations aimed at increasing sefyuat certain chemical production plants and sitar
legislation that may be proposed in the future cdulf passed into law, require us to relocate cémta
manufacturing activities and require us to alter aliscontinue our production of certain chemical pdacts,
thereby increasing our operating costs and causamyadverse effect on our results of operations.

Regulations have recently been issued by the U%irapnt of Homeland Security (‘“DHS&med at decreasing t
risk, and effects, of potential terrorist attacksotemical plants located within the United StaRgsuant to these
regulations, these goals would be accomplisheaihtprough the requirement that certain high-fyjdacilities
develop a prevention, preparedness, and respoasafter conducting a vulnerability assessmenadidition,
companies may be required to evaluate the poggibiiiusing less dangerous chemicals and techredaag part of
their vulnerability assessments and preventionspéard implementing feasible safer technologiesdeioto
minimize potential damage to their facilities fraerrorist attack. We have registered certainuofsites with DHS
in accordance with these regulations, and are aimduvulnerability assessments for our sites amtd that is done
we cannot state with certainty the costs associatttdany security plans that DHS may require. Ehegulations
may be revised further, and additional legislatizaly be proposed in the future on this topic. fiassible that such
future legislation could contain terms that are en@strictive than what has recently been passeavairch would
be more costly to us. We cannot predict the finaif of currently pending legislation, or other tethlegislation
that may be passed and can provide no assurartcaittialegislation will not have an adverse effatour results
of operations in a future reporting period.

Environmental regulations and other obligations raing to environmental matters could subject usli@bility for
fines, clean-ups and other damages, require us to incugrsficant costs to modify our operations and increa
our manufacturing and delivery costs.

Costs related to our compliance with environmelatak and regulations, and potential obligationdwitspect to
contaminated sites may have a significant negatiyeact on our operating results. These obligatinokde the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatidhiability Act of 1980 (“CERCLA”") and the Resaar
Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 (“RCRA”) tethto sites currently or formerly owned or opeddtg us, or
where waste from our operations was disposed. Wetalve obligations related to the indemnity agergm
contained in the demerger and transfer agreeméweba Celanese GmbH and Hoechst, also referresl tteea
demerger agreement, for environmental mattersnarisit of certain divestitures that took place ptiothe
demerger.

Our operations are subject to extensive internatjorational, state, local and other supranatitava$ and
regulations that govern environmental and healthsaiety matters, including CERCLA and RCRA. Weauinc
substantial capital and other costs to comply Witlse requirements. If we violate them, we candie lable for
substantial fines and other sanctions, includinmtéitions on our operations as a result of chabges revocations
of environmental permits involved. Stricter envineental, safety and health laws, regulations andreafment
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policies could result in substantial costs andiliidds to us or limitations on our operations asalild subject our
handling, manufacture, use, reuse or disposallestances or pollutants to more rigorous scrutilay tht present.
Consequently, compliance with these laws and réigasicould result in significant capital expenditsias well as
other costs and liabilities, which could causelmusiness and operating results to be less favothbieexpected.
An adverse outcome in these claim procedures mgatively affect our earnings and cash flows in dipalar
reporting period.

Changes in environmental, health and safety regudats in the jurisdictions where we manufacture arsell our
products could lead to a decrease in demand for prwducts.

New or revised governmental regulations and inddeenstudies relating to the effect of our productdealth
safety and the environment may affect demand fopoaducts and the cost of producing our products.

In June 2009, the California Office of Environmdiaalth Hazard Assessment (*OEHHA”) formally preed to
list vinyl acetate monomer (“VAM"), along with 1Xher substances, to a list of chemicals “knowrhtogtate of
California” to cause cancer. OEHHA is required taimtain this list under the Safe Drinking Water drmokic
Enforcement Act of 1986 (“Proposition 65”). Celaadited comments in opposition to the proposedhigsbecause
the listing was not based on a scientific reviewhef relevant data and the legal standard for gddiM to the
Proposition 65 list had not been met. Celanesefid¢sban action in the Sacramento County Supen@murt
seeking declaration that OEHHA'’s proposed listifiy AM would be contrary to law. The Superior Cogranted
Celanese’s request for relief. It is anticipateat @EHHA will appeal that decision.

We can provide no assurance that the SacramentatyC8uperior Court decision will be affirmed on apj or that
VAM or other chemicals we produce will not be ciéisd in other jurisdictions in a manner that woaldversely
affect demand for such products.

We are a producer of formaldehyde and plasticvddrirom formaldehyde. Several studies have ingattt
possible links between formaldehyde exposure andwsend points including leukemia. The InternadibAgency
for Research on Cancer (“IARC"), a private reseagéncy, has reclassified formaldehyde from Groip 2
(probable human carcinogen) to Group 1 (known huozaicinogen) based on studies linking formaldehyde
exposure to nasopharyngeal cancer, a rare canhamans. In October 2009, IARC also concluded baseal
recent study that there is sufficient evidenceafoasual association between formaldehyde andethed@pment of
leukemia. We expect the results of IARC's revievl v examined and considered by government agenvité
responsibility for setting worker and environmer@aposure standards and labeling requirements.

Other pending initiatives will potentially requitexicological testing and risk assessments of awatiety of
chemicals, including chemicals used or producedsylhese initiatives include the Voluntary ChiliseChemical
Evaluation Program, High Production Volume Chemin#lative and expected modifications to the Toxic
Substances Control Act (TSCA) in the United Staésssyell as various European Commission progrant$y as thi
Registration, Evaluation, Authorization and Resiic of Chemicals (REACh).

The above-mentioned assessments in the UnitedsStateEurope may result in heightened concernst dbeu
chemicals involved and additional requirements ¢p@ilaced on the production, handling, labeling ¥ af the
subject chemicals. Such concerns and additionain@ments could also increase the cost incurredusycustomers
to use our chemical products and otherwise lingtike of these products, which could lead to aedserin demand
for these products. Such a decrease in demand Wkelgl have an adverse impact on our businessesults of
operations.

We are subject to risks associated with possibimate change legislation, regulation and internatial accords.

Greenhouse gas emissions have increasingly bedwmsibject of a large amount of international,orel,
regional, state and local attention. Cap and tiaitiatives to limit greenhouse gas emissions Hasen introduced
the EU. Similarly, numerous bills related to clim@ahange have been introduced in the US Congrésshwould
adversely impact all industries. In addition, fetwegulation of greenhouse gas could occur purgodnture US
treaty obligations, statutory or regulatory changeder the Clean Air Act or new climate changedkzgion.
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While not all are likely to become law, this isteosg indication that additional climate changeatet! mandates w
be forthcoming, and it is expected that they mayeeskly impact our costs by increasing energy carstisraw
material prices and establishing costly emissicading schemes and requiring modification of equptn

A step toward potential federal restriction on gte@use gas emissions was taken on December 7 w2€9the
Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) issuedBisdangerment Finding in response to a decisioheof t
Supreme Court of the United States. The EPA fobatthe emission of six greenhouse gases, incluciirigon
dioxide (which is emitted from the combustion o$$d fuels), may reasonably be anticipated to egdapublic
health and welfare. Based on this finding, the Elefined the mix of these six greenhouse gases faibpollution”
subject to regulation under the Clean Air Act. Altigh the EPA has stated a preference that greealyass
regulation be based on new federal legislationeratian the existing Clean Air Act, many sourcegreenhouse
gas emissions may be regulated without the neefdiftrer legislation.

The US Congress is considering legislation thatldoteate an economy-wide “cap-and-trade” systeahwould
establish a limit (or cap) on overall greenhoussgraissions and create a market for the purchakeae of
emissions permits or “allowances.” Under the legdiap-and-trade proposals before Congress, theichlem
industry likely would be affected due to anticightecreases in energy costs as fuel providers gradise cost of the
emissions allowances, which they would be requioeabtain, to cover the emissions from fuel productand the
eventual use of fuel by the Company or its enetgppBers. In addition, cap-and-trade proposals ddikkly
increase the cost of energy, including purchasaseaim and electricity, and certain raw materiatduby the
Company. Other countries are also considering oe iaplemented “cap-and-trade” systems. Futurerenwmiental
regulatory developments related to climate chamggassible, which could materially increase opegatosts in
the chemical industry and thereby increase our faatwring and delivery costs.

Our production facilities handle the processing sbme volatile and hazardous materials that subjestto
operating risks that could have a negative effeat@ur operating results.

Our operations are subject to operating risks aatmtwith chemical manufacturing, including thiated storage
and transportation of raw materials, products aadte These risks include, among other things/ipgeand
storage tank leaks and ruptures, explosions aed &éind discharges or releases of toxic or hazasidistances.

These operating risks can cause personal injuopgsty damage and environmental contamination naawyl result
in the shutdown of affected facilities and the irsiion of civil or criminal penalties. The occurmof any of these
events may disrupt production and have a negatfeeteon the productivity and profitability of a gteular
manufacturing facility and our operating resultds aash flows.

Production at our manufacturing facilities could bdisrupted for a variety of reasons, which couldegwent us
from producing enough of our products to maintairuo sales and satisfy our custom¢ demands.

A disruption in production at our manufacturingiféies could have a material adverse effect onlmusiness.
Disruptions could occur for many reasons, including natural disasters, weather, unplanned miaartee or other
manufacturing problems, disease, strikes, tranaportinterruption, government regulation or teigor. Alternative
facilities with sufficient capacity or capabilitiesay not be available, may cost substantially noonmay take a
significant time to start production, each of whaduld negatively affect our business and finangeéformance. If
one of our key manufacturing facilities is unaligtoduce our products for an extended periodneé tiour sales
may be reduced by the shortfall caused by the plignu and we may not be able to meet our custonmemsds,
which could cause them to seek other suppliersekample, during 2007, production was disruptechfoextended
period of time at our Clear Lake, Texas facilitgttproduces primarily acetic acid and VAM. The djgion was
caused by an unplanned outage of our acetic adidBetause of this disruption, the volumes of Aaetyl
Intermediates segment were lower than we had exgdot 2007 as we were unable to fully offset s |
production. Similar outages could occur in the fatfirom unexpected disruptions at any of our othanufacturing
facilities of key products. Such outages could havedverse effect on our results of operatioristure reporting
periods.
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Our business and financial results may be adversaffected by various legal and regulatory proceegsn

We are subject to legal and regulatory proceediiagsuits and claims in the normal course of bussrend could
become subject to additional claims in the futsmme of which could be material. The outcome oting
proceedings, lawsuits and claims may differ from expectations because the outcomes of litigatiarding
regulatory matters, are often difficult to relialgyedict. Various factors or developments can lesitb change
current estimates of liabilities and related insgrreceivables where applicable, or make suchmatgs for matters
previously not susceptible to reasonable estimates) as a significant judicial ruling or judgmemsignificant
settlement, significant regulatory developmentsg;l@anges in applicable law. A future adverse rylsgtiement, or
unfavorable development could result in chargesdbald have a material adverse effect on our lassinresults of
operations or financial condition in any particuteriod. For a more detailed discussion of ourllpgaceedings, st
Item 3. Legal Proceedin¢below.

We may experience unexpected difficulties and ineurexpected costs in the relocation of our Ticonkmt from
Kelsterbach to the Rhine Main area, which may inase our costs, delay the transition or disrupt ability to
supply our customers

We have agreed with Frankfurt, Germany Airport @iport”) to relocate our Kelsterbach, Germany bussne
resolving several years of legal disputes relatetieé planned Frankfurt airport expansion. As altex the
settlement, we will transition Ticona’'s operatidram Kelsterbach to another location in Germanyrhgl-2011. In
July 2007, we announced that we would relocat&#isterbach, Germany business to the Hoechst InduBark ir
the Rhine Main area. Over a five-year period, Frapgreed to pay Ticona a total of €670 millioroféset the costs
associated with the transition of the business fitsraurrent location and the closure of the Kelsieh plant. While
the settlement and related payment amount was nieaetcosteutral and represent the amount required to sa
site, build new production facilities, demolish @obduction facilities and transition business\atiéis according to
schedule and without any disruptions to customppki we may encounter unexpected costs or otlicudties
during the relocation process that bring the totasits of the relocation to an amount greater tharcbompensation
provided by Fraport. The relocation of these ftie#i represents a major logistical undertaking,\aeanay have
underestimated the amount that will be requirechtoy out every aspect of the relocation. We mag line services
of valuable experienced employees during the ttiansif they decide not to work at the new locatidhe
construction of the new facilities may not be coet@lon time or may face cost overruns. If our cotting to the
relocation exceed the amount of payments from RFtapaf the relocation causes other unexpecteficdifies, our
expenses may increase or supplies to our custamerde disrupted.

If supply to our customers is disrupted for an edtEd period, this could negatively impact the rapah of this
business and result in the loss of customers. 8fiebts could have an adverse impact on our restittperations i
future periods.

Our significant nonUS operations expose us to global exchange ratetflations that could adversely impact o
profitability.

Because we conduct a significant portion of ourrapens outside the United States, fluctuationsuinmencies of
other countries, especially the Euro, may matgriafifect our operating results. For example, changeurrency
exchange rates may decrease our profits in conguatisthe profits of our competitors on the samapcts sold in
the same markets and increase the cost of iterngeegn our operations.

A substantial portion of our net sales is denongidan currencies other than the US dollar. In mmsolidated
financial statements, we translate our local cuydimancial results into US dollars based on ageraxchange rat
prevailing during a reporting period or the exchangte at the end of that period. During times sfrangthening
US dollar our reported international sales, eamiagsets and liabilities will be reduced becaeddcal currency
will translate into fewer US dollars.

In addition to currency translation risks, we inautcurrency transaction risk whenever one of o@ratng
subsidiaries enters into either a purchase ores $elnsaction using a currency different fromaperating
subsidiary’s functional currency. Given the vol&tibf exchange rates, we may not be able to manageurrency
transaction and translation risks effectively, anthtility in currency exchange rates may exposefimancial
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condition or results of operations to a significadtlitional risk. Since a portion of our indebtesies and will be
denominated in currencies other than US dollaveeakening of the US dollar could make it more difft for us to
repay our indebtedness.

We use financial instruments to hedge our exposufereign currency fluctuations, but we cannotrgnéee that
our hedging strategies will be effective. Failureffectively manage these risks could have anraévienpact on
our financial position, results of operations aadlcflows.

Significant changes in pension fund investment pemfnance or assumptions relating to pension costsyrhave a
material effect on the valuation of pension obligans, the funded status of pension plans and ounp®n cost.

The cost of our pension plans is incurred over lpadods of time and involves many uncertaintiesriduthose
periods of time. Our funding policy for pensionipdas to accumulate plan assets that, over theriomgwill
approximate the present value of projected benbfigations. Our pension cost is materially affedby the
discount rate used to measure pension obligatihaedevel of plan assets available to fund thodigations at the
measurement date and the expected long-term rageush on plan assets. Significant changes insitment
performance or a change in the portfolio mix ofésted assets can result in corresponding increasedecreases
the valuation of plan assets, particularly equétgwsities, or in a change of the expected ratetofin on plan assets.
During 2008, the value of our plan assets declsigdificantly due to the decline in the overall ggunarkets. A
change in the discount rate would result in a §iicamt increase or decrease in the valuation ofjpenobligations,
affecting the reported funded status of our penplans as well as the net periodic pension costérfollowing
fiscal years. In recent years, an extended durati@iegy in the asset portfolio has been implestetd minimize
the influence of liability volatility due to intesérate movements. Similarly, changes in the exgoeiaturn on plan
assets can result in significant changes in thepaébdic pension cost for subsequent fiscal ydatse value of our
pension fund’s portfolio declines or does not perfas expected or if our experience with the fuealls us to
change our assumptions regarding the fund, we raagdpuired to contribute additional capital to fined.

Our future success will depend in part on our alylito protect our intellectual property rights. Ounability to
enforce these rights could reduce our ability to intin our market position and our profit margins.

We attach great importance to our patents, tradesneopyrights and product designs in order togmtobur
investment in research and development, manufagiamd marketing. We also license patents and telcnolog)
from third parties. Our policy is to seek the widegssible protection for significant product andgess
developments in our major markets. Patents mayrqmeeesses, products, intermediate products aodlipt uses.
Protection for individual products extends for viagyperiods in accordance with the date of patpptieation filing
and the legal life of patents in the various caestrThe protection afforded, which may also vaoyf country to
country, depends upon the type of patent and @pesof coverage. As patents expire, the produatparcesses
described and claimed in those patents become agnavailable for use by the public. We also stekegister
trademarks extensively as a means of protectingrdwed names of our products, which brand namesnbeenore
important once the corresponding product or propassnts have expired. Our continued growth styategy bring
us to regions of the world where intellectual pmp@rotection may be limited and difficult to enée. If we are not
successful in protecting or maintaining our patéogénse, trademark or other intellectual propeigits, our
revenues, results of operations and cash flowsheadversely affected.

Provisions in certificate of incorporation and byes, as well as any sharehold' rights plan, may discourage a
takeover attempt.

Provisions contained in our certificate of incomarn and bylaws could make it more difficult fotrerd party to
acquire us, even if doing so might be beneficialuo shareholders. Provisions of our certificatinabrporation an
bylaws impose various procedural and other requeérgs) which could make it more difficult for shapéders to
effect certain corporate actions. For example,ceutificate of incorporation authorizes our Boafdarectors to
determine the rights, preferences, privileges astrictions of unissued series of preferred stadthout any vote ¢
action by our shareholders. Thus, our Board of @ies can authorize and issue shares of prefetoe# with

24




Table of Contents

voting or conversion rights that could adversefgeafthe voting or other rights of holders of o@ri®s A common
stock. These rights may have the effect of delagindeterring a change of control of our Companyaddition, a
change of control of our company may be delayedketerred as a result of our having three classdgegttors
(each class elected for a three year term) orrasut of any shareholders’ rights plan that ouamloof Directors
may adopt. These provisions could limit the pritat tcertain investors might be willing to pay ie fluture for
shares of our Series A common stock.

Risks Related to the Acquisition of Celanese GmbHoprmerly Celanese AG

The amounts of the fair cash compensation and oé thuaranteed annual payment offered under the doation
and profit and loss transfer agreement (“Dominatiohgreement”) and/or the compensation paid in contiea
with the squeeze-out may be increased, which mathier reduce the funds the Purchaser can otherwisake
available to us.

Several minority shareholders of Celanese GmbH hdtiated special award proceedings seeking thetso
review of the amounts of the fair cash compensatiwhof the guaranteed annual payment offered uhder
Domination Agreement. On December 12, 2006, thaekfuat District Court appointed an expert to hefgaetmine
the value of Celanese AG as of July 31, 2004, cichvttate an extraordinary shareholder meeting tdrigse AG
was held to resolve the Domination Agreement. Assalt of these proceedings, the amounts of tmeéaih
compensation and of the guaranteed annual payroalt be increased by the court, and the Purchaseidvbe
required to make such payments within two montter aéfie publication of the coustruling. Any such increase m
be substantial. All minority shareholders wouldemtitled to claim the respective higher amountss Tilay reduce
the funds the Purchaser can make available todisaacordingly, diminish our ability to make payrtean our
indebtedness. See Note 24 to the consolidateddialastatements for further information.

The Company also received applications for the cemsament of award proceedings filed by 79 sharehsld
against the Purchaser with the Frankfurt Districti€ requesting the court to set a higher amountti® Squeeze-
Out compensation. Should the court set a higherevidr the Squeeze-Out compensation, former CetaA€s
shareholders who ceased to be shareholders of &elakG due to the Squeeze-Out are entitled, pursoian
settlement agreement between the Purchaser amdhcientmer Celanese AG shareholders, to claimtfeirtshares
the higher of the compensation amounts determigetdcourt in these different proceedings. Preslipteceived
compensation for their shares will be offset sd thase shareholders who ceased to be shareholfd€sanese A(
due to the Squeeze-Out are not entitled to mone hiigher of the amount set in the two court proaegsd

The Purchaser may be required to compensate Celar@mbH for annual losses, which may reduce the fend
the Purchaser can otherwise make available to us.

Under the Domination Agreement, the Purchasergsired, among other things, to compensate Cela@GedeH for
any annual loss incurred, determined in accordariteGerman accounting requirements, by Celanesbibat the
end of the fiscal year in which the loss was inedriThis obligation to compensate Celanese Gmbldrfoual
losses will apply during the entire term of the Divation Agreement. If Celanese GmbH incurs lossgig any
period of the operative term of the Domination Agreent and if such losses lead to an annual lo€glainese
GmbH at the end of any given fiscal year duringtéren of the Domination Agreement, the Purchasérbgi
obligated to make a corresponding cash paymenekan@se GmbH to the extent that the respectiveadhoss is
not fully compensated for by the dissolution offfireeserves accrued at the level of Celanese Guhrithg the terr
of the Domination Agreement. The Purchaser maybte ta reduce or avoid cash payments to CelanedeHZg
off-setting against such loss compensation clain€délanese GmbH any valuable counterclaims ag@elsinese
GmbH that the Purchaser may have. If the Purchasdligated to make cash payments to Celanese Gmbbiver
an annual loss, we may not have sufficient fundaaie payments on our indebtedness when due aledstthe
Purchaser is able to obtain funds from a sourcerdttan annual profits of Celanese GmbH, the Pgerhaay not
be able to satisfy its obligation to fund such #fadir See Note 24 to the consolidated financiatesnents. Since the
Domination Agreement has been terminated effeets/ef December 31, 2009, there will be no obligaty the
Purchaser to compensate Celanese GmbH for anyslossered after December 31, 2009.
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We and two of our subsidiaries have taken on cemtabligations with respect to the Purcha¢s obligation under
the Domination Agreement and intercompany indebteds to Celanese GmbH, which may diminish our alilid
make payments on our indebtedness.

Our subsidiaries, Celanese International Holdingselmbourg S.a r.l. (“CIH"), formerly Celanese Cayldoldings
Luxembourg S.C.A., and Celanese US, have eachdpgwovide the Purchaser with financing so that t
Purchaser is at all times in a position to compjateeet its obligations under, or in connectionhythe Domination
Agreement. In addition, Celanese has guaranteiafithe Purchaser will meet its obligation unither Domination
Agreement to compensate Celanese GmbH for any hlussancurred by Celanese GmbH during the terithef
Domination Agreement; and (ii) the repayment ofeadisting intercompany indebtedness of Celanessssidiaries
to Celanese GmbH. Further, under the terms of @skia guarantee, in certain limited circumstancdarise
GmbH may be entitled to require the immediate repayt of some or all of the intercompany indebtedrmged by
Celanese’s subsidiaries to Celanese GmbH. If CiidaarCelanese US are obligated to make paymentsruhelir
obligations to the Purchaser or Celanese GmbHesdse may be, or if the intercompany indebtedowssl to
Celanese GmbH is accelerated, we may not havessuffifunds for payments on our indebtedness wiuen Since
the Domination Agreement has been terminated éffees of December 31, 2009, there will be no atian by the
Purchaser to compensate Celanese GmbH for anyslossered after December 31, 2009 and our subg&disvill
be released from their obligations.

Risks Related to Our Indebtedness

See alsdtem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis odff@mal Condition and Results of Operations —
Liquidity and Capital Resource— Debt and Other Obligations.

Our level of indebtedness could diminish our ahjlito raise additional capital to fund our operatignlimit our
ability to react to changes in the economy or theemicals industry and prevent us from meeting olalipns
under our indebtedness.

Our total indebtedness is approximately $3.5 bilis of December 31, 2009.
Our debt could have important consequences, inodudi

* increasing vulnerability to general economid &ndustry conditions including exacerbating adyease business
effects that are determined to be material advefifeets under our senior credit facility;

* requiring a substantial portion of cash flawrfi operations to be dedicated to the paymentio€ipal and
interest on indebtedness, therefore reducing ailityao use our cash flow to fund operations, ¢apéxpenditures
and future business opportunities;

» exposing us to the risk of increased interatss as certain of our borrowings are at varigdties of interest;

» limiting our ability to obtain additional fimeing for working capital, capital expenditurespguct development,
debt service requirements, acquisitions and gererabrate or other purposes; and

+ limiting our ability to adjust to changing nkat conditions and placing us at a competitive dirsatage
compared to our competitors who have less debt.

A breach of a covenant or other provision in anlgtdiestrument governing our current or future inelmess could
result in a default under that instrument and, tduerossdefault provisions, could result in a default under senio
credit facility. Upon the occurrence of an eventlefault under the senior credit facility, the lerglcould elect to
declare all amounts outstanding to be immediatety ahd payable and terminate all commitments tenekturther
credit. If we were unable to repay those amouhts)énders could proceed against the collaterahyf granted to
them to secure the indebtedness. If the lendersrithd senior credit facility were to accelerat playment of the
indebtedness, there is no guarantee that our amsedsh flow would be sufficient to repay in falir outstanding
indebtedness.
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Moreover, the terms of our existing debt do nolyfprohibit us or our subsidiaries from incurringpstantial
additional indebtedness in the future. If new detsluding amounts available under our senior ¢ragieement, is
added to our current debt levels, the related tisdswe now face could intensify. See dteon 7. Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition d@elsults of Operatior— Liquidity and Capital Resources —
Debt and Other Obligation:

Our variable rate indebtedness subjects us to ies#rrate risk, which could cause our debt serviddigations to
increase significantly and affect our operating rels.

Certain of our borrowings are at variable ratemtdrest and expose us to interest rate risk téra@st rates were to
increase, our debt service obligations on our Bégisate indebtedness would increase, net of tipadts of hedges
in place. As of December 31, 2009, we had $2.1ohill€440 million and CNY 1.4 billion of variablate debt, of
which $1.6 billion and €150 million is hedged wittterest rate swaps, which leaves $643 million,0é28llion and
CNY 1.4 billion of variable rate debt subject toeirest rate exposure. Accordingly, a 1% increaseterest rates
would increase annual interest expense by appragln@l3 million.

Our senior credit agreement consists of $2,280anibf US dollar denominated and €400 million ofr&u
denominated term loans due 2014, a $600 millioolwéwg credit facility terminating in 2013 and aZ@million
credit-linked revolving facility terminating in 2@1 Borrowings under the senior credit agreement inéerest at a
variable interest rate based on LIBOR (for US ds)lar EURIBOR (for Euros), as applicable, or, {8 dollar
denominated loans under certain circumstancessaade, in each case plus an applicable margmapplicable
margin for the term loans and any loans under tbditlinked revolving facility is 1.75%, subjeat potential
reductions as defined in the new senior creditegent. The term loans under the senior credit ageatare
subject to amortization at 1% of the initial pripai amount per annum, payable quarterly, commeninidgly 2007
The remaining principal amount of the term loank @ due on April 2, 2014.

An increase in interest rates could have an advamgact on our future results of operations andhdkmvs. See als
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosurdsoAt Market Ris— Interest Rate Risk Management.

We may not be able to generate sufficient cashaovice our indebtedness, and may be forced to tatker
actions to satisfy obligations under our indebtedse which may not be successful.

Our ability to satisfy our cash needs depends sh oca hand, receipt of additional capital, inclgdpossible
additional borrowings, and receipt of cash from swivsidiaries by way of distributions, advancesash payments.

Our ability to make scheduled payments on or tmagfce our debt obligations depends on the findroiadition
and operating performance of our subsidiaries, Whisubject to prevailing economic and competitigaditions
and to certain financial, business and other fadberyond our control. We may not be able to mairadevel of
cash flows from operating activities sufficientgermit us to pay the principal, premium, if anydamterest on our
indebtedness.

If our cash flows and capital resources are insigffit to fund our debt service obligations, we rhayforced to
reduce or delay capital expenditures, sell asseek additional capital or restructure or refinangeindebtedness.
These alternative measures may not be successfuhay not permit us to meet our scheduled debicerv
obligations. In the absence of such operating tesuld resources, we could face substantial lituptioblems and
might be required to dispose of material assetgperations to meet our debt service and other atitigs. The
senior credit agreement governing our indebtedresgscts our ability to dispose of assets andthiegroceeds
from the disposition. We may not be able to consatenthose dispositions or to obtain the proceedshmie coulc
realize from them and these proceeds may not bguatketo meet any debt service obligations then due

Restrictive covenants in our debt instruments mayit our ability to engage in certain transactiorend may
diminish our ability to make payments on our indeoiness.

The senior credit agreement governing our indelessligcontains various covenants that limit our gt engage i
specified types of transactions. The covenantsagoed in the senior credit agreement limit ourigbib, among
other things, incur additional indebtedness, p&iddinds on or make other distributions on or repase capital
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stock or make other restricted payments, make tmezgs and sell certain assets. Such restrictioosii debt
instruments could result in us having to obtaindbesent of our lenders in order to take certaiioas. Recent
disruptions in credit markets may prevent us frarmake it more difficult or more costly for us tbtain such
consents from our lenders. Our ability to expandbusiness or to address declines in our businegsha limited if
we are unable to obtain such consents.

In addition, the senior credit agreement requietoumaintain a maximum first lien senior secueagetage ratio if
there are outstanding borrowings under the revglemredit facility. Our ability to meet this finamtiratio can be
affected by events beyond our control, and we nmypa able to meet this test at all.

A breach of any of these covenants could reswdtdefault under the senior credit agreement. Uperotcurrence
of an event of default under the senior credit egrent, the lenders could elect to declare all ansooumtstanding
under the senior credit agreement to be immedialiedyand payable and terminate all commitmentstenel
further credit. If we were unable to repay thoseants, the lenders under the senior credit agreecoend proceed
against the collateral granted to them to secwatitidebtedness. Our subsidiaries have pledgeghdisant portion
of our assets as collateral under the senior caggléement. If the lenders under the senior cegpidement
accelerate the repayment of borrowings, we mayawee sufficient assets to repay amounts borroweeéuhe
senior credit agreement as well as their otherlitetiness, which could have a material adverseteaifethe value
of our stock.

The terms of our senior credit agreement limit thbility of Celanese Holdings LLC and its subsidias to pay
dividends or otherwise transfer their assets to us.

Our operations are conducted through our subsédiand our ability to pay dividends is dependertherearnings
and the distribution of funds from our subsidiaridewever, the terms of our senior credit agreertianit the
ability of Celanese Holdings LLC and its subsiddarto pay dividends or otherwise transfer theie@st® us.
Accordingly, our ability to pay dividends on ouosk is similarly limited.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

None.
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Item 2. Properties

Description of Property

We own or lease numerous production and manufactdaicilities throughout the world. We also owrease othe
properties, including office buildings, warehouggpglines, research and development facilitiessaiés offices.
We continuously review and evaluate our facilitissa part of our strategy to optimize our busipestolio. The
following table sets forth a list of our princigaloduction and other facilities throughout the wdaab of

December 31, 2009.

Site

Leased/Ownec

Products/Functions

Corporate Offices
Budapest, Hungar

Dallas, Texas, U:
Kronberg/Taunus, Germair
Mexico City, Mexico

Mexico City, Mexico®)
Advanced Engineered Materials
Auburn Hills, Michigan, U<
Bishop, Texas, U.

Florence, Kentucky, U
Kelsterbach, Germar
Oberhausen, Germai®

Fuji City, Japar

Kuantan, Malaysi

Shelby, North Carolina, U
Suzano, Brazi

Ulsan, South Kore
Wilmington, North Carolina, U:
Winona, Minnesota, U
Nanjing, Chinz®)

Consumer Specialties
Kunming, Chine

Lanaken, Belgiun

Nantong, Ching

Narrows, Virginia, US
Ocotlan, Jalisco, Mexic
Spondon, Derby, Ut
Frankfurt am Main, Germar®
Zhuhai, Chine

Industrial Specialties
Boucherville, Quebec, Cana
Enoree, South Carolina, US

Edmonton, Alberta, Canar
Frankfurt am Main, Germariy)

Geleen, Netherlanc
Guardo, Spain

Meredosia, lllinois, US

Leasec
Leasec
Leasec
Leasec
Owned

Leasec

Owned

Owned

Owned

Leasec

Owned by Polyplastics Co., Lt
Owned by Polyplastics Co., Lt
Owned

Owned

Owned by Korea Engineering Plastics Co., I(7)
Owned by Fortron Industries LL(™
Owned

Leasec

Owned by Kunming Cellulose Fibers Co. L6
Owned

Owned by Nantong Cellulose Fibers Co. L®)
Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned by InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst K7
Owned by Zhuhai Cellulose Fibers Co. L®)

Owned
Owned

Owned
Owned by InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst K&

Owned
Owned

Owned
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Administrative offices
Corporate headquarte
Administrative offices
Administrative offices
Administrative offices

Automotive Development Cent
POM, GUR®, Compounding
Compounding

LFRT, POM, Compoundin
GUR®

POM, PBT, LCP, Compoundir
POM, Compoundint

LCP, PBT, PET, Compoundir
Compounding

POM

PPS

LFRT

LFRT, GUR®

Acetate tow, Acetate flak
Acetate tow

Acetate tow, Acetate flak
Acetate tow, Acetate flak
Acetate tow, Acetate flak
Acetate tow, Acetate flak
Sorbates, Sune® sweetene
Acetate tow, Acetate flak

Conventional emulsior
Conventional emulsions, Vinyl
acetate ethylene emulsio
LDPE, EVA

Conventional emulsions, Vinyl
acetate ethylene emulsio

Vinyl acetate ethylene emulsio
Site is no longer operating as of
December 31, 200!
Conventional emulsions, Vinyl
acetate ethylene emulsio
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Site

Leased/Owned

Products/Functions

Nanjing, Chine®)
Koper, Slovenia
Tarragona, Spaif?)
Perstorp, Sweden
Warrington, UK

Acetyl Intermediates

Bay City, Texas, Ut

Bishop, Texas, U:
Cangrejera, Veracruz, Mexic
Clear Lake, Texas, U
Frankfurt am Main, Germar®
Nanjing, Chinz®)

Pampa, Texas, US

Pardies, France
Roussillon, Franc(®)
Jubail, Saudi Arabi
Jurong Island, Singapof®

Tarragona, Spai®@

Leased

Owned

Owned by Complejo Industrial Tagsa A%
Owned

Owned

Leasec

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned by InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst K7)
Leasec

Owned

Owned

Leasec

Owned by National Methanol Compa(®)

Leased

Owned by Complejo Industrial Tagsa A®)

(1) Site is no longer operational and is currently Heldsale.

(@ Multiple Celanese business segments conduct opesatit the Tarragona site. Celanese owns its asstbts
facility but shares ownership in the land. Cela’s ownership percentage in the land is 1

(3 Multiple Celanese business segments conduct opesadit the Nanjing facility. Celanese owns the tasse this
site, but utilizes the land through the terms tdreg-term land lease

@ Multiple Celanese business segments conduct opesadit the Frankfurt facility

Conventional emulsions, Vinyl
acetate ethylene emulsio

Site is no longer operating as of
December 31, 200!
Conventional emulsions, Vinyl
acetate ethylene emulsio
Conventional emulsions, Vinyl
acetate ethylene emulsio

Site is no longer operating as of
December 31, 200!

VAM

Formaldehydt

Acetic anhydride, Ethyl aceta
Acetic acid, VAM

Acetaldehyde, VAM, Butyl aceta
Acetic acid, Acetic anhydride, VAD
Site is no longer operating as of
December 31, 200!

Site is no longer operating as of
December 31, 200!

Acetic anhydride

Methyl tertiany-butyl ether, Methanc
Acetic acid, Butyl acetate, Ethyl
acetate, VAM

VAM

() Celanese owns the assets on this site, but utifeelnd through the terms of a l-term land lease
® A Celanese cost method investme
(M A Celanese equity method investme

We believe that our current facilities are adequat®eet the requirements of our present and fesdse future
operations. We continue to review our capacity ireguents as part of our strategy to maximize oabal

manufacturing efficiency.

See Note 8 to the consolidated financial statenfent®iore information on our cost and equity metirogestments.

For information on environmental issues associatiéiul our properties, sdéem 1A. Risk Factorandltem 7.
Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial ConditiamdaResults of Operations — Critical Accounting
Policies and Estimate— Accounting for Commitments and Contingencigdditional information with respect to
our property, plant and equipment, and leasesritagted in Note 9 and Note 21 to the consolidaiteahicial

statements.
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Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

We are involved in a number of legal and regulafmmceedings, lawsuits and claims incidental tontbemal
conduct of our business, relating to such mattegzraduct liability, antitrust, intellectual propgrworkers’
compensation, prior acquisitions, past waste depasictices and release of chemicals into therenmient. While
it is impossible at this time to determine withteérty the ultimate outcome of these proceedirassuits and
claims, we are actively defending those mattersrevtiee Company is named as a defendant. Additipna#é
believe, based on the advice of legal counsel,atiatjuate reserves have been made and that thateltbutcomes
of all such litigation claims will not have a matdradverse effect on our financial position, bitynhave a material
adverse effect on our results of operations or 8asls in any given accounting period. See Note®the
consolidated financial statements for a discussfanaterial legal proceedings.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holds

No matters were submitted to a vote of securitglérd during the fourth quarter of 20t
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’'s Common Equity, Relat&lockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Market Information

Our Series A common stock has traded on the New %tock Exchange under the symbol “CE” since JanQar
2005. The closing sale price of our Series A comstonk, as reported by the New York Stock Exchange,
February 5, 2010 was $29.89. The following tabts &&rth the high and low intraday sales pricesgbere of our
common stock, as reported by the New York Stockhrge, for the periods indicated.

Price Range
High Low

2009

Quarter ended March 31, 20 $ 15.2° $ 7.4

Quarter ended June 30, 2C $ 243C $ 12.67

Quarter ended September 30, 2 $ 27.9:  $ 19.7-

Quarter ended December 31, 2( $ 3341 $ 23.6f
2008

Quarter ended March 31, 20 $ 43.7: $ 31.7¢

Quarter ended June 30, 2C $ 50.9¢ $ 39.5(

Quarter ended September 30, 2! $ 47.0z2 $ 24.6¢

Quarter ended December 31, 2( $ 27.7¢  $ 5.71
Holders

No shares of Celan€e’'s Series B common stock are issued and outstandsgf February 5, 2010, there were 64
holders of record of our Series A common stock, @mg holder of record of our 4.25% convertible péupl
preferred stock (“Preferred Stock”). By includingrpons holding shares in broker accounts undestsieanes,
however, we estimate our shareholder base to bexpyately 28,000 as of February 5, 2010.

On February 1, 2010, we announced we would eledeem all of our 9,600,000 outstanding shareaiof
Preferred Stock on February 22, 2010 (“RedemptiateD). On that date, each share of our PreferredkSwill be
redeemed for a number of shares of our Series Armumstock equal to the redemption price ($25.06ddd by
97.5% of the average closing price of our Serienmmon stock for the 10 trading days ending orfifttetrading
day prior to February 22, 2010.

Holders of the Preferred Stock also have the tiglebnvert their shares at any time prior to 5:00.pNew York
City time, on February 19, 2010, the business dayédiately preceding the Redemption Date. Holddms want tc
convert their shares of our Preferred Stock musgtfgall of the requirements as defined in thetfieate of
Designations prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City tinie order to effect conversion of their share®oéferred Stock.
Each share of Preferred Stock is convertible inB®Q0 shares of our Series A common stock, subjeadjustment
under certain circumstances as set forth in théficates of Designations.

Dividend Policy

Our Board of Directors adopted a policy of declgrisubject to legally available funds, a quartedgh dividend on
each share of our Series A common stock at an ansesof $0.16 per share unless our Board of Darscin its
sole discretion, determines otherwise. Pursuatfitisopolicy, we paid quarterly dividends of $0.02f ghare on
February 1, 2009, May 1, 2009, August 3, 2009 aaddxber 2, 2009 and similar quarterly dividendsrdueach
quarter of 2008. The annual cash dividend declanedpaid during the years ended December 31, 2002@08
were $23 million and $24 million, respectively. Rignds payable to holders of our Series A commockstannot
be declared or paid nor can any funds be set &midee payment thereof, unless we have paid caside funds for
the payment of all accumulated and unpaid dividemitts respect to the shares of our Preferred Stasklescribed
below. Our Board of Directors may, at any time, ifodr revoke our dividend policy on our Series éntmon
stock.
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We are required under the terms of our Preferredk3b pay scheduled quarterly dividends, subétdally
available funds. For so long as the Preferred Steslains outstanding, (1) we will not declare, paget apart
funds for the payment of any dividend or otherribsition with respect to any junior stock or parstyck and

(2) neither we, nor any of our subsidiaries, vglibject to certain exceptions, redeem, purchas¢herwise acquire
for consideration junior stock or parity stock thgh a sinking fund or otherwise, in each case snleshave paid
set apart funds for the payment of all accumulatatiunpaid dividends with respect to the sharéxeflerred Stock
and any parity stock for all preceding dividendipés. Pursuant to this policy, we paid quarterljidinds of
$0.265625 per share on our Preferred Stock on Bepfy 2009, May 1, 2009, August 3, 2009 and Nowem2h
2009 and similar quarterly dividends during eachrtgr of 2008. The annual cash dividend declaredoaid during
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 wermiflidh and $10 million, respectively.

On January 5, 2010, we declared a cash divide$0.@65625 per share on our Preferred Stock amautdin

$3 million and a cash dividend of $0.04 per shareur Series A common stock amounting to $6 millBath cash
dividends are for the period from November 2, 2@D9anuary 31, 2010 and were paid on February1Q g9
holders of record as of January 15, 2010.

On February 1, 2010, we announced we would elesdeem all of our outstanding Preferred Stock eloréary 2z
2010. Holders of the Preferred Stock also haveite to convert their shares at any time prio5100 p.m., New
York City time, on February 19, 2010, the busingsg immediately preceding the February 22, 201@mgation
date.

Based on the number of outstanding shares as arbteer 31, 2009 and considering the redemption oPoeferre:
Stock, cash dividends to be paid in 2010 are erpect result in annual dividend payments less thase paid in
20009.

The amount available to us to pay cash dividendssigicted by our senior credit agreement. Anyisiea to declar
and pay dividends in the future will be made atdtseretion of our Board of Directors and will depeon, among
other things, our results of operations, cash requénts, financial condition, contractual restons and other
factors that our Board of Directors may deem reléva

Celanese Purchases of its Equity Securities

The table below sets forth information regardingurehases of our Series A common stock duringttreetmonths
ended December 31, 2009:

Approximate Dollar

Total Number of Value of Shares
Total Number Average Shares Purchased ¢ Remaining that may be
of Shares Price Paid Part of Publicly Purchased Under
Period Purchased® per Share Announced Prograrr the Program
October -31, 200¢ 2498( $ 24.5¢ - % 122,300,000.(
November -30, 200¢ - $ - - $ 122,300,000.C
December -31, 200¢ 334 $ 32.0¢ - $ 122,300,000.C

(1) Relates to shares employees have elected to hévieeld to cover their statutory minimum withholding
requirements for personal income taxes relatetl@osésting of restricted stock units. No sharesvwperchased
during the three months ended December 31, 2008runa previously announced stock repurchase
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Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related infotima shall not be deemed “soliciting material” co be

“filed” with the SEC, nor shall such information liecorporated by reference into any future filingder the
Securities Act of 1933 or Securities Exchange AtB84, each as amended, except to the extentvihapecifically
incorporate it by reference into such filing.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return
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Fivdes, five S 500 Clemicads Tndey anad the SE8 Spectalty Chemienls Inifex, wsaminimg fe refmes el of af] dividerde. fonuary 27, 2005 is the dite
Hre Company's Cosmon Stock eompmenced frading on te Mew York Stock Exclange
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Equity Compensation Plans

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Cpensation Plans

The following information is provided as of DecemBé&, 2009 with respect to equity compensationglan
Number of Securities

Remaining Available for
Number of Securities to b~ Weighted Average Future Issuance Under

Issued upon Exercise o Exercise Price of Equity Compensation
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options.  Plans (excluding securitie
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights  reflected in column (a))
@ (b) (©
Equity compensation plans approved by securityérsh
Stock options 100,00 $ 17.1% 3,812,35!
Restricted stock unit 1,381,88! - 3,812,35!
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders:
Stock options 5,902,93 $ 19.0¢ -
Restricted stock unit 1,283,02. - -
Total 8,667,84! 3,812,35!

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

Our deferred compensation plan offers certain ofsemior employees and directors the opportunigeter a
portion of their compensation in exchange for arfeipayment amount equal to their deferments plusious
certain amounts based upon the market-performanggecified measurement funds selected by thedzatit.
These deferred compensation obligations may bdadems securities of Celanese. Participants wereired to
make deferral elections under the plan prior taidan1 of the year such deferrals will be withhigtam their
compensation. We relied on the exemption from tesgisn provided by Section 4(2) of the Securitdes in making
this offer to a select group of employees, fewantB5 of which were non-accredited investors utiderules
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Comonissi

Item 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The balance sheet data shown below as of Decerib@089 and 2008, and the statements of operatiothieash
flow data for the years ended December 31, 20088 2@&id 2007, all of which are set forth below, @geved from
the consolidated financial statements includedwdieee in this document and should be read in catijom with
those financial statements and the notes theré bélance sheet data as of December 31, 2007,22@08005 an
the statements of operations and cash flow datthéoyears ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 shelaw vere
derived from previously issued financial statemgeat§usted for applicable discontinued operations.
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Year Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(In $ millions, except per share data

Statement of Operations Data

Net sales 5,08: 6,82¢ 6,44« 5,77¢ 5,27(
Other (charges) gains, r (13€) (108 (58 (10 (6
Operating profit 29C  44C 74¢ 62C  48¢
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare 241 434 447 52€  27¢€
Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic 484 371 337 31¢ 214
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati 4 (90 90 87 63
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Celanese Caitjmor 48¢ 28z 42€  40€ 277
Earnings (loss) per common sh

Continuing operation— basic 3.3C 244 211 1.9t 1.32

Continuing operation— diluted 3.06 22& 19€¢ 1.8 1.2¢

Statement of Cash Flows Dati
Net cash provided by (used il

Operating activitie: 59¢€ 58€ 566 751 701
Investing activities 31 (201) 14: (26§ (907)
Financing activitie: (112) (499 (714 (10§ (1449
Balance Sheet Data (at the end of perioc
Trade working capite®) 594 68t 827 824  75¢
Total asset 8,41( 7,16€ 8,05¢ 7,89t 7,44t
Total debi 3,501 3,563: 3,55¢ 3,49¢ 3,43
Total Celanese Corporation sharehol’ equity (deficit) 584 18z 1,06z 787 23t
Other Financial Data
Depreciation and amortizatic 306 35C 291 26€ 267
Capital expenditure@ 167 267 30€ 244 203
Cash basis dividends paid per common s 0.1€¢ 0.1€ 0.1€ 0.1 0.0¢

(O Trade working capital is defined as trade accotettsivable from third parties and affiliates neatddwance for
doubtful allowance for doubtful accounts, plus intaries, less trade accounts payable to thirdgmend
affiliates. Trade working capital is calculatedtire table below

As of December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(In $ millions)
Trade receivables, n 721 631 1,00¢ 1,001 91¢
Inventories 522 577 63€ 652 65(
Trade payable (649) (523) (81¢) (830) (811)
Trade working capite 594 685 827 824 75€

@ Amounts include accrued capital expenditures. An®dn not include capital expenditures relatedaital
lease obligations or capital expenditures relatetti¢ relocation of our Ticona plant in Kelsterbashe Note 25

and Note 29 to the consolidated financial statesx
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operation

In this Annual Report oForm 10-K, the term “Celanese” refers to Celanesmfibration, a Delaware corporation,
and not its subsidiaries. The terms the “Compariwg,” “our” and “us” refer to Celanese and its subdiaries on
a consolidated basis. The term “Celanese US” refersur subsidiary Celanese US Holdings LLC, a Dele
limited liability company, formerly known as BCPyStal US Holdings Corp., a Delaware corporationdamot its
subsidiaries. The term “Purchaser” refers to outhsidiary, Celanese Europe Holding GmbH & Co. KGferly
known as BCP Crystal Acquisition GmbH & Co. KG, er@an limited partnership, and not its subsidiayiescept
where otherwise indicated.

You should read the following discussion and anglgithe financial condition and the results okogtions
together with the consolidated financial statememtd the accompanying notes to the consolidatechéial
statements, which were prepared in accordance agttounting principles generally accepted in thet&diStates ¢
America (US GAAP").

Investors are cautioned that the forw-looking statements contained in this section in@dioth risk and
uncertainty. Several important factors could caastual results to differ materially from those aipated by these
statements. Many of these statements are macroegomonature and are, therefore, beyond the cdrifo
management. See “Forward-Looking Statements Maydhoaccurate” below.

Reconciliation of Nc-US GAAP Measures: We believe that using non-USR&ancial measures to supplement
US GAAP results is useful to investors because sselprovides a more complete understanding ofettters and
trends affecting the business other than disclokIBgGAAP results alone. In this regard, we disclosedebt,
which is a non-US GAAP financial measure. Net éetiefined as total debt less cash and cash ecqivsl We use
net debt to evaluate the capital structure. Nettdehot a substitute for any US GAAP financial swa. In

addition, calculations of net debt contained irstreport may not be consistent with that of otrmmpanies. The
most directly comparable financial measure presgimeaccordance with US GAAP in our financial stagnts for
net debt is total debt. For a reconciliation of mietht to total debt, see “Financial Highlights” toat.

Forward-Looking Statements May Prove Inaccurate

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results of Operations (“MD&A&nd other part
of this Annual Report contain certain forward-lanistatements and information relating to us thebased on the
beliefs of our management as well as assumptionke g, and information currently available to, \W&ien used in
this document, words such as “anticipate,” “beligVestimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan” and “pract” and similau
expressions, as they relate to us are intendetktdify forward-looking statements. These statesegftect our
current views with respect to future events, artegoarantees of future performance and involvesriskd
uncertainties that are difficult to predict. Furtheertain forward-looking statements are basedwgssumptions as
to future events that may not prove to be accukiizeassume no obligation to revise or update anyaml-looking
statements for any reason, except as requiredaay la

” o ”

Seeltem 1A. Risk Factorfor a description of risk factors that could sigeahtly affect our financial results. In
addition, the following factors could cause oumattesults to differ materially from those resufisrformance or
achievements that may be expressed or implied ty fuward-looking statements. These factors ingjaong
other things:

. changes in general economic, businesgjqaland regulatory conditions in the countriegsagions in which
we operate;

. the length and depth of product and induistrsiness cycles particularly in the automotivectical,
electronics and construction industries;

. changes in the price and availability off materials, particularly changes in the demandsfopply of, and
market prices of ethylene, methanol, natural gasdipulp, fuel oil and electricity;

. the ability to pass increases in raw matgices on to customers or otherwise improve imarthrough price
increases;

37




Table of Contents

. the ability to maintain plant utilizatioates and to implement planned capacity additiodsexpansions;

« the ability to reduce production costs and imprpraductivity by implementing technological improvents tc
existing plants;

. increased price competition and the intadiun of competing products by other companies;
. changes in the degree of intellectual prigpend other legal protection afforded to our pod;

. compliance costs and potential disruptiomterruption of production due to accidents drestunforeseen
events or delays in construction of facilities;

. potential liability for remedial actions@increased costs under existing or future enviramtad regulations,
including those related to climate change;

*  potential liability resulting from pending or futiiitigation, or from changes in the laws, regwlas or policie:
of governments or other governmental activitiethcountries in which we operate;

. changes in currency exchange rates anckBtteates; and
. various other factors, both referenced ramicreferenced in this document.

Many of these factors are macroeconomic in natadeaae, therefore, beyond our control. Should anaare of
these risks or uncertainties materialize, or shonlderlying assumptions prove incorrect, our actesiilts,
performance or achievements may vary materialljnftbose described in this Annual Report as antiegha
believed, estimated, expected, intended, planngdojected. We neither intend nor assume any didig@o update
these forward-looking statements, which speak aslgf their dates.

Overview

During 2009, we made significant progress in exagubur strategic objectives. As detailed below,opéimized
our portfolio, realigned our manufacturing footpricontinued our expansion efforts in Asia, madhmtelogical
advancements, and took other strategic actionslieed value for our shareholders.

2009 Highlights:

. We announced the Frankfurt, Germany Airftftaport”) supervisory board approved the acadlen of the
2009 and 2010 payments of €200 million add@& million, respectively, required by the settletnagreement sign
in June 2007. On February 5, 2009, we received@dnted amount of approximately €322 million ($4diftion),
excluding value-added tax of €59 million ($75 naifl).

. We shut down our vinyl acetate monomer (WA production unit in Cangrejera, Mexico, and cedd/AM
production at the site during the first quarte869.

. Standard and Poor’s affirmed our ratings eavised our outlook from positive to stable irbftery 2009.

. We received the American Chemistry Cousdf/ACC”) Responsible Car& Sustained Excellence Award for
mid-size companies. The annual award, the mostigimss award given under ACC'’s Responsible Cairgtiative,
recognizes companies for outstanding leadershipruA@C’s Environmental Health and Safety perforneanc
criteria.

. We completed the sale of our polyvinyl dlob(*PVOH”) business to Sekisui Chemical Co., Lfiok. the net
cash purchase price of $168 million.

. We agreed to a “Project of Closure” for agetic acid and VAM production operations at oardies, France
facility. We ceased the production of acetic acid &AM at our facility in Pardies, France on Deceamnlh, 2009. A
a result of the Pardies, France Project of Closuechave incurred $89 million of exit costs in 20@@ may incur
an additional $17 million in contingent employesr@ation benefits relates to the Pardies, Framogegt of
Closure.
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. We announced that Celanese US had ametgd$650 million revolving credit facility. The ameiment
lowered the total revolver commitment to $600 roilliand increased the first lien senior securedrdgeeratio for a
period of six quarters, beginning June 30, 2009arding December 31, 2010.

. We announced the creation of our new angnetary AOPIu$® 2 acetic acid technology, which allows for
expansion up to 1.5 million tons per reactor angual

. We successfully started up our expansionunfacetic acid unit in Nanjing, China which daadthe unit's
capacity from 600,000 tons to 1.2 million tons aalhu

. We announced the expansion of our vinytateeethylene emulsions (“VAE”") manufacturing fégilat our
Nanjing, China integrated chemical complex to suppontinued growth plans throughout Asia. The ewxjeal
facility will double our VAE capacity in the regicaand is expected to be operational in the first b2011.

. We launched a new, innovative polyacetBIgM”) technology that is expected to create sigaifit additional
growth opportunities for our Advanced Engineereddvials segment.

. We signed a memorandum of understandinly auir acetate joint venture partner, the Chinadati Tobacco
Corporation, to expand the flake and tow capacétesur joint venture facility in Nantong, China.

. We reached a long-term agreement to sugply to Jiangxi Jiangwei High-Tech Stock Co., Ltdligngwei).
Jiangwei will cease production of its calcium cddbased alternative for economic and environmeagsons and
source our VAM.

. We acquired the long fiber reinforced theplastics (“LFT") business of FACT GmbH (Future Ashced
Composites Technology) of Germany, supporting cdvakiced Engineered Materials segment.

. We announced the redemption of our ConlertPerpetual Preferred Stock for our Series A Com®tock to
be completed February 22, 2010.

2010 Outlook

In 2010 we expect to see an increase in overalbdemersus 2009 as the global economy begins agrad
recovery. We would also expect growth in Asia ttpage growth in other regions of the world. Rawemats and
energy costs are expected to be modestly high#d10 than in the prior year. Additionally, we exptcrealize an
incremental $100 million of fixed spending redunspdriven by structural streamlining of our marmtifising and
administrative functions.
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Financial Highlights

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions, except
percentages)
Statement of Operations Date
Net sales 5,08z 6,82: 6,44¢
Gross profit 1,00 1,25¢ 1,44t
Selling, general and administrative exper (469) (540 (51€)
Other (charges) gains, r (13€) (20¢) (58)
Operating profit 29C 44C 74¢
Equity in net earnings of affiliate 48 54 82
Interest expens (207) (2617) (262)
Refinancing expenst - - (25€)
Dividend income— cost investment 98 167 11€
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare 241 434 447
Amounts attributable to Celanese Corpora
Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic 484 372 33€
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati 4 (90) 90
Net earnings (loss 48¢ 282 42€
Other Data
Depreciation and amortizatic 30¢ 35C 291
Operating margii® 5.7% 6.4% 11.6%
Earnings from continuing operations before tax per@entage of net sal 4.7% 6.4% 6.9%

(1) Defined as operating profit divided by net sa
As of December 31
2009 2008
(In $ millions)

Balance Sheet Dat:

Shor-term borrowings and current installments of I-term debt— third party and affiliate 242 238
Plus: Lon¢-term debt 3,25¢ 3,30(
Total debt 3,501 3,53t
Less: Cash and cash equivale 1,25¢ 67€
Net debt 2,24 2,85]

Summary of Consolidated Results — Year Ended Decereb31, 2009 compared with Year Ended
December 31, 2008

The challenging economic environment in the Uni¢ates and Europe during the second half of 2068raed
throughout 2009. Net sales declined in 2009 fro®82frimarily as a result of decreased demand dtheeto
significant weakness of the global economy. In A@99, we completed the sale of our PVOH busindsshalso
contributed to the declines in our sales volumeshé fourth quarter of 2009, we began to see dugdaecovery in
the global economy with increasing demand withime®f our business segments. A decrease in sg@ltings was
also a significant factor on the decrease in ness®ecreases in key raw material and energy egets the primar
factors in lower selling prices. A slightly unfaatne foreign currency impact also contributed ®dlecrease in net
sales.
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Gross profit declined due to lower net sales. fgg@entage of sales, gross profit increased as lamematerial
and energy costs more than offset decreases satest during the period. In 2010 we expect raw riztend
energy costs to increase which will partially bésef by increases in selling prices.

Other (charges) gains, net increased $28 milliamdw2009 as compared to 2008:

Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008
(In $ millions)
Employee termination benefi (105 (22)
Plant/office closure a7 (7
Plumbing action: 10 -
Insurance recoveries associated with Clear Lakead 6 38
Asset impairment (14) (115
Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocati (16) (12
Sorbates antitrust actiol - 8
Other - 1
Total Other (charges) gains, t (13€) (10¢)

During the first quarter of 2009, we began efféotslign production capacity and staffing levelshaour view of an
economic environment of prolonged lower demand.tReryear ended December 31, 2009, other chargksled
employee termination benefits of $40 million rethte this endeavor. As a result of the shutdowthefvinyl acetat
monomer (“VAM”) production unit in Cangrejera, Mexi, we recognized employee termination benefits of

$1 million and longived asset impairment losses of $1 million durihg year ended December 31, 2009. The \
production unit in Cangrejera, Mexico is includadur Acetyl Intermediates segment.

As a result of the Project of Closure at our Padigance facility, other charges included exitsa$ $89 million
during the year ended December 31, 2009, whichistusof $60 million in employee termination beisfi

$17 million of contract termination costs and $1iflion of long-lived asset impairment losses. Tredtes, France
facility is included in the Acetyl Intermediatesyseent.

Due to continued declines in demand in automotihat electronic sectors, we announced plans to reciyeacity by
ceasing polyester polymer production at our Ticorufacturing plant in Shelby, North Carolina. Qtblearges fc
the year ended December 31, 2009 included empleyaenation benefits of $2 million and long-livedsat
impairment losses of $1 million related to thismvd he Shelby, North Carolina facility is includedthe Advance
Engineered Materials segment.

Other charges for the year ended December 31, @@8%artially offset by $6 million of insurance oseries in
satisfaction of claims we made related to the umma outage of our Clear Lake, Texas acetic acititfeduring
2007, a $9 million decrease in legal reserves liamping claims due to the Company’s ongoing assessof the
likely outcome of the plumbing actions and the exjion of the statute of limitation.

Selling, general and administrative expenses dseteduring 2009 primarily due to business optinizeand
finance improvement initiatives.

Operating profit decreased due to lower gross paofil higher other charges partially offset by logaling, gener:
and administrative costs.

Equity in net earnings of affiliates decreasedntligduring 2009, primarily due to reduced earnifrgsn our
Advanced Engineered Materials’ affiliates resultfrgm decreased demand.

Our effective tax rate for continuing operationstfte year ended December 31, 2009 was (101)% o pa 15%
for the year ended December 31, 2008. Our effettiveate for 2009 was favorably impacted by thease of the
US valuation allowance, partially offset by lowareings in jurisdictions participating in tax haligs, increases in
valuation allowances on certain foreign net defibtex assets and the effect of new tax legislatidviexico.
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Summary of Consolidated Result— Year Ended December 31, 2008 compared with Year Eed
December 31, 2007

The challenging economic environment in the Uni¢akes and Europe during the first half of 2008ilted in
higher raw material and energy costs which enapte@ increase initiatives across all business segsn During
the second half of 2008, the US credit crisis aredéd the economic slowdown and its spread ta o#ggons of th
world. Despite the halt in demand, we were able&intain the majority of our enacted price increabeough the
remainder of 2008. As a result, increased pricgsaned net sales by 8%. Favorable foreign currémpacts also
had a positive impact on net sales of 3%.

Net sales declined 5% due to decreased volumeseiboslumes were primarily a result of decreasedaiet
stemming from the global economic downturn. As dedndeclined, particularly during the fourth quaé&2008,
our customers began destocking to reduce theinbowvg levels. In response, we aggressively managedglobal
production capacity to align with the current eomiment. Decreased volumes in our acetate flakeand
businesses were not significantly impacted by tamemic downturn. Rather, decreased flake volunmae whe
result of our strategic decision to shift our flgkeduction to our China ventures, which we accdonas cost
investments.

Gross profit declined as higher raw material, epangd freight costs more than offset increase®trsales during
the period. The uncertain economic environmentltegun higher natural gas, ethylene, methanol@hdr
commodity prices during the first nine months af ffear. Our freight costs also increased, primaily to
increased rates driven by higher energy price lte2008, raw material and energy prices declined.

Other (charges) gains, net increased $50 milliamdw2008 as compared to 2007:

Year Ended
December 31
2008 2007

(In $ millions)
Employee termination benefi (22) (32
Plant/office closure @) (17)
Deferred compensation triggered by Exit Ev - (79
Plumbing action: - 4
Insurance recoveries associated with Clear Lakea§ 38 40
Resolution of commercial disputes with a ven - 31
Asset impairment (115 9)
Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocati (12 (5)
Sorbates antitrust actiol 8 -
Other 1 (2)
Total Other (charges) gains, t (10¢) (58)

Other charges increased in 2008 compared to 20 thatudes a long-lived asset impairment loss & $8llion in
connection with the 2009 closure of our acetic arid VAM production facility in Pardies, Francey MAM
production unit in Cangrejera, Mexico and the ptiggclosure of certain other facilities. This cajta reduction
was necessitated by the significant change in litleagj economic environment and anticipated lowestamner
demand. Following the initial assessment of thjgacéty reduction, we shut down the Cangrejera VAfddoiction
unit in February 2009.

In addition, we recognized $23 million of long-ltvasset impairment losses and $13 million of engdoy
termination benefits in 2008 related to the shutd@fvour Pampa, Texas facility.

During 2007, we fully impaired $6 million of goodivielated to our PVOH business.

Selling, general and administrative expenses ise@&24 million during 2008 primarily due to busise
optimization and finance improvement initiatives.
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Operating profit decreased due to lower gross paoifil higher other charges and selling, generabanunistrative
costs. The absence of a $34 million gain on the sibur Edmonton, Alberta, Canada facility dur@p7 also
contributed to lower operating profit in 2008 asngared to 2007.

Equity in net earnings of affiliates decreased $#on during 2008, primarily due to reduced eags from our
Advanced Engineered Materials’ affiliates resultfrgm higher raw material and energy costs andedessad
demand. Our effective income tax rate for 2008 W% compared to 25% in 2007. The effective incoaxerate
decreased in 2008 due to: 1) a decrease in thati@uallowance, 2) tax credits generated on forgigisdictions
and 3) the US tax impact of foreign operations.

The loss from discontinued operations of $90 millduring 2008 primarily relates to a legal settlaregreement
we entered into during 2008. Under the settlemgraement, we agreed to pay $107 million to resobrtain
legacy items. Because the legal proceeding retatedles by the polyester staple fibers businesshaioechst AG
sold to KoSa, Inc. in 1998, the impact of the setint is reflected within discontinued operatianthie current
period. See the “Polyester Staple Antitrust Litigat section in Note 24 of the consolidated finahGtatements.
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Selected Data by Business Segme— 2009 Compared with 2008 and 2008 Compared with 20(

Net sales
Advanced Engineered Materie
Consumer Specialtie
Industrial Specialtie
Acetyl Intermediate
Other Activities
Inter-segment Elimination

Total

Other (charges) gains, ne
Advanced Engineered Materiz
Consumer Specialtie
Industrial Specialtie
Acetyl Intermediate
Other Activities

Total

Operating profit (loss)
Advanced Engineered Materi:
Consumer Specialtie
Industrial Specialtie
Acetyl Intermediate
Other Activities

Total

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before
tax
Advanced Engineered Materie
Consumer Specialtie
Industrial Specialtie
Acetyl Intermediate
Other Activities

Total

Depreciation and amortization
Advanced Engineered Materi:
Consumer Specialtie
Industrial Specialtie
Acetyl Intermediate
Other Activities

Total

Year Ended December 31

Year Ended December 31

Change Change
2009 2008 in$ 2008 2007 in$
(In $ millions)
80¢ 1,061 (259%) 1,061 1,03( 31
1,08¢ 1,15¢ (72) 1,15¢ 1,111 44
974 1,40¢ (432) 1,40¢ 1,34¢ 60
2,60 3,87¢ (1,272 3,87¢ 3,61¢ 26C
2 2 - 2 2 -
(389 (67€) 287 (676€) (660) (16)
5,08: 6,82: (1,74)) 6,82 6,44+ 37¢
(18 (29 11 (29 4) (25)
C) @) @) (2 (4 2
4 ?3) 7 ?3) (23 20
91 (78) (13) (78) 72 (150)
(22) 4 (26) 4 (99 10z
(13€) (10¢) (29) (10€) (58) (50)
35 32 3 32 132 (101)
231 19C 41 19C 19¢ 9)
8¢ 47 42 47 28 19
95 30¢ (219 30¢ 61€ (307)
(160) (13¢) (22) (13€) (22§) 90
29C 44C (150) 44C 74¢ (30€)
62 69 7 69 18¢ (120)
28¢ 237 51 237 23t 2
8¢ 47 42 47 28 19
144 434 (290 434 694 (260)
(342 (359 11 (359 (699) 34€
241 434 (193) 434 447 (13)
73 76 ©) 76 69 7
50 53 ©)] 53 51 2
51 62 (11) 62 5¢ 3
12z 15C (27) 15C 10€ 44
11 9 2 9 6 3
30¢€ 35C (42) 35C 291 59
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Factors Affecting Business Segment Net Sal

The table below sets forth the percentage incr@m@ease) in net sales for the years ended Decedtibe
attributable to each of the factors indicated Far following business segments.

Volume Price Currency Other Total
(In percentages)

2009 Compared to 20(

Advanced Engineered Materi: (22) 1) @) - (24)
Consumer Specialtie (12 7 @ - (6)
Industrial Specialtie (10 (10) 2 9 @ (31)
Acetyl Intermediate (6) (26) @ - (33
Total Company (10) (16) 2 2 (26) ®
2008 Compared to 20(
Advanced Engineered Materi: 4) 3 4 - 3
Consumer Specialtie (6) 7 1 20) 4
Industrial Specialtie (10) 11 4 1@ 4
Acetyl Intermediate 3 7 2 - 7
Total Company (5) 8 3 - 6@

@ Includes the effects of the captive insurance camigse

@ Includes loss of sales related to the sale of #@H business on July 1, 20C

®) Includes net sales from the Acetate Products Lui(“ APL") acquisition.

@ Includes loss of sales related to the sale of & Berformance Polyme’ (f/k/a AT Plastics) Films busines

Summary by Business Segment — Year Ended Decembetr, 2009 Compared with Year Ended December 31,
2008

Advanced Engineered Materia

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2009 2008 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages
Net sales 80¢ 1,061 (259
Net sales varianc
Volume (21) %
Price (1) %
Currency (2) %
Other 0 %
Operating profit 35 32 3
Operating margil 43 % 3.L%
Other (charges) gains, r (18) (29) 11
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare 62 69 (7
Depreciation and amortizatic 73 76 3

Our Advanced Engineered Materials segment devepppsguces and supplies a broad portfolio of higtigugeance
technical polymers for application in automotivelaectronics products, as well as other consumeiredustrial
applications. Together with our strategic affilgteve are a leading participant in the global tézdirpolymers
industry. The primary products of Advanced Engieeéviaterials are polyacetal products (“POM”"), pdigpylene
sulfide (“PPS"), long fiber reinforced thermoplasti(“LFRT"), polybutylene terephthalate (“PBT"), lpethylene
terephthalate (“PET”), GUR and liquid crystal polymers (“LCP”). POM, PPS, LFRABT and PET are used in a
broad range of products including automotive congmis, electronics, appliances and industrial apfiios. GUR
®js used in battery separators, conveyor beltsafitin equipment, coatings and medical devicesn&y end
markets for LCP are electrical and electronics.

Net sales decreased during 2009 compared to 2008y as a result of lower sales volumes. Sigaifit weakne:
in the global economy experienced during the fiedf of the year resulted in a dramatic declindémand for
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automotive, electrical and electronic products alf as for other industrial products. As a ressdties volumes
dropped significantly across all product lines. iDgrthe second half of 2009, we experienced a woat increase
in demand compared with the first half of the yasia result of programs like “Cash for Clunkersthia United
States during the third quarter of 2009 and a grhidicovery in the global economy during the fouptiarter of
2009. Demand for the first quarter of 2010 is expe¢o see continued improvement due to seasoyaiity
production being reduced in many areas in Decemiberto the holidays, and continued improvemenhénglobal
economy.

Operating profit increased in 2009 as compared@82Lower raw material and energy costs and deerktaverall
spending more than offset the decline in net sélesreased overall spending was the result ofimadfspending
reduction efforts. Non-capital spending incurredtom relocation of our Ticona Kelsterbach plant Walscompared
to 2008. For more information regarding the Ticitdsterbach plant relocation, see Note 29 to thesclidated
financial statements.

Earnings from continuing operations before tax d@asn due to a drop in equity in net earnings dfiafés as
compared to 2008. Equity in net earnings of ati&awas lower in 2009 primarily due to reduced iegsfrom our
Advanced Engineered Materials’ affiliates resultirgm decreased demand and a biennial shutdowneabbour
affiliate’s plants.

Consumer Specialties

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2009 2008 in $
(In $ millions, except percentages
Net sales 1,08¢ 1,15¢ (72)
Net sales varianc
Volume (12) %
Price 7 %
Currency 1) %
Other 0 %
Operating profit 231 19C 41
Operating margil 21.: % 164 %
Other (charges) gains, r 9 2 )
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare 28¢€ 237 51
Depreciation and amortizatic 50 53 3

Our Consumer Specialties segment consists of oatafe Products and Nutrinova businesses. Our AcBratducts
business primarily produces and supplies acetatevitiich is used in the production of filter protkid/Ve also
produce acetate flake, which is processed intageéiber in the form of a tow band. Our Nutrindussiness
produces and sells Sunétt a high intensity sweetener, and food protectimmedients, such as sorbates, for the
food, beverage and pharmaceuticals industries.

Net sales decreased $71 million during 2009 whenmpawed with 2008. The decrease in net sales wasrt
primarily by decreased volume due to softening dedrargely in tow with less significant decreasggegienced in
flake. Decreased volumes were primarily due to weak in underlying demand resulting from the gl@zainomic
downturn. The decrease in volume was partiallyatffs/ an increase in selling prices. A slightlyawdrable foreigi
currency impact also contributed to the decreaseirsales.

Operating profit increased from $190 million in 30@ $231 million in 2009. Fixed cost reductioncef§, improvec
energy costs and a favorable currency impact ots ¢@&l a significant impact on the increase to aipeg profit.

Earnings from continuing operations before tax28&million increased from 2008 primarily due te thcrease in
operating profit and an increase in dividends fiaum China ventures of $9 million. Increased dividemre the
result of increased volumes and higher prices,elsas efficiency improvements.
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Industrial Specialties

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2009 2008 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages
Net sales 974 1,40€ (432)
Net sales varianc
Volume (10) %
Price (10) %
Currency (2) %
Other (9) %
Operating profit 89 47 42
Operating margil 9.1 % 3.3 %
Other (charges) gains, r 4 3 7
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare 89 47 42
Depreciation and amortizatic 51 62 (11)

Our Industrial Specialties segment includes our Eions, PVOH and EVA Performance Polymers busire<3ar
Emulsions business is a global leader which progiaderoad range of products, specializing in vaodtate
ethylene emulsions, and is a recognized authoritpw volatile organic compounds (“VOC”), an enviroentally-
friendly technology. As a global leader, our PVOiisimess produced a broad portfolio of performard®iR
chemicals engineered to meet specific customelinagents. Our emulsions and PVOH products are usadvide
array of applications including paints and coatjregthesives, construction, glass fiber, textiles gaper. EVA
Performance Polymers offers a complete line of timsity polyethylene and specialty ethylene virngtate resins
and compounds. EVA Performance Polymers’ produgisised in many applications including flexible kaging
films, lamination film products, hot melt adhesivegdical tubing, automotive carpeting and soldlr ce
encapsulation films.

In July 2009, we completed the sale of our PVOH®ss to Sekisui Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Sekisui”) fonet cash
purchase price of $168 million. The transactionultesl in a gain on disposition of $34 million amdludes long-
term supply agreements between Sekisui and Celanese

Net sales declined $432 million during 2009 comgaee2008 primarily due to the sale of our PVOHibass anc
lower demand due to the economic downturn. Thereah our emulsions volumes was concentrated irttiNo
America and Europe, offset partially by volume gmses in Asia. EVA Performance Polymers’ volumedimnked
due to the impact of the force majeure event attmbmonton, Alberta, Canada plant which is offsedtimer charges
in our Other Activities segment. Repairs to thenplaere completed at the end of the second qu20@9 and
normal operations have resumed. Net sales werelaiso from prior year as a result of decrease®inraw
material costs resulting in lower selling pricesifédorable currency impacts also contributed todbeine in net
sales during the year.

Operating profit increased $42 million in 2009 cargd to 2008 as decreases in volume and sellicgpwere
more than offset by lower raw material and enemgtcand reduced overall spending. Reduced speigling
attributable to our fixed spending reduction efprestructuring efficiencies and favorable foredginrency impacts
on costs. Energy is favorable due to lower natyaal costs and lower usage resulting from a derlirelumes. Ou
EVA Performance Polymers business contributedddrtbrease in Other (charges) gains, net as a @ceiving
$10 million in insurance recoveries in partial sfction of the losses resulting from the forceeueg event at our
Edmonton, Alberta, Canada plant. The gain on tleeafaour PVOH business of $34 million had a sigmift impac
to the increase in operating profit. Deprecatiod amortization also had a favorable impact on dpegarofit due
to the PVOH divestiture and the shutdown of our kivigton, UK emulsions facility.
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Acetyl Intermediate:

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2009 2008 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages
Net sales 2,60z 3,87¢ (1,272)
Net sales varianc
Volume (6) %
Price (26) %
Currency (1) %
Other 0 %
Operating profit 95 30¢ (219
Operating margil 3.6 % 8.C %
Other (charges) gains, r (92) (78) 13
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare 144 434 (290
Depreciation and amortizatic 12z 15C (27

Our Acetyl Intermediates segment produces and mgatetyl products, including acetic acid, VAMe#ac
anhydride and acetate esters. These products aeeallg used as starting materials for colorardts, adhesives,
coatings, textiles, medicines and more. Other cbalsiproduced in this business segment are orgahients and
intermediates for pharmaceutical, agricultural ahdmical products. To meet the growing demanddetia acid in
China and ongoing site optimization efforts, wecassfully expanded our acetic acid unit in Nanji@gina from
600,000 tons per reactor annually to 1.2 milliomstper reactor annually. Using new AOP# capability, the
acetic acid unit could be further expanded to lilban tons per reactor annually with only modedtaional
capital.

Net sales decreased 33% during 2009 as compagfiD&primarily due to lower selling prices acrobsegions
and major product lines, lower volumes and unfabteréoreign currency impacts. Lower volumes wetigadr by a
reduction in underlying demand in Europe and inAheericas, which was only partially offset by sificént
increases in demand in Asia. Lower pricing waseatdriby lower raw material and energy prices, whisb a
negatively impacted our formula-based pricing ageaments for VAM in the US. There were a number of
production issues in Asia among the major aceiit pwducers (other than Celanese), which coupligd planned
outages, caused periodic and short-term markethiéggh. In 2010, sales are expected to see incrassesnpared to
the corresponding periods in the prior year agjtbbal economy begins to slowly recover. Sales masi for the
first quarter of 2010 are expected to be in linthwhe fourth quarter of 2009 as expected improvemien demand
in the US are partially offset by expected reduttion Asia due to seasonal demand reductions é€tiinese New
Year.

Operating profit declined $214 million primarily agesult of lower prices across all regions angbnaroduct
lines. Significantly lower realized pricing was pally offset by favorable raw material and enepgices, reduced
spending due to the shutdown of our Pampa, Texdgyand other reductions in fixed spending. Dapation and
amortization expense declined primarily as a resfuhe long-lived asset impairment losses recagphin the fourth
quarter of 2008 related to our acetic acid and Vaddduction facility in Pardies, France, the closofeur VAM
production unit in Cangrejera, Mexico in Februa®pg, together with lower depreciation expense tegufrom the
shutdown of our Pampa, Texas facility. Other chamgggatively impacted our operating profit by imgiag

$13 million from prior year which relates primartly the planned shutdown of our Pardies, Frandétfadargins
are expected to be lower in the first quarter df®8s compared to the fourth quarter of 2009 duecteasing
competition and expected increases in raw mateossts.

Earnings from continuing operations before taxad#ffrom operating profit primarily as a resuldofidend income
from our cost investment, National Methanol Cob(f'ISina”). Dividend income from Ibn Sina declined t

$41 million in 2009 as a result of lower earnings declining margins for methanol and methyl gextibutyl ethel
(“MTBE").
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Other Activities

Other Activities primarily consists of corporatenter costs, including financing and administrathedivities, and
our captive insurance companies.

Net sales remained flat in 2009 as compared to.20@8do not expect thi-party revenues from our captive
insurance companies to increase significantly enrtear future.

The operating loss for Other Activities increasemif an operating loss of $138 million in 2008 toomerating loss
of $160 million in 2009. The increase was primaréiated to higher other charges. The increas¢hiercharges
was related to insurance retention costs as at r@solir force majeure event at our Edmonton, AbeCanada pla
which is offset in our Industrial Specialties segin@nd severance costs as a result of businessipation and
finance improvement initiatives. The increase imeotcharges was partially offset by lower selliggneral and
administrative expenses primarily attributable tio fixed spending reduction efforts and restructyrfficiencies.

The loss from continuing operations before tax éased $11 million in 2009 compared to 2008. Thsekse was
primarily due to reduced interest expense resuftioig lower interest rates on our senior creditliiées and
favorable currency impact.

Summary by Business Segment — Year Ended Decembetr, 2008 Compared with Year Ended December 31,
2007

Advanced Engineered Materia

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2008 2007 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages
Net sales 1,061 1,03( 31
Net sales varianc
Volume (4) %
Price 3 %
Currency 4 %
Other 0 %
Operating profit 32 13z (207
Operating margil 3C% 12¢ %
Other (charges) gains, r (29) 4 (25)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befape 69 18¢ (120
Depreciation and amortizatic 76 69 7

Advanced Engineered Materials’ net sales incre8%¢diuring 2008 as compared to 2007 primarily assalt of
implemented pricing increases combined with favieréfreign currency impacts. Increases in net sate
partially offset by lower volumes due to signifitameakness in the US and European automotive ansimg
industries. Extended plant shutdowns enacted bpmeay manufacturers during the fourth quarterQi&
contributed significantly to the volume decline.

Operating profit declined $101 million primarily etio higher raw material, freight and energy cdRtsv material
costs increased on higher prices while freightsostreased as a result of increased freight eatddarger
shipments to Asia. Raw material costs declinedita008 though at year end we held higher-costritaries while
inventory destocking continued. Higher depreciatiod amortization expense and increased other ehalgo
contributed to lower operating profit. Depreciatamd amortization expense are higher in 2008 dtieetstart-upf
the GUR® and LFRT units in Asia. Other charges consist pritpaf a $16 million longlived asset impairment lo
related to certain Advanced Engineered Materiasilities and $12 million related to the relocatwfrour Ticona
plant in Kelsterbach. See Note 29 to the consdaifihancial statements for more information onTiena
Kelsterbach plant relocation.
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Earnings from continuing operations before tax dased due to decreased operating profit and decreggiity in
net earnings of affiliates. Equity in net earningsffiliates decreased $18 million during 2008nmarily due to
reduced earnings from our Advanced Engineered léddéaffiliates resulting from higher raw matered energy
costs and decreased demand.

Consumer Specialties

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2008 2007 in $
(In $ millions, except percentages
Net sales 1,15¢ 1,111 44
Net sales varianc
Volume (6) %
Price 7 %
Currency 1%
Other 2 %
Operating profit 19C 19¢ 9)
Operating margil 164 % 17.€ %
Other (charges) gains, r 2 4 2
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare 237 23¢ 2
Depreciation and amortizatic 53 51 2

Consumer Specialties’ net sales increased 4% fib$Inillion during the year ended December 31, 2008n
primarily by pricing actions in our Acetate Produbusiness and an additional month of sales fronA&WL
acquisition, which was acquired on January 31, 20€Zet by lower volumes. Lower volumes are adairesult of
our strategic decision to shift acetate flake patign to our China ventures, which are accounte@socost method
investments. The full impact of this shift has beeslized during 2008 and thus the resulting treindiminishing
volumes is not expected to continue. Lower flakkirees were partially offset by a 5% increase in t@mlmes as
we were able to capture a portion of the growthlabal tow demand.

The increase in net sales due to higher salesspdizeng 2008 was offset most significantly by lgknergy costs,
and to a lesser extent, higher raw material arightecosts. Operating profit, as compared to 2@@t|ined
primarily due to the absence of a $22 million gainthe sale of our Edmonton, Alberta, Canada fsaiii 2007.
Other charges during 2007 includes $3 million deded compensation plan expenses and $5 milliaytradr
restructuring charges, offset by insurance recesesf $5 million in partial satisfaction of the mess interruption
losses resulting from the temporary unplanned @utdghe acetic acid unit at our Clear Lake, Tdgadity.

Earnings from continuing operations before tax28®million increased from 2007 as increased divitdefrom ou
China ventures more than offset the decline in atpeg profit. Increased dividends are the resulhofeased
volumes and higher prices, as well as efficiencgriosnements.
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Industrial Specialties

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2008 2007 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages
Net sales 1,40¢ 1,34¢ 60
Net sales varianc
Volume (20) %
Price 11 %
Currency 4 %
Other 1) %
Operating profit 47 28 19
Operating margil 3.2 % 2.1 %
Other (charges) gains, r 3 (23) 20
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare 47 28 19
Depreciation and amortizatic 62 59 3

Industrial Specialties’ net sales increased by 4%ind 2008 as increased prices and favorable foreigrency
impacts more than offset volume reductions. Prigiotions implemented by all business lines lat20ig7 and
during 2008 contributed to the increase in netssalelumes declined primarily on decreased demanoba all
regions due to the global economic downturn contbinith the temporary shutdown of our EVA Performanc
Polymers plant late in 2008. The overall volumelideovas partially offset by increased emulsionkintes at our
Nanjing, China facility, which began operating late2008.

Increased net sales were more than offset by higlvematerial and energy costs during 2008. Therfiillbn
increase in operating profit was primarily duedwér other charges and the absence of the $7 mitigs on the
divestiture of our EVA Performance Polymers’ Filssiness in 2007. During 2007, we initiated a peasimplify
and optimize our Emulsions and PVOH businessesdosfon technology and innovation. Other chargesglu
2008 includes a charge of $3 million for employesrtination benefits and accelerated depreciatitatee to this
plan. Other charges during 2007 includes a chair§& 4 million for employee termination benefits, ®#lion for
an impairment of long-lived assets and $5 millidaccelerated depreciation expense for our shuttdreted
Kingdom plant related to this plan. Other charge2007 also include $6 million of goodwill impairmteand receig
of $7 million in insurance recoveries in partiaisction of the business interruption losses Itespfrom the
temporary unplanned outage of the acetic acidatrour Clear Lake, Texas facility.

Acetyl Intermediate:

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2008 2007 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages
Net sales 3,87¢ 3,61¢ 26C
Net sales varianc
Volume (3) %
Price 7 %
Currency 3 %
Other 0 %
Operating profit 30¢ 61€ (307)
Operating margil 8C % 17.(%
Other (charges) gains, r (78) 72 (150
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befape 434 694 (260)
Depreciation and amortizatic 15C 10€ 44
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Acetyl Intermediates’ net sales increased by 7%ndu2008 primarily due to increased prices and fabte foreign
currency impacts, partially offset by lower volum@&air formula-based pricing arrangements benefitea higher
ethylene and methanol costs during the first niatims of 2008. Market tightness in the Americas favdrable
foreign currency impacts in Europe also contributethe increase in net sales. Reduced volumestdffe increase
in net sales as the slowdown of the global econcauwsed customers to slow production and diministeot
inventory levels, particularly in Asia during theufth quarter. Ethylene and methanol prices deetkdsring the
fourth quarter of 2008 on slowed global demand.

Operating profit declined $307 million primarily agesult of higher ethylene, methanol and energes, increase
other charges, increased depreciation and amaatizahd the absence of a $12 million gain on the aBour
Edmonton, Alberta, Canada facility in 2007. Othiearges increased during 2008 partially due to $ifléom of
long-lived asset impairment losses recognized B82@lated to the closure of our acetic acid andgoduction
facility in Pardies, France, our VAM production uim Cangrejera, Mexico (which we shut down effeeti-ebruary
2009) and the potential shutdown of certain otheilifies. Other charges in 2008 also includes $#Bon of long-
lived asset impairment losses and $13 million @ksance and retention charges related to the sivatdb our
Pampa, Texas facility. Also contributing to therizese was the absence of a one-time payment ah#in
received in 2007 in resolution of commercial digswvith a vendor and a $25 million decrease inrarste
recoveries received in partial satisfaction ofltsses resulting from the temporary unplanned @utddghe acetic
acid unit at our Clear Lake, Texas facility. Incged depreciation and amortization expense durifg 2dthe result
of accelerated depreciation associated with th&dsin of our Pampa, Texas facility and a full yeadepreciation
for our acetic acid plant in Nanjing, China, whigtiarted up in mid-2007.

Earnings from continuing operations before taxad#ffrom operating profit primarily as a resuldofidend income
from our cost investment, National Methanol Cob(i'ISina”). Increased dividend income of $41 millduring
2008 had a positive impact on earnings from coimipoperations before tax. Ibn Sina increased tigidends as
result of higher earnings from expanding marginsiiethanol and MTBE.

Other Activities

Net sales for Other Activities remained flat in 808 compared to 2007. We do not expect -party revenues
from our captive insurance companies to increagafgiantly in the near future.

The operating loss for Other Activities improved3$illion during 2008 as compared to 2007 due teeloother
charges, partially offset by higher selling, geharad administrative expenses. Other charges desdgarincipally
due to the release of reserves related to the &srbatitrust actions settlement of $8 million dmel absence of
$59 million of deferred compensation plan costsalvhwere incurred during 2007. Selling, general and
administrative expenses increased due to additgpeiding on business optimization and finance dwvgment
initiatives during 2008.

The loss from continuing operations before tax édased $346 million during 2008. The significantrdase was
primarily due to the absence of $256 million ofmahcing costs incurred in 2007 and the decreatieeioperating
loss discussed above.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary source of liquidity is cash generatexnhf operations, available cash and cash equivatentslividends
from our portfolio of strategic investments. In &iah, we have a $600 million revolving credit féigi and

$140 million available for borrowing under our citdihked revolving facility to assist, if requireth meeting our
working capital needs and other contractual ohilbgat In excess of 20 lenders participate in ouolkgng credit
facility, each with a commitment of not more th&¥d of the $600 million commitment.

While our contractual obligations, commitments detit service requirements over the next severabyea
significant, we continue to believe we will haveadable resources to meet our liquidity requiremseirtcluding
debt service, in 2010. If our cash flow from oprmnas is insufficient to fund our debt service artider obligations,
we may be required to use other means availahis such as increasing our borrowings, reducingetaythg
capital expenditures, seeking additional capitademking to restructure or refinance our indebtssinEhere can be
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no assurance, however, that we will continue tcegate cash flows at or above current levels orwlawill be able
to maintain our ability to borrow under our revaigicredit facilities.

As a result of the Pardies, France Project of Glswe recorded exit costs of $89 million during trear ended
December 31, 2009, which included $60 million inpéoyee termination benefits, $17 million of contrac
termination costs, and $12 million of long-livedsasimpairment losses to Other charges (gains) Seet Note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements for addifiamfarmation regarding Other Charges. In additiwe, recorded
$9 million of accelerated depreciation expense&hhillion of environmental remediation reservestfe year
ended December 31, 2009 related to the shutdowhed®ardies, France facility. We may incur up t@dditional
$17 million in contingent employee termination biéserelated to the Pardies, France Project of @esWe expect
that substantially all of the exit costs (exceptdocelerated depreciation of fixed assets) wiltein future cash
expenditures over a two-year period. The Pardiemde facility is included in the Acetyl Intermettia segment.
Refer to the Acetyl Intermediates section of the &0Dfor more detail.

On a stand-alone basis, Celanese Corporation hamterial assets other than the stock of our sigssd and no
independent external operations of our own. As swehgenerally depend on the cash flow of our gliases to
meet our obligations under our preferred stock,enes A common stock and our senior credit agee¢m

Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2869%¢,254 million, which was an increase of $578an
from December 31, 2008. Cash and cash equivalsriBecember 31, 2008 were $676 million, which was
decrease of $149 million from December 31, 200¢. [8dow for details on the change in cash and egslvalents
from December 31, 2008 to December 31, 2009 andttarge in cash and cash equivalents from DeceBiher
2007 to December 31, 2008.

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activit

Cash flow provided by operating activities increh$&0 million to a cash inflow of $596 million ir0Q9 from a
cash inflow of $586 million for the same period2@08. Operating cash flows were favorably impattgtess cash
paid for interest, taxes, and legal settlementplealiwith a favorable change in trade working apithich helped
to offset lower operating performance.

Cash flow provided by operating activities increh$20 million to a cash inflow of $586 million ir0@8 from a
cash inflow of $566 million for the same period2@07. Operating cash flows were favorably impattggositive
trade working capital changes ($202 million), lowash taxes paid ($83 million) and the absenceljpments to
cash for discontinued operations. Adjustments st dar discontinued operations of $84 million dgr2007 related
primarily to working capital changes of the oxo gwiots and derivatives businesses and the shutdbawr o
Edmonton, Alberta, Canada methanol facility. Otisgtthe increase in cash flows were an increasefrcash
interest paid ($78 million), cash spent on legdlements ($134 million) and decreased operatinditpduring the
period.

Net Cash Provided by/Used in Investing Activi

Net cash from investing activities increased frooash outflow of $201 million in 2008 to a casHomf of

$31 million in 2009. Net cash from investing adi®s increased primarily due to lower capital exgizmes on
property, plant and equipment, proceeds receivad fhe sale of our PVOH business and increasedrdefe
proceeds received on our Ticona Kelsterbach remtathese cash inflows were offset slightly byriorease on o
capital expenditures related to our Ticona Kelstehbplant relocation.

Net cash from investing activities decreased frorash inflow of $143 million in 2007 to a cash ¢mf of

$201 million in 2008. Net cash from investing aitiés decreased primarily due to cash spent ihese¢int of our
cross currency swaps of $93 million (see Note 2théoconsolidated financial statements) and theratesof
proceeds from the sale of our oxo products andraives businesses during 2007. These amountsoffset by ne
cash received on the sale of marketable secu#Ekl million) and the excess of cash received ffaaport over
amounts spent in connection with the Ticona Keltsteh plant relocation.
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Our cash outflows for capital expenditures were@bdifllion, $274 million and $288 million for the ges ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectivelyudixgy amounts related to the relocation of ourohiz plant in
Kelsterbach. Capital expenditures were primarilgiteel to major replacements of equipment, capa&sipansions,
major investments to reduce future operating castsenvironmental, health and safety initiativesstCoutflows fc
capital expenditures are expected to be approxiyn@&65 million in 2010, excluding amounts relatedhe
relocation of our Ticona plant in Kelsterbach.

As of December 31, 2009, we have received €542amitf cash from Fraport in connection with thedria
Kelsterbach plant relocation. Per the terms ofRteport agreement, we expect to receive an addit@hl0 million
in 2011 subject to downward adjustments based oneadliness to close our operations at our KelatdrpGermar
facility. We anticipate related cash outflows fapial expenditures in 2010 will be €200 million.

Net Cash Used in Financing Activiti

Net cash for financing activities decreased frooash outflow of $499 million in 2008 to a cash tawf of

$112 million in 2009. The $387 million decrease@sh used in financing activities primarily relatedcash
outflows attributable to the repurchase of shatesd 2008 of $378 million as compared to no shaepsirchased
during 20009.

Net cash for financing activities increased to shcautflow of $499 million in 2008 compared to altautflow of
$714 million during 2007. The increase primariliates to the absence of cash outflows attributetbthe debt
refinancing in 2007. Also contributing to the inase, cash spent to repurchase shares was $25nekie during
2008 than during 2007. Decreased cash receivestdok option exercises of $51 million partially <t the
increase.

In addition, exchange rate effects on cash and eqsivalents increased to a favorable currencycetit
$63 million in 2009 compared to an unfavorable iotge $35 million in 2008 and a favorable impact$88 million
in 2007.

Debt and Other Obligation

As of December 31, 2009, we had total debt of $Bbllion and cash and cash equivalents of $1,2Bom
resulting in net debt of $2,247 million, a $610lmait decrease from December 31, 2008. Increasddafas
$578 million and net cash paydowns on debt of $88om were partially offset by new capital leasiligations of
$38 million and unfavorable foreign currency impact $24 million.

Senior Credit Facilities

Our senior credit agreement consists of $2,280anilbf US dollar-denominated and €400 million ofr&u
denominated term loans due 2014, a $600 millioolkéng credit facility terminating in 2013 and aZ@million
creditdinked revolving facility terminating in 2014. A$ Becember 31, 2009, there were no outstandingldngs
or letters of credit issued under the revolvingddréacility; accordingly, $600 million remained ailable for
borrowing. As of December 31, 2009, there were$#Bon of letters of credit issued under the ctditiked
revolving facility and $140 million remained avdila for borrowing. Our senior credit agreement fegpius to not
exceed a maximum first lien senior secured leveratie if there are outstanding borrowings underrvolving
credit facility. The first lien senior secured leage ratio is calculated as the ratio of consadiddirst lien senior
secured debt to earnings before interest, tax@sediation and amortization, subject to adjustmetgstified in the
credit agreement. See Note 14 to the consolidataddial statements for additional information neliyag our senic
credit facilities.

On June 30, 2009, we entered into an amendmehétsenior credit agreement. The amendment redteeahtour
available under the revolving credit facility fradd650 million to $600 million and increased thetflisn senior
secured leverage ratio covenant that is applicabhkn any amount is outstanding under the revoleneglit portion
of the senior credit agreement. Prior to givingeeffto the amendment, the maximum first lien senior
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secured leverage ratio was 3.90 to 1.00. As amenideanaximum senior secured leverage ratio fofdhewing

trailing four-quarter periods is as follows:

First Lien Senior Secured
Leverage Ratio

December 31, 200 5.25t0 1.00
March 31, 201( 4.75t0 1.0
June 30, 201 4.25t0 1.0
September 30, 201 4.251t0 1.0
December 31, 2010 and therea 3.90to 1.0

As a condition to borrowing funds or requesting teéters of credit be issued under the revolvirggit facility, our
first lien senior secured leverage ratio (as caleudl as of the last day of the most recent fisgatter for which
financial statements have been delivered underethaving facility) cannot exceed a certain thrddhas specified
above. Further, our first lien senior secured lagerratio must be maintained at or below that trolelswhile any
amounts are outstanding under the revolving cfadility. The first lien senior secured leveragtaas calculated
as the ratio of consolidated first lien senior sedudebt to earnings before interest, taxes, degireic and
amortization, subject to adjustment identifiedhe tredit agreement.

Based on the estimated first lien senior securegrége ratio for the trailing four quarters at Dmber 31, 2009, ot
borrowing capacity under the revolving credit fagils $600 million. As of the quarter ended DecemB1, 2009,
we estimate our first lien senior secured leveragje to be 3.39 to 1.00 (which would be 4.11 @0lwere the
revolving credit facility fully drawn). The maximufirst lien senior secured leverage ratio underdwlving credi
facility for such quarter is 5.25 to 1.00. Our daAhility in future periods will be based on thesfitien senior secure
leverage ratio applicable to the future periods.

Our senior credit agreement also contains a nuwilestrictions on certain of our subsidiaries]uxng, but not
limited to, restrictions on their ability to incurdebtedness; grant liens on assets; merge, cdaslior sell assets;
pay dividends or make other restricted payment&entavestments; prepay or modify certain indebtednengage
in transactions with affiliates; enter into saladeback transactions or certain hedge transactioresigage in other
businesses. The senior credit agreement also osrdaiumber of affirmative covenants and eventetdult,
including a cross default to other debt of certdiour subsidiaries in an aggregate amount equalaiee than

$40 million and the occurrence of a change of @nkailure to comply with these covenants, ordheurrence of
any other event of default, could result in acalen of the loans and other financial obligationsler our senior
credit agreement.

Commitments Relating to Share Capital

Our Board of Directors adopted a policy of declgrisubject to legally available funds, a quartedgh dividend on
each share of our Series A common stock at an arstesof $0.16 per share unless our Board of Darsadn its sol
discretion determines otherwise. For the yearsaémiEember 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, we paid $2ARmil

$24 million and $25 million, respectively, in cadiridends on our Series A common stock. On Janba®p10, we
declared a $6 million cash dividend which was maid-ebruary 1, 2010.

Holders of our 4.25% convertible perpetual prefdisck (“Preferred Stock”) are entitled to receiwben, as and
if declared by our Board of Directors, out of fuldgally available, quarterly cash dividends atrde of 4.25% pe
annum, or $0.265625 per share of liquidation pesfee. Dividends on the Preferred Stock are cunveldétom the
date of initial issuance. The Preferred Stock isveatible, at the option of the holder, at any timi® 1.2600 shares
of our Series A common stock, subject to adjustsiger $25.00 liquidation preference of the Pref&tock. For
the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2@)@aid $10 million annually of cash dividends om Bteferre:
Stock. On January 5, 2010, we declared a $3 mitesh dividend on our Preferred Stock, which wad pa
February 1, 2010.

On February 1, 2010, we announced we would eledeem all of our outstanding Preferred Stock elorirary 22
2010. Holders of the Preferred Stock also haveite to convert their shares at any time prios100 p.m., New
York City time, on February 19, 2010, the busingsg immediately preceding the February 22,
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2010 redemption date. Considering the redempticduoPreferred Stock, we will pay cash dividendsan
Preferred Stock of $3 million in 2010.

Contractual Debt and Cash Obligations

The following table sets forth our fixed contradtdabt and cash obligations as of December 31,.2009

Payments due by perioc
Less Thar After 5
Total 1 Year Years 2 & 3 Years 4 & £ Years
(In $ millions)

Fixed contractual debt obligatio

Term loans facility 2,78¢ 29 57 2,69¢ -
Interest payments on debt and other obligat 921 @) 19z 28¢€ 16t 277
Capital lease obligatior 242 34 28 28 152
Other deb 474 ) 17¢ 69 45 181

Total 4,42z 43k 44C 2,931 61C
Operating lease 20¢ 50 67 40 46
Uncertain tax obligations, including interest

and penaltie 234 @ 5 - - 22¢
Unconditional purchase obligatio 1,62¢ 3 22¢ 437 31€ 64E
Other commitment 712 @ 187 274 141 111
Environmental and asset retirement obligati 18C 35 68 21 56
Total 7,37¢ 94( 1,28¢ 3,45¢ 1,697

(Y
@

®

4)

®)

Future interest expense is calculated using tleeimatffect on January 2, 201

Due to uncertainties in the timing of the effectbattlement of tax positions with the respectivertg
authorities, we are unable to determine the tinofhgayments related to our uncertain tax obligatjoncluding
interest and penalties. These amounts are thenaftheeted ir“After 5 Year”.

Represent the take-or-pay provisions included itagelong-term purchase agreements. We do notatxpe
incur material losses under these arrangem

Includes other purchase obligations such as maintmnand service agreements, energy and utiliseagents,
consulting contracts, software agreements and otissrellaneous agreements and contracts, obtaiaed v
survey of the Compan

Other debt of $474 million is primarily made upfixded rate pollution control and industrial reverhends,
shor-term borrowings from affiliated companies and otibx@nk obligations

Contractual Guarantees and Commitments

As of December 31, 2009, we have current standbgréeof credit of $88 million and bank guarantees

$12 million outstanding which are irrevocable obtigns of an issuing bank that ensure paymentitd garties in
the event that certain subsidiaries fail to perfamraccordance with specified contractual obligagiol he likelihood
is remote that material payments will be requireder these agreements.

Other Obligations

Deferred Compensatio In April 2007, certain participants in our 2004eteed compensation plan elected to
participate in a revised program, which includethlimash awards and restricted stock units. Underdbised cash
program, participants relinquished their cash awafdip to $30 million that would have contingeralcrued from
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2007-2009 under the original plan. Based on cumparticipation in the revised cash program, we ezpd
$10 million during the year ended December 31, 200@ revised cash awards vest December 31, 2010.

In December 2008, we granted time-vesting cashaswafr$22 million with Celanese’s executive offeand
certain other key employees. Each award of castis 3&86 on October 14, 2009, 30% on October 14, 20H040%
on October 14, 2011. In its sole discretion, theagensation committee of the Board of Directors magny time
convert all or a portion of the cash award to aaravof time-vesting restricted stock units. Théility cash awards
are being accrued and expensed over the term afgiteements. During the year ended December 39, B3
than $1 million was paid to participants who I&fé tCompany and $6 million was paid in October 2@08ctive
employees representing 30% of the remaining oudstgraward.

Pension and Other Postretirement Obligatic Our contributions for pension and postretiremesntdiits are
preliminarily estimated to be $46 million and $2illion, respectively, in 2010.

Domination Agreemen The domination and profit and loss transfer agexgnithe “Domination Agreement”) was
approved at the Celanese GmbH, formerly known dan@se AG, extraordinary shareholders’ meetinguby 31,
2004. The Domination Agreement between CelaneseHGamiol the Purchaser became effective on Octoli204
and was terminated effective December 31, 200:&yurchaser in the ordinary course of business. Ou
subsidiaries, Celanese International Holdings Lub@ung S.a r.l. (“CIH"), formerly Celanese Caylux lHimgs
Luxembourg S.C.A., and Celanese US, have eachdrgwovide the Purchaser with financing to stteag the
Purchaser’s ability to fulfill its obligations under in connection with, the Domination Agreemand to ensure
that the Purchaser will perform all of its obligats under, or in connection with, the Dominatiorréement when
such obligations become due, including, withoufitttion, the obligation to compensate Celanese Gfiaptdny
statutory annual loss incurred by Celanese Gmblhgduhe term of the Domination Agreement. If CIH

and/or Celanese US are obligated to make paymedts such guarantees or other security to the Baechwe
may not have sufficient funds for payments on adebtedness when due. We have not had to compedsiateese
GmbH for an annual loss for any period during whiod Domination Agreement has been in effect. Duhée
termination of the Domination Agreement there Ww#él no obligation to compensate for any losses eduafter
December 31, 2009.

Purchases of Treasury Sta

In February 2008, our Board of Directors authorittezlrepurchase of up to $400 million of our SeAesommon
stock. This authorization was increased to $500aniin October 2008. The authorization gives mamagnt
discretion in determining the conditions under viahébares may be repurchased. This repurchase pratyr@s not
have an expiration date. During the year ended ibbee 31, 2009, we did not repurchase any sharesrdberies /
common stock in connection with this authorizatidfe have the ability to repurchase an addition2Hdillion of
Series A common stock based on the Board of Dirsctmthorization of $500 million.

These purchases will reduce the number of shatstaoding and the repurchased shares may be usesifby
compensation programs utilizing our stock and otloeporate purposes. We account for treasury sisitlg the
cost method and include treasury stock as a conmpafé&hareholders’ equity.

Plumbing Action:

We are involved in a number of legal proceedings @aims incidental to the normal conduct of ousibass. As of
December 31, 2009 there were reserves of $55 mitétated to plumbing action litigation. Althoughs impossibli
at this time to determine with certainty the ulttmautcome of these matters, we believe, basedeadvice of
legal counsel, that adequate provisions have beeterand that the ultimate outcome will not haveatenmal
adverse effect on our financial position, but cduddre a material adverse effect on our resultgefations or cash
flows in any given accounting period.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have not entered into any material off-balareesarrangements.
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Market Risks

Please sekdkem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosureoabMarket Rislof this Form 10-K for additional
information about our Market Risks.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are basdtegelection and application of significant acamgpolicies.
The preparation of consolidated financial states@ntonformity with US Generally Accepted Accoungti
Principles (GAAP) requires management to make estismand assumptions that affect the reported amofin
assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingesetsand liabilities at the date of the consoliddirgancial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues, expensedllandted charges during the reporting period. Akctasults
could differ from those estimates. However, werarecurrently aware of any reasonably likely events
circumstances that would result in materially difat results.

We believe the following accounting polices andneates are critical to understanding the finanaabrting risks
present in the current economic environment. Thesters, and the judgments and uncertainties affgtttem, are
also essential to understanding our reported atudefwperating results. See Note 2 to the condeliinancial
statements for a more comprehensive discussionraignificant accounting policies.

» Recoverability of Long-Lived Assets
Recoverability of Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Asts

We test for impairment of goodwill at the reportimgit level. Our reporting units are either our igtimg business
segments or one level below our operating busisegsients where discrete financial information eilable for
our reporting units and operating results are @tyteviewed by business segment management. @iméss unit
have been designated as our reporting units basbdsiness segment management’s review of anchcelian the
business unit financial information and include Adeed Engineered Materials, Acetate Products, i,
Emulsions, Celanese EVA Performance Polymers (fdy#€l Plastics) and Acetyl Intermediates busines$ée
assess the recoverability of the carrying valueusfgoodwill and other indefinite-lived intangitdssets annually
during the third quarter of our fiscal year usingd 30 balances or whenever events or changessimtitances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset naybe fully recoverable. Recoverability of goodwaihd other
indefinite-lived intangible assets is measured gisimiscounted cash flow model incorporating discoates
commensurate with the risks involved for each répgrunit. Use of a discounted cash flow modelasxmon
practice in impairment testing in the absence ailable transactional market evidence to deterrthiedair value.

The key assumptions used in the discounted caghviiduation model include discount rates, growtiesacash
flow projections and terminal value rates. Discawatés, growth rates and cash flow projectiongfaenost
sensitive and susceptible to change as they regiginficant management judgment. Discount ratesdatermined
by using a weighted average cost of capital (“WALThe WACC considers market and industry data eltas
Company-specific risk factors for each reporting imdetermining the appropriate discount rateééaused. The
discount rate utilized for each reporting unitridicative of the return an investor would expeatgiceive for
investing in such a business. Operational managemensidering industry and Company-specific hisadrand
projected data, develops growth rates and cashgtoyections for each reporting unit. Terminal \@ahate
determination follows common methodology of captgrihe present value of perpetual cash flow esémbéeyond
the last projected period assuming a constant WaA@low long-term growth rates. If the calculatail ¥alue is
less than the current carrying value, impairmenhefreporting unit may exist. If the recoverabitiést indicates
potential impairment, we calculate an implied faitue of goodwill for the reporting unit. The imgdi fair value of
goodwill is determined in a manner similar to hosodwill is calculated in a business combinatiorthé implied
fair value of goodwill exceeds the carrying valdeoodwill assigned to the reporting unit, ther@@simpairment. |
the carrying value of goodwill assigned to a rejpgrunit exceeds the implied fair value of the goill an
impairment charge is recorded to write down they@ag value. An impairment loss cannot exceed tmgying
value of goodwill assigned to a reporting unit ety indicate certain
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long-lived and amortizable intangible assets assediwith the reporting unit may require additiomabairment
testing.

Management tests indefinite-lived intangible asaétizing the relief from royalty method to detema the
estimated fair value for each indefinite-lived imgéble asset. The relief from royalty method estesahe
Company’s theoretical royalty savings from ownguaiii the intangible asset. Key assumptions usékisrmodel
include discount rates, royalty rates, growth ratates projections and terminal value rates. Disteates, royalty
rates, growth rates and sales projections areshingptions most sensitive and susceptible to chasgigey require
significant management judgment. Discount rates ase similar to the rates estimated by the WACGsmering
any differences in Company-specific risk factorey&lty rates are established by management angeasiedically
substantiated by third-party valuation consulta®gerational management, considering industry amugany-
specific historical and projected data, develomswiin rates and sales projections associated with maefinite-
lived intangible asset. Terminal value rate deteation follows common methodology of capturing ginesent
value of perpetual sales estimates beyond th@tagtcted period assuming a constant WACC and tog-term
growth rates.

For all significant goodwill and indefinite-livedtangible assets, the estimated fair value of fseteexceeded the
carrying value of the asset by a substantial maagthe date of the most recent impairment test.riethodology
for determining impairment for both goodwill andig&finite-lived intangible assets was consistenhliat used in
the prior year.

Recoverability of Long-Lived and Amortizable Intabig Assets

We assess the recoverability of long-lived and aizetvle intangible assets whenever events or cistances
indicate that the carrying value of the asset natybe recoverable. Examples of a change in eventsaumstance
include, but are not limited to, a decrease inntlagket price of the asset, a history of cash flogsés related to the
use of the asset or a significant adverse chantieiaxtent or manner in which an asset is beieg.ubo assess the
recoverability of long-lived and amortizable intérlg assets we compare the carrying amount ofshetar group
of assets to the future net undiscounted cash feoypected to be generated by the asset or assgt. drong-lived
and amortizable intangible assets are tested éogrétion and measurement of an impairment logiseatowest
level for which identifiable cash flows are largéhyglependent of the cash flows of other assetdiahbittities. If such
assets are considered impaired, the impairmengnéped is measured as the amount by which theiogramount
of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.

The development of future net undiscounted cash flmjections require management projections rdltdesales
and profitability trends and the remaining useifigl bf the asset. Projections of sales and prdfitattrends are the
assumptions most sensitive and susceptible to ehasghey require significant management judgmidrase
projections are consistent with projections wetosmanage our operations internally. When impairnigen
indicated, a discounted cash flow valuation modusllar to that used to value goodwill at the repagtunit level,
incorporating discount rates commensurate withsradsociated with each asset, is used to deteth@rfair value
of the asset to measure potential impairment. Weveethe assumptions used are reflective of whateet
participant would have used in calculating fairueal

Valuation methodologies utilized to evaluate godtand indefinite-lived intangible, amortizable émygible and
long-lived assets for impairment were consisterh\prior periods. We periodically engage third-pasaluation
consultants to assist us with this process. Speaffsumptions discussed above are updated atthefdzach test to
consider current industry and Compaspecific risk factors from the perspective of a ketparticipant. The curre
business environment is subject to evolving magcketditions and requires significant managementruely to
interpret the potential impact to the Company’siagstions. To the extent that changes in the cubrasiness
environment result in adjusted management projestionpairment losses may occur in future periods.

¢ Income Taxes

We regularly review our deferred tax assets foovecability and establish a valuation allowanceehlasn historical
taxable income, projected future taxable incomeiagble tax strategies, and the expected timingpefreversals ¢
existing temporary differences. A valuation allowars provided when it is more likely than not teaine
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portion or all of the deferred tax assets will hetrealized. In forming our judgment regarding risgoverability of
deferred tax assets related to deductible tempaliffigrences and tax attribute carryforwards, wesgieight to
positive and negative evidence based on the etdemhich the forms of evidence can be objectivadyified. We
attach the most weight to historical earnings duigstverifiable nature. Weight is attached to pdanning strategies
if the strategies are prudent and feasible anddmphtable without significant obstacles. Less wigghattached to
forecasted future earnings due to its subjectitareaand expected timing of reversal of taxabhegerary
differences is given little weight unless the resadiof taxable and deductible temporary differerm®scide.
Valuation allowances have been established prignarilnet operating loss carryforwards and otheemefl tax
assets in the US, Luxembourg, France, Spain, CtliedJnited Kingdom and Canada. We have approjyiate
reflected increases and decreases in our valualimwance based on the overall weight of positigesus negative
evidence on a jurisdiction by jurisdiction basis2i009, based on cumulative profitability, the Campconcluded
that the US valuation allowance should be revees@apt for a portion related to certain federal stade net
operating loss carryforwards that are not likelypéorealized.

We record accruals for income taxes and assodiatexkst that may become payable in future yeassrasult of
audits by tax authorities. We recognize tax bege@fien it is more likely than not (likelihood ofegiter than 50%),
based on technical merits, that the position vélslistained upon examination. Tax positions thait e more-
likely-thannot threshold are measured using a probability tejapproach as the largest amount of tax bethel
is greater than 50% likely of being realized upetilement. Whether the more-likely-than-not rectignithreshold
is met for a tax position is a matter of judgmess$dd on the individual facts and circumstancebatfiosition
evaluated in light of all available evidence.

The recoverability of deferred tax assets and ¢éisegnition and measurement of uncertain tax positease subject
to various assumptions and management judgmeattutal results differ from the estimates made bypagament i
establishing or maintaining valuation allowancesiast deferred tax assets, the resulting changeeimaluation
allowance would generally impact earnings or Ottenprehensive income depending on the nature of the
respective deferred tax asset. Additionally, thsiians taken with regard to tax contingencies f@yubject to
audit and review by tax authorities which may resufuture taxes, interest and penalties.

In December 2009, Mexico enacted the 2010 MexicaanReform Bill (“Tax Reform Bill") to be effective
January 1, 2010. Under this new legislation, thpaxate income tax rate will be temporarily inciexhérom 28% to
30% for 2010 through 2012, then reduced to 29%®itB2and finally reduced back to 28% in 2014 ardriuyears.
The Tax Reform Bill as enacted accelerates thigptece period from 10 years to 5 years and effelstirequires
payment of taxes even if no benefit was obtainealitph the tax consolidation regime. Finally, sigraht
modifications were also made to the rules for inedaxes previously deferred on intercompany divideas well
as to income taxes related to differences betweradatidated and individual Mexican tax earnings prafits. The
estimated income tax impact to the Company ofribig legislation at December 31, 2009 is $73 miljpayable
$12 million in 2010, $14 million in 2012, $12 mdh in 2013 and $35 million in 2014 and thereafidrere is an
expectation that Mexico may publish technical cotioas to certain aspects of the Tax Reform Bile@1.0 that
could significantly reduce the amounts due fromGloenpany as described above. However, there issurance
that Mexico will in fact publish such correctiomgyr is it clear what impact any corrections puldighwill have on
the Company'’s actual liability under the new lavithAugh any ultimate outcome is uncertain, we gjtpeontend
the new legislation is unconstitutional and we wihtest its validity and effective date througbp@r channels.

»  Benefit Obligations

We have pension and other postretirement benafitsptovering substantially all employees who mkgibdity
requirements. With respect to its US qualified dedi benefit pension plan, minimum funding requireta@are
determined by the Pension Protection Act of 20G&dan years of service and/or compensation. Variou
assumptions are used in the calculation of theasictivaluation of the employee benefit plans. Bhessumptions
include the weighted average discount rate, congiemslevels, expected long-term rates of returplan assets
and trends in health care costs. In addition tath@ve mentioned assumptions, actuarial consultest$actors suc
as withdrawal and mortality rates to estimate ttigggted benefit obligation. The actuarial assuoriused may
differ materially from actual results due to chamggmarket and economic conditions, higher or lower
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withdrawal rates or longer or shorter life spanpatticipants. These differences may result irgaiicant impact tc
the amount of pension expense recorded in futwiegse

The amounts recognized in the consolidated finhsté@ements related to pension and other postneéint benefits
are determined on an actuarial basis. A signifieesumption used in determining our pension expisribe
expected long-term rate of return on plan assetofMecember 31, 2009, we assumed an expecteddomgate
of return on plan assets of 8.5% for the US defimexefit pension plans, which represent approxilp&&% and
85% of our pension plan assets and liabilitiepeetvely. On average, the actual return on thegUaified defined
pension plans’ assets over the long-term (15 tpe20s) has exceeded 8.5%.

We estimate a 25 basis point decline in the expdotgg-term rate of return for the US qualifiedidet! benefit
pension plan to increase pension expense by anaetl $5 million in 2009. Another estimate thaeef§ our
pension and other postretirement benefit expengeidiscount rate used in the annual actuarialatains of
pension and other postretirement benefit plan akibgs. At the end of each year, we determine pipecgriate
discount rate, used to determine the present wdlfigure cash flows currently expected to be regflito settle the
pension and other postretirement benefit obligatidine discount rate is generally based on the wirlhighguality
corporate fixedncome securities. As of December 31, 2009, weedssgd the discount rate to 5.90% from 6.50¢
of December 31, 2008 for the US plans. We estirtietea 50 basis point decline in our discount vétkincrease
our annual pension expenses by an estimated $lidnménd increase our benefit obligations by agpnately
$151 million for our US pension plans. In addititiee same basis point decline in our discountwatealso
increase our annual expenses and benefit obligatiphess than $1 million and $9 million respedsiyéor our US
postretirement medical plans. We estimate that lbass point decline in the discount rate for tbe-S pension
and postretirement medical plans will increase jpenand other postretirement benefit annual expehge
approximately $1 million and less than $1 millioespectively, and will increase our benefit obligas by
approximately $32 million and $2 million, respeetiy.

Other postretirement benefit plans provide medical life insurance benefits to retirees who meaimim age an
service requirements. The key determinants of ticeraulated postretirement benefit obligation (“APB@re the
discount rate and the healthcare cost trend ré&te hi€althcare cost trend rate has a significaateén the reported
amounts of APBO and related expense. For exammdegasing or decreasing the healthcare cost taady one
percentage point in each year would result in tR8@ as of December 31, 2009 changing by approxiynate

$4 million and $(3) million, respectively. Additially, increasing or decreasing the healthcarettestl rate by one
percentage point in each year would result in @92postretirement benefit cost changing by leas $1 million.

Pension assumptions are reviewed annually on agpldrcountry-specific basis by third-party actumaed senior
management. Such assumptions are adjusted as apprdp reflect changes in market rates and oktléde
determine the long-term expected rate of returplan assets by considering the current target afisettion, as
well as the historical and expected rates of returnvarious asset categories in which the plangassted. A singl
long-term expected rate of return on plan asseteis calculated for each plan as the weightedagecof the target
asset allocation and the long-term expected ratetofn assumptions for each asset category witham plan.

Differences between actual rates of return of plssets and the long-term expected rate of retuplaomassets are
generally not recognized in pension expense iry¢ae that the difference occurs. These differeacesleferred ar
amortized into pension expense over the averagaingmy future service of employees. We apply thgiterm
expected rate of return on plan assets to a magketed value of plan assets to stabilize varighiti the plan asset
values.

 Accounting for Commitments and Contingencies

We are subject to a number of legal proceedingssuds, claims, and investigations, incidentalhte hormal
conduct of our business, relating to and inclugingduct liability, patent and intellectual propertpmmercial,
contract, antitrust, past waste disposal practigdsase of chemicals into the environment and eympént matters,
which are handled and defended in the ordinarysmaf business. We routinely assess the likelited@ihy advers
judgments or outcomes to these matters as wedlrages of probable and reasonably estimable loBsasonabl
estimates involve judgments made by us after cenisig a broad range of information including:
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notifications, demands, settlements which have beesived from a regulatory authority or privatetpaestimates
performed by independent consultants and outsidasm, available facts, identification of othergrially
responsible parties and their ability to contrib@g well as prior experience. With respect to mmmental

liabilities, it is our policy to accrue throughtBen years, unless we have government orders er agiieements that
extend beyond fifteen years. A determination ofah®unt of loss contingency required, if any, sessed in
accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Codificaf‘FASB ASC") Topic 450Contingenciesand recorded
if probable and estimable after careful analysisaxth individual matter. The required reserves alange in the
future due to new developments in each matter aratlditional information becomes available.

Financial Reporting Changes

See Note 3 to the consolidated financial statemfenisformation regarding recent accounting prammments.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

Market Risks

Our financial market risk consists principally ofp@sure to currency exchange rates, interest smg€£ommodity
prices. Exchange rate and interest rate risks areaged with a variety of techniques, including ofséerivatives.
We have in place policies of hedging against chamgeurrency exchange rates, interest rates amdnoality price:
as described below. Contracts to hedge exposuegwianarily accounted for under FASB ASC Topic 815,
Derivatives and Hedgin(*FASB ASC Topic 815").

Interest Rate Risk Manageme!

We use interest rate swap agreements to manag&éhest rate risk of our total debt portfolio amthted overall
cost of borrowing. To reduce the interest rate ifilerent in our variable rate debt, we utilizeenetst rate swap
agreements to convert a portion of our variable datt to a fixed rate obligation. These interatt swap
agreements are designated as cash flow hedges.

In March 2007, in anticipation of the April 2007deefinancing, we entered into various US dollad &uro
interest rate swap agreements, which became effeati April 2, 2007, with notional amounts of $biBion and
€150 million, respectively. The notional amount e t51.6 billion US dollar interest rate swaps daseel by
$400 million effective January 2, 2008 and decrddseanother $200 million effective January 2, 20D8 offset
the declines, we entered into US dollar interetst svaps with a combined notional amount of $400aniwhich
became effective on January 2, 2008 and an additld8 dollar interest rate swap with a notional anmamf
$200 million which became effective April 2, 2009.

As of December 31, 2009, we had $2.2 billion, €ddllion and CNY 1.4 billion of variable rate delof, which
$1.6 billion and €150 million is hedged with intsteate swaps, which leaves $643 million, €290iariland CNY
1.4 billion of variable rate debt subject to inttreate exposure. Accordingly, a 1% increase ierast rates would
increase annual interest expense by approximaf&yn$llion.

See Note 22 to the consolidated financial statesnfentfurther discussion of our interest rate risknagement and
the related impact on our financial position arglites of operations.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The primary business objective of this hedging paiogis to maintain an approximately balanced parsitin foreign
currencies so that exchange gains and lossesingsiitim exchange rate changes, net of relateéffexts, are
minimized. It is our policy to minimize currencymosures and to conduct operations either withictional
currencies or using the protection of hedge strased\ccordingly, we enter into foreign currencyvfards and
swaps to minimize our exposure to foreign currefhagtuations. From time to time we may also hedgeaurrency
exposure related to forecasted transactions. Fdra@mtracts are not designated as hedges under R&EBTopic
815.

The following table indicates the total US dollguévalents of net foreign exchange exposure rela€dhort) long
foreign exchange forward contracts outstandingryency. All of the contracts included in the tabkdow will
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have approximately offsetting effects from actuadierlying payables, receivables, intercompany laarather
assets or liabilities subject to foreign exchareyjaegasurement.

Currency 2010 Maturity

(In $ millions)
Euro (372
British pound sterling (90
Chinese renmint (200
Mexican pes( (5)
Singapore dolla 27
Canadian dolla (48)
Japanese ye 8
Brazilian real (17)
Swedish kroni 15
Other @
Total (677

Additionally, a portion of our assets, liabilitiggvenues and expenses are denominated in cursestbier than the
US dollar, principally the Euro. Fluctuations irethialue of these currencies against the US dai&ticularly the
value of the Euro, can have a direct and matariphict on the business and financial results. Famgke, a decline
in the value of the Euro versus the US dollar tssula decline in the US dollar value of our saled earnings
denominated in Euros due to translation effectselise, an increase in the value of the Euro vettsadJS dollar
would result in an opposite effect.

To protect the foreign currency exposure of a ne¢stment in a foreign operation, we entered inbs< currency
swaps with certain financial institutions in 2004he cross currency swaps and the Euro-denominateidip of the
senior term loan were designated as a hedge dfiavestment of a foreign operation. We dedesighéte net
investment hedge due to the debt refinancing irl 007 and redesignated the cross currency swaghsew
senior Euro term loan in July 2007. As a resultreerded $26 million of mark-to-markiesses related to the crc
currency swaps and the new senior Euro term loainglthis period.

Under the terms of the cross currency swap arraageanwe paid approximatelyL & million in interest and receiv
approximately $16 million in interest on June 18l &ecember 15 of each year. The fair value of #teobligation
under the cross currency swaps was included ireot@ther liabilities in the consolidated balankeets as of
December 31, 2007. Upon maturity of the cross cuyeswap arrangements in June 2008, we owed €2H6mi
($426 million) and were owed $333 million. In settlent of the obligation, we paid $93 million (nétraerest of
$3 million) in June 2008.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, we detketsid €385 million of the €400 million euro-denoatid
portion of the term loan, previously designate@ &gdge of a net investment of a foreign operalfitwe. remaining
€15 million Euro-denominated portion of the termromas dedesignated as a hedge of a net investrharioeign
operation in June 2009. Prior to these dedesigmgtiwe had been using external derivative conttaatéfset
foreign currency exposures on certain intercompaags. As a result of the dedesignations, the goreurrency
exposure created by the Euro-denominated termifoexpected to offset the foreign currency exposureertain
intercompany loans, decreasing the need for eXtdaravative contracts and reducing our exposurexternal
counterparties.

See Note 22 to the consolidated financial statesnfentfurther discussion of our foreign exchangé& management
and the related impact on our financial positiod egsults of operations.
Commodity Risk Management

We have exposure to the prices of commaodities impoacurement of certain raw materials. We manage o
exposure primarily through the use of long-termpdyagreements and derivative instruments. We eefjuassess
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our practice of purchasing a portion of our comrhodkquirements forward and utilization of othewnaaterial
hedging instruments, in addition to forward pur@esntracts, in accordance with changes in maxkeditons.
Forward purchases and swap contracts for raw natégerie principally settled through actual delivefyhe physic:
commodity. For qualifying contracts, we have elddteapply the normal purchases and normal salespéion of
FASB ASC Topic 815, as it was probable at the itioepand throughout the term of the contract thaytwould nc
settle net and would result in physical deliverg. such, realized gains and losses on these cantnacincluded in
the cost of the commaodity upon the settlement efdbntract.

In addition, we occasionally enter into financialidatives to hedge a component of a raw materiahergy sourci
Typically, these types of transactions do not duddir hedge accounting. These instruments are athtét market ¢
each reporting period and gains (losses) are iedud Cost of sales in the consolidated statenwfraperations.
We recognized no gain or loss from these type®ofracts during the years ended December 31, 2002@08 an
less than $1 million during the year ended Decer8tte2007. As of December 31, 2009, we did not reayeopen
financial derivative contracts for commodities.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary De

Our consolidated financial statements and supplémgdata are included item 15. Exhibits and Financial
Statement Schedulekthis Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Quarterly Financial Information

CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Three Months Ended

March 31, June 30, September 3C December 31

2009 2009 2009 2009

(Unaudited)
(In $ millions, except per share data
Net sales 1,14¢ 1,244 1,30¢ 1,38¢
Gross profit 20C 24¢ 26€ 28¢
Other (charges) gains, r (21) @ (6) (96) @ (13
Operating profit (loss 27 89 65 10¢
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befase (16) 122 49 86
Amounts attributable to Celanese Corpora
Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic (22) 10t 39¢ 1
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati 1 (§N)] - 4
Net earnings (loss (20) 104 39¢ 5
Earnings (loss) per sha— basic (0.1¢) 0.71 2.7¢€ 0.02
Earnings (loss) per sha— diluted (0.1¢) 0.6€ 2.5¢ 0.02
Three Months Ended
March 31, June 30, September 3C December 31
2008 2008 2008 2008
(Unaudited)
(In $ millions, except per share data

Net sales 1,84¢ 1,86¢ 1,82: 1,28¢

Gross profit 41¢ 39¢ 33¢ 10¢
Other (charges) gains, r (16) @) @ @ (84) 4

Operating profit (loss 234 207 151 (152

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare 21¢ 247 152 (183)

Amounts attributable to Celanese Corpora

Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic 14t 203 164 (240)

Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati - (69 (6) (15

Net earnings (loss 14t 134 15¢ (15%)

Earnings (loss) per sha— basic 0.9: 0.81 1.0t (1.09)

Earnings (loss) per sha— diluted 0.87 0.8( 0.97 (2.09)

() Consists principally of $24 million in employeertgnation benefits, due to our efforts to align protion
capacity and staffing levels with our current viefxaan economic environment of prolonged lower detn

@ Consists principally of $65 million in employeertgénation benefits, $20 million of contract termiioat costs
and $7 million of long-lived impairment losses tethto the Project of Closure at our Pardies, Fraiant
location.

() Consists principally of $21 million in long-livedset impairment losses, $23 million in insurana®veries and
$8 million in employee termination benefits. Thadelived asset impairment losses are associatédthétsale
of our Pampa, Texas plant. The insurance recoveses received from our reinsurers in partial $atison of
loss claims resulting from the previously announoethge at our Clear Lake, Texas acetic acid fgc

@ Consists principally of $94 million in long-livedhpairment losses and $15 million in insurance receg. The
long-lived asset impairment losses are associated nétl2®09 closure of our acetic acid and VAM prodat
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facility in Pardies, France, the 2009 VAM produatianit in Cangrejera, Mexico and certain otherlfges. The
insurance recoveries reflect amounts received fsanreinsurers in partial satisfaction of loss misiresulting
from the previously announced outage at our Cledel Texas acetic acid facilit

For a discussion of material events affecting peménce in each quarter, dé&m 7. Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems. All amounts in the table above have been properly
adjusted for the effects of discontinued operations

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcégnting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedure

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including the Chief Executive ¢@ffiand
Chief Financial Officer, we have evaluated the effeness of our disclosure controls and procedpuesuant to
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b) as of the end of thimgeovered by this report. Based on that evabumatas of
December 31, 2009, the Chief Executive Officer @hdef Financial Officer have concluded that theseldsure
controls and procedures are effective.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

None.

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAN CIAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal controls over finahaporting
for the Company. Internal control over financigboging is a process to provide reasonable assen@yarding the
reliability of our financial reporting for externplirposes in accordance with accounting princigkrserally
accepted in the United States of America. Intecoatrol over financial reporting includes maintaigirecords that
in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflmaat transactions; providing reasonable assuraratdrdmsactions a
recorded as necessary for preparation of our cimfaded financial statements; providing reasonabseia@nce that
receipts and expenditures of company assets are imatcordance with management authorizationpaodding
reasonable assurance that unauthorized acquisiti@ngr disposition of company assets that could hamaterial
effect on our consolidated financial statementsidite prevented or detected on a timely basis. Beaf its
inherent limitations, internal control over finaacreporting is not intended to provide absolutsuasnce that a
misstatement of our consolidated financial stateasemuld be prevented or detected.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effemtige of our internal control over financial repagtbased on
the framework in Internal Control 4ategrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiong Organizations
the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluati@magement concluded that the Company’s interndtaio
over financial reporting was effective as of DecemBl, 2009. KPMG LLP has audited this assessnfemiro
internal control over financial reporting; theiprat is included below.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Celanese Corporation:

We have audited Celanese Corporation and subsidigthe “Company”)nternal control over financial reporting
of December 31, 2009, based on criteria establishedernal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission (COSO). The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal gohbver financial reporting and for its assessnudrihe
effectiveness of internal control over financigbogting, included in the accompanying report of agement on
internal control over financial reporting. Our respibility is to express an opinion on the Comparigternal
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBoa
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether effective internal control over financieporting was maintained in all material respects. &udit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control dugincial reporting, assessing the risk that aemaltweakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design aedating effectiveness of internal control basedhenassessed
risk. Our audit also included performing such othiercedures as we considered necessary in thengstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable Basisur opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesaesu
regarding the reliability of financial reportingathe preparation of financial statements for exdepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfeez A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (Itpjpeto the maintenance of records that, in reasiendetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (2) idmveasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as ngctsparmit preparation of financial statementadcordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andréwdipts and expenditures of the company are beadg only in
accordance with authorizations of management amdtdis of the company; and (3) provide reasonasdeirance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauitted acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d@étisstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectivesnés future periods are subject to the risk thatds may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, btttbalegree of compliance with the policies orcpaures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, Celanese Corporation and subsigsamaintained, in all material respects, effedtiernal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 20@&¢dd on criteria establishedlimiernal Control — Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrtee Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdi the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited
States), the consolidated balance sheets of Cel@mporation and subsidiaries as of December@®19 2nd 200¢
and the related consolidated statements of opestghareholders’ equity and comprehensive incéoss)( and
cash flows for each of the years in the thyear period ended December 31, 2009, and our reptetl February 1
2010 expressed an unqualified opinion on thoseatmladed financial statements.

/sl KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 12, 2010
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Goventce

The information required by this Item 10 is incargted herein by reference from the sections captid@orporate
Governance,” “Our Management Team,” and “Sectiofa)LBeneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” fod t
Company'’s definitive proxy statement for the 20b@w@al meeting of stockholders to be filed not lalan

March 12, 2010 with the Securities and Exchange @msion pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Séeari
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “2010 ProadeBent”).

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

The information required by this Item 11 is incomgted by reference from the sections captioned CHbree
Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Potenta}Rents upon Termination and Change in Controkl’ an
“Corporate Governance — Compensation Committeeltries and Insider Participation” of the 2010 Proxy
Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aMbBnagement and Related Stockholder Mattt

The information required by this Item 12 is incaorgted by reference from the section captioned ‘1S@wnership
Information” of the 2010 Proxy Statement. The infiation required by Item 201(d) of Regulation S-ISidmitted
in a separate section of this Form 10-K. Sem 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, RedeStockholder
Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Secur, above.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence

The information required by this Item 13 is incaorgted by reference from the section captioned ‘@ert
Relationships and Related Person Transaction$ieo2010 Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service

The information required by this Item 14 is incogted by reference from the sections captionedifiRation of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” &ddrporate Governance and Director Independencdief
2010 Proxy Statement.

PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Scheduls

1. Financial StatementsThe reports of our independent registered pultiéoanting firm and our consolidated
financial statements are listed below and begipame 73 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Page Number
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfdinm 73
Consolidated Statements of Operati 74
Consolidated Balance She 75
Consolidated Statements of Sharehol’ Equity and Comprehensive Income (Lo 76
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl¢ 78
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 79
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2. Financial Statement Schedule.

The financial statement schedule required by tbimiis included as an Exhibit to this Annual Reort
3. Exhibit List.

See Index to Exhibits following our consolidatenkfincial statements contained in this Annual Report

PLEASE NOTE It is inappropriate for readers to assume theraoguof, or rely upon any covenants,
representations or warranties that may be containagreements or other documents filed as Exhibjtsr
incorporated by reference in, this Annual Reporty Auch covenants, representations or warrantigshanze been
qualified or superseded by disclosures containesgtparate schedules or exhibits not filed witmeorporated by
reference in this Annual Report, may reflect theipa’ negotiated risk allocation in the particuleansaction, may
be qualified by materiality standards that diffearh those applicable for securities law purposed,raay not be
true as of the date of this Annual Report or ameptiate and may be subject to waivers by anyl of #he parties.
Where exhibits and schedules to agreements filédcorporated by reference as Exhibits hereto aténtluded in
these exhibits, such exhibits and schedules tceatgats are not included or incorporated by referdmeein.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly
caused the report to be signed on its behalf bytitersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CELANESE CORPORATION

By: /s/ David N. Weidmal
Name: David N. Weidman

Title: Chairman of the Board of Directors and

Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 12, 2010

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemsbose signature appears below constitutes and
appoints Steven M. Sterin, his true and lawful ragég-infact with power of substitution and resubstituttorsign ir
his name, place and stead, in any and all capscitiedo any and all things and execute any aridstiuments that
such attorney may deem necessary or advisable timel&ecurities Exchange Act of 1934 and any rukggjlation:
and requirements of the US Securities and Exch@ugemission in connection with the Annual Report on
Form 10-K and any and all amendments hereto, §sful all intents and purposes as he might or dald in
person, and hereby ratifies and confirms said @tpin-fact, acting alone, and his substitute dossitutes, may
lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed éydhowing
persons in the capacities and on the dates indicate

Signature

/s/ David N. Weidman

David N. Weidman

/s/ Steven M. Sterin

Steven M. Steril

/sl Christopher W. Jense

Christopher W. Jense

/s/ James E. Barlett

James E. Barle

/s/ David F. Hoffmeister

David F. Hoffmeiste

/s/ Martin G. McGuinn

Martin G. McGuinn

/sl Paul H. ¢ Neill

Paul H. C Neill

Title

Date

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chief February 12, 2010

Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

Vice President and Corporate Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)
Director
Director

Director

Director
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Signature

/sl Mark C. Rohr

Mark C. Rohr

/sl Daniel S. Sanders

Daniel S. Sandel

/s] Farah M. Walters

Farah M. Walter:

/s/ John K. Wulff

John K. Wulff
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Celanese Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Celanese Corporation and subsidighies
“Company”) as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, aaddtated consolidated statements of operatioasebblders
equity and comprehensive income (loss), and castsffor each of the years in the three-year pegiutkbd
December 31, 2009. These consolidated financitdrsents are the responsibility of the Company’sagament.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesnsolidated financial statements based on alitsau

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighago
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of materisstatement. An audit includes examining, ¢esabasis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosurtrifinancial statements. An audit also includeessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, as well as evaluating thalbfirancial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegaferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the
financial position of Celanese Corporation and &liages as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, andethdts of
their operations and their cash flows for eachhefytears in the three-year period ended Decemhe&0BD, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accountmigciples.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdi the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited
States), the Company'’s internal control over finalneporting as of December 31, 2009, based dar@i
established imnternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidns
the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our reportddBedruary 12, 2010 expressed an unqualified opiaiothe
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdirancial reporting.

As discussed in Note 15 to the consolidated firelratatements, the Company adopted Financial Adoayn
Standards Board (“FASB”) Staff Position No. 132(REmployers’ Disclosures about Postretirement Beri&ifin
Asset(included in FASB Accounting Standards Codificat{tASC”) Subtopic 715-20Defined Benefit Plang
during the year ended December 31, 2009.

As discussed in Note 23 to the consolidated firerstatements, the Company adopted FASB Statenié&imancia
Accounting Standards No. 157air Value Measuremen{included in FASB ASC Subtopic 820-1®air Value
Measurements and Disclosur), during the year ended December 31, 2008.

As discussed in Note 19 to the consolidated firerstatements, the Company adopted FASB Interjwatato. 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Tax(included in FASB ASC Subtopic 740-1@come Taxe} during the
year ended December 31, 20

/sl KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 12, 2010
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Net sales
Cost of sale:
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative exper

Amortization of intangible assets (primarily custemnelationships

Research and development expet
Other (charges) gains, r
Foreign exchange gain (loss), |
Gain (loss) on disposition of businesses and gaset
Operating profit
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliat
Interest expens
Refinancing expens
Interest incomt
Dividend income— cost investment
Other income (expense), r
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befase
Income tax (provision) bene!
Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic
Earnings (loss) from operation of discontinued afiens
Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operat
Income tax (provision) benefit from discontinueckgtions

Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati
Net earnings (loss
Net (earnings) loss attributable to noncontrollimgrests
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Celanese Caijmor
Cumulative preferred stock dividen
Net earnings (loss) available to common sharehs
Amounts attributable to Celanese Corpora
Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati

Net earnings (loss
Earnings (loss) per common sh— basic

Continuing operation
Discontinued operatior

Net earnings (loss basic
Earnings (loss) per common sh— diluted

Continuing operation
Discontinued operatior

Net earnings (loss— diluted

Weighted average shar- basic
Weighted average shar- diluted

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions, except for share and per share dafe

5,08 6,82: 6,44¢
(4,079 (5,567) (4,999

1,00¢ 1,25¢ 1,44t
(469 (540) (51€)
(77) (76) (72)
(75) (80) (73)
(136) (10€) (58)

2 (4 2

42 (8) 20
29C 44C 74¢
48 54 82
(207) (261) (262)

- - (25€)

8 31 44

98 167 11¢€
4 3 (25)

241 434 4475
24 (63) (110
484 371 337

6 (120) 40

- 6 52
@ 24 ]

4 (90) 90

48¢ 281 427
- 1 ()]

48¢ 282 42¢€
(10) (10) (10)
47¢ 272 41€
484 372 33€

4 (90) 90

48¢ 282 42¢
3.3C 2.44 2.11
0.0z (0.61) 0.5¢
3.3¢ 1.8t 2.6¢
3.0¢ 2.2¢ 1.9¢
0.0z (0.55) 0.5¢
3.11 1.7¢ 2.4¢
143,688,74 148,350,27 154,475,02
157,115,52 163,471,87 171,227,99

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddiakstatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31,

2009 2008

(In $ millions, except
share amounts)

ASSETS

Current asset
Cash and cash equivalel 1,25¢ 67€
Trade receivable- third party and affiliates (net of allowance foruddful account- 2009: $18; 2008: $2¢ 721 631
Non-trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtfucamts— 2009: $0; 2008: $1 236 274
Inventories 522 577
Deferred income taxe 42 24
Marketable securities, at fair val 3 6
Assets held for sal 2 2
Other asset 57 96
Total current asse 2,85¢€ 2,28¢
Investments in affiliate 79C 78¢
Property, plant and equipment (net of accumulatgtetiatior— 2009: $1,130; 2008: $1,05 2,791 2,47
Deferred income taxe 484 27
Marketable securities, at fair val 80 94
Other asset 311 357
Goodwill 79¢ 77¢
Intangible assets, n 294 364
Total asset 8,41( 7,16€

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities

Shor-term borrowings and current installments of I-term debt third party and affiliate 242 23<
Trade payable- third party and affiliate 64¢ 52¢
Other liabilities 611 574
Deferred income taxe 33 15
Income taxes payab 72 24
Total current liabilities 1,607 1,36¢
Long-term debr 3,25¢ 3,30(
Deferred income taxe 137 122
Uncertain tax position 22¢ 21¢
Benefit obligations 1,28¢ 1,167
Other liabilities 1,30¢€ 80¢€

Commitments and contingenci
Shareholder equity
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 sterthorized (2009 and 2008: 9,600,000 sharesdsaue
outstanding - -
Series A common stock, $0.0001 par value, 400,@@0sBares authorized (2009: 164,995,755 sharesdssud
144,394,069 outstanding; 2008: 164,107,394 shaseed and 143,505,708 outstandi - -
Series B common stock, $0.0001 par value, 100,000sB8ares authorized (2009 and 2008: 0 shareglissuk
outstanding

Treasury stock, at co- (2009 and 2008: 20,601,686 shar (78)) (787)
Additional paic-in capital 522 49k
Retained earninc 1,50z 1,047
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (659 (579
Total Celanese Corporation sharehol’ equity 584 182
Noncontrolling interest - 2
Total shareholde’ equity 584 184
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity 8,41( 7,16€

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddialbstatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Preferred stoc
Balance as of the beginning of the per
Issuance of preferred sto

Balance as of the end of the per

Series A common stoc
Balance as of the beginning of the per
Issuance of Series A common st¢
Stock option exercise
Purchases of treasury stc
Stock award:

Balance as of the end of the per

Treasury stocl
Balance as of the beginning of the per
Purchases of treasury stock, including related

Balance as of the end of the per

Additional paic-in capital
Balance as of the beginning of the per
Indemnification of demerger liabilit
Stocl-based compensation, net of
Stock option exercises, net of t

Balance as of the end of the per

Retained earning
Balance as of the beginning of the per
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Celan
Corporatior
Series A common stock dividen
Preferred stock dividenc
Adoption of ASC 74(®

Balance as of the end of the per

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Balance as of the beginning of the per
Unrealized gain (loss) on securit
Foreign currency translatic
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate sw
Pension and postretirement bene

Balance as of the end of the per

Total Celanese Corporation sharehol’ equity

Noncontrolling interest
Balance as of the beginning of the per
Purchase of remaining noncontrolling intere
Divestiture of noncontrolling interes
Net earnings (loss) attributable to noncontroll
interests

Balance as of the end of the per
Total shareholde’ equity

(1) Adoption of ASC 740Income Taxerelated to uncertain tax positions (Note !
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(LOSS)
2009 2008 2007
Shares Shares Shares
Outstanding Amount Outstanding Amount Outstanding Amount
(In $ millions, except share data

9,600,001 - 9,600,001 - 9,600,001 -
9,600,001 - 9,600,001 - 9,600,001 -
143,505,70 - 152,102,80 - 158,668,66 -
- - - - 7,40( -
806,58( - 1,056,36: - 4,265,22 -
- - (9,763,200 - (10,838,48) -
81,78: - 109,73¢ - - -
144,394,06 - 143,505,70 - 152,102,80 -
20,601,68 (781) 10,838,48 (409) 5 5
- - 9,763,201 (379) 10,838,48 (403)
20,601,68 (789 20,601,68 (781 10,838,48 (409
49t 46¢ 362
- 2 4
13 15 15
14 9 88
52z 49t 46¢
1,047 79¢ 394
48¢ 282 42€
(23) (24) (25)
(10 (10 (10
- - 14
1,50z 1,047 79¢
(579) 197 31
(€)] (23) 17
5 (130 70
15 (79 (41)
97 (549 12C
(659) (579 197
584 182 1,062
2 5 74
- - (70)
(@) (@) -
- @ 1
- 2 5
58: 184 1,06
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(LOSS)
2009 2008 2007
Shares Shares Shares
Outstanding Amount Outstanding Amount Outstanding Amount
(In $ millions, except share data
Comprehensive income (los
Net earnings (loss 48 28. 42
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
Unrealized gain (loss) on securit 3) (23) 17
Foreign currency translatic 5 (130 70
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate sw 15 (79 41
Pension and postretirement bene 97 (5449) 12C
Total comprehensive income (loss), net of 40€ (495) 592
Comprehensive (income) loss attributabli
noncontrolling interest - 1 (€))
Comprehensive income (loss) attributabl
Celanese Corporatic 40¢ (4949) 592

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddiakstatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions)

Operating activitie:
Net earnings (loss 48¢ 281 427
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) tocash provided by

operating activities

Other charges (gains), net of amounts t 73 111 30
Depreciation, amortization and accret 31¢ 36C 311
Deferred income taxes, n (402) (69) 23
(Gain) loss on disposition of businesses and agset (40) 1 (74)
Refinancing expens - - 25€
Other, ne 22 36 2
Operating cash provided by (used in) discontinysefations 2 3 (84)
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Trade receivable— third party and affiliates, nt (79) 33¢ (69)
Inventories 30 21 (27)
Other asset 9 53 66
Trade payable— third party and affiliate 104 (26%) (11)
Other liabilities 74 (28E) (280)
Net cash provided by operating activit 59¢€ 58€ 56€
Investing activities
Capital expenditures on property, plant and equigt (17¢) (2749) (28¢)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquir (9 - (26¢
Proceeds from sale of businesses and asse 171 9 il
Deferred proceeds on Ticona Kelsterbach plant atioc 412 311 -
Capital expenditures related to Ticona Kelsterhalaht relocatior (357) (18%) (22)
Proceeds from sale of marketable secur 15 20z 69
Purchases of marketable securi - (92) (59
Changes in restricted ca - - 46
Settlement of cross currency swap agreemn - (93 -
Other, ne (31) (80) (50)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi 31 (201) 142
Financing activitie:
Shor-term borrowings (repayments), t 9 (64) 30
Proceeds from lor-term debt - 13 2,90¢
Repayments of lor-term debi (80) 47 (3,059
Refinancing cost 3 - (240
Purchases of treasury stock, including related - (37¢) (402
Stock option exercise 14 18 69
Series A common stock dividen (23 (24 (25)
Preferred stock dividenc (10) (20 (20
Other, ne D (7 14
Net cash used in financing activiti (112 (499 (7149
Exchange rate effects on cash and cash equivz 63 (35) 39
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 57¢ (149) 34
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 67€ 82F 791
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe 1,25 67¢ 82!

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddiabstatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of the Company and Basis of Presentatic

Celanese Corporation and its subsidiaries (collelstithe “Company”) is a leading global integratdggtmical and
advanced materials company. The Company’s busineskes processing chemical raw materials, such as
methanol, carbon monoxide and ethylene, and ngbuoalucts, including wood pulp, into value-addedrofcals,
thermoplastic polymers and other chemical-basedyuts.

Definitions

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the term “Cedae” refers to Celanese Corporation, a Delawangocation,
and not its subsidiaries. The term “Celanese U&tsgo the Company’s subsidiary, Celanese US HgklLLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, formerly knovas BCP Crystal US Holdings Corp., a Delaware cafmn,
and not its subsidiaries. The term “Purchaser’reefie the Company’s subsidiary, Celanese Europdirigl

GmbH & Co. KG, formerly known as BCP Crystal Acdties GmbH & Co. KG, a German limited partnersrapd
not its subsidiaries, except where otherwise irtditarhe term “Original Shareholders” refers, atileely, to
Blackstone Capital Partners (Cayman) Ltd. 1, Blemkes Capital Partners (Cayman) Ltd. 2, Blackstoapi@l
Partners (Cayman) Ltd. 3 and BA Capital Investade&ar Fund, L.P. The term “Advisor” refers to Bdatone
Management Partners, an affiliate of The BlackstBnaup.

Basis of Presentatiol

The consolidated financial statements containgtlimAnnual Report were prepared in accordance adttounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stafesmerica (“US GAAP”) for all periods presentechd
consolidated financial statements and other firs@ncformation included in this Annual Report, isdeotherwise
specified, have been presented to separately dimeffects of discontinued operations.

In the ordinary course of the business, the Compegutgrs into contracts and agreements relativentmaber of
topics, including acquisitions, dispositions, jougtntures, supply agreements, product sales ard atrangements.
The Company endeavors to describe those contraagreements that are material to its businessitsesf
operations or financial position. The Company miap aescribe some arrangements that are not nidiatiavhich
the Company believes investors may have an interestwhich may have been subject to a Form 8liKdi
Investors should not assume the Company has dedaulbcontracts and agreements relative to thepaomyis
business in this Annual Report.

2. Summary of Accounting Policies

« Consolidation principles

The consolidated financial statements have bequaped in accordance with US GAAP for all periodssented ar
include the accounts of the Company and its mgjoriined subsidiaries over which the Company exesai®ntrol.
All significant intercompany accounts and transattihave been eliminated in consolidation.

« Estimates and assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial stateséntonformity with US GAAP requires managementtake
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemints of assets and liabilities, disclosure ofiogent assets
and liabilities at the date of the consolidatedficial statements and the reported amounts of veg®xpenses a
allocated charges during the reporting period. Ba@@nt estimates pertain to impairments of gooth\iltangible
assets and other long-lived assets, purchasegltamations, restructuring costs and other (chargems, net,
income taxes, pension and other postretirementfitgresset retirement obligations, environmeritdlilities and
loss contingencies, among others. Actual resultédcdiffer from those estimates.
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* Cash and cash equivalen
All highly liquid investments with original matuigs of three months or less are considered cashiaents.
* Inventories

Inventories, including stores and supplies, areedtat the lower of cost or market. Cost for ineeias is determine
using the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method. Cosicludes raw materials, direct labor and manufaatuoverhead.
Cost for stores and supplies is primarily determibg the average cost method.

* [Investments in marketable securities

The Company classifies its investments in debteandty securities as “available-for-sale” and répdnose
investments at their fair market values in the otidated balance sheets as Marketable Securitiésir¥alue.
Unrealized gains or losses, net of the relatecttfect on available-for-sale securities, are exetlftom earnings
and are reported as a component of Accumulatea otimprehensive income (loss), net until realiZdte cost of
securities sold is determined by using the speitatification method.

A decline in the market value of any available-$ate security below cost that is deemed to be
other-than-temporary results in a reduction indleying amount to fair value. The impairment isucfed to
earnings and a new cost basis for the securitgtébished. To determine whether impairment is
other-than-temporary, the Company considers whétiws the ability and intent to hold the investinentil a
market price recovery and evidence indicating i of the investment is recoverable outweighsenweé to the
contrary. Evidence considered in this assessmehtdas the reasons for the impairment, the sevantiyduration ¢
the impairment, changes in value subsequent togrehand forecasted performance of the investee.

* Investments in affiliates

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Acating Standards Codification (“FASB ASC”) Topic 323
Investment— Equity Method and Joint Venturgestipulates that the equity method should be tseatcount for
investments whereby an investor has “the abilitgxtercise significant influence over operating &indncial
policies of an investee”, but does not exercisarobrFASB ASC Topic 323 generally considers arestor to have
the ability to exercise significant influence wheowns 20% or more of the voting stock of an irrees FASB ASC
Topic 323 lists circumstances under which, des}é ownership, an investor may not be able to éserc
significant influence. Certain investments wheme @ompany owns greater than a 20% ownership ambtan
exercise significant influence or control are aated for under the cost method (Note 8).

The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingrvalue of its investments whenever events anges in
circumstances indicate a loss in value that isrdthen a temporary decline. A loss in value of guity-method or
cost-method investment which is other than a tearyadecline will be recognized as the differenceveen the
carrying amount of the investment and its fair ealu

The Company’s estimates of fair value are deterthivased on a discounted cash flow model. The Coypan
periodically engages third-party valuation consutao assist with this process.

* Property, plant and equipment, net

Land is recorded at historical cost. Buildings, hiaery and equipment, including capitalized interaad property
under capital lease agreements, are recorded taesssaccumulated depreciation. The Company record
depreciation and amortization in its consolidatiedesnents of operations as either Cost of sal&elling, general
and administrative expenses consistent with tHaition of the underlying assets. Depreciationdkulated on a
straight-line basis over the following estimatedfutlives of depreciable assets:

Land Improvement 20 years
Buildings and improvemen 30 years
Machinery and Equipmel 20 years
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Leasehold improvements are amortized over ten ywatse remaining life of the respective lease,ovbiver is
shorter.

Accelerated depreciation is recorded when the estichuseful life is shortened. Ordinary repair aradntenance
costs, including costs for planned maintenanceataumds, that do not extend the useful life ofabget are charged
to earnings as incurred. Fully depreciated assetsetained in property and depreciation accountis old or
otherwise disposed. In the case of disposals,sasedtrelated depreciation are removed from theuats, and the
net amounts, less proceeds from disposal, aredadlin earnings.

The Company also leases property, plant and equipumeler operating and capital leases. Rent exgdense
operating leases, which may have escalating reataknt holidays over the term of the lease, éorded on a
straightline basis over the lease term. Amortization ofitzdfease assets is included as a component oédiggion
expense.

Assets acquired in business combinations are redaatitheir fair values and depreciated over teetasremaining
useful lives or the Company’s policy lives, whickevs shorter.

The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingramount of its property, plant and equipmenendver
events or changes in circumstances indicate tieatdtrying amount of an asset or asset group miglyeno
recoverable. An impairment loss would be asses$athwestimated undiscounted future cash flows fifwen t
operation and disposition of the asset group a®tlean the carrying amount of the asset groupetAgsups have
identifiable cash flows and are largely independdmther asset groups. Measurement of an impairioss is
based on the excess of the carrying amount ofgbet group over its fair value. Fair value is meadwsing
discounted cash flows or independent appraisalgppopriate. Impairment losses are recorded inedégion
expense or Other (charges) gains, net dependitigediacts and circumstances.

» Goodwill and other intangible assets

Trademarks and trade names, customer-related ibtaragsets and other intangibles with finite liees amortized
on a straight-line basis over their estimated Udefes. The excess of the purchase price ovenfaine of net
identifiable assets and liabilities of an acquibediness (“goodwill”) and other indefinite-livedtamgible assets are
not amortized, but rather tested for impairmenteast annually. The Company tests for goodwill antfinite-
lived intangible asset impairment during the thgedarter of its fiscal year using June 30 balances.

The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingrvalue of goodwill at least annually or whenegeents or
changes in circumstances indicate that the cargimgunt of the goodwill of a reporting unit may bet fully
recoverable. Recoverability is measured at therteggpunit level based on the provisions of FASB@R\Sopic 350,
Intangibles— Goodwill and Other The Company’s estimates of fair value are deteechbased on a discounted
cash flow model. The Company periodically engabesd-party valuation consultants to assist witls fiocess.
Impairment losses are recorded in other operatipgrese or Other (charges) gains, net dependingeofatts and
circumstances.

The Company assesses recoverability of other inidefiived intangible assets at least annually bemever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the iceygmount of the indefinitéved intangible asset may not be fL
recoverable. Recoverability is measured by a cormpaiof the carrying value of the indefiniiged intangible asse
over its fair value. Any excess of the carryingueabf the indefinite-lived intangible asset overfiir value is
recognized as an impairment loss. The Companyisatgs of fair value are determined based on adiged cash
flow model. The Company periodically engages thadty valuation consultants to assist with thiscpss.
Impairment losses are recorded in other operatipgrese or Other (charges) gains, net dependinbeofatts and
circumstances.

The Company assesses the recoverability of finiegdlintangible assets in the same manner as éqepty, plant
and equipment as described above. Impairment l@ssegcorded in amortization expense or Otherr¢es) gains,
net depending on the facts and circumstances.
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* Financial instruments

On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the pomgsif FASB ASC Topic 82@air Value Measurements and
Disclosures(“FASB ASC Topic 820") for financial assets andbiiiities. On January 1, 2009, the Company applied
the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 820 for non-reaugrfair value measurements of non-financial asaets
liabilities, such as goodwill, indefinite-lived amgible assets, property, plant and equipment aset actirement
obligations. The adoptions of FASB ASC Topic 8260 dot have a material impact on the Company'’s fif@n
position, results of operations or cash flows. FASBC Topic 820 defines fair value, and increasssldsures
surrounding fair value calculations.

The Company manages its exposures to currency egehrates, interest rates and commaodity pricesigira risk
management program that includes the use of der@vfihancial instruments (Note 22). The Compangsinot use
derivative financial instruments for speculativeding purposes. The fair value of all derivativetinments is
recorded as assets or liabilities at the balaneetstate. Changes in the fair value of these imstnis are reported
income or Accumulated other comprehensive incomssj| net, depending on the use of the derivatidenehether
it qualifies for hedge accounting treatment untlerfrovisions of FASB ASC Topic 81Bgrivatives and Hedging
(“FASB ASC Topic 815").

Gains and losses on derivative instruments qualif@s cash flow hedges are recorded in Accumutzttest
comprehensive income (loss), net, to the extenhéuges are effective, until the underlying tratisas are
recognized in income. To the extent effective, gand losses on derivative and non-derivativeunsénts used as
hedges of the Company’s net investment in forejggrations are recorded in Accumulated other congursilie
income (loss), net as part of the foreign curremagslation adjustment. The ineffective portionsagh flow hedge
and hedges of net investment in foreign operatibm@sy, are recognized in income immediately. Dative
instruments not designated as hedges are markedriet at the end of each accounting period wighctimnge in
fair value recorded in income.

» Concentrations of credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the eeémionpayment by customers and counterparties. The
creditworthiness of customers and counterpartissiligect to continuing review, including the userafster netting
agreements, where the Company deems approprisgeCd@impany minimizes concentrations of credit isktigh
its global orientation in diverse businesses withrge number of diverse customers and supplieradtlition, credi
risks arising from derivative instruments is n@trsficant because the counterparties to these actstare primarily
major international financial institutions and adesser extent, major chemical companies. Wheyeoppate, the
Company has diversified its selection of counteipar Generally, collateral is not required fronsttumers and
counterparties and allowances are provided foripeisks inherent in receivables.

» Deferred financing costs

The Company capitalizes direct costs incurred taioldebt financings and amortizes these costguwsmethod
that approximates the effective interest rate nobthar the terms of the related debt. Upon thengyishment of
the related debt, any unamortized capitalized fiehhcing costs are immediately expensed.

* Environmental liabilities

The Company manufactures and sells a diverse fishemical products throughout the world. Accordinghe
Company’s operations are subject to various hazaoidental to the production of industrial chentécimcluding

the use, handling, processing, storage and tratadjmor of hazardous materials. The Company recegrizsses and
accrues liabilities relating to environmental migtié available information indicates that it isopable that a liabilit
has been incurred and the amount of loss can Benmably estimated. Depending on the nature ofitaethe
Company accrues through fifteen years, unless dmpany has government orders or other agreemaattextend
beyond fifteen years. If the event of loss is r@ithrobable nor reasonably estimable, but is regdgmpossible, the
Company provides appropriate disclosure in themtmiehe consolidated financial statements if ih&iagency is
considered material. The Company estimates envieotethliabilities on a case-by-case basis using
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the most current status of available facts, exgstathnology, presently enacted laws and regulst@o prior
experience in remediation of contaminated sitesoReries of environmental costs from other pariesrecorded
as assets when their receipt is deemed probable.

An environmental reserve related to cleanup ofraarainated site might include, for example, a psvi for one ¢
more of the following types of costs: site inveatign and testing costs, cleanup costs, costerktatsoil and water
contamination resulting from tank ruptures and pestediation monitoring costs. These reserves ddake into
account any claims or recoveries from insurancerdlare no pending insurance claims for any enwigortal
liability that are expected to be material. The sugament of environmental liabilities is based o €ompany’s
periodic estimate of what it will cost to performoh of the elements of the remediation effort. Toenpany utilize:
third parties to assist in the management and dpwatnt of cost estimates for its sites. Changestronmental
regulations or other factors affecting environmelihilities are reflected in the consolidateddirtial statements
the period in which they occur (Note 16).

* Legal fees

The Company accrues for legal fees related todoeingency matters when the costs associateddefénding
these matters can be reasonably estimated andaahte of occurring. All other legal fees are engel as
incurred.

» Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when title andofiséss have been transferred to the customer rgiyat the
time of shipment of products, and provided thart foasic criteria are met: (1) persuasive evideri@arrangeme
exists; (2) delivery has occurred or services Heen rendered; (3) the fee is fixed or determinabid

(4) collectibility is reasonably assured. Shouldmges in conditions cause the Company to deterreirenue
recognition criteria are not met for certain tragigms, revenue recognition would be delayed wutih time that th
transactions become realizable and fully earnegmieats received in advance of meeting the aboventey
recognition criteria are recorded as deferred regen

» Research and development
The costs of research and development are chasgaad expense in the period in which they are irclrr
* Insurance loss reserves

The Company has two wholly owned insurance compaie “Captives”) that are used as a form of isslfirance
for property, liability and workers compensatiosks. One of the Captives also insures certain-jérdy risks. The
liabilities recorded by the Captives relate to¢isémated risk of loss which is based on managepstimates and
actuarial valuations, and unearned premiums, wgphesent the portion of the third-party premiurmgten
applicable to the unexpired terms of the policreforce. Liabilities are recognized for known claimbken sufficien
information has been developed to indicate involeetof a specific policy and the Company can realiyn
estimate its liability. In addition, liabilities ka been established to cover additional exposutsotinknown and
unasserted claims. Estimates of the liabilitiesravéewed and updated regularly. It is possible dtaual results
could differ significantly from the recorded liaiti#s. Premiums written are recognized as revemmsed on the
terms of the policies. Capitalization of the Capsivs determined by regulatory guidelines.

» Reinsurance receivables

The Captives enter into reinsurance arrangememegitice their risk of loss. The reinsurance arrareggs do not
relieve the Captives from their obligations to pgliolders. Failure of the reinsurers to honor tbéiigations could
result in losses to the Captives. The Captivesuawalthe financial condition of their reinsurersl amonitor
concentrations of credit risk to minimize their espre to significant losses from reinsurer insobves and to
establish allowances for amounts deemed non-citillect
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* Income taxes

The provision for income taxes has been determiiséty the asset and liability approach of accogntim income
taxes. Under this approach, deferred income taeféect the net tax effects of temporary differenobesveen the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for ficial reporting purposes and the amounts usechéomie tax
purposes and net operating loss and tax credi éamwvards. The amount of deferred taxes on thessgorary
differences is determined using the tax ratesahaexpected to apply to the period when the @ssetlized or the
liability is settled, as applicable, based on tes and laws in the respective tax jurisdictioacted as of the
balance sheet date.

The Company reviews its deferred tax assets favezability and establishes a valuation allowarasedl on
historical taxable income, projected future taxab®me, applicable tax strategies, and the exgdateng of the
reversals of existing temporary differences. A atibn allowance is provided when it is more likéian not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assetsmwdtlbe realized.

The Company considers many factors when evaluatitigestimating its tax positions and tax benefitich may
require periodic adjustments and which may not mately anticipate actual outcomes. Tax positiomsracognized
only when it is more likely than not (likelihood gfeater than 50%), based on technical merits ttiegpositions
will be sustained upon examination. Tax positidrat tmeet the more-likely-than-not threshold aresuead using a
probability weighted approach as the largest amoftitéx benefit that is greater than 50% likelybefng realized
upon settlement. Whether the more-likely-than-egbgnition threshold is met for a tax position imatter of
judgment based on the individual facts and circamsts of that position evaluated in light of athidéable evidence

» Noncontrolling interests

Noncontrolling interests in the equity and resofteperations of the entities consolidated by tloenfany are
shown as a separate line item in the consolidatedi¢ial statements. The entities included in thesolidated
financial statements that have noncontrolling iesés are as follows:

Ownership Percentage
as of December 31

2009 2008
Celanese Polisinteza d.o. 76% 76%
Synthesegasanlage Ruhr Gm 50% 50%

In December 2009, the Company paid a liquidatimideind related to its ownership in Synthesegasanitaghr
GmbH in the amount of €1 million. The Company isreatly liquidating its ownership in Synthesegasagel Ruhr
GmbH.

» Accounting for purchasing agent agreements

A subsidiary of the Company acts as a purchasiegtaan behalf of the Company, as well as thirdigsriThe
entity arranges sale and purchase agreementsifanederials on a commission basis. Accordingly,dbemission
earned on these third-party sales are classifiedraduction to Selling, general and administragixpenses.

* Functional and reporting currencies

For the Company'’s international operations wheesftimctional currency is other than the US dobasets and
liabilities are translated using period-end exclearages, while the statement of operations amanetsranslated
using the average exchange rates for the respegxtived. Differences arising from the translatidrassets and
liabilities in comparison with the translation bktprevious periods or from initial recognition ithgr the period are
included as a separate component of Accumulatezt cdmprehensive income (loss), net.
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* Reclassifications
The Company has reclassified certain prior perimduants to conform to the current year presentation.
3. Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In January 2010, the FASB issued FASB Accountirap&ards Update 2010-02¢ccounting and Reporting for
Decreases in Ownership of a Subsidi— A Scope ClarificatioffASU 2010-02"), which amends FASB ASC
Topic 820-10 (“FASB ASC Topic 820-10"). The updaridresses implementation issues related to chamges
ownership provisions in the FASB ASC 820-10. Thenpany adopted ASU 2010-02 on December 31, 200%. Thi
update had no impact on the Company’s financiaitipos results of operations or cash flows.

In August 2009, the FASB issued FASB Accountingh8tads Update 2009-OBbair Value Measurements and
Disclosures(*ASU 2009-05"), which amends FASB ASC Topic 820{IBASB ASC Topic 820-10"). The update
provides clarification on the techniques for measwent of fair value required of a reporting entityen a quoted
price in an active market for an identical lialyilis not available. The Company adopted ASU 200®&%inning
September 30, 2009. This update had no impacte@tmpany’s financial position, results of openasior cash
flows.

In June 2009, the FASB issued Statement of FinbAcieounting Standards (“SFAS”) 168he FASB Accounting
Standards Codificatiofv and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accountmigiciples — a replacement of

FAS 16Z("SFAS 168"), which created FASB ASC Topic 105-1BASB ASC Topic 105-10"). FASB ASC Topic
105-10 identifies the sources of accounting prilesi@nd the framework for selecting principles useithe
preparation of financial statements of nongoverralemtities that are presented in conformity with GAAP (the
GAAP hierarchy). The Company adopted FASB ASC Tdi6-10 beginning September 30, 2009. This standard
had no impact on the Company’s financial positi@sults of operations or cash flows.

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS 16bibsequent Event$SFAS 165”), codified in FASB ASC Topic
855-10, which establishes accounting and disclostaredards for events that occur after the balaheet date but
before financial statements are issued or areahlaito be issued. It defines financial statemastavailable to be
issued, requiring the disclosure of the date thihowbich an entity has evaluated subsequent evedtthe basis for
that date, whether it be the date the financiakstants were issued or the date they were availatile issued. The
Company adopted SFAS 165 upon issuance. This sthhdd no impact on the Company’s financial positio
results of operations or cash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB Staff Positi0RSP”) SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124Recognition and
Presentation oOther-Than-Temporary Impairmernf$SP SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2"), which is codifie
FASB ASC Topic 320-10. FSP SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 2 pdevides guidance to determine whether the haltler
an investment in a debt security for which charigdair value are not regularly recognized in eagsi should
recognize a loss in earnings when the investmdnipsaired. This FSP also improves the presentatiwhdisclosur
of other-than-temporary impairments on debt andtggecurities in the consolidated financial stagets. The
Company adopted FSP SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2iagiApril 1, 2009. This FSP had no material impatt
the Company’s financial position, results of operat or cash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP SFAS 107-1 aadodinting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion APB
28-1,Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financiastrumentg“FSP SFAS 107-1 and APB 28-1").

FSP SFAS 107-1 and APB 28-1, which is codified A8B ASC Topic 825-10-50, require disclosures alfaint
value of financial instruments for interim repodiperiods of publicly traded companies as wellaarinual
financial statements. The Company adopted FSP XSl and APB 28-1 beginning April 1, 2009. ThidH&ad
no impact on the Company’s financial position, fessaf operations or cash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP SFAS 15Détermining Fair Value When the Volume and Levédivity
for the Asset or Liability Have Significantly Deased and Identifying Transactions That Are Not @gd(“FSP
SFAS 157-4"). FSP SFAS 157-4, which is codifiedrSB ASC Topics 820-10-35-51 and 820-10-50-2, piesi
additional guidance for estimating fair value antbéasizes that even if there has been a signifabeerease in the
volume and level of activity for the asset or liapiand regardless of the valuation technique&®d, the objective
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of a fair value measurement remains the same. Bhep@ny adopted FSP SFAS 157-4 beginning April D920
This FSP had no material impact on the Companganitial position, results of operations or castv§lo

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP SFAS 141(RMgounting for Assets Acquired and Liabilities Ased in a
Business Combination That Arifrom Contingencie§'FSP SFAS 141(R)-1"). FSP SFAS 141(R)-1, which is
codified in FASB ASC Topic 808usiness Combinationsddresses application issues related to the merasut,
accounting and disclosure of assets and liabilarsing from contingencies in a business combimafi he
Company adopted FSP SFAS 141(R)-1 upon issuanée FBP had no impact on the Company’s financiaitioos
results of operations or cash flows.

In December 2008, the FASB issued FSP SFAS 132(Rjnbployers’ Disclosures about Postretirement Benefit
Plan Asset(“FSP SFAS 132(R)-1"), which is codified in FASB &S opic 715-20-50. FSP SFAS 132(R)-1
requires enhanced disclosures about the plan afs®iSompany’s defined benefit pension and otlostnetirement
plans intended to provide financial statement ugdsa greater understanding of: 1) how investnadliaication
decisions are made; 2) the major categories of gaets; 3) the inputs and valuation techniques tesmeasure the
fair value of plan assets; 4) the effect of failueameasurements using significant unobservablgténpn changes in
plan assets for the period; and 5) significant eotrations of risk within plan assets. The Compaaigpted FSP
SFAS 132(R)-1 on January 1, 2009. This FSP hadwpadt on the Company’s financial position, resafts
operations or cash flows.

4. Acquisitions, Ventures, Divestitures, Asset Salesd Plant Closures

Acquisitions

In December 2009, the Company acquired the busarasassets of FACT GmbH (Future Advanced Compmsite
Technology) (“FACT"), a German company, for a puash price of €5 million ($7 million). FACT is ind@husiness
of developing, producing and marketing long fibeinforced thermoplastics. As part of the acquisitibe
Company has entered into a ten year lease agreevitarthe seller for the property and buildingswainich the
FACT business is located with the option to purehthg property at various times throughout thede@ke
acquired business is included in the Advanced Eeged Materials segment.

In January 2007, the Company acquired the cellldostate flake, tow and film business of AcetateBcts
Limited (“APL"), a subsidiary of Corsadi B.V. Thaighase price for the transaction was approximag®i/million
($112 million), in addition to direct acquisitionsts of approximatelyZ£million ($7 million). As contemplated pri
to the closing of the acquisition, the Company etbthe acquired tow production plant at Little Heat

United Kingdom in September 2007. In accordancé thie Company’s sponsor services agreement dated
January 26, 2005, as amended, the Company pafithisor $1 million in connection with the acquisiti. The
acquired business is included in the Company’s Qmes Specialties segment.

Ventures

In March 2007, the Company entered into a strategitnership with Accsys Technologies PLC (“Accgyshd its
subsidiary, Titan Wood, to become the exclusivepiapof acetyl products to Titan Wood's technoldigpgnsees
for use in wood acetylation. In connection wittstpartnership, in May 2007, the Company acquired
8,115,883 shares of Accsys’ common stock reprasgiaipproximately 5.45% of the total voting shareAasys
for €22 million ($30 million). The investment wagated as an available-for-sale security and weladed in
Marketable securities, at fair value, on the Conyfsmoonsolidated balance sheets. On November 207,28e
Company and Accsys announced that they agreedeaaditheir business arrangements so that each cgmmand
have a nonexclusive “at-will” trading and supplat®nship to give both companies greater flexipilAs part of
this amendment, the Company subsequently sold @i shares of Accsys stock for approximately €#0ion
($30 million), which resulted in a cumulative lasfs$3 million.

Divestitures

In July 2009, the Company completed the sale gfatgvinyl alcohol (“PVOH”) business to Sekisui Ghieal Co.,
Ltd. (“Sekisui”) for a net cash purchase price 868 million, resulting in a gain on disposition®84 million. The
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net cash purchase price excludes the accountyvabdeiand payable retained by the Company. Thedicion
includes long-term supply agreements between Sekiglithe Company and therefore, does not qualify f
treatment as a discontinued operation. The PVOlhbss is included in the Industrial Specialtiesnseqt.

In July 2008, the Company sold its 55.46% inteire&erivados Macroquimicos S.A. de C.V. (‘DEMACSAYr
proceeds of $3 million. DEMACSA produces celluletkers at an industrial complex in Zacapu, Michoaca
Mexico and is included in the Company’s Acetyl mediates segment. In June 2008, the Company redard
long-lived asset impairment loss of $1 million tos€of sales in the consolidated statements ofadipais. As a
result, the proceeds from the sale approximatedalmying value of DEMACSA on the date of the sdlee
Company concluded the sale of DEMACSA is not aatisoued operation due to certain forms of contigui
involvement between the Company and DEMACSA subseio the sale.

In August 2007, the Company sold its Films busirddsVA Performance Polymers (f/k/a AT Plasticgjdted in
Edmonton and Westlock, Alberta, Canada, to Brifistythene Industries PLC (“BPI”) for $12 millionh& Films
business manufactures products for the agricultbaticultural and construction industries. Then@any recorde
a loss on the sale of $7 million during the yeatezhDecember 31, 2007. The Company maintained lvipeof
the Polymers business of the business formerly knasvAT Plastics, which concentrates on the devedop and
supply of specialty resins and compounds. EVA Raerémce Polymers is included in the Company’s Indkist
Specialties segment. The Company concluded thataleeof the Films business is not a discontinyetation due
to the level of continuing cash flows between tim§ business and EVA Performance Polymers’ Polgmer
business subsequent to the sale.

In connection with the Company’s strategy to optienits portfolio and divest non-core operations, @ompany
announced in December 2006 its agreement to sellcetyl Intermediates segment’s oxo products arivatives
businesses, including European Oxo GmbH (“EOXQO%50&0 venture between Celanese GmbH and Degussa AG
(“Degussa”), to Advent International, for a purchgsice of €480 million ($636 million) subject tim&l agreement
adjustments and the successful exercise of the @oy'gpoption to purchase Degussa’s 50% intereBOXO. On
February 23, 2007, the option was exercised an@tmpany acquired Degussa’s interest in the verfitura
purchase price of €30 million ($39 million), in atildn to €22 million ($29 million) paid to extingsih EOXO’s debt
upon closing of the transaction. The Company cotagléhe sale of its oxo products and derivativesrmsses,
including the acquired 50% interest in EOXO, onrgeby 28, 2007. The sale included the oxo and dévigs
businesses at the Oberhausen, Germany, and BayT€kgs facilities as well as portions of its Biphdexas
facility. Also included were EOXQO's facilities wiith the Oberhausen and Marl, Germany plants. Thadoioxo
products and derivatives businesses acquired beitdnternational was renamed Oxea. Taking int@actagree
deductions by the buyer for pension and other eyggdoenefits and various costs for separationitieythe
Company received proceeds of approximately €44Bomi($585 million) at closing. The transactionuksd in the
recognition of a $47 million pre-tax gain, recorded>ain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operetj which
includes certain working capital and other adjusttagin 2007. Due to certain lease-back arrangesrtsativeen the
Company and the buyer and related environmentaatibns of the Company, approximately $51 millafrthe
transaction proceeds attributable to the fair valugne underlying land at Bay City ($1 million)@&®berhausen
(€36 million) is included in deferred proceeds onourrent Other liabilities, and divested land vathook value of
$14 million (€10 million at Oberhausen and $1 roifliat Bay City) remains in Property, plant and pment, net in
the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

Subsequent to closing, the Company and Oxea hatagrcsite service and product supply arrangemdifis.site
services include, but are not limited to, admimite, utilities, health and safety, waste wateatment and
maintenance activities for terms which range ufifteen years. Product supply agreements contatialiterms of
up to fifteen years. The Company has no contraetbidity through these agreements or any othengaments to
significantly influence the operating or finangmllicies of Oxea. The Company concluded, basedemature and
limited projected magnitude of the continuing besis relationship between the Company and Oxedlj\bstiture
of the oxo products and derivatives businesseslgl@uaccounted for as a discontinued operation.

Third-party net sales include $5 million to theelited oxo products and derivative businesses éoyehar ended
December 31, 2007 that were eliminated upon cofestdin.

87




Table of Contents

In accordance with the Company’s sponsor servigesement dated January 26, 2005, as amended, thpaDy
paid the Advisor $6 million in connection with teale of the oxo products and derivatives businesses

During the second quarter of 2007, the Companyodiscued its Edmonton, Alberta, Canada methanotaijoms,
which were included in the Acetyl Intermediatesreegt. As a result, the earnings (loss) from openatrelated to
Edmonton methanol are accounted for as discontiopedations.

Asset Sale

In May 2008, shareholders of the Company’s Kopkyéhia legal entity voted to approve the April 8afecision
by the Company to permanently shut down this eranssproduction site. The decision to shut dowrstteeresulte
in employee severance of less than $1 million, twiddncluded in Other (charges) gains, net, indhresolidated
statements of operations during the year endedreee31, 2008. Currently, the facility is idle aheé existing
fixed assets, including machinery and equipmernitdimgs and land are being marketed for sale. Thpé,
Slovenia legal entity is included in the Compariydustrial Specialties segment.

In December 2007, the Company sold the assets Btiinonton, Alberta, Canada facility to a real testieveloper
for approximately $35 million. As part of the agmeent, the Company will retain certain environmeligdlilities
associated with the site. The Company derecogiizédnillion of asset retirement obligations whicares
transferred to the buyer. As a result of the shke Company recorded a gain of $37 million forylear ended
December 31, 2007, of which a gain of $34 millioaswecorded to Gain (loss) on disposition of bissiae and
assets, net in the consolidated statements of tipesa

In July 2007, the Company reached an agreementBaititock & Brown, a worldwide investment firm which
specializes in real estate and utilities developntersell the Company’s Pampa, Texas facility. TCwempany
ceased operations at the site in December 2008e@ds received upon certain milestone events emgett as
deferred proceeds and included in noncurrent Qidigitities in the Company’s consolidated balanbeets until the
transaction is complete (expected to be in 2010Yedined in the sales agreement. These operatieriacluded in
the Company'’s Acetyl Intermediates segment. Dutlireggsecond half of 2008, the Company determineihtaof
the milestone events, which are outside of the Gomis control, were unlikely to be achieved. Ther(pany
performed a discounted cash flow analysis whichlted in a $23 million long-lived asset impairméggs recorded
to Other (charges) gains, net, in the consolidatattments of operations during the year endedrbleee31, 2008
(Note 18).

Plant Closures

In July 2009, the Company’s wholtywned French subsidiary, Acetex Chimie, compleledconsultation procedt
with the workers council on its “Project of Clostiemd social plan related to the Company’s Pardteance facility
pursuant to which the Company announced its fopizal to cease all manufacturing operations andcésteal
activities by December 2009. The Company agreel tid workers council on a set of measures of tassie
aimed at minimizing the effects of the plant’s ahgson the Pardies workforce, including trainingtmacement and
severance.

As a result of the Project of Closure, the Compaamprded exit costs of $89 million during the yeaded
December 31, 2009, which included $60 million inpéoyee termination benefits, $17 million of contrac
termination costs and $12 million of lotiged asset impairment losses (see Note 18) torQth&rges (gains), net,
the consolidated statements of operations. Thevédire of the related held and used long-livedtasse$4 million
as of December 31, 2009. In addition, the Compangnded $9 million of accelerated depreciation egpeor the
year ended December 31, 2009 and $8 million ofrenmental remediation reserves for the year el

December 31, 2009 related to the shutdown of thagamy’s Pardies, France facility. The Pardies, Eedacility is
included in the Acetyl Intermediates segment.
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5. Marketable Securities, at Fair Value

The Company’s captive insurance companies and @emelated trusts hold available-for-sale secigit@
capitalization and funding requirements, respebtivEhe Company recorded realized gains (losse€)tier incom:
(expense), net in the consolidated statementserfdipns as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions)
Realized gain on sale of securit k 1C 1
Realized loss on sale of securit - (10
Net realized gain (loss) on sale of securi 5 -

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gain, grossalined loss and fair values for available-foressécurities by
major security type were as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gain Loss Value
(In $ millions)

US government debt securiti 2t z - 2¢
US corporate debt securiti 1 - - 1
Total debt securitie 27 2 - 29
Equity securitie: 55 - ©)] 52
Money market deposits and other securi 2 - - 2
As of December 31, 20( 84 2 (3 83

US government debt securiti 35 17 - 52
US corporate debt securiti 3 - - 3
Total debt securitie 38 17 - 55
Equity securitie: 55 - (13 42
Money market deposits and other securi 3 - - 3
As of December 31, 20( 96 17 (13) 10C

Fixed maturities as of December 31, 2009 by cottedanaturity are shown below. Actual maturitiesiichdiffer
from contractual maturities because borrowers neaetthe right to call or prepay obligations, withwathout call
or prepayment penalties.

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
(In $ millions)
Within one yea & £
From one to five yeat - -
From six to ten yeal - -
Greater than ten yea 26 28
Total 28 31

Proceeds received from fixed maturities that maivithin one year are expected to be reinvestedadttitional
securities upon such maturity.
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6. Receivables, Ne

As of
December 31
2009 2008

(In $ millions)
Trade receivable— third party and affiliate 73¢ 65¢
Allowance for doubtful accoun— third party and affiliate (18) (25)
Trade receivable— third party and affiliates, n 721 631

Non-trade receivable

Reinsurance receivabl 42 33
Income taxes receivab 64 88
Other 14¢ 154
Allowance for doubtful accoun— other - (1)
Total 25E 274

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company bagigmificant concentrations of credit risk sinbe t
Company’s customer base is dispersed across mHagedt industries and geographies.

7. Inventories

As of

December 31,

2009 2008
(In $ millions)
Finished good 367 43¢
Work-in-process 28 24
Raw materials and suppli 127 11¢
Total 522 577

The Company recorded charges of $0 million andrillon to reduce its inventories to the lower-afstor market

for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 20Q&cteely.
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8. Investments in Affiliates

Equity Method

The Company’s equity investments and ownershipéste are as follows:

Ownership Share of Earnings (Loss)
Percentage Carrying Value Year Ended
as of December 31 as of December 31 December 31
Segment 2009 2008 _ 2009 2008 2009 2008 2007
(In percentages) (In $ millions)

European Oxo GmbI®) Acetyl Intermediate - - - - - - 2

Erfei, A.LE.® Acetyl Intermediate - 45 - 1 - - 1)
Advanced Engineer:

Fortron Industries LLC Materials 5C 5C 74 77 3) 4 16
Advanced Engineer:

Korea Engineering Plastics Co., Lt Materials 5C 5C 15¢ 14E 14 12 14
Advanced Engineer:

Polyplastics Co., Ltd Materials 45 45 17¢E 18¢ 15 19 25
Advanced Engineer:

Una SA Materials 5C 5C 2 2 - 2 -

InfraServ GmbH & Co. Gendorf Ki Other Activities 39 39 27 28 3 4 5

InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst K Other Activities 32 31 14z 137 15 10 18

InfraServ GmbH & Co. Knapsack K Other Activities 27 27 24 22 5 4 4

Sherbrooke Capital Health a
Wellness, L.P) Consumer Specialtic 10 10 4 4 (1) (1) -
Total 607 60E 48 54 83

(1) The Company divested this investment in FebruaB720lote 4). The share of earnings (loss) for this
investment is included in Earnings (loss) from agien of discontinued operations in the consolida@atemen
of operations

@ The Company accounts for its 10% ownership intereSherbrooke Capital Health and Wellness, L.Fleurthe
equity method of accounting because the Compaaplesto exercise significant influenc

® The Company divested this investment in July 200paat of the sale of PVOH (Note -

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions)
Affiliate net earnings 121 121 204
Compan’s share
Net earning: 48 54 82 (O
Dividends and other distributiol 37 64 57

(O Amount does not include a $1 million liquidatingidiend from Clear Lake Methanol Partners for tharyendec
December 31, 200°
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Cost Method

The Company'’s investments accounted for underdlsernethod of accounting are as follows:

Ownership
Percentage as o Carrying Value as of Dividend Income for the years
December 31 December 31 ended December 31
Segment 2008 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2007
(In percentages) (In $ millions)
National Methanol Companlbn Sin¢”) Acetyl Intermediate 25 25 54 54 41 11¢ 78
Kunming Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltc Consumer Specialti 30 30 14 14 10 8 7
Nantong Cellulose Fibers Co. Lt Consumer Specialti 31 31 77 77 38 32 24
Zhuhai Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltc Consumer Specialti 30 30 14 14 8 6 6
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Wiesbaden K Other Activities 8 8 6 6 1 2 1
Other 18 19 - - -
Total 18! 184 98 167 11€

Certain investments where the Company owns gréadera 20% ownership interest are accounted foerie cos
method of accounting because the Company cannatisgesignificant influence over these entitiese Tompany
determined that it cannot exercise significantuefice over these entities due to local governnmesstment in and
influence over these entities, limitations on tr@r@any’s involvement in the day-to-day operationg the present
inability of the entities to provide timely finaratiinformation prepared in accordance with US GAAP.

During 2007, the Company wrote-off its remainingrgillion ($1 million) cost investment in Europeaip&ine
Development Company B.V. (“EPDC”) and expensed &liam ($9 million), included in Other income (expse),
net, associated with contingent liabilities thatdme payable due to the Company’s decision taleipipeline
development project. In June 2008, the outstandamgingent liabilities were resolved and the Conypatognized
a gain of €2 million ($2 million), included in Othincome (expense), net, in the consolidated stagsof
operations to remove the remaining accrual.

During 2007, the Company fully impaired its $5 moitl cost investment in Elemica Corporation (“Eleafjc
Elemica is a network for the global chemical industeveloped by 22 of the leading chemical compaini¢he
world for the benefit of the entire industry. Timepairment was included in Other income (expensat)imthe
consolidated statements of operations.

9. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

As of December 31,

2009 2008
(In $ millions)
Land 62 61
Land improvement 44 44
Buildings and building improvemen 36C 35¢
Machinery and equipme 2,66¢ 2,61t
Construction in progres 792 442
Gross asset valt 3,921 3,521
Less: accumulated depreciati (1,130 (1,057
Net book value 2,79 2,47(

Assets under capital leases amounted to $272 miliwl $233 million, less accumulated amortizatib$5b million
and $38 million, as of December 31, 2009 and 26&hectively. Interest costs capitalized were $fanj

$6 million and $9 million during the years endeccBmber 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. DRégiren
expense was $213 million, $255 million and $209iamilduring the years ended December 31, 2009, 20608
2007, respectively.

During 2008 and 2009, certain long-lived assetevimpaired (Note 18).
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10. Goodwill
Advanced
Engineered  Consumer Industrial Acetyl
Materials Specialties  Specialties Intermediates Total
(In $ millions)
As of December 31, 20(
Goodwill 277 264 53 27¢ 872
Accumulated impairment loss - - (6) - (6)
271 264 47 27¢ 86€
Adjustments to preacquisition tax uncertain 9 2 (12) (30) (49)
Exchange rate chang (10) (14) (1) (13) (38)
As of December 31, 20(
Goodwill 25¢ 252 40 23t 78t
Accumulated impairment loss - - (6) - (6)
25¢ 252 34 23E 77¢
Sale of PVOFY) - - - - -
Exchange rate chang 5 5 1 8 19
As of December 31, 20(
Goodwill 263 257 35 243 79€
Accumulated impairment loss - - - - -
Total 263 257 35 243 79€

@ Fully impaired goodwill of $6 million was writterfforelated to the sale of PVOI

Recoverability of goodwill is measured using a distted cash flow model incorporating discount rates
commensurate with the risks involved for each répgrunit which is classified as a Level 3 measwetrunder
FASB ASC Topic 820. The key assumptions used irdifeounted cash flow valuation model include disto
rates, growth rates, cash flow projections and itgghvalue rates. Discount rates, growth ratescast flow
projections are the most sensitive and susceptitdbange as they require significant managemeiginent. If the
calculated fair value is less than the currentyilagrvalue, impairment of the reporting unit mayséxWhen the
recoverability test indicates potential impairmehe Company, or in certain circumstances, a tharty valuation
consultant, will calculate an implied fair valuegfodwill for the reporting unit. The implied faialue of goodwill
is determined in a manner similar to how goodwiltalculated in a business combination. If the ieapfair value
of goodwill exceeds the carrying value of goodwaskigned to the reporting unit, there is no impairtnif the
carrying value of goodwill assigned to a reportimgt exceeds the implied fair value of the goodvah impairment
charge is recorded to write down the carrying vaAreimpairment loss cannot exceed the carryinge/aif
goodwill assigned to a reporting unit but may iradécertain long-lived and amortizable intangitiseds associated
with the reporting unit may require additional inmpgent testing.

In connection with the Company’s annual goodwilpmrment test performed during the three monthgeénd
September 30, 2009 using June 30 balances, the &gndid not record an impairment loss related todgadll as
the estimated fair value for each of the Compamgf®rting units exceeded the carrying value ofuthéerlying
assets by a substantial margin. No events or clsanggrcumstances occurred during the three maended
December 31, 2009 that would indicate that theygagramount of the assets may not be fully recdveraas such,
no additional impairment analysis was performednduthat period.
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11.Intangible Assets, Ne!

Customer- Covenants
Trademarks Related not to
and Intangible Developed Compete
Trade name: Licenses Assets Technology  and Other Total
(In $ millions)
Gross Asset Valu
As of December 31, 20( 85 - 562 12 12 671
Acquisitions - 28 - - - 28
Exchange rate chang 3 1 (25) - - (27
As of December 31, 20( 82 29 537 12 12 672
Acquisitions - - - 1 - 1
Exchange rate chang 1 - 15 - - 16
As of December 31, 20( 83 29 552 13 12 68¢
Accumulated Amortizatiol
As of December 31, 20( - - (22¢) 9 9) (24€)
Amortization - (©)] (72) D @ (76)
Exchange rate chang - - 14 - - 14
As of December 31, 20( - (©)] (28%) (20 (20 (30¢)
Amortization (5) 3 (67) (D] (@)} (77
Exchange rate chang - - (10 - - (10
As of December 31, 20( (5) (6) (362) (11 (11 (399
Net book value 78 23 19C 2 1 294

(M Acquisition of a sole and exclusive license to pte@nd patent applications related to acetic adid.license is
being amortized over 10 yea

Aggregate amortization expense for intangible asséh finite lives during the years ended Decengir2009,
2008 and 2007 was $72 million, $76 million, and $Tiftion, respectively. In addition, during the yended
December 31, 2009 the Company recorded accelezatedization expense of $5 million related to thE Plastics
trade name which was discontinued August 1, 2068.tTade name is now fully amortized.

Estimated amortization expense for the succeedweditcal years is approximately $62 million in1Z0
$57 million in 2011, $43 million in 2012, $26 mdh in 2013, and $15 million in 2014. The Compariyeslemarks
and trade names have an indefinite life. Accordingb amortization is recorded on these intangalsteets.

Management tests indefinite-lived intangible assétizing the relief from royalty method to detema the
estimated fair value for each indefinite-lived imggble asset which is classified as a Level 3 measeant under
FASB ASC Topic 820. The relief from royalty methestimates the Company’s theoretical royalty savings
ownership of the intangible asset. Key assumptitsesl in this model include discount rates, royadtes, growth
rates, sales projections and terminal value r@iisgount rates, royalty rates, growth rates anesspfojections are
the assumptions most sensitive and susceptibleange as they require significant management judgriscoun
rates used are similar to the rates estimateddw#ighted-average cost of capital (“WACC”) considg any
differences in Company-specific risk factors. Royahtes are established by management and adjudly
substantiated by third-party valuation consulta®gerational management, considering industry amugany-
specific historical and projected data, develomswin rates and sales projections associated with ipaefinite-
lived intangible asset. Terminal value rate detaation follows common methodology of capturing phesent
value of perpetual sales estimates beyond th@tagtcted period assuming a constant WACC and tog-term
growth rates.

In connection with the Company’s annual indefidited intangible assets impairment test performeadnd) the
three months ended September 30, 2009 using Jubal&fces, the Company recorded an impairmenoldsss
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than $1 million to certain indefinite-lived intafdg assets. The fair value of such indefinite-liig@ngible assets is
$2 million as of December 31, 2009. No events @nges in circumstances occurred during the threghmended
December 31, 2009 that would indicate that they@agramount of the assets may not be fully recdseras such,
no additional impairment analysis was performedrduthat period.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Compdmpotirenew or extend any intangible assets.

12.Current Other Liabilities

As of December 31

2009 2008
(In $ millions)

Salaries and benefi 10C 107
Environmental (Note 1€ 13 19
Restructuring (Note 1¢ 99 32
Insurance 37 34
Asset retirement obligatior 22 9
Derivatives 75 67
Current portion of benefit obligations (Note : 49 57
Sales and use tax/foreign withholding tax pay: 15 16
Interest 20 54
Uncertain tax positions (Note 1 5 -
Other 17€ 17¢

Total 611 574

13.Noncurrent Other Liabilities

As of December 31,

2009 2008
(In $ millions)

Environmental (Note 1¢€ 93 79
Insurance 85 85
Deferred revenu 49 55
Deferred proceeds (Note 4, Note . 84¢€ 371
Asset retirement obligatior 45 40
Derivatives 44 76
Income taxes payab 61 -
Other 83 10C

Total 1,30¢ 80¢€
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Changes in asset retirement obligations are am/sll|

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions)
Balance at beginning of ye 49 47 58
Additions 14@) 6 @ -
Accretion 2 3 5
Payment: (14) (6) (6)
Divestitures - - (16) @
Purchase accounting adjustme - - 3
Revisions to cash flow estimat 154 1 2
Exchange rate chang 1 (2) 4
Balance at end of ye 67 49 47

(1) Relates to a site for which management no longesiders to have an indeterminate |

(@ Relates to long-lived assets impaired (Note 18iich management no longer considers to have an
indeterminate life

®) Relates to the sale of the Edmonton, Alberta, Camdaht (Note 4)

@ Primarily relates to long-lived assets impaired #\b8) based on triggering events assessed bydmp&hy in
2008 and decisions made by the Company in 2

Included in the asset retirement obligations faheaf the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2@Bisillion
related to a business acquired in 2005. The Compasy corresponding receivable of $3 million andrfillion
included in current Other assets and noncurrengiGtbsets in the consolidated balance sheetsctashg, as of
December 31, 2009.

Based on long-lived asset impairment triggeringévassessed by the Company in December 2008 aisios
made by the Company in 2009, the Company concladedral sites no longer have an indeterminate life.
Accordingly, the Company recorded asset retirerobhigations associated with these sites. The Cosnpaas the
expected present value technique to measure thealaie of the asset retirement obligations whgchlassified as a
Level 3 measurement under FASB ASC Topic 820. Hpeeted present value technique uses a set offlcash
that represent the probability-weighted averagallgiossible cash flows based on the Company’smelg. The
Company uses the following inputs to determinefélirevalue of the asset retirement obligations Hasethe
Company’s experience with fulfilling obligations tifis type and the Company’s knowledge of markeda®ns:

a) labor costs; b) allocation of overhead costgraojit on labor and overhead costs; d) effecindition on
estimated costs and profits; e) risk premium farlmgy the uncertainty inherent in cash flows, otthan inflation;

f) time value of money represented by the risk-freerest rate commensurate with the timing ofabsociated cash
flows; and g) nonperformance risk relating to tlability which includes the Company’s own credgki

The Company has identified but not recognized assieeément obligations related to certain of itgséng operatin
facilities. Examples of these types of obligatiomdude demolition, decommissioning, disposal aggtaration
activities. Legal obligations exist in connectioitwthe retirement of these assets upon closutieeofacilities or
abandonment of the existing operations. HoweverQbmpany currently plans on continuing operatairthese
facilities indefinitely and therefore a reasonaddéimate of fair value cannot be determined atttiris. In the event
the Company considers plans to abandon or ceasatigms at these sites, an asset retirement oldigaill be
reassessed at that time. If certain operatingiti@silwere to close, the related asset retiremiligations could
significantly affect the Company’s results of oginas and cash flows.
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14.Debt

As of December 31,
2009 2008
(In $ millions)

Short-term borrowings and current installmentsooig-term debt — third party and

affiliates
Current installments of loi-term debt 10z 81
Shor-term borrowings, principally comprised of amounte do affiliates 14C 152
Total 242 232
Long-term debi
Senior credit facilities: Term loan facility due 20 2,78¢ 2,79¢
Term notes 7.125%, due 20 - 14
Pollution control and industrial revenue bondsgliest rates ranging from 5.7% to
6.7%, due at various dates through 2 181 181
Obligations under capital leases and other seduwra@wings due at various dates
through 205« 242 211
Other bank obligations, interest rates ranging f&b8% to 5.3%, due at various dates
through 201« 15z 181
Subtotal 3,361 3,381
Less: Current installments of lo-term debt 10z 81
Total 3,25¢ 3,30(C

Senior Credit Facilities

The Company'’s senior credit agreement consist &89 million of US dollar-denominated and €400liwril of
Euro-denominated term loans due 2014, a $600 mitkwolving credit facility terminating in 2013 aad

$228 million credit-linked revolving facility termating in 2014. Borrowings under the senior cradieement bear
interest at a variable interest rate based on LIBfORUS dollars) or EURIBOR (for Euros), as applite, or, for
US dollar-denominated loans under certain circuntsts, a base rate, in each case plus an applivatgn. The
applicable margin for the term loans and any laarder the credit-linked revolving facility is 1.75%ubject to
potential reductions as defined in the senior ¢tragieement. As of December 31, 2009, the appkcatalrgin was
1.75%. The term loans under the senior credit agee¢ are subject to amortization at 1% of theahijtrincipal
amount per annum, payable quarterly. The remaipiimgipal amount of the term loans is due on Aprir014.

As of December 31, 2009, there were no outstangamgpwings or letters of credit issued under th@hdng credit
facility. As of December 31, 2009, there were $8Bion of letters of credit issued under the crddiked revolving
facility and $140 million remained available forrbmwving.

On June 30, 2009, the Company entered into an amamido the senior credit agreement. The amendrednted
the amount available under the revolving crediilitgdrom $650 million to $600 million and increed the first lien
senior secured leverage ratio covenant that isegipé when any amount is outstanding under thelving credit
portion of the senior credit agreement at set fbdlow. Prior to giving effect to the amendmeng thaximum first
lien senior secured leverage ratio was 3.90 to. A8Gamended, the maximum senior secured levegrtigefor the
following trailing four-quarter periods is as fols:

First Lien Senior
Secured Leverage Ratic

December 31, 200 5.251t0 1.0
March 31, 201( 4.75t0 1.0
June 30, 201 4.25t0 1.0
September 30, 201 4.25t01.0
December 31, 2010 and therea 3.90to0 1.0
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As a condition to borrowing funds or requesting tb#ters of credit be issued under that facilihe Companys first
lien senior secured leverage ratio (as calculasenf the last day of the most recent fiscal qudttewhich financial
statements have been delivered under the revotatility) cannot exceed a certain threshold asi§ipecabove.
Further, the Company'’s first lien senior securagiage ratio must be maintained at or below thaistiold while
any amounts are outstanding under the revolvinditcfacility. The first lien senior secured leveeagtio is
calculated as the ratio of consolidated first Bemior secured debt to earnings before intereststalepreciation ai
amortization, subject to adjustment identifiedhe tredit agreement.

Based on the estimated first lien senior secureerége ratio for the trailing four quarters at Daber 31, 2009, the
Company’s borrowing capacity under the revolvingdit facility is currently $600 million. As of Denwber 31,
2009, the Company estimates its first lien senéouged leverage ratio to be 3.39 to 1.00 (whichldibe 4.11 to
1.00 were the revolving credit facility fully drayvriThe maximum first lien senior secured leverag®runder the
revolving credit facility for such period is 5.2% 1.00.

The Company’s senior credit agreement also contamsmber of restrictions on certain of its sulzsies,
including, but not limited to, restrictions on thability to incur indebtedness; grant liens oneéssmerge,
consolidate, or sell assets; pay dividends or notliker restricted payments; make investments; prepayodify
certain indebtedness; engage in transactions \fittates; enter into sale-leaseback transactionsestain hedge
transactions; or engage in other businesses. Tersgedit agreement also contains a number ahadtive
covenants and events of default, including a cde$ault to other debt of certain of the Compamsutbsidiaries in a
aggregate amount equal to more than $40 milliontaedccurrence of a change of control. Failureatmply with
these covenants, or the occurrence of any othert @felefault, could result in acceleration of thans and other
financial obligations under the Company’s seni@diragreement.

The senior credit agreement is guaranteed by Cstaldeldings LLC, a subsidiary of Celanese Corporatand
certain domestic subsidiaries of the Company’sisiidry, Celanese US Holdings LLC (“Celanese U&"pelawar:
limited liability company, and is secured by a l@msubstantially all assets of Celanese US anld guarantors,
subject to certain agreed exceptions, pursuatitgt@uarantee and Collateral Agreement, dated Aprilf2, 2007,
by and among Celanese Holdings LLC, Celanese Ufigesubsidiaries of Celanese US and Deutsche B&hk
New York Branch, as Administrative Agent and asl&etal Agent

The Company is in compliance with all of the cowesaelated to its debt agreements as of Decenlhe2(®)9.

Debt Refinancing

In April 2007, the Company, through certain ofdtsidiaries, entered into a new senior crediteagemnt. Proceeds
from the new senior credit agreement, together awthlable cash, were used to retire the Comzag,454 milliot
amended and restated (January 2005) senior caedlities, which consisted of $1,626 million inrtefoans due
2011, a $600 million revolving credit facility temating in 2009 and a $228 million credit-linkedrodving facility
terminating in 2009, and to retire all of the Comya 9.625% senior subordinated notes due 2014 and
10.375% senior subordinated notes due 2014 (theié68ubordinated Notes”) and 10% senior discootes due
2014 and 10.5% senior discount notes due 2014 $eior Discount Notes”) as discussed below.

Substantially all of the Senior Discount Notes &wsahior Subordinated Notes were tendered in thedfirarter of
2007. The remaining outstanding Senior DiscouneBlaind Senior Subordinated Notes not tenderedjuiction
with the Tender Offers were redeemed by the CompaiMay 2007 through optional redemption allowedha
indentures.

As a result of the refinancing, the Company inadipeemiums paid on early redemption of debt of $2@%on,
accelerated amortization of premiums and defelireh€ing costs of $33 million and other refinancexgpenses of
$16 million.

In connection with the refinancing, the Companyorded deferred financing costs of $39 million rethto the
senior credit agreement, which are included in noent Other assets on the consolidated balaneadsshrd are
being amortized over the term of the new seniaditegreement. The deferred financing costs con$i$23 millior
of costs incurred to acquire the new senior craglieement and $16 million of debt issue costsiegigtrior to the
refinancing.
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For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and #¥®Company recorded amortization of deferredricing
costs, which is classified in Interest expenseéomillion, $7 million, and $8 million, respectiyelAs of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, the Coynpad $27 million and $32 million of net deferfathncing
costs.

Principal payments scheduled to be made on the @oygpdebt, including short-term borrowings, aréai®ws:

(In $ millions)

2010 242
2011 89
2012 65
2013 73
2014 2,69¢
Thereaftel 332

Total 3,501

15. Benefit Obligations

Pension obligations Pension obligations are established for beneéiyable in the form of retirement, disability ¢
surviving dependent pensions. The commitmentstrésuh participation in defined contribution andfided benefi
plans, primarily in the US. Benefits are dependenyears of service and the employee’s compensation
Supplemental retirement benefits provided to certanployees are nonqualified for US tax purposepagte trus!
have been established for some nonqualified pR@ssion costs under the Company’s retirement @leans
actuarially determined.

The Company sponsors defined benefit pension praNsrth America, Europe and Asia. Independentt$ros
insurance companies administer the majority ofah#ans.

The Company sponsors various defined contributlangin North America, Europe and Asia coveringaiar
employees. Employees may contribute to these pladghe Company will match these contributionsarying
amounts. The Company’s matching contribution todéfned contribution plans are based on specg@mdentages
of employee contributions and aggregated $11 mill&l3 million and $12 million for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The Company participates in multiemployer definedddit pension plans in Europe covering certainleyges.
The Company’s contributions to the multiemployefirmkd benefit pension plans are based on spedgifeecentages
of employee contributions and aggregated $6 mill®hmillion and $7 million, for the years endedcBmber 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Other postretirement obligationsCertain retired employees receive postretiremeaithcare and life insurance
benefits under plans sponsored by the Company hwias the right to modify or terminate these plinsny time.
The cost for coverage is shared between the Comguashyhe retiree. The cost of providing retireelthezare and
life insurance benefits is actuarially determined accrued over the service period of the activpleyee group.
The Company'’s policy is to fund benefits as claang premiums are paid. The US plan was closedvwo ne
participants effective January 1, 2006.
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The following tables set forth the benefit obligais, the fair value of the plan assets and theddmstiatus of the
Company'’s pension and postretirement benefit pland;the amounts recognized in the Company'’s cifatet

financial statements:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
as of December 31, as of December 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008

(In $ millions)

Change in projected benefit obligati
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of pei
Service cos
Interest cos
Participant contribution
Plan amendmen
Actuarial (gain) los(®
Special termination benefi
Divestitures
Settlement:

Benefits paic

Federal subsidy on Medicare Par
Curtailments

Foreign currency exchange rate char
Other

Projected benefit obligation at end of per

Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of pe
Actual return on plan asse
Employer contribution
Participant contribution
Divestitures
Settlement:
Benefits paic
Foreign currency exchange rate char
Other
Fair value of plan assets at end of pe

Funded status and net amounts recogr

Plan assets less than benefit obliga

Unrecognized prior service cc

Unrecognized actuarial (gain) lo

Net amount recognized in the consolidated balaheets

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balancetsheasist of

Noncurrent Other asse

Current Other liabilitie:

Pension obligation

Accrued benefit liability

Net actuarial (gain) los
Prior service (benefit) co

Other comprehensive (income) 1@
Net amount recognized in the consolidated balaheets

@ Primarily relates to change in discount ra

100

3,07¢ 3,26¢ 27F 30€
29 31 1 2
192 19¢ 17 17

- - 25 22

5 - - 2
23C (107) 12 (14)
©) = = =

1) (19 - -
(222) (222) (59) (58)
- - 6 6

2 (1) = (2

40 (68) 4 (6)
3,347 3,07¢ 281 27¢
2,17¢ 2,87t - -
30€ (448) - -
44 48 34 35

- - 25 23

(2 - - -

©) (22) = =
(222) (222) (59) (58)
36 (61) - -
2,32¢ 2,17( - -
(1,019 (902) (281) (275)
6 1 1 1
63C 502 (63) (80)
(377) (400) (343) (354)
5 8 - -
(22) (22) (27) (35)
(99€) (889 (254) (240
(1,019 (903 (281) (275)
63C 502 (63) (80)
6 1 1 1
63€ 502 (62) 79
(37) (400 (349 (359
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2 Amount shown net of tax of $54 million and $1 naitlias of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectivetiie
consolidated statements of shareholders’ equitycangprehensive income (loss). See Note 17 foralated tax
associated with the pension and postretirementfiv@ddigations.

The percentage of US and international projecteetieobligation at the end of the period is asdek:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
as of December 31 as of December 31
2009 2008 2009 2008
(In percentages)
US plans 85% 86% 90% 91%
International plan 15% 14% 10% 9%
Total 10% 10(% 10(% 10(%

The percentage of US and international fair valuglan assets at the end of the period is as falow

Pension Benefits
as of December 31

2009 2008
(In percentages)
US plans 83% 84%
International plan 17% 16%
Total 10% 10(%

A summary of pension plans with projected bendfligations in excess of plan assets is shown below:

As of December 31

2009 2008
(In $ millions)
Projected benefit obligatic 3,28( 2,92¢
Fair value of plan asse 2,262 2,01«
Included in the above table are pension plans adttumulated benefit obligations in excess of plsets as detail
below:
As of December 31
2009 2008
(In $ millions)
Accumulated benefit obligatic 3,16¢ 2,791
Fair value of plan asse 2,24¢ 1,98¢

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defirmmhefit pension plans was $3,218 million and $2 @lion as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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The following table sets forth the Company’s neiquiic pension cost:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions)

Service cos 29 31 38 1 1 2
Interest cos 19z 19t 187 17 17 19
Expected return on plan ass (207) (21¢) (21¢€) - - -
Amortization of prior service co: - - - - - -
Recognized actuarial (gain) lo 1 1 1 5) 4 2
Curtailment (gain) los (@D} 2 (@)} - - (D]
Settlement (gain) los - 3 (12 - - -
Special termination benefi 2 - - - - -
Net periodic benefit co: 1i 1( () ilE 14 1¢

Amortization of the actuarial (gain) loss into petiodic cost in 2010 is expected to be $8 milkor $(4) million

for pension benefits and postretirement benefitspectively.

Included in the pension obligations above are aatliabilities relating to supplemental retiremplans for certain
US employees amounting to $235 million and $224ionilas of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectiReEnsiol
expense relating to these plans included in nevgierbenefit cost totaled $15 million, $15 milli@md $14 million
for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and, 288pectively. To fund these obligations, nonifjedl trusts
were established which hold marketable securitgsed at $82 million and $97 million as of Decem®&y 2009

and 2008, respectively. In addition to holding negalble securities, the nonqualified trusts holestments in

insurance contracts of $66 million and $67 millemof December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectivelyciwéie
included in noncurrent Other assets in the conatditibalance sheets.

Valuation

The Company uses the corridor approach in the tiatuaf its defined benefit plans and other posatent

benefits. The corridor approach defers all actligains and losses resulting from variances betveetuinal results
and economic estimates or actuarial assumptiongddéfmed benefit pension plans, these unrecogrgaats and
losses are amortized when the net gains and lessegd 10% of the greater of the market-relatedevaf plan
assets or the projected benefit obligation at #girining of the year. For other postretirement ene@mortization

occurs when the net gains and losses exceed 1@8é atcumulated postretirement benefit obligatithe

beginning of the year. The amount in excess ottrddor is amortized over the average remainingise period tc

retirement date for active plan participants or régired participants, the average remainingdigectancy.

The following table set forth the principal weigtitaverage assumptions used to determine beneéiiatioin:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
as of December 31 as of December 31
2009 2008 2009 2008

(In percentages)
Discount rate obligation:

US plans 5.9C 6.5C 5.5C 6.4C
International plan 5.41 5.84 5.4¢ 6.11
Combinec 5.8: 6.41 5.5C 6.37
Rate of compensation increa
US plans 4.0C 4.0C N/A N/A
International plan 2.94 3.24 N/A N/A
Combinec 3.84 3.9C N/A N/A
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The following table set forth the principal weigtitaverage assumptions used to determine benefit cos

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
Year Ended December 31 Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007

(In percentages)
Discount rate obligation:

US plans 6.5C 6.3C 5.8¢ 6.4(C 6.0C 5.8¢
International plan 5.84 5.42 4.7 6.11 5.31 4.8(
Combinec 6.41 6.1¢€ 5.8¢€ 6.37 5.9: 5.7¢
Expected return on plan asse¢
US plans 8.5(C 8.5(C 8.5(C N/A N/A N/A
International plan 5.2¢ 5.6¢ 6.5¢ N/A N/A N/A
Combinec 7.94 8.0t 8.2C N/A N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increa
US plans 4.0C 4.0C 4.0C N/A N/A N/A
International plan 3.24 3.1t 3.1¢ N/A N/A N/A
Combinec 3.9C 3.6€ 3.7: N/A N/A N/A

The expected rate of return is assessed annuallisdvased on long-term relationships among majseteclasses
and the level of incremental returns that can Iveeshby the successful implementation of differsstive
investment management strategies. Equity retumbased on estimates of long-term inflation rael rate of
return, 10-year Treasury bond premium over cashegmity risk premium. Fixed income returns are dase
maturity, long-term inflation, real rate of retuand credit spreads. The US qualified defined bepk&fns’ actual
return on assets for the year ended December 89, \28s 18% versus an expected long-term rate ef esgirn
assumption of 8.5%.

In the US, the rate used to discount pension amer gtostretirement benefit plan liabilities wasdshen a yield
curve developed from market data of over 300 Aalgnraon-callable bonds at December 31, 2009. Thkid gurve
has discount rates that vary based on the durafitive obligations. The estimated future cash flevgdhe pension
and other benefit obligations were matched to treesponding rates on the yield curve to deriveemiated averag
discount rate.

The Company determines its discount rates in the Eone using the iBoxx Euro Corporate AA Bond aadi with
appropriate adjustments for the duration of the plaligations. In other international locationss thompany
determines its discount rates based on the yidligh quality government bonds with a duration ragpiate to the
duration of the plan obligations.

On January 1, 2009, the Company’s health caretmrsd assumption for US postretirement medical’plaat
periodic benefit cost was 9% for the first yearlohieg 0.5% per year to an ultimate rate of 5%. fanuary 1, 2008,
the Company’s health care cost trend assumptiob®postretirement medical plan’s net periodic litsest was
9% for the first two years declining 0.5% per y&aan ultimate rate of 5%. On January 1, 2007 hthadth care cost
trend rate was 8.5% per year declining 1% per §gean ultimate rate of 5%.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a signifeffect on the amounts reported for the healtk plans. A
one-percentage-point increase or decrease in Huenasl health care cost trend rate would impactgirsiment
obligations by $4 million and $(3) million, respeelly. The effect of a one percent increase orekse in the
assumed health care cost trend rate would havgsaHan $1 million impact on service and interest.c

Plan Assets
The investment objective for the plans are to eawer moving twenty-year periods, the long-termestpd rate of
return, net of investment fees and transactionsctstsatisfy the benefit obligations of the plahjle at the same

time maintaining sufficient liquidity to pay benefibligations and proper expenses, and meet amy ottsh needs,
in the short- to medium-term.
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The following tables set forth the weighted avertgget asset allocations for the Company’s penglans:

Asset Category— US 2010
US equity securitie 26%
Global equity 20%
High yield fixed income/othe 4%
Liability hedging bond: 50%
Total 10%
Asset Category —International 2010
Equity securitie: 21%
Debt securitie: 73%
Real estate and oth 6%
Total 10%

The equity and debt securities objectives are doige diversified exposure across the US and Glehalty market
and to manage the plan’s risks and returns throlugluse of multiple managers and strategies. Kee fincome
portfolio objectives are to hedge a portion ofititerest rate risks associated with the anhding target liabilitie:
The goal of the liability hedging bond is to redsceplus volatility and provide a liquidity reserfge paying off
benefits. The strategy is designed to reduce itghitlated interest rate risk by investing in bertdat match the
duration and credit quality of the projected pliabilities. Derivatives based strategies may bel usemprove the
effectiveness of the hedges. Other types of investainclude investments in real estate and inseraantracts thi
follow several different strategies.

As discussed in Note 3, the Company adopted captawvisions of FASB ASC Topic 715-20-80 January 1, 200
FASB ASC Topic 715-20-50 requires enhanced discéssabout the plan assets of a company’s defineefibe
pension and other postretirement plans intendg@daeide financial statement users with a greatelesstanding of
the inputs and valuation techniques used to medlarfir value of plan assets and the effect mfviaue
measurements using significant unobservable inputshanges in plan assets for the period usinfyaineework
established under FASB ASC Topic 8Fajr Value Measurements and DisclosurésASB ASC Topic 820
establishes a fair value hierarchy that priorititesinputs used to measure fair value. The hibyagives the
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices invactnarkets for identical assets or liabilities {1 measurement)
and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs @€’ measurement). This hierarchy requires entitiesaximize
the use of observable inputs and minimize the @isma@bservable inputs. If a financial instrumengsi;puts that
fall in different levels of the hierarchy, the inghent will be categorized based upon the lowesl lef input that is
significant to the fair value calculation. The thlevels of inputs used to measure fair value arfeloows:

Level 1 — unadjusted quoted prices for identicakss or liabilities in active markets accessibléhgyCompany
Level 2 — inputs that are observable in the malketother than those inputs classified as Level 1
Level 3 — inputs that are unobservable in the ntatkee and significant to the valuation

The Company’s defined benefit plan assets are medist fair value on a recurring basis and inclimgefollowing
items:

Cash and Cash Equivalentstoreign and domestic currencies as well as $bort securities are valued at cost plus
accrued interest, which approximates fair value.

Common/Collective TrustsComposed of various funds whose diversified ptidfis comprised of foreign and
domestic equities, fixed income securities, andtdieom investments. Investments are valued ahét@sset value
of units held by the plan at year-end.
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Corporate stock and government and corporate detailued at the closing price reported on the actharket in
which the individual securities are traded. Automdaduotes are provided by multiple pricing serviaed validated
by the plan custodian. These securities are tradezkchanges as well as in the over the countekahar

Registered Investment Compani Composed of various mutual funds and other imrest companies whose
diversified portfolio is comprised of foreign andrdestic equities, fixed income securities, and tsteom
investments. Investments are valued at the net eakee of units held by the plan at year-end.

Mortgage Backed Securitie Fair value is estimated based on valuations oéteirom third-party pricing services
for identical or comparable assets. Mortgage Ba&exlrities are traded in the over the counterdiw/dkaler
market.

Derivatives: Derivative financial instruments are valued ia tharket using discounted cash flow techniquessé
techniques incorporate Level 1 and Level 2 inputhss interest rates and foreign currency excheaigs. These
market inputs are utilized in the discounted cémlv talculation considering the instrumentérm, notional amout
discount rate and credit risk. Significant inputste derivative valuation for interest rate swdpggign currency
forwards and swaps, and options are observableiadtive markets and are classified as LeveltBarhierarchy.

Insurance contracts Valued at contributions made, plus earnings, pesticipant withdrawals and administrative
expenses, which approximates fair value.

The following table sets forth the fair values loé tCompany’s pension plans assets as of Decemp206:

Fair Value Measurement Using

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(In $ millions)

Assets
Cash & cash equivalen z - - z
Collateralized mortgage obligatio - 16 - 16
Common/collective trust - 21C 18 22¢
Corporate dek - 831 - 831
Corporate stoc-common & preferre: 522 - - 522
Derivatives 14 244 - 25¢
Government dek

Treasuries, other de 88 212 - 30C

Mortgage backed securiti - 53 - 53
Real estat: - 7 - 7
Registered investment compan - 29¢ - 29¢
Shor-term investment - 65 - 65
Other 3 - - 3
Insurance contrac - 28 - 28

Total asset 62¢ 1,964 19 2,612
Liabilities
Derivatives (15 (26€) - (283

Total liabilities (15) (268 - (283)
Total net asset 614 1,69¢ 19 2,32¢

The Company'’s Level 3 investment in common/collextrusts was valued using significant unobservatgats.
Inputs to this valuation include characteristicd goantitative data relating to the asset, investroest, position
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size, liquidity, current financial condition of tlkempany and other relevant market data. The fatiguable sets
forth fair value measurements using significanthsgsvable inputs:

Common/Collective Trust
(In $ millions)

Balance, beginning of peric i

Unrealized gains (losse 10
Purchases, sales, issuances and settlemen 2
Balance, end of peric 1!

The financial objectives of the qualified pensidans are established in conjunction with a compmsive review o
each plan’s liability structure. The Company’s asdlecation policy is based on detailed asseilligtanalyses. In
developing investment policy and financial goatmsideration is given to each plamdemographics, the returns
risks associated with alternative investment sgiateand the current and projected cash, expemsiading ratios
of each plan. Investment policies must also compti local statutory requirements as determineg&gh country.
A formal asset/liability study of each plan is urtd&en every 3 to 5 years or whenever there has beeaterial
change in plan demographics, benefit structureioding status and investment market. The Compasytapted
long-term investment horizon such that the risk dation of investment losses are weighed ag#iesiong-term
potential for appreciation of assets. Although ¢heainnot be complete assurance that these obguetillde
realized, it is believed that the likelihood foethrealization is reasonably high, based uporaiset allocation
chosen and the historical and expected performahite asset classes utilized by the plans. Thentns for
investments to be broadly diversified across adasses, investment styles, market sectors, invgtmanagers,
developed and emerging markets and securitiesdier @ moderate portfolio volatility and risk. Irstenents may b
in separate accounts, commingled trusts, mutualsiamd other pooled asset portfolios provided #gikegonform to
fiduciary standards.

External investment managers are hired to manags@eassets. Investment consultants assist wetldteening
process for each new manager hired. Over the lemg;tthe investment portfolio is expected to eatoms that
exceed a composite of market indices that are waigto match each plan’s target asset allocatibe.ortfolio
return should also (over the long-term) meet oeexrcthe return used for actuarial calculationgdeoto meet the
future needs of each plan.

Employer contributions for pension benefits andtitsement benefits are preliminarily estimated&$46 millior
and $27 million, respectively, in 2010. The tabétov reflects pension benefits expected to be fraid the plan or
from the Company’s assets. The postretirement ismepresent the Company’s share of the benedit co

Postretirement

Benefit

Pension Expectec

Benefit Federal

Payments®) Payments Subsidy

(In $ millions)

2010 224 61 7
2011 22z 63 7
2012 221 64 7
2013 227 65 8
2014 224 66 3
2015-2019 1,18i 33z 13

1) Payments are expected to be made primarily from gésets
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Other Obligations
The following table represents additional benédibilities and other similar obligations:

As of December 31,

2009 2008
(In $ millions)
Long-term disability 3( 3
Other 8 5
Total 38 38

16. Environmental
General

The Company is subject to environmental laws agdlegions worldwide which impose limitations on tlischarge
of pollutants into the air and water and estaldisindards for the treatment, storage and dispésalid and
hazardous wastes. The Company believes thatitdabstantial compliance with all applicable envimental laws
and regulations. The Company is also subject wnetl environmental obligations specified in vasicontractual
agreements arising from the divestiture of certaigsinesses by the Company or one of its predecessgranies.

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and #¥®Company’s expenditures, including expendgior
legal compliance, internal environmental initiagwend remediation of active, orphan, divested a8dsuperfund
sites (as defined below) were $78 million, $78 imil] and $83 million, respectively. The Companyéapital project-
related environmental expenditures for the yeadedrbecember 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were $22milli

$13 million, and $14 million, respectively. Envimental reserves for remediation matters were $lid®mand
$98 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, sy, which represents the Company’s best eséméits
liability.

Remediation

Due to its industrial history and through retaimedtractual and legal obligations, the Companytha®bligation t
remediate specific areas on its own sites as weathadivested, orphan or US Superfund sites. litiaddas part of
the demerger agreement between the Company andhstpacspecified portion of the responsibility for
environmental liabilities from a number of Hoectistestitures was transferred to the Company. Thagamy
provides for such obligations when the event of isprobable and reasonably estimable.

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 ard #t®total remediation efforts charged to Costadés in the
consolidated statements of operations were $9am;jl3 million and $4 million, respectively. The@pany
believes that environmental remediation costs matl have a material adverse effect on the finaqmaltion of the
Company, but may have a material adverse effeth@mnesults of operations or cash flows in any igiaecounting
period.

The Company did not record any insurance recovegiased to these matters for the reported perdndsthere are
no receivables for insurance recoveries as of Dbee®l, 2009. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008 tivere
receivables of $9 million and $9 million, respeeti from the former owner APL, which was acquine@007 (see
Note 4).

German InfraServs

On January 1, 1997, coinciding with a reorganizatibthe Hoechst businesses in Germany, real estavece
companies (“InfraServs”) were created to own dlyeitte land and property and to provide variousigcal and
administrative services at each of the manufaagudnations. The Company has manufacturing opersidt the
InfraServ location in Frankfurt am Main-Hoechstr@any and holds interests in the companies which amd
operate the former Hoechst sites in Gendorf, Knaippaad Wiesbaden.
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InfraServs are liable for any residual contaminatod other pollution because they own the reatesin which th
individual facilities operate. In addition, Hoechand its legal successors, as the responsiblg pader German
public law, is liable to third parties for all en@hmental damage that occurred while it was $tdl owner of the
plants and real estate. The contribution agreenenigsed into in 1997 between Hoechst and the céispe
operating companies, as part of the divestituthese companies, provide that the operating corapanil
indemnify Hoechst, and its legal successors, agamsronmental liabilities resulting from the tedarred
businesses. Additionally, the InfraServs have ajteendemnify Hoechst, and its legal successaainst any
environmental liability arising out of or in connien with environmental pollution of any site. Likése, in certain
circumstances the Company could be responsiblééoelimination of residual contamination on a fetes that
were not transferred to InfraServ companies, ircivitiase Hoechst, and its legal successors, mugbuese the
Company for two-thirds of any costs so incurred.

The InfraServ partnership agreements provide #sabetween the partners, each partner is resperisitdny
contamination caused predominantly by such partaey.liability, which cannot be attributed to arfriaServ
partner and for which no third party is responsildeequired to be borne by the InfraServ partniprdn view of
this potential obligation to eliminate residual tamination, the InfraServs, primarily relating wuéy and cost
affiliates which are not consolidated by the Comypdrave reserves of $94 million and $84 millioroés
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

If an InfraServ partner defaults on its respectidemnification obligations to eliminate residuahtamination, the
owners of the remaining participation in the Infea5companies have agreed to fund such liabilisabject to a
number of limitations. To the extent that any lidigis are not satisfied by either the InfraServsheir owners, thes
liabilities are to be borne by the Company in adeoce with the demerger agreement. However, Hoehdgtits
legal successors, will reimburse the Company far-tiwirds of any such costs. Likewise, in certain einstances tt
Company could be responsible for the eliminationesidual contamination on several sites that wetdransferre:
to InfraServ companies, in which case Hoechst,i@ndgal successors, must also reimburse the Coyrijoa two-
thirds of any costs so incurred. The German InfraSare owned partially by the Company, as notdéovyeand the
remaining ownership is held by various other congmrirhe Company’s ownership interest and enviratiaie
liability participation percentages for such lidiéls which cannot be attributed to an InfraSerstier were as
follows as of December 31, 2009:

Company Ownership % Liability %
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Gendorf K 39% 10%
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Knapsack K 27% 22%
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst K 32% 40%
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Wiesbaden K 8% 0%
InfraServ Verwaltungs Gmb| 100(% 0%

US Superfund Sites

In the US, the Company may be subject to substariéiems brought by US federal or state regulagggncies or
private individuals pursuant to statutory authodtycommon law. In particular, the Company has temttal liability
under the US Federal Comprehensive Environmentsp&ese, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as
amended, and related state laws (collectively refeto as “Superfund”) for investigation and cleaicosts at
approximately 50 sites. At most of these sites, enaus companies, including certain companies caimgrithe
Company, or one of its predecessor companies, e notified that the Environmental Protection Agg state
governing bodies or private individuals considestsuompanies to be potentially responsible pa(tleRRP”) under
Superfund or related laws. The proceedings reldtirthese sites are in various stages. The clepragess has not
been completed at most sites and the status @fisheance coverage for most of these proceedingsdsrtain.
Consequently, the Company cannot accurately deterits ultimate liability for investigation or cleap costs at
these sites.

As events progress at each site for which it has lIbamed a PRP, the Company accrues, as approprlehility
for site cleanup. Such liabilities include all #tat are probable and can be reasonably estimatesdtablishing
these liabilities, the Company considers its shipnoé waste to a site, its percentage of total evabipped to the
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site, the types of wastes involved, the conclusafrany studies, the magnitude of any remediabastthat may be
necessary and the number and viability of other2RRten the Company will join with other PRPs igngoint
defense agreements that will settle, among PREeR, @aty’s percentage allocation of costs at ttee gilthough the
ultimate liability may differ from the estimate gl€ompany routinely reviews the liabilities andiseg the estimat
as appropriate, based on the most current infoomavailable. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008Cin@pany
had provisions totaling $10 million and $11 milljoespectively, for US Superfund sites and utili$&dmillion,

$2 million and $1 million of these reserves during years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 28§peatively.
Additional provisions and adjustments recordedrmiuthe years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
approximately offset these expenditures.

Hoechst Liabilities

In connection with the Hoechst demerger, the Companeed to indemnify Hoechst, and its legal susmess for
the first €250 million of future remediation liaitikés for environmental damages arising from 1cHjeal divested
Hoechst entities. As of December 31, 2009 and 2@&&rves of $32 million and $27 million, respeelyy for these
matters are included as a component of the totat@mmental reserves. As of December 31, 2009 &08 2the
Company, has made total cumulative payments ofifiiibn and $48 million, respectively. If such futuliabilities
exceed €250 million, Hoechst, and its legal suamassvill bear such excess up to an additional €&0lon.
Thereafter, the Company will bear one-third and ¢theg and its legal successors, will bear thiods of any furthe
environmental remediation liabilities. Where then@any is unable to reasonably determine the prétabf loss
or estimate such loss under this indemnificatiba,Gompany has not recognized any liabilities rnedatb this
indemnification.

17.Shareholders Equity
Preferred Stock

The Company has $240 million aggregate liquidagimeference of outstanding 4.25% convertible pegdetu
preferred stock (“Preferred Stock”). Holders of Breferred Stock are entitled to receive, whemrabif, declared
by the Company’s Board of Directors, out of funeigdlly available, cash dividends at the rate 05%2er annum
of liquidation preference, payable quarterly ireans, commencing on May 1, 2005. Dividends on tieéefred
Stock are cumulative from the date of initial issc@ Accumulated but unpaid dividends accumulatanannual
rate of 4.25%. The Preferred Stock is convertiaitehe option of the holder, at any time into apprately

1.26 shares of Series A common stock, subjectjtesadents, per $25.00 liquidation preference ofd?red Stock
and upon conversion will be recorded in the codstdéid statements of shareholders’ equity and cdmpsive
income (loss). On February 1, 2010, the Companyanced its intention to redeem its Preferred S{bltke 31).

During 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Company declarddpaid $10 million of cash dividends in each perodts
Preferred Stock.

Dividends

The Company’s Board of Directors follows a polidydeclaring, subject to legally available fundgjuarterly cash
dividend on each share of the Company’s SeriesmAneon stock at an annual rate of $0.16 per shaessithe
Company’s Board of Directors, in its sole discretidetermines otherwise. Further, such dividengsiipe to
holders of the Company’s Series A common stock cgbe declared or paid nor can any funds be sé¢dsri the
payment thereof, unless the Company has paid asg# funds for the payment of all accumulatedwamzhid
dividends with respect to the shares of the ComgaPreferred Stock, as described above. Additign#ile amount
available to pay cash dividends is restricted ley@ompany’s senior credit agreement.

During 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Company declarddyard cash dividends of $23 million, $24 milliomda
$25 million, respectively, to holders of its Serfesommon stock.
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Treasury Stock

In conjunction with the April 2007 debt refinanciigote 14), the Company, through its wholly-owneatsidiary
Celanese International Holdings Luxembourg S.&CIH"), formerly Celanese Caylux Holdings Luxemirg
S.C.A,, repurchased 2,021,775 shares of its outstgrSeries A common stock in a modified “Dutch Aog”
tender offer from public shareholders, which exghiom April 3, 2007, at a purchase price of $30.60ghare. The
total price paid for these shares was $62 millidre Company also separately purchased, througvhitdly-owned
subsidiary CIH, 329,011 shares of the Company’&S& common stock at $30.50 per share from thestment
funds associated with The Blackstone Group L.P.tota price paid for these shares was $10 million.

In June 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors aitled the repurchase of up to $330 million oS&vies A
common stock. During 2007, the Company repurch8s#8i7,700 shares of its Series A common stock avanag:
purchase price of $38.88 per share for a totaB80$million pursuant to this authorization. The Gramy complete
repurchasing shares related to this authorizatisimg July 2007.

In February 2008, the Company’s Board of Directrthorized the repurchase of up to $400 milliothef
Company'’s Series A common stock. This authorizatvas increased to $500 million in October 2008. The
authorization gives management discretion in dateng the conditions under which shares may benamsed.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Coynpgourchased 9,763,200 shares of its Series A constocl
at an average purchase price of $38.68 per shaeetfial of $378 million pursuant to this authatian.

These purchases reduced the number of sharesralitgfaand the repurchased shares may be used KBothpany
for compensation programs utilizing the Companyoels and other corporate purposes. The Companyatsor
treasury stock using the cost method.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss),

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss),wieich is displayed in the consolidated statemefts
shareholders’ equity, represents net earnings)(fiss the results of certain shareholders’ eqelignges not
reflected in the consolidated statements of opmmatiSuch items include unrealized gain (loss) arketable
securities, foreign currency translation, certangion and postretirement benefit obligations améalized gain
(loss) on interest rate swaps.

The components of Accumulated other comprehenai@me (loss), net are as follows:

Accumulated

Unrealized Unrealized Other
Gain (Loss) or Foreign Gain (Loss! Pension and Comprehensive
Marketable Currency on Interest  Postretirement Income
Securities Translation  Rate Swap: Benefits (Loss), Net
(In $ millions)

Balance as of December 31, 2( 9 17 4 1 31
Curren-period chang: 17 70 (47) 124 17C
Tax benefit (expenst - - - (4) (4)

Balance as of December 31, 2( 26 87 (37 121 197
Curren-period chang: (23 @ (130) (79 (549 (782)
Tax benefit (expenst - - - 5 5

Balance as of December 31, 2( 3 (43 (11€) (423) (579
Curren-period chang: (5) 10 23 (150 (122
Tax benefit (expenst 2 (5) (8 52 42

Balance as of December 31, 2( - (38) (107 (520 (659)

(@ Includes a net reclassification adjustment of (®#lon to the consolidated statements of opersti
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18. Other (Charges) Gains, Ne’
The components of Other (charges) gains, net ai@laws:

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions)

Employee termination benefi (10%) (29 (39
Plant/office closure a7 @) (11)
Deferred compensation triggered by Exit Event (N2 - - (74)
Plumbing action: 10 - 4
Insurance recoveries associated with Clear Lakead é@Note 30 6 38 40
Resolution of commercial disputes with a ven - - 31
Asset impairment (14) (115) 9
Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocation (Note (16) 12 (5)
Sorbates antitrust actions (Note . - 8 -
Other - 1 (2)

Total (13€) (10§) (58)
2009

During the first quarter of 2009, the Company begtiorts to align production capacity and stafflagels with the
Company’s view of an economic environment of prgled lower demand. For the year ended December089, 2
Other charges included employee termination benefi40 million related to this endeavor. As aitesf the
shutdown of the vinyl acetate monomer (“VAM”) pradion unit in Cangrejera, Mexico, the Company retined
employee termination benefits of $1 million andddived asset impairment losses of $1 million dgrihe year
ended December 31, 2009. The VAM production unfamgrejera, Mexico is included in the Company’st#t
Intermediates segment.

As a result of the Project of Closure (Note 4), @ttharges for the Company included exit costs88f’illion
during the year ended December 31, 2009, whichistusof $60 million in employee termination beifi

$17 million of contract termination costs and $1iflian of long-lived asset impairment losses rethte capitalized
costs associated with asset retirement obliga{doge 13). The Pardies, France facility is includethe Acetyl
Intermediates segment.

Due to continued declines in demand in automotiet electronic sectors, the Company announced plaresiuce
capacity by ceasing polyester polymer productioitsaficona manufacturing plant in Shelby, Northr@ima. Other
charges for the year ended December 31, 2009 iedlachployee termination benefits of $2 million dmg-lived
asset impairment losses of $1 million related ts évent. The Shelby, North Carolina facility islided in the
Advanced Engineered Materials segment.

Other charges for the year ended December 31, @86%artially offset by $6 million of insurance ogeries in
satisfaction of claims the Company made relatatieainplanned outage of the Compan@lear Lake, Texas ace
acid facility during 2007, a $9 million decreasdegal reserves for plumbing claims due to the Camy{s ongoing
assessment of the likely outcome of the plumbirigpas and the expiration of the statute of limiati

2008

Other (charges) gains, net for asset impairmewctades long-lived asset impairment losses of $9Ramirelated to
the potential closure of the Company’s acetic acid VAM production facility in Pardies, France, ¥aM
production unit in Cangrejera, Mexico (which then@any subsequently decided to shut down effectivieeaend
of February 2009) and certain other facilities.tiad $92 million recorded in December 2008, $76iamilrelates to
the Acetyl Intermediates segment and $16 millidates to the Advanced Engineered Materials segment.
Consideration of this potential capacity reducticas necessitated by the significant change in lisieagjeconomic
environment and anticipated lower customer demand.
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Additionally, the Company recognized $23 millionlofg-lived asset impairment losses related testhedown of
the Company’s Pampa, Texas facility (Acetyl Intediages segment).

Other (charges) gains, net for employee termindigmefits includes severance and retention charig®s3 million
related to the sale of the Company’s Pampa, Teachty and $8 million of severance and retentibarges related
to other business optimization plans undertakethbyCompany.

2007

Other (charges) gains, net for employee termindigmefits and plant/office closures include chargésted to the
Company’s plan to simplify and optimize its Emulsscand PVOH businesses (Industrial Specialties satno
become a leader in technology and innovation and gn both new and existing markets. Other (chgrgams, net
for employee termination benefits and plant/offit@sures also includes charges related to theoalee Companye
Pampa, Texas facility. In addition, the Companyrded an impairment of lonig+ed assets of $3 million during t
year ended December 31, 20

In December 2007, the Company received a one-tagepnt in resolution of commercial disputes witreador.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, asset imgaisnmcluded $6 million of goodwill impairment ag&d to the
PVOH business.

The changes in the restructuring reserves by bssisegment are as follows:

Advanced

Engineered  Consumer Industrial Acetyl
Materials Specialties Specialties  Intermediates Other Total
(In $ millions)
Employee Termination Benefi
Reserve as of December 31, 2( : t 1 1t z 3i
Additions 1 2 1 13 4 21
Cash payment (1) (5) (6) (12) (3) (27)
Currency translation adjustme - - (1) - (1) (2)
Reserve as of December 31, 2( 2 2 6 17 2 29
Additions 12 9 6 66 12 10E
Cash payment 8 ) 9 (23) () (54)
Currency translation adjustme 1 - - - - 1
Reserve as of December 31, 2( 7 4 3 60 7 81
Plant/Office Closure
Reserve as of December 31, 2( 1 3 1 2 1 8
Additions - - - - - -
Cash payment (D) - 0] 2) - (4)
Currency translation adjustme - (1) - - - (1)
Reserve as of December 31, 2( - 2 - - 1 3
Additions - - - 17 - 17
Transfers - 2 - - - 2
Cash payment - - - - -
Reserve as of December 31, 2( - - - 17 1 18
Total 7 4 3 77 8 99
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19.Income Taxes

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befapelty jurisdiction are as follows:

us
International

Total

The income tax provision (benefit) consists of fiblowing:

Current

us

International
Total

Deferred

us

International
Total

Income tax provision (benefi

Year Ended
December 31
2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions)
29¢ 13t (112
(53) 29¢ 55€
241 434 447
Year Ended
December 31
2009 2008 2007

(In $ millions)

11 62 ©)
14¢ 92 162
15¢ 154 154
(404) (37) 17

2 (54) (61)
(402) (91) (44)
(249) 63 11C

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettemporary differences between the carrying amoonhassets ar
liabilities for financial reporting purposes ane timounts used for income tax purposes. Significamiponents of

the consolidated deferred tax assets and lialsilitiere as follows:

Deferred tax asse

Pension and postretirement obligatis
Accrued expense

Inventory

Net operating loss and tax credit carryforwe

Other
Subtotal

Valuation allowanct

Total
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Investment:
Other

Total

Net deferred tax assets (liabilitie

As of
December 31
2009 2008
(In $ millions)

36 30«
195 195
10 8
37¢ 27¢
22( 192
1,161 97¢
(334 (652) )
827 32€
33€ 327
45 41
90 49
471 412

35€ (86)
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@) Includes deferred tax asset valuation allowanciesapily for the Company’s deferred tax assetsi|m S,
Luxembourg, France and Germany, as well as othieigho jurisdictions. These valuation allowanceate|
primarily to net operating loss carryforward betefind other net deferred tax assets, all of wimial not be
realizable

Since 2004, the Company has maintained a valuatiowance against its US net deferred tax ass&iSBFASC
Topic 740,Income Taxesrequires the Company to continually assess allawve positive and negative evidence to
determine whether it is more likely than not the het deferred tax assets will be realized. DU2@@9, the
Company concluded that due to cumulative profitghiit is more likely than not that it will realizits net US
deferred tax assets with the exception of cert@ite :1et operating loss carryforwards. Accordindlysing the year
ended December 31, 2009, the Company recordeccareeftax benefit of $492 million for the relea$ehe
beginning-of-the-year US valuation allowance asseci with those US net deferred tax assets expezieel

realized in 2009 and subsequent years.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the valuatiowance decreased by $318 million consisting bfincome
tax benefits, net, of $314 million, (2) an increa$&1 million allocated to Accumulated other coeipensive
income, (3) an increase of $11 million relateddrefgn currency translation adjustments and (4)#ilkon of othe|
decreases related to unrecognized tax benefitethed adjustments to deferred taxes. The charged¢amulated
other comprehensive income relates to deferredgagts associated with the Compamension and postretirem
obligations. The change in valuation allowance eissed with foreign currency translation adjustnsastrelated to
changes in deferred tax assets for unrealizedgiorexchange gains and losses on effective hedgesraforeign
income previously taxed but not yet received inWl& The charge also relates to foreign currerenystation
adjustments for deferred tax assets recorded inu&foreign jurisdictions. The decrease relatedreecognized te
benefits and other adjustments to deferred taxatsdes adjustments to temporary differences andpertating loss
carryforwards due to changes in uncertain tax jpost

A reconciliation of the significant differences Ween the US federal statutory tax rate of 35% aecetfective
income tax rate on income from continuing operaiisnas follows:

Year Ended
December 31
2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions)
Income tax provision computed at US federal stayutax rate 84 152 15¢
Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting fr
Change in valuation allowan: (319 5) 9
Equity income and dividenc (20 a7 8
Expenses not resulting in tax bene 4 18 38
US tax effect of foreign earnings and divide 10 (5) 27
Other foreign tax rate differentig() 11) (84) (99)
Legislative change 71 3 (27)
Tax-deductible interest on foreign equity instrumentst&er related item (76) - (29
State income taxes and otl 9 1 10
Income tax provision (benefi (243) 63 11C

@ Includes impact of earnings from China and Singajsaibject to tax holidays which expire between®&0d
2013 and favorable tax rates in other jurisdictic

Federal and state income taxes have not been pabeid accumulated but undistributed earnings & BRlion as
of December 31, 2009 as such earnings have besrapently reinvested in the business. The deteriomaf the
amount of the unrecognized deferred tax liabiléhated to the undistributed earnings is not prabti.

The effective tax rate for continuing operationstfee year ended December 31, 2009 was (101)% cemhpa 15%
for the year ended December 31, 2008. The effetdiveate for 2009 was favorably impacted by tHease of
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US valuation allowance, partially offset by lowereings in jurisdictions participating in tax haigb, increases in
valuation allowances on certain foreign net defietex assets and the effect of new tax legislatidviexico.

The Company operates under tax holidays in vamoustries which are effective through December 2013
China, one of the Comparsyéntities has a tax holiday that provided for @ zercent tax rate in 2007 and 2008.
2009 through 2011, the Company’s tax rate is 50%h@Statutory rate, or 12.5% based on the 20@dtsty rate of
25%. In Singapore, one of the Company’s entitieséhtax holiday that provides for a zero percentate through
2010. For 2011 through 2013, the Company'’s taxwdtebe 10% based on the current statutory rat&78h. The
impact of these tax holidays decreased foreignst&emillion for the year ended December 31, 2009.

The Corporate Tax Reform Act of 2008 was signethieyGerman Federal President in August 2007. The Ac
reduced the Company’s combined corporate stattdoryate from 40% to 30% while imposing limitatioms the
deductibility of certain expenses, including instrexpense. The Company recognized a tax beneg@®million in
2007 related to the statutory rate reduction oG#sman net deferred tax liabilities.

Mexico enacted the 2008 Fiscal Reform Bill on Oetob, 2007. Effective January 1, 2008, the billeadpd the
existing asset-based tax and established a du@hietax system consisting of a new minimum flat(tae “IETU”)
and the existing regular income tax system. ThelEystem taxes companies on cash basis net incamsisting
only of certain specified items of revenue and espeat a rate of 16.5%, 17% and 17.5% for 20089 2;d 2010
forward, respectively. In general, companies mastthe higher of the income tax or the IETU, altipownlike the
previous asset tax, the IETU is not creditable rgduture income tax liabilities. The Company Hatermined that
it will primarily be subject to the IETU in futunggeriods, and as such it has recorded tax expepsefft) of

$(5) million, $7 million and $20 million in 20090P8 and 2007, respectively, for the tax effectthefIETU systen

On December 7, 2009, Mexico enacted the 2010 Mexiex Reform Bill (“Tax Reform Bill”) to be effeate
January 1, 2010. Under this new legislation, thpaxate income tax rate will be temporarily incexh$rom 28% to
30% for 2010 through 2012, then reduced to 29%®itB82and finally reduced back to 28% in 2014 aridriuyears.
These rate changes would impact the Company ievaet that it reverts to paying taxes on a regaleome tax
basis versus an IETU basis. Further, under cutagntincome tax loss carryforwards reported intthe
consolidation that were not utilized on an indivalopompany basis within 10 years were subject¢aptire. The
Tax Reform Bill as enacted accelerates this recagtariod from 10 years to 5 years and effectivetyuires
payment of taxes even if no benefit was obtainealitph the tax consolidation regime. Finally, sigraht
modifications were also made to the rules for inedaxes previously deferred on intercompany divideras well
as to income taxes related to differences betweeadtidated and individual Mexican tax earnings prafits. The
estimated income tax impact to the Company ofribig legislation at December 31, 2009 is $73 mi|ljpayable
$12 million in 2010, $14 million in 2012, $12 mdh in 2013 and $35 million in 2014 and thereafter.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had US fedetabperating loss carryforwards of $41 millioatthre
subject to limitation. These net operating lossydarwards begin to expire in 2021.

The Company also had foreign net operating losyfmawards as of December 31, 2009 of $1 billion fo
Luxembourg, Canada, China, Germany, Mexico andrdtireign jurisdictions with various expiration dat Net
operating losses in China have various carryforvpamibds and begin expiring in 2011. Net operalirgges in
Luxembourg, Canada and Germany have no expiratiten tlet operating losses in Mexico have a ten year
carryforward period and began to expire in 2009wENer, these losses are not available for use uhderew IETL
tax regulations in Mexico. As the IETU is the primnaystem upon which the Company will be subjedttoin
future periods, no deferred tax asset has beegctedl in the consolidated balance sheets as ofnilmre31, 2009
for these income tax loss carryforwards.

The Company adopted the provisions of FASB ASC @ @gi0-10 effective January 1, 2007. FASB ASC Topic
740-10 clarifies the accounting for income taxeptgscribing a minimum recognition threshold altarefit is
required to meet before being recognized in tharfimal statements. FASB ASC Topic 740-10 also plesi
guidance on derecognition, measurement, classditanterest and penalties, accounting in intgueniods,
disclosure and transition. As a result of the impatation of FASB ASC Topic 740-10, the Companyeéased
Retained earnings by $14 million and decreased @itiday $2 million as included in the consolidatbdlance
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sheets. In addition, certain tax liabilities forecognized tax benefits, as well as related patepénalties and
interest, were reclassified from current liabiktig® noncurrent liabilities. Liabilities for unreguized tax benefits as
of December 31, 2009 relate to various US and dorgirisdictions.

A reconciliation of the amount of unrecognized beefits is as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008
(In $ millions)
As of the beginning of the ye 19t 20C
Increases in tax positions for the current y 19 -
Increases in tax positions for prior ye 39 7
Decreases in tax positions of prior ye (38) (20
Settlement: (7) (2)
As of the end of the yei 20¢ 19t

Included in the unrecognized tax benefits as ofdb@mer 31, 2009 are $208 million of tax benefitg,tHa
recognized, would reduce the Company’s effectixerdde.

The Company recognizes interest and penaltieerktatunrecognized tax benefits in the provisianirioome
taxes. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Coynipas recorded a liability of $45 million and $38lion,
respectively, for interest and penalties. This amidncludes an increase of $7 million and $2 millfor the years
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectivelpf Becember 31, 2009, $5 million of unrecognizedhanefits
are included in current Other liabilities (Note 12)

The Company operates in the US (including multgtége jurisdictions), Germany and approximatelytter
foreign jurisdictions including Canada, China, FrenMexico and Singapore. Examinations are ongoirggnumbe
of those jurisdictions including, most significgntin Germany for the years 2001 to 2004 and 206@007. The
Company'’s US federal income tax returns for 2008 laeyond are open for examination under statute.J® tax
years 2006 to 2008 were selected for audit in 2QL0rently, unrecognized tax benefits are not etqubto chang
significantly over the next 12 months.

20. Stock-Based and Other Management Compensation Plat

In December 2004, the Company approved a stockfiveeplan for executive officers, key employeed an
directors, a deferred compensation plan for exeewificers and key employees as well as other gemant
incentive programs.

The stock incentive plan allows for the issuancdaivery of up to 16,250,000 shares of the Comiza8gries A
common stock through the award of stock optiorstricted stock units (“RSUs”) and other stock-baaedrds as
may be approved by the Company’s Compensation Ctigevof the Board of Directors. At the Company’s
discretion under the 2004 incentive plan, the Camgaas the right to award dividend equivalents &URjrants
which are earned in accordance with the Compargyrisncon stock dividend policy and are reinvesteddidittonal
RSUs. Dividend equivalents on these RSUs are teddf vesting conditions are not met.

In April 2009, the Company approved a global insenplan which replaces the Company’s 2004 stockritive
plan. The 2009 global incentive plan enables thea@msation Committee of the Board of Directorsviaral
incentive and nonqualified stock options, stockrapgation rights, shares of common stock, restulisteck,
restricted stock units and incentive bonuses (whiely be paid in cash or stock or a combinationeib®y any of
which may be performance-based, with vesting ahdratward provisions that provide effective incestio
Company employees (including officers), non-manag@ndirectors and other service providers. Under2009
global incentive plan, the company no longer hasaghtion to grant RSUs with the right to particgpat dividends
or dividend equivalents.

The maximum number of shares that may be issuedrihd 2009 global incentive plan is equal to 5,860 share
plus (a) any shares of Common Stock that remaiitadole for issuance under the 2004 stock
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incentive plan (not including any shares of Comr8twck that are subject to outstanding awards uthee?2004
stock incentive plan or any shares of Common Sthakwere issued pursuant to awards under the 210@4
incentive plan) and (b) any awards under the 2@@2ksncentive plan that remain outstanding thaiseefor any
reason to be subject to such awards (other thaedson of exercise or settlement of the awarddeitent that
such award is exercised for or settled in vestetnmm-forfeitable shares). As of December 31, 2@0@jal of
3,812,359 shares remained available for awardsrihde2009 stock incentive plan. A total of 7,18®%nd
1,481,886 shares were subject to outstanding awsdisr the 2004 stock incentive plan and 2009 gliolcantive
plan, respectively.

Deferred Compensatio

The 2004 deferred compensation plan provides areggte maximum amount payable of $196 million. Hital
component of the deferred compensation plan vést2d04 and was paid in the first quarter of 20@5May 2007,
the Original Shareholders sold their remaining goiniterest in the Company triggering an Exit Evexs defined b
the plan. Cash compensation of $74 million, represg the participants’ 2005 and 2006 contingemtdfi¢és, was
paid to the participants during the year ended Béer 31, 2007. Participants continuing in the 206frred
compensation plan (see below for discussion reggrciertain participant’s decision to participatairevised
program) continue to vest in their 2008 and 200f%tbased and performance-based entitlements asedefi the
deferred compensation plan. During the years ebaagmber 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Companydedor
compensation expense of $1 million, $3 million &84 million, respectively, associated with thismplas of
December 31, 2009, there was no deferred compengadiyable remaining associated with this plan.

On April 2, 2007, certain participants in the Comya deferred compensation plan elected to pagteiin a
revised program, which includes both cash awardsestricted stock units (see Restricted Stockspédow).
Under the revised program, participants relinquistheir cash awards of up to $30 million that wolidd/e
contingently accrued from 2007-2009 under the pefplan. In lieu of these awards, the revised ede
compensation program provides for a future cashrédimsan amount equal to 90% of the maximum po&payou
under the original plan, plus growth pursuant te ohthree participant-selected notional investnvehicles, as
defined in the associated agreements. Participanss remain employed through 2010 to vest in thve a@ard. The
Company will recognize expense through Decembe310 and make award payments under the revisegigmo
in the first quarter of 2011, unless participanésEto further defer the payment of their indivédlawards. Based on
participation in the revised program, the Compaxpeased $10 million, $8 million and $6 million dugithe years
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respsgtieddted to the revised program.

In December 2007, the Company adopted a deferneghensation plan whereby certain of the Companyigse
employees and directors were offered the oppostiaitiefer a portion of their compensation in exgiefor a
future payment amount equal to their deferments pluminus certain amounts based upon the markktrpmnce
of specified measurement funds selected by thécypamht. Participants are required to make defesiattions unde
the plan prior to January 1 of the year such dakemwill be withheld from their compensation. Thengpany
expensed less than $1 million and $1 million dutimg years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, tasghec
related to this plan.

Long-Term Incentive Plan

Effective January 1, 2004, the Company adoptedig-term incentive plan (the “LTIP Plan”) which coseertain
members of management and other key employeeg @dmpany. The LTIP Plan is a thrgear cash based plan
which awards are based on annual and thieee-cumulative targets (as defined in the LTImMPIlM February 2007
$26 million was paid to the LTIP plan participarntbere are no additional amounts due under the [PTaA.

In December 2008, the Company granted time-vestisfp awards of $22 million to the Company’s exeeuti
officers and certain other key employees. Each @whcash vests 30% on October 14, 2009, 30% oakectl4,
2010 and 40% on October 14, 2011. In its sole digmr, the compensation committee of the Boardioéddors ma
at any time convert all or a portion of the caslaalo an award of time-vesting restricted stociksuim he liability
cash awards are being accrued and expensed overithef the agreements outlined above. Duringytfee ended
December 31, 2009, less than $1 million was pajbtticipants who left the Company. In October
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2009, the Company paid cash awards totaling $6amitb active employees, representing 30% of theaieing
outstanding cash awards. During the years endedrbleer 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company expensedIBami
and less than $1 million, respectively, relatethocash awards.

Stock Options

The Company has a stock-based compensation plam#ias awards of stock options to the Companyés@kves
and certain employees. It is the Company’s policgrant options with an exercise price equal toatverage of the
high and low price of the Company’s Series A comrsimtk on the grant date. The options issued haer-gear
term and vest on a graded basis over periods rgrfigim one to five years. The estimated value ef@mpany’s
stock-based awards less expected forfeitures égréred over the awards’ respective vesting pesiod straight-
line basis.

The fair value of each option granted is estimatedhe grant date using the Black-Scholes optiairy method.
The weighted average assumptions used in the naogl@lutlined in the following table:

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Risk-free interest rat 290% .30% ¢,60%
Estimated life in year 5.20 7.70 6.80
Dividend yield 0.96% 0.38% 0.42%
Volatility 54.30% 31.40% 27.50%

The computation of the expected volatility assumptised in the Blackcholes calculations for new grants is bz
on the Company'’s historical volatilities. When d&ditghing the expected life assumptions, the Compariews
annual historical employee exercise behavior obopgrants with similar vesting periods.

A summary of changes in stock options outstandiragifollows:

Year Ended December 31, 2009

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining Aggregate
Number of Average Contractual Intrinsic
Options Exercise Price Term Value
(In millions) (In$) (In years) (In $ millions)
As of December 31, 20( 7.C 19.3¢
Granted 0.1 17.15
Exercisec (0.9 17.7¢
Forfeited (0.9 34.0¢
As of December 31, 20( 6.C 19.01 5.€ 7€
Options exercisable at end of y« 5.C 17.0¢ 5.3 75

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of stqtions granted during the years ended Decemhet(®D,
2008, and 2007 was $7.46, $16.78, and $14.42,ct¢éply, per option. The total intrinsic value gitmns exercise
during the years ended December 31, 2009, 200&@0id was $9 million, $27 million, and $84 million,
respectively. As of December 31, 2009, the Compet/approximately $7 million of total unrecognized
compensation expense related to stock optionsyéixg estimated forfeitures, to be recognized themremaining
vesting periods of the options. Cash received fstook option exercises was $14 million, $18 milliand

$69 million during the years ended December 31920008, and 2007, respectively. There was no ¢sefit
realized from stock option exercises during the yemled December 31, 2009. During the year endedrleer 31,
2008 the Company reversed $8 million of the $19%ioniltax benefit that was realized during the yerded
December 31, 2007.
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During 2009, the Company extended the contraciigabf 4 million fully vested share options held &¥mployees.
As a result of that modification, the Company retegd additional compensation expense of $1 mill@rthe year
ended December 31, 2009.

Restricted Stock Units'RSUs”)

Performanc-based RSUsThe Company grants performance-based RSUs todhepény’s executive officers and
certain employees once per year. The Company nsaygahnt performance-based RSUs to certain newogegs
or to employees who assume positions of increasisigonsibility at the time those events occur. iitn@ber of
performance-based RSUs that ultimately vest is nidgg@ on one or both of the following as per thengeof the
specific award agreement: The achievement of &yriall profitability targets (performance conditi@md 2) market
performance targets measured by the comparisdreatdompany’s stock performance versus a definedgreap
(market condition).

The performance-based RSUs generally cliff-vesindguthe Company’s quarter-end September 30 blatkeriod
three years from the date of grant. The ultimatalmer of shares of the Company’s Series A commarksssued
will range from zero to stretch, with stretch definindividually under each award, net of personabime taxes
withheld. The market condition is factored into #stimated fair value per unit and compensatiorerse for each
award will be based on the probability of achievimigrnal profitability targets, as applicable, asdognized on a
straight-line basis over the term of the respedjnamnt, less estimated forfeitures. For performamsed RSUs
granted without a performance condition, compensatixpense is based on the fair value per unigrézed on a
straight-line basis over the term of the grants lestimated forfeitures.

In April 2007, the Company granted performance-8d88Us to certain employees that vest annuallgiak
tranches beginning October 1, 2008 through Octdb2011 and include a market condition. The pertoroebaser
RSUs awarded include a catch-up provision thatigdes/for an additional year of vesting of previgushvested
amounts, subject to certain maximums. Compensatipense is based on the fair value per unit reecegnn a
straight-line basis over the term of the grants lestimated forfeitures.

A summary of changes in performance-based RSUsanulieg is as follows:

Weighted
Number of Average
Units Fair Value

(In thousands) (In$)
Nonvested at December 31, 2( 1,18t 19.6¢
Granted 42C 38.1¢
Vested (79 21.3(
Forfeited (119 17.2¢
Nonvested at December 31, 2( 1,41¢ 25.2¢

The fair value of shares vested for performancet&sSUs during the years ended December 31, 2@D2G08
was $2 million and $3 million, respectively. Thevere no vestings that occurred during the year@nde
December 31, 2007.

Fair value for the Company’s performance-based RBassestimated at the grant date using a MonteoCarl
simulation approach. Monte Carlo simulation walzgid to randomly generate future stock returnglierCompan
and each company in the defined peer group for geatit based on company-specific dividend yield&tilities
and stock return correlations. These returns weee to calculate future performance-based RSUngesti
percentages and the simulated values of the vestédrmance-based RSUs were then discounted temrealue
using a risk-free rate, yielding the expected valfithese performance-based RSUs.
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The range of assumptions used in the Monte Camalsiion approach is outlined in the following &bl

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
Risk-free interest rat 1.11% 1.05% 4.53-4.55%
Dividend yield 0.00-4.64% 0.00-12.71% 0.00- 2.76%
Volatility 25- 75% 20- 70% 20- 45%

In December 2008, the Company granted 200,000 imegioce units to be settled in cash to the Compadlgisf
Executive Officer. The terms of the performancasiare substantially similar to the performanceedd2SUs
granted in December 2008 and include a performaondition and a market condition. The value of the
performance units is equivalent to the value of sim&re of the Company’s Series A common stock agdaenounts
that may vest under the performance unit awardesgeat are to be settled in cash rather than sbéthe
Company’s Series A common stock. The compensatiomattee of the Board of Directors may elect tovan all
or any portion of the performance units award t@aard of an equivalent value of performance-b&sgUs.

Time-based RSUsThe Company grants non-employee Directors timedh&SUs annually that generally vest one
year after grant. The fair value of the t-based RSUs is equal to the closing price of the@my’s Series A
common stock on the grant date.

The Company also grants time-based RSUs to the @oyigexecutives and certain employees that vésblsa
over time intervals ranging from two to four yearhe fair value of the time-based RSUs is equéhéoaverage of
the high and low price of the Company’s Series Anwn stock on the grant date.

A summary of changes in time-based RSUs outstaridiag follows:

Employee Time-based RSUs Director Time-Based RSUs

Weighted Weighted

Number of Average Number of Average

Units Fair Value Units Fair Value

(In thousands; (In$) (In thousands; (In$)

Nonvested at December 31, 2( 10t 39.3¢ 1t 44.0:
Granted 421 23.1% 41 16.5¢
Vested (29 37.6( (19 44.0:
Forfeited (1) 39.5¢ - -
Nonvested at December 31, 2( 502 25.57 41 16.5¢

As of December 31, 2009, there was approximateB/lion of unrecognized compensation cost relateRSUs,
excluding estimated forfeitures, which will be atiwed on a straight-line basis over the remainiagting periods.
The fair value of shares vested for time-based R&Buing the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2868

$2 million and $1 million, respectively. No RSUssted during the year ended December 31, 2007.

21.Leases

Total rent expense charged to operations undepalating leases was $148 million, $141 million @2 million
for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and, 286pectively. Future minimum lease payments unde-
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cancelable rental and lease agreements which haia or remaining terms in excess of one yeanfas
December 31, 2009 are as follows:

Capital Operating
(In $ millions)

2010 63 5C
2011 39 36
2012 38 31
2013 35 24
2014 35 16
Later year: 27¢€ 46
Sublease incom - (29)

Minimum lease commitmen 48¢€ 17¢
Less amounts representing intel 244

Present value of net minimum lease obligati 24:

The Company expects that, in the normal coursaisifiess, leases that expire will be renewed oroggpl by other
leases.

22.Derivative Financial Instruments
Interest Rate Risk Manageme!

To reduce the interest rate risk inherent in thenBany’s variable rate debt, the Company utilizésrast rate swap
agreements to convert a portion of the variable dabt to a fixed rate obligation. These interatd swap
agreements are designated as cash flow hedgesinfesest rate swap agreement is terminated fids maturity,
the amount previously recorded in Accumulated otloenprehensive income (loss), net is recognizemléatnings
over the period that the hedged transaction impeantsings. If the hedging relationship is discamtith because it is
probable that the forecasted transaction will reaiuo according to the original strategy, any relamounts
previously recorded in Accumulated other compreivenscome (loss), net are recognized into earnings
immediately.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had an iritesmgs swap agreement in place with a notionalevalu
$300 million. On March 29, 2007, in connection wiltle April 2007 debt refinancing, the Company teraéd this
interest rate swap agreement and recognized aof& million related to amounts previously recatde
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net.

In March 2007, in anticipation of the April 2007deefinancing, the Company entered into variousddiar and
Euro interest rate swap agreements, which becai®etige on April 2, 2007, with notional amounts$if.6 billion
and €150 million, respectively. The notional amoofithe $1.6 billion US dollar interest rate swaesreased by
$400 million effective January 2, 2008 and decrddseanother $200 million effective January 2, 20D8 offset
the declines, the Company entered into US doll@rést rate swaps with a combined notional amofint o
$400 million which became effective on January@&and an additional US dollar interest rate switlp a
notional amount of $200 million which became efifieetApril 2, 2009. The notional amount of the irst rate
swaps decreased by $100 million effective Janua®p40. No new swaps were entered into to offsettclines.

The Company recognized interest (expense) incoom fredging activities relating to interest rate gsvaf

($63) million, ($18) million and $6 million for thgears ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 200 &atasgly. The
Company recorded a net loss of $0 million for tearyended December 31, 2009 and less than $1 miiiceach ¢
the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, to @tmme (expense), net in the consolidated statesrod
operations for the ineffective portion of the irsfrrate swap agreements. The Company recordedrealiged gain
(loss) on interest rate swaps of $15 million angBj$mnillion during the years ended December 319221td 2008,
respectively.
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Foreign Exchange Risk Managemel

Certain entities have receivables and payablesmiexabed in currencies other than their respectivetional
currencies, which creates foreign exchange risk. Tompany enters into foreign currency forwards smaps to
minimize its exposure to foreign currency fluctoas. Through these instruments, the Company métsgias foreigi
currency exposure on transactions with third partifties as well as intercompany transactions. ctireently
outstanding foreign currency contracts are hedgowked exposure, however the Company may from tintiene
hedge its currency exposure related to forecastmdactions. Forward contracts are not designatéedges under
FASB ASC Topic 815.

The following table indicates the total US dollguévalents of net foreign exchange exposure relat€dhort) long
foreign exchange forward contracts outstandingusyency. All of the contracts included in the tab&ow will
have approximately offsetting effects from actuadierlying payables, receivables, intercompany laarather
assets or liabilities subject to foreign excharejpegasurement.

2010 Maturity
(In $ millions)

Currency
Euro (379
British pound sterling (90
Chinese renmint (200
Mexican pest 5)
Singapore dolla 27
Canadian dolla (48)
Japanese ye 8
Brazilian real (11
Swedish kroni 15
Other ()
Total (677)

To protect the foreign currency exposure of a me¢stment in a foreign operation, the Company edterto cross
currency swaps with certain financial institution®2004. The cross currency swaps and the Eurordiraded
portion of the senior term loan were designated lasdge of a net investment of a foreign operaiitle. Company
dedesignated the net investment hedge due to tteefnancing in April 2007 and redesignated thess currency
swaps and new senior Euro term loan in July 20@7a fesult, the Company recorded $26 million of

losses related to the cross currency swaps amkthesenior Euro term loan during this period.

Under the terms of the cross currency swap arraagtanthe Company paid approximately €13 milliomierest
and received approximately $16 million in interestJune 15 and December 15 of each year. Thedhieof the
net obligation under the cross currency swaps neladed in current Other liabilities in the condalied balance
sheets as of December 31, 2007. Upon maturityeo€tbss currency swap agreements in June 2008 dimpany
owed €276 million ($426 million) and was owed $38Mion. In settlement of the obligation, the Compapaid
$93 million (net of interest of $3 million) in Ju2e08.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Coyngradiesignated €385 million of the €400 Euro-dematad
portion of the term loan, previously designate@ &gdge of a net investment of a foreign operalfitwe. remaining
€15 million Euro-denominated portion of the termromas dedesignated as a hedge of a net investrharioeign
operation in June 2009. Prior to the dedesignatitiesCompany had been using external derivatiméraots to
offset foreign currency exposures on certain irtemgany loans. As a result of the dedesignatiomsfateign
currency exposure created by the Euro-denominated Iban is expected to offset the foreign curremqyosure on
certain intercompany loans, decreasing the neeeXi@rnal derivative contracts and reducing the gamy’s
exposure to external counterparties.

The effective portion of the gain (loss) on theigkgive (cross currency swaps) is recorded in Acslaed other
comprehensive income (loss), net. For the yearse&begcember 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the amourgexh&o

122




Table of Contents

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)yast$0 million, $(19) million and $(19) million,spectively.
The gain (loss) related to items excluded fromasessment of hedge effectiveness of the crossnocyrswaps are
recorded to Other income (expense), net in theddimlaged statements of operations. For the yeateen
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the amount athéog@ther income (expense), net in the consoldlate
statements of operations was $0 million, $1 milléord $(6) million, respectively.

Commodity Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the prices of comneaditiits procurement of certain raw materials. Toenpany
manages its exposure primarily through the userggterm supply agreements and derivative instrasndie
Company regularly assesses its practice of punehasportion of its commodity requirements forwardi
utilization of other raw material hedging instrunteenn addition to forward purchase contracts,docadance with
changes in market conditions. Forward purchaseswaag contracts for raw materials are principaditled throug!
actual delivery of the physical commodity. For diyahg contracts, the Company has elected to agigynormal
purchases and normal sales exception of FASB ASSIcT&L5, as it was probable at the inception anouighout
the term of the contract that they would not setdeand would result in physical delivery. As sugalized gains
and losses on these contracts are included inogteof the commaodity upon the settlement of thetreamh

In addition, the Company occasionally enters iimaricial derivatives to hedge a component of ameaterial or
energy source. Typically, these types of transastato not qualify for hedge accounting. These imsénts are
marked to market at each reporting period and dgéisses) are included in Cost of sales in the alafsed
statements of operations. The Company recognizeghimoor loss from these types of contracts duttiregyears
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 and less thaiilligihrduring the year ended December 31, 20070AAs
December 31, 2009, the Company did not have anyg fipancial derivative contracts for commaodities.

The following table presents information regardafgnges in the fair value of the Company’s denneti

arrangements:
Year ended December 31, 20(
Gain (Loss)
Recognizec
in Other Gain (Loss)
Comprehensive  Recognizec
Income in Income

(In $ millions)
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedging insénis
Interest rate sway (40 (65 @
Derivatives designated as net investment hedgistguments
Eurc-denominated term loe — —
Derivatives not designated as hedging instrum
Foreign currency forwards and sw: — (20

Total (40) (83)

MAmount represents reclassification from Accumulaiter comprehensive income and is classified tesest
expense in the consolidated statement of opera

See Note 23, Fair Value Measurements, for additiof@armation regarding the fair value of the Comps
derivative arrangements.
23.Fair Value Measurements

As discussed in Note 2, the Company adopted captawvisions of FASB ASC Topic 820 on January 1,2660d
2009. FASB ASC Topic 820 establishes a three-tiGa@d/alue hierarchy that prioritizes inputs tduegion
techniques used in fair value calculations. ThedHevels of inputs are defined as follows:

Level 1 — unadjusted quoted prices for identicakss or liabilities in active markets accessibléhgyCompany

Level 2 — inputs that are observable in the malketother than those inputs classified as Level 1
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Level 3 — inputs that are unobservable in the ntatkee and significant to the valuation

FASB ASC Topic 820 requires the Company to maxintieeuse of observable inputs and minimize theofise
unobservable inputs. If a financial instrument usesits that fall in different levels of the hiechy, the instrument
will be categorized based upon the lowest levehpiit that is significant to the fair value caldita.

The Company'’s financial assets and liabilitiesrasmasured at fair value on a recurring basis arlddeamarketable
securities and derivative financial instrumentsritable securities include US government and gatpdonds,
mortgage-backed securities and equity securitiesivBtive financial instruments include interederawaps and
foreign currency forwards and swaps.

Marketable Securities Where possible, the Company utilizes quoted piic@stive markets to measure debt and
equity securities; such items are classified asL&vn the hierarchy and include equity securitiead US
government bonds. When quoted market prices fartickd assets are unavailable, varying valuatichneues are
used. Common inputs in valuing these assets inchrmdeng others, benchmark yields, issuer spreadsafd
mortgage-backed securities trade prices and rgoeapbrted trades. Such assets are classifiedwas Rén the
hierarchy and typically include mortgage-backedisies, corporate bonds and other US governmentries.

Derivative Financial Instrument: Derivative financial instruments are valued in tharket using discounted cash
flow techniques. These techniques incorporate L&waid Level 2 inputs such as interest rates amdgfio currency
exchange rates. These market inputs are utilizéakinliscounted cash flow calculation considerhmginstrument’s
term, notional amount, discount rate and credit I8gnificant inputs to the derivative valuatiar fnterest rate
swaps and foreign currency forwards and swapstasergable in the active markets and are classifiedevel 2 in
the hierarchy.
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The following fair value hierarchy table presemiformation about the Company’s assets and liadslitheasured at
fair value on a recurring basis:

Fair Value Measurement

Using
Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other
Markets for Observable
Identical Asset Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) Total

(In $ millions)
Marketable securities, at fair val

US government debt securiti — 28 2¢
US corporate debt securiti — 1 1
Equity securitie: 52 — 52
Money market deposits and other securi — 2 2
Derivatives not designated as hedging instrum
Foreign currency forwards and swe — 12 12@
Total assets as of December 31, 2 52 43 95
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedging instnts
Interest rate sway — (68) (68) @
Interest rate sway — (44) 44) ®
Derivatives not designated as hedging instrum
Foreign currency forwards and swe — (7 (7) @
Total liabilities as of December 31, 20 — (119 (119
Marketable securitie
US government debt securiti — 52 52
US corporate debt securiti — 3 3
Equity securitie: 42 — 42
Money market deposits and other securi — 3 3
Derivatives not designated as hedging instrum
Foreign currency forwards and swe — 54 54 1)
Total assets as of December 31, 2 42 112 154
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedging insénis
Interest rate swag — (42 42 @
Interest rate swag — (76) (76) ®
Derivatives not designated as hedging instrum
Foreign currency forwards and swz — (25) (25) @
Total liabilities as of December 31, 20 — (143) (143)

@) Included in current Other assets in the consoldlbance sheet
@ Included in current Other liabilities in the coridaked balance shee
®) Included in noncurrent Other liabilities in the solidated balance shee

Summarized below are the carrying values and etgihfair values of financial instruments that aoé carried at
fair value on the Company’s consolidated balaneetsh

As of December 31  As of December 31
2009 2008
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(In $ millions)

Cost investment 18: — 184 —
Insurance contracts in nonqualified pension tr 66 66 67 67
Long-term debt, including current installments of I-term debt 3,361 3,24¢ 3,381 2,40¢
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In general, the cost investments included in théetabove are not publicly traded and their faluga are not
readily determinable; however, the Company beli¢hescarrying values approximate or are less tharfdir
values.

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the fair valdessh and cash equivalents, receivables, tradeyes; short-
term debt and the current installments of long-tdeht approximate carrying values due to the steont- nature of
these instruments. These items have been excludextiie table with the exception of the currentatisients of
long-term debt. Additionally, certain noncurrente&/ables, principally insurance recoverablescaréed at net
realizable value.

The fair value of long-term debt is based on vaduest from third-party banks and market quotations.

24.Commitments and Contingencie

The Company is involved in a number of legal arglifgtory proceedings, lawsuits and claims incidietatéhe
normal conduct of business, relating to such ma#srproduct liability, antitrust, intellectual peoty, workers’
compensation, prior acquisitions and divestitupast waste disposal practices and release of chéninto the
environment. While it is impossible at this timed@termine with certainty the ultimate outcomehafse
proceedings, lawsuits and claims, the Companytigedg defending those matters where the Compamaimed as
defendant. Additionally, the Company believes, Hase the advice of legal counsel, that adequatrves have
been made and that the ultimate outcomes of alfl Btigation and claims will not have a materiavadse effect on
the financial position of the Company; however, tlignate outcome of any given matter may have tera
impact on the results of operations or cash flofwb® Company in any given reporting period.

Plumbing Actions

CNA Holdings LLC. (“CNA Holdings”), a US subsidianf the Company, which included the US business now
conducted by the Ticona business which is includatle Advanced Engineered Materials segment, aldgtigShel
Oil Company (“Shell”), E.I. DuPont de Nemours anohipany (“DuPont”) and others, has been a deferidamt
series of lawsuits, including a number of classast alleging that plastics manufactured by thesapanies that
were utilized in the production of plumbing systefmsresidential property were defective or causech plumbing
systems to fail. Based on, among other thingsfititings of outside experts and the successfubfiécona’s
acetal copolymer in similar applications, CNA Haolgs does not believe Ticosaacetal copolymer was defective
caused the plumbing systems to fail. In many c&¥¢& Holdings’ potential future exposure may be liea by
invocation of the statute of limitations since CKialdings ceased selling the resin for use in thenping systems
in site-built homes during 1986 and in manufacturethes during 1990.

In November 1995, CNA Holdings, DuPont and Shefessd into national class action settlements talgd for the
replacement of plumbing systems of claimants wheetead qualifying leaks, as well as reimbursemfantsertain
leak damage. In connection with such settlemeetthiree companies had agreed to fund these repdstsmnd
reimbursements up to an aggregate amount of $950miAs of December 31, 2009, the aggregate fugds
$1,109 million, due to additional contributions dndding commitments made primarily by other paxtie

During the period between 1995 and 2001, CNA Hgsliwas also named as a defendant in the followingtipe
class actions:

* Cox, et al. v. Hoechst Celanese Corporation, et blb. 94-0047 (Chancery Ct., Obion County, Tenngsse
(class was certified).

* Couture, et al. v. Shell Oil Company, et,aNo. 200-06-000001-985 (Quebec Superior Courta@aj
» Dilday, et al. v. Hoechst Celanese Corporatioralet No. 15187 (Chancery Ct., Weakley County, Tenresse

* Furlan v. Shell Oil Company, et glNo. C967239 (British Columbia Supreme Court, \aner Registry,
Canada).

* Gariepy, et al. v. Shell Oil Company, et aNo. 30781/99 (Ontario Court General Division, Gda).
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» Shelter General Insurance Co., et al. v. Shell@impany, et al. No. 16809 (Chancery Ct., Weakley County,
Tennessee).

e St. Croix Ltd., et al. v. Shell Oil Company, et,dllo. 1997/467 (Territorial Ct., St. Croix Divisipthe US Virgit
Islands).

e Tranter v. Shell Oil Company, et alNo. 46565/97 (Ontario Court General Division, Gda).

In addition, between 1994 and 2008 CNA Holdings masied as a defendant in numerous non-class adiliechén
Arizona, Florida, Georgia, Louisiana, Mississiggew Jersey, Tennessee and Texas, the US Virgindsland
Canada of which ten are currently pending. In Bthese actions, the plaintiffs have sought recp¥er alleged
damages caused by leaking polybutylene plumbinghd@e amounts have generally not been specifiethbsé
cases generally do not involve (either individualhyin the aggregate) a large number of homes.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had remaimdeguals of $55 million, of which $1 million is ided in
current Other liabilities in the consolidated balasheets. As of December 31, 2008, the Companyemaaining
accruals of $64 million, of which $2 million wascinded in current Other liabilities in the consalidd balance
sheets.

The Company reached settlements with CNA Holdimg®irers specifying their responsibility for thetaims.
During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Coyngsoeived $23 million of insurance proceeds frarmaus
CNA Holdings’ insurers as full satisfaction for theesponsibility for these claims. During the yeaded
December 31, 2008, the Company received less thanilion from insurers. During the year ended Daber 31,
2009, the Company recognized a $9 million decr@atgal reserves for plumbing claims due to thenpany’s
ongoing assessment of the likely outcome of thenping actions and the expiration of the statutiénaitation.

Plumbing Insurance Indemnifications

Celanese GmbH entered into agreements with inseremmpanies related to product liability settlersexgsociated
with Celcon® plumbing claims. These agreements, except thoseimgblvent insurance companies, require the
Company to indemnify and/alefend these insurance companies in the eventhiihdiparties seek additional mor
for matters released in these agreements. The imifleations in these agreements do not providdifoe
limitations.

In certain of the agreements, Celanese GmbH regt@iixed settlement amount. The indemnities urtitese
agreements generally are limited to, but in sonsesare greater than, the amount received inrpettiefrom the
insurance company. The maximum exposure under thdsenifications is $95 million. Other settlement
agreements have no stated limits.

There are other agreements whereby the settlinggnagreed to pay a fixed percentage of claimsrétate to that
insurer’s policies. The Company has provided indéoations to the insurers for amounts paid in esecef the
settlement percentage. These indemnifications dpnowide for monetary or time limitations.

Sorbates Antitrust Action:

In May 2002, the European Commission informed Heedle (“Hoechst”) of its intent to officially inveéigate the
sorbates industry. In early January 2003, the EBanfCommission served Hoechst, Nutrinova, Inc.Sasubsidian
of Nutrinova Nutrition Specialties & Food IngredisrtGmbH and previously a wholly owned subsidiaryHoechst
(“Nutrinova”), and a number of competitors of Natiiva with a statement of objections alleging unldwf
anticompetitive behavior affecting the Europearbates market. In October 2003, the European Cononissled
that Hoechst, Chisso Corporation, Daicel Chemiedustries Ltd. (“Daicel”), The Nippon Synthetic Ghieal
Industry Co. Ltd. and Ueno Fine Chemicals Induktd; operated a cartel in the European sorbatekehhetween
1979 and 1996. The European Commission imposethifitee of €138 million on such companies, of whic

€99 million was assessed against Hoechst and it $egcessors. The case against Nutrinova wasdclBsesuant
to the Demerger Agreement with Hoechst, Celanesbtwas assigned the obligation related to the sesba
antitrust matter; however, Hoechst, and its legatessors, agreed to indemnify Celanese GmbH fdr &Cany
costs Celanese GmbH incurred relative to this matecordingly, Celanese GmbH
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recognized a receivable from Hoechst from thisimuification. In June 2008, the Court of First Imste of the
European Communities (Fifth Chamber) reduced the digainst Hoechst to €74.25 million and in Jul§&0
Hoechst paid the €74.25 million fine. In August 80the Company paid Hoechst €17 million, includimnigrest of
€2 million, in satisfaction of its 20% obligation thirespect to the fine.

Based on the advice of external counsel and awesighe existing facts and circumstances relatinthe sorbates
antitrust matters, including the settlement of Hugopean Union’s investigation, as well as civdiis filed and
settled, the Company released its accruals retattte settled sorbates antitrust matters andndheninification
receivables resulting in a gain of $8 million, riatluded in Other (charges) gains, net, in thesotidated
statements of operations for the year ended Dece®ih@008.

In addition, in 2004 a civil antitrust action stglEreeman Industries LLC v. Eastman Chemical Coaletvas filed
against Hoechst and Nutrinova, Inc. in the Law €éurSullivan County in Kingsport, Tennessee. Phaantiff
sought monetary damages and other relief for allegaduct involving the sorbates industry. The traurt
dismissed the plaintiff's claims and upon appeal$upreme Court of Tennessee affirmed the dismiéshe
plaintiff's claims. In December 2005, the plainfifst an attempt to amend its complaint and thgeeattion was
dismissed with prejudice. Plaintif’counsel subsequently filed a new complaint witlv glass representatives in
District Court of the District of Tennessee. Thenpany's motion to strike the class allegations was ghimeipril
2008 and the plaintiff's request to appeal thenguliemains pending.

Polyester Staple Antitrust Litigatiol

CNA Holdings, the successor in interest to Hoe€ledanese Corporation (“HCC”), Celanese Americap@mtion
and Celanese GmbH (collectively, the “Celanesetient) and Hoechst, the former parent of HCC, weamed as
defendants in two actions (involving 25 individpalrticipants) filed in September 2006 by US purehasf
polyester staple fibers manufactured and sold b Hlhe actions allege that the defendants partieipm a
conspiracy to fix prices, rig bids and allocatetousers of polyester staple sold in the United Stafbese actions
were consolidated in a proceeding by a Multi-Dégttiitigation Panel in the United States Districiuet for the
Western District of North Carolina styldad re Polyester Staple Antitrust LitigatipMDL 1516. On June 12, 2008
the court dismissed these actions against all @sk&E&ntities in consideration of a payment by tam@any of
$107 million. This proceeding related to saleshwy polyester staple fibers business which Hoeddtte KoSa,
Inc. in 1998. Accordingly, the impact of this seftient is reflected within discontinued operationthie
consolidated statements of operations. The Compksmypreviously entered into tolling arrangemerits four
other alleged US purchasers of polyester stapdimanufactured and sold by the Celanese Enfitrese
purchasers were not included in the settlemenbaedsuch company filed suit against the Comparmyeicember
2008 in the Western District of North Carolina #ad Milliken & Company v. CNA Holdings, Inc., Celanese
Americas Corporation and Hoechst ANo. 8-CV-00578). The Company is actively defendinig matter.

In 1998, HCC sold its polyester staple businegzaasof the sale of its Film & Fibers Division tmka B.V., f/k/a
Arteva B.V. and a subsidiary of Koch Industries;.I(fKoSa”). In March 2001 the US Department oftihes
(“DOJ") commenced an investigation of possible price fixiegarding sales in the US of polyester staplerdilagte
the period the Celanese Entities were engageceipdlyester staple fiber business. The Celanedadsniere neve
named in these DOJ actions. As a result of the &didn, during August of 2002, Arteva Specialties.r.l., a
subsidiary of KoSa, (“Arteva Specialties”) pled Ityuto criminal violation of the Sherman Act reldtto anti-
competitive conduct occurring after the 1998 sélihe polyester staple fiber business and paidedi $29 million
In a complaint pending against the Celanese Esititiel Hoechst in the United States District Caurtlie Southern
District of New York, Koch Industries, Inc., KoS&steva Specialties and Arteva Services S.a.r.k sieenages in
excess of $371 million that includes indemnificatfor all damages related to the defendants’ atlgggeticipation
in, and failure to disclose, the alleged conspirdieying due diligence. The Company is actively ddfeg this
matter.
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Acetic Acid Patent Infringement Matter

On May 9, 1999, Celanese International Corpordiled a private criminal action stylédelanese International
Corporation v. China Petrochemical Development Qogtion against China Petrochemical Development
Corporation (“CPDC") in the Taiwan Kaoshiung DistrCourt alleging that CPDC infringed Celaneseriméonal
Corporation’s patent covering the manufacture etiaacid. Celanese International Corporation élsd a
supplementary civil brief that, in view of changed aiwanese patent laws, was subsequently cort/asta civil
action alleging damages against CPDC based oni@pgfrinfringement of ten years, 1991-2000, ansidobon
CPDC'’s own data that was reported to the Taiwasesarities and exchange commission. Celanese atienal
Corporation’s patent was held valid by the Taiwaneatent office. On August 31, 2005, the Distriou@ held that
CPDC infringed Celanese International Corporati@tstic acid patent and awarded Celanese Intenatio
Corporation approximately $28 million (plus intee®r the period of 1995 through 1999. In OctoB@68, the
High Court, on appeal, reversed the District Cau$28 million award to the Company. The Companyeajgtl to
the Superior Court in November 2008, and the camanded the case to the Intellectual Property iGoudune 4,
2009. On January 16, 2006, the District Court aedr@elanese International Corporation $800,000s(jplterest)
for the year 1990. In January 2009, the High Carrtappeal, affirmed the District Court’s award &RDC
appealed on February 5, 2009 to the Supreme G@arjune 29, 2007, the District Court awarded Calane
International Corporation $60 million (plus intef)ef®r the period of 2000 through 2005. CPDC appeéhis ruling
and on July 21, 2009, the High Court ruled in CP®favor. The Company appealed to the Supreme @adrin
December 2009, the case was remanded to the bitelléProperty Court.

Asbestos Claim

As of December 31, 2009, Celanese Ltd. and/or CNidgs, Inc., both US subsidiaries of the Compang,
defendants in approximately 526 asbestos casemditine year ended December 31, 2009, 56 new easresfiled
against the Company, 90 cases were resolved, aagelwas added after further analysis by outsidase.
Because many of these cases involve numerousiffiaitite Company is subject to claims significgritl excess of
the number of actual cases. The Company has resknvdefense costs related to claims arising frloese matters.
The Company believes that there is no material exporelated to these matters.

Domination Agreemen

On October 1, 2004, a Domination Agreement betwaslanese GmbH and the Purchaser became operatinen W
the Domination Agreement became operative, theHiger became obligated to offer to acquire alltantiing
Celanese GmbH shares from the minority shareholfdEelanese GmbH in return for payment of fairtcas
compensation. The amount of this fair cash compmmswas determined to be €41.92 per share, ptesast, in
accordance with applicable German law. Until thee&tge-Out was registered in the commercial register
Germany on December 22, 2006, any minority shadenatho elected not to sell its shares to the Rigehwas
entitled to remain a shareholder of Celanese GnmiiHt@receive from the Purchaser a gross guaraate®ahl
payment on its shares of €3.27 per Celanese Gmat¢ $&ss certain corporate taxes in lieu of aniddivd.

The Domination Agreement was terminated by the fraser in the ordinary course of business effective
December 31, 2009. The Company’s subsidiaries, &ltHCelanese US, have each agreed to provide tbhd2er
with financing to strengthen the Purchaser’s apttt fulfill its obligations under, or in connectiavith, the
Domination Agreement and to ensure that the Puechail perform all of its obligations under, or @donnection
with, the Domination Agreement when such obligaibecome due, including, without limitation, thdigétion to
compensate Celanese GmbH for any statutory anosslimcurred by Celanese GmbH during the termeof th
Domination Agreement. If CIH and/or Celanese USddniggated to make payments under such guarantemtber
security to the Purchaser, the Company may not kafficient funds for payments on its indebtednelen due.
The Company has not had to compensate Celanese GmhbH annual loss for any period during which the
Domination Agreement has been in effect. Due tad¢hmination of the Domination Agreement there Ww#l no
obligation by the Purchaser to compensate CelaBegeH for any losses incurred after December 319200
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Award Proceedings in relation to Domination Agreenteand Squeeze Ot

The amounts of the fair cash compensation andeofttaranteed annual payment offered under the Cadioim
Agreement as well as the Squeeze-Out compensatamaer court review in two separate special award
proceedings. The amounts of the fair cash compiensand of the guaranteed annual payment offereéthne
Domination Agreement may be increased in speciardwroceedings initiated by minority shareholdessich
may further reduce the funds the Purchaser camwiteemake available to the Company. As of MarchZ®5,
several minority shareholders of Celanese GmbHithitidted special award proceedings seeking thetsoeview
of the amounts of the fair cash compensation artdleofjuaranteed annual payment offered under timaifdion
Agreement. As a result of these proceedings, treuabof the fair cash consideration and the guasthainnual
payment offered under the Domination Agreementa el increased by the court so that all minorigreholders,
including those who have already tendered theireshimto the mandatory offer and have receiveddieash
compensation could claim the respective higher artsoThe court dismissed all of these proceedindgéarch
2005 on the grounds of inadmissibility. Thirty-tarelaintiffs appealed the dismissal, and in Jan2a66, twenty-
three of these appeals were granted by the colety Were remanded back to the court of first instamwhere the
valuation will be further reviewed. On December 2@06, the court of first instance appointed areeixip help
determine the value of Celanese GmbH. In the diustrter of 2007, certain minority shareholders thaeived
€66.99 per share as fair cash compensation alsbdilard proceedings challenging the amount thesived as fai
cash compensation.

The Company received applications for the commeecewf award proceedings filed by 79 shareholdgesnast
the Purchaser with the Frankfurt District Courtuesting the court to set a higher amount for theeBge-Out
compensation. The motions are based on variougeallshortcomings and mistakes in the valuationedfiese
GmbH done for purposes of the Squeeze-Out. On Magd07, the court of first instance appointed @wmn
representative for those shareholders that havéledtan application on their own.

Should the court set a higher value for the Squéarecompensation, former Celanese GmbH sharetsldieo
ceased to be shareholders of Celanese GmbH dhe Squeez®ut are entitled, pursuant to a settlement agree
between the Purchaser and certain former CelanegdH&Ghareholders, to claim for their shares thadnigf the
compensation amounts determined by the court methéferent proceedings. Payments these sharebatteady
received as compensation for their shares willflsebso that those shareholders who ceased tbarellders of
Celanese GmbH due to the Squeeze-Out are nokertiitimore than the higher of the amount set invtloecourt
proceedings.

Guarantees

The Company has agreed to guarantee or indemiiity glarties for environmental and other liabilit@srsuant to a
variety of agreements, including asset and busidiesstiture agreements, leases, settlement agresmmed variou
agreements with affiliated companies. Although mahthese obligations contain monetary and/or timéations,
others do not provide such limitations.

As indemnification obligations often depend on dleseurrence of unpredictable future events, theréutwsts
associated with them cannot be determined atithis t

The Company has accrued for all probable and redsypestimable losses associated with all knowrterabr
claims that have been brought to its attention s€Henown obligations include the following:
» Demerger Obligations

The Company has obligations to indemnify Hoechsd, its legal successors, for various liabilitiegl@inthe
Demerger Agreement, including for environmentabiliies associated with contamination arising untie
divestiture agreements entered into by Hoechst pithe demerger.

The Company’s obligation to indemnify Hoechst, #sdegal successors, is subject to the followhrgsholds:

e The Company will indemnify Hoechst, and itgdésuccessors, against those liabilities up t@€ablion;
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» Hoechst, and its legal successors, will bieasé liabilities exceeding €250 million, howevez tBompany will
reimburse Hoechst, and its legal successors, feitlond of those liabilities for amounts that ex¢&¥50 million in
the aggregate.

The aggregate maximum amount of environmental imdiérations under the remaining divestiture agreets¢hat
provide for monetary limits is approximately €75@lion. Three of the divestiture agreements do pratvide for
monetary limits.

Based on the estimate of the probability of losdaurthis indemnification, the Company had reseofe&32 million
and $27 million as of December 31, 2009 and 20&ectively, for this contingency. Where the Conyparnunable
to reasonably determine the probability of losesiimate such loss under an indemnification, thea@my has not
recognized any related liabilities.

The Company has also undertaken in the Demergexehgent to indemnify Hoechst and its legal succedsor
liabilities that Hoechst is required to discharige|uding tax liabilities, which are associatedwitusinesses that
were included in the demerger but were not demedgedo legal restrictions on the transfers of Sterns. These
indemnities do not provide for any monetary or tiingtations. The Company has not provided for eegerves
associated with this indemnification as it is nagl@ble or estimable. The Company has not mad@aymyents to
Hoechst or its legal successors during the yeatsdeBecember 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively,ninection witk
this indemnification.

« Divestiture Obligations

The Company and its predecessor companies agréedetmnify third-party purchasers of former bussesand
assets for various pre-closing conditions, as a&flor breaches of representations, warrantiesavehants. Such
liabilities also include environmental liabilityrgrluct liability, antitrust and other liabilitie¥hese indemnifications
and guarantees represent standard contractual #ssosiated with typical divestiture agreements atiter than
environmental liabilities, the Company does noteéya that they expose the Company to any signifidak. As of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company has raserttee aggregate of $32 million and $33 million,
respectively, for these matters.

The Company has divested numerous businessestrivergs and facilities through agreements containing
indemnifications or guarantees to the purchasesnyMf the obligations contain monetary and/or tinétations,
ranging from one year to thirty years. The aggregabount of guarantees provided for under thesseaggnts is
approximately $1.9 billion as of December 31, 20Dther agreements do not provide for any monetatyre
limitations.

Purchase Obligation:

In the normal course of business, the Company &t commitments to purchase goods and servioesafixed
period of time. The Company maintains a numbettaifé-or-pay” contracts for purchases of raw maleaad
utilities. As of December 31, 2009, there were tanding future commitments of $1,626 million under
take-or-pay contracts. The Company recognized $iliomof losses related to take-or-pay contractrimation
costs for the year ended December 31, 2009 refaté: Company’s Pardies, France Project of Clo@ee

Note 18). The Company does not expect to incumaaterial losses undtake-or-pay contractual arrangements
unrelated to the Pardies, France Project of Clofaditionally, as of December 31, 2009, there watheer
outstanding commitments of $713 million represemtimintenance and service agreements, energy #ityd ut
agreements, consulting contracts and software agmets.
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25. Supplemental Cash Flow Information
The following table represents supplemental cash fhformation for cash and non-cash activities:

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions)
Taxes, net of refunc 13 9t 18:
Interest, net of amounts capitaliz 20¢ 25¢ 414
Noncash investing and financing activit
Fair value adjustment to securities available &de snet of tas ©)] (25) 17
Capital lease obligatior 38 10z 80
Accrued capital expenditur 9) (7 18
Asset retirement obligatior 30 8 4
Accrued Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocation ci 22 17 19

1) Amount includes premiums paid on early redemptibdebt and related issuance costs, net of amounts
capitalized, of $217 million for the year ended Beber 31, 2007

26.Business and Geographical Segmen
Business Segmen

The Company operates through the following busisegsnents:

» Advanced Engineered Materials

The Company’s Advanced Engineered Materials seguherelops, produces and supplies a broad portbbliagh
performance technical polymers for applicationutoaotive and electronics products as well as atbesumer an
industrial applications. The Company and its sgiataffiliates are a leading participant in thetgdbtechnical
polymers industry. The primary products of Advan&adjineered Materials are used in a broad rangeocafucts
including automotive components, electronics, ales, industrial applications, battery separatansyeyor belts,
filtration equipment, coatings, medical devicescéiical and electronics.

» Consumer Specialties

The Company’s Consumer Specialties segment corditie Acetate Products and Nutrinova businesdes.
Acetate Products business primarily produces apgli&s acetate tow, which is used in the produatibfilter
products. The Company also produces acetate flakehvis processed into acetate fiber in the forra tdw band.
The Company’ Nutrinova business produces and Selftt® , a high intensity sweetener, and food protection
ingredients, such as sorbates, for the food, bgeesiad pharmaceuticals industries.

* Industrial Specialties

The Company’s Industrial Specialties segment inetuthe Emulsions, PVOH and EVA Performance Polymers
businesses. The Company’s Emulsions businesslibaldeader which produces a broad product paaifol
specializing in vinyl acetate ethylene emulsiomg] & a recognized authority on low VOC (volatikganic
compounds), an environmentally-friendly technolof§g.a global leader, the Compasy?VOH business produce
broad portfolio of performance PVOH chemicals epgited to meet specific customer requirements. The
Company’s emulsions and PVOH products are usedniitl@ array of applications including paints andtiags,
adhesives, building and construction, glass fitextjles and paper. EVA Performance Polymers offiecemplete
line of low-density polyethylene and specialty é¢ime vinyl acetate resins and compounds. EVA Perdnice
Polymers’ products are used in many applicationkuiding flexible packaging films, lamination filnrgducts, hot
melt adhesives, medical tubing and devices, automotrpet and solar cell encapsulation films.

In July 2009, the Company completed the sale ??MOH business to Sekisui (Note 4).
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* Acetyl Intermediates

The Company’s Acetyl Intermediates segment prodaodssupplies acetyl products, including acetid a¢iAM,
acetic anhydride and acetate esters. These proagctgenerally used as starting materials for el paints,
adhesives, coatings, medicines and more. OtherichEnproduced in this business segment are orgahients
and intermediates for pharmaceutical, agricultarad chemical products.

» Other Activities

Other Activities primarily consists of corporatenter costs, including financing and administrathetivities such as
legal, accounting and treasury functions and istareeome or expense associated with financingiéies of the
Company, and the captive insurance companies.

The business segment management reporting andbimgisystems are based on the same accountingjgsoas
those described in the summary of significant anting policies in Note 2. The Company evaluatesqoarance
based on operating profit, net earnings (lossh flasvs and other measures of financial performaeperted in
accordance with US GAAP.

Sales and revenues related to transactions betwesgmess segments are generally recorded at viilaes
approximate third-party selling prices.

Advanced

Engineerec Consumer Industrial Acetyl Other

Materials Specialties Specialtie: Intermediates Activities
(In $ millions)

Eliminations Consolidatec

Year ended December 31, 2C

Net sales 80¢ 1,0841) 97¢ 2,600 z (389 5,08:
Other (charges) gains, r 18) 9) 4 (91) 22 ® — (13€)
Equity in net earnings (loss) of

affiliates 27 1 — 5 15 — 48
Earnings (loss) from continuing

operations before te 62 28¢ 89 144 (342 — 241
Depreciation and amortizatic 73 50 51 12z 11 — 30¢
Capital expenditure 27 50 45 36 9 — 1672
Goodwill and intangible asse 38t 29¢ 62 34¢ — — 1,09z
Total asset 2,211 1,08: 74C 1,98¢ 2,39( — 8,41(
Year ended December 31, 2C
Net sales 1,061 1,15¢ 1,40¢ 3,8751) 2 (676€) 6,82:
Other (charges) gains, r (29 2 ?3) (78) 4 — (10¢)
Equity in net earnings (loss)

affiliates 37 — — 3 14 — 54
Earnings (loss) from continuing

operations before te 69 237 47 434 (359 — 434
Depreciation and amortizatic 76 53 62 15C 9 — 35C
Capital expenditure 55 49 67 86 10 — 2672
Goodwill and intangible asse 39¢ 30¢ 73 365 — — 1,143
Total asset 1,867 99t 90¢ 2,197 1,20¢ — 7,16¢

@ Includes $389 million, $676 million and $660 miliof intersegment sales eliminated in consolidatosrthe
years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 ctasghe.

@ Excludes expenditures related to the relocatiath@fCompany’s Ticona plant in Kelsterbach (Note &%)
includes a decrease in accrued capital expendiofr®8 million and $7 million for the years endedd@mber 3.
2009 and 2008, respectively (see Note

® Includes $10 million of insurance recoveries reedifrom the Company’s captive insurance compamiasad
to the Edmonton, Alberta, Canada facility that @tiates in consolidatior
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Advanced

Engineerec Consumer Industrial Acetyl Other

Materials Specialtie: Specialtie: Intermediates Activities Eliminations Consolidatec
(In $ millions)

Year ended December 31, 2C

Net sales 1,03( 1,111 1,34¢ 3,611 2 (660) 6,444
Other (charges) gains, r 4 4) (23 72 (99 ® — (58)
Equity in net earnings (loss) of

affiliates 55 3 — 6 18 — 82
Earnings (loss) from continuing

operations before te 18¢ 23t 28 694 (699) — 447
Depreciation and amortizatic 69 51 58 10¢€ 6 — 291
Capital expenditure 59 43 63 13C 11 — 30€@

@ Includes $389 million, $676 million and $660 milio@f intersegment sales eliminated in consolidatorrihe
years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 ctasghe.

@ Excludes expenditures related to the relocatiath@fCompany’s Ticona plant in Kelsterbach (Note &%)
includes a decrease in accrued capital expenditdr®3 million and $7 million for the years endedd@mber 3:
2009 and 2008, respectively (see Note

®) Includes $35 million of insurance recoveries reedifrom the Company’s captive insurance compaiesed
to the Clear Lake, Texas facility (Note 30) tham@hates in consolidatior

Geographical Segments

Revenues and noncurrent assets are presenteddraiezllocation of the business. The following ¢égtlesents net
sales based on the geographic location of the Coy'péacilities:

Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions)

Net sales
us 1,26: 1,71¢ 1,75¢
Internationa 3,82( 5,104 4,69(
Total 5,082 6,82: 6,44¢
Significant international net sales sources incl
Germany 1,73 2,46¢ 2,34¢
China 46( 398 182
Singapore 513 783 762
Belgium 45¢ 47¢€ 29t
Canade 17:¢ 27¢€ 26¢€
Mexico 277 391 34¢
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The following table presents property, plant andigapent, net based on the geographic locationeftbmpany’s
facilities:

As of December 31,
2009 2008
(In $ millions)

Property, plant and equipment, |

63 73

Internationa 2,163 1,73
Total 2,791 2,47(

Significant international property, plant and equént, net sources inclus

Germany 1,07t 682
China 51€ 492
Singapore 98 111
Belgium 27 24
Canade 131 117
Mexico 10z 10t

27.Transactions and Relationships with Affiliates andRelated Parties

The Company is a party to various transactions affitiated companies. Entities in which the Compéias an
investment accounted for under the cost or equéthod of accounting, are considered affiliates; magsactions ¢
balances with such companies are considered #dfiliansactions. The following table representsGbmpany’s
transactions with affiliates for the periods prdsdn

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
(In $ millions)
Purchases from affiliate)(2) 14 14 12
Sales to affiliate® 6 36 12¢
Interest income from affiliate 1 2 1
Interest expense to affiliat 1 9 7

(1) Purchases and sales from/to affiliates are accduoteat prices which, in the opinion of the Compan
approximate those charged to tl-party customers for similar goods or servic

@ Primarily includes utilities and services purchafed InfraServ Hoechs
Refer to Note 8 for additional information relateddividends received from affiliates.
The following table represents the Company’s badanwith affiliates for the periods presented:

As of December 31
2009 2008
(In $ millions)

Trade and other receivables from affilia — 8
Current notes receivable (including interest) fraffiliates 12 9
Noncurrent notes receivable (including interesijrfraffiliates 7 _ 9
Total receivables from affiliate 18 _ 26
Accounts payable and other liabilities due affédis 15 18
Shor-term borrowings from affiliate 85 102
Total due affiliates 10C 121

The Company has agreements with certain affiligggmarily InfraServ entities, whereby excess &f# cash is lel
to and managed by the Company, at variable inteatss governed by those agreements.
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For the year ended 2007, the Company made payretite Advisor of $7 million in accordance with thgonsor
services agreement dated January 26, 2005, as athefttese payments were related to the sale axh@roducts
and derivatives businesses and the acquisitionRif (Note 4).

28.Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
(In $ millions, except for share and per share dafe

Amounts attributable to Celanese

Corporation
Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic 484 484 372 372 33¢ 33¢€
Earnings (loss) from discontinued
operations 4 4 (90) (90) 90 90
Net earnings (loss 48¢ 48¢ 282 282 42¢ 42¢
Less: cumulative preferred sto
dividend (10) — (10 — (10) —
Net earnings (loss) available to comn
shareholder 47¢ 48¢ 272 282 41€ 42€
Weighted average shar— basic 143,688,74 143,688,74 148,350,27 148,350,27 154,475,02 154,475,02
Dilutive stock option: 1,167,92; 2,559,26:i 4,344,64.
Dilutive restricted stock unil 172,24t 504,43¢ 362,13(
Assumed conversion of preferred st 12,086,60 12,057,89 12,046,20
Weighted average shar— diluted 143,688,74 157,11552 148,350,27 163,471,87 154,475,02 171,227,99
Per shar
Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic 3.3C 3.0¢ 2.44 2.2¢ 2.11 1.9¢
Earnings (loss) from discontinued
operations 0.0 0.0 (0.61) (0.55) 0.5¢ 0.52
Net earnings (loss 3.32 3.11 1.8: 1.7 2.6¢ 2.4¢

The following securities were not included in themputation of diluted net earnings per share as dfiect would
have been antidilutive:

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Stock options 2,433,51 2,298,15 336,13
Restricted stock unit 302,63! 90,62 —
Total 2,736,15I 2,388,78: 336,13

29.Ticona Kelsterbach Plant Relocatior

In November 2006, the Company finalized a settldragreement with the Frankfurt, Germany, Airpofréport”)
to relocate the Kelsterbach, Germany Ticona busijniesluded in the Advanced Engineered Materiadgsrsnt,
resolving several years of legal disputes reladetie planned Fraport expansion. As a result osdtéement, the
Company will transition Ticona’s operations fromlgterbach to the Hoechst Industrial Park in thenRiMain area
in Germany by mid-2011. Under the original agreemEraport agreed to pay Ticona a total of €670iomlover a
five-year period to offset the costs associateti tie transition of the business from its currexttion and the
closure of the Kelsterbach plant. In February 2@88,Company announced the Fraport supervisorydbaaproved
the acceleration of the 2009 and 2010 payment2@® €énillion and €140 million, respectively, requirky the
settlement agreement signed in June 2007. In FabR®9, the Company received a
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discounted amount of €322 million ($412 million)den this agreement. In addition, the Company reckiv

€59 million ($75 million) in value-added tax fromdgrort which was remitted to the tax authoritiegpril 2009. In
June 2008, the Company received €200 million ($8ilflon) from Fraport under this agreement. Amourgseived
from Fraport are accounted for as deferred procardsre included in noncurrent Other liabilitiegtie
consolidated balance sheets.

Below is a summary of the financial statement impasociated with the Ticona Kelsterbach plantcagion:

Total From

Year Ended
December 31, Inception Through
2009 2008 December 31, 20C

(In $ millions)

Proceeds received from Frap 410 31 74¢
Costs expense 16 12 33
Costs capitalize 37z 20z 61€

(@ Includes increase in accrued capital expendituf&2® million and $17 million for the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectiv

30.Insurance Recoveries

In May 2007, the Company announced that it hadrmtamned outage at its Clear Lake, Texas acetitfacility.
At that time, the Company originally expected tlhwage to last until the end of May. Upon restaithef facility,
additional operating issues were identified whielessitated an extension of the outage for furthere extensive
repairs. In July 2007, the Company announced beafurther repairs were unsuccessful on restahetinit. All
repairs were completed in early August 2007 andnabproduction capacity resumed. During the yeaded
December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company recordedilén and $38 million, respectively, of insuranc
recoveries from its reinsurers in partial satistacof claims that the Company made based on lagsedting from
the outage. These insurances recoveries are irttlnd@ther (charges) gains, net in the consolidatatements of
operations (Note 18).

In October 2008, the Company declared force majenriés specialty polymers products produced &Ets\
Performance Polymers facility in Edmonton, Albe@anada as a result of certain events and subsecgssation
of production. The Company replaced damaged loregtlassets during 2009. Any contingent liabiliagsociated
with the outage may be mitigated by the Compamgsiiance policies.

31.Subsequent Event:

On January 5, 2010, the Company declared a cagtediy of $0.265625 per share on its Preferred Stontunting
to $3 million and a cash dividend of $0.04 per shanr its Series A common stock amounting to $6ionilIBoth
cash dividends are for the period from Novemb&Q®9 to January 31, 2010 and were paid on Febij&2910 to
holders of record as of January 15, 2010.

On February 1, 2010, the Company announced it welgict to redeem all of the Company’s 9,600,008tantding
shares of its Preferred Stock on February 22, ZIRédemption Date”). On that date, each of the é&trefl Stock
will be redeemed for a number of shares of the Gomis Series A common stock equal to the redemggiae
($25.06) divided by 97.5% of the average closirigepof the Company’s Series A common stock forit@erading
days ending on the fifth trading day prior to Felyyu22, 2010.

Holders of the Preferred Stock also have the tiglebnvert their shares at any time prior to 5:00.pNew York
City time, on February 19, 2010, the business dayédiately preceding the Redemption Date. Holddms want tc
convert their shares of Preferred Stock must gagifof the requirements as defined in the Cedife of
Designations prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City tinie order to effect conversion of their share®oéferred Stock.
Each share of Preferred Stock is convertible inB600 shares of the Company’s Series A common ssutkect to
adjustment under certain circumstances as setifottite Certificates of Designations.

Subsequent events have been evaluated througlathefdssuance, February 12, 2010.
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibits will be furnished upon request for a noatifee, limited to reasonable expenses.

Exhibit
Number

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.4(a)

10.4(b)

10.5

10.5(a)

Description

Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incatfwor (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-Kdiwith the SEC on January 28,
2005).

Third Amended and Restated By-laws, effective a@atbber 23, 2008 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Reporform 8-K filed with the SEC on
October 29, 2008

Certificate of Designations of 4.25% Convertiblegegual Preferred Stock
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to ther€nt Report on Form 8-filed with
the SEC on January 28, 200

Form of certificate of Series A Common Stock (immmated by reference to Exhibit
4.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Rde333-120187) filed with the
SEC on January 13, 200!

Form of certificate of 4.25% Convertible Perpetletferred Stock (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registration Statetron Form S-1 (File No. 333-
120187) filed with the SEC on January 13, 20

Credit Agreement, dated April 2, 2007, among Cdlandoldings LLC, Celanese US
Holdings LLC, the subsidiaries of Celanese US HadiLLC from time to time part
thereto as borrowers, the Lenders party theretatdebe Bank AG, New York
Branch, as administrative agent and as collatgmaht Merrill Lynch Capital
Corporation as syndication agent, ABN AMRO Bank N Bank of America, N.A.,
Citibank NA, and JP Morgan Chase Bank NA, as caidmntation agents
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to ther€nt Report on Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on April 5, 2007

First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated June309, among Celanese US
Holdings LLC and the Majority Lenders under the Blging Facility (incorporated
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current ReporfFomm 8-K filed with the SEC on
July 1, 2009)

Guarantee and Collateral Agreement, dated Ap20B,7, by and among Celanese
Holdings LLC, Celanese US Holdings LLC, certainsdiaries of Celanese US
Holdings LLC and Deutsche Bank AG, New York Bralicttorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8HiEd with the SEC on April 5,
2007).

Celanese Corporation 2004 Deferred Compensatian(ifleorporated by reference
Exhibit 10.21 to the Registration Statement on F8rh (File No. 333-120187) filed
with the SEC on January 3, 200

Amendment to Celanese Corporation 2004 Deferredpg@osation Plan (incorporat
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Reporform 8-K filed with the SEC on
April 3, 2007).

Form of 2007 Deferral Agreement between Celanespdzation and award recipiel
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to theré€nt Report on Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on April 3, 2007

Celanese Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive Plarofparated by reference to Exhibit
10.7 to the Current Report on Fori-K filed with the SEC on January 28, 200

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (forpayees) between Celanese
Corporation and award recipient (incorporated gremce to Exhibit 10.5 to the
Current Report on Formr-K filed with the SEC on January 28, 200
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10.5(b)*

10.5(c)

10.5(d)

10.5(e)

10.5(f)

10.5(g)

10.5(h)

10.5(i)

10.6

10.6(a)

10.7

10.7(a)

10.7(b)

10.7(c)

Form of Amendment to Nonqualified Stock Option Agmeent (for employees)
between Celanese Corporation and award recig

Form of Amendment Two to Nonqualified Stock Optidgreement (for executive
officers) between Celanese Corporation and awaigient (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current ReporfFormm 8-K filed with the SEC on
January 26, 2009

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (fonremployee directors) between
Celanese Corporation and award recipient (incotpdrby reference to Exhibit 10.6
to the Current Report on Forr-K filed with the SEC on January 28, 200

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unieagrent between Celanese
Corporation and award recipient (incorporated bgremce to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Current Report on Formr-K filed with the SEC on April 3, 2007

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (for nonpéogee directors) between
Celanese Corporation and award recipient (incotpdrhy reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Quarterly Report on Form-Q filed on July 27, 2007

Form of Performance-Vesting Restricted Stock Unita#dd Agreement between
Celanese Corporation and award recipient, togetitbra schedule identifying
substantially identical agreements between Cela@esgoration and each of its
executive officers identified thereon (incorporalsdreference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Current Report on Formr-K filed with the SEC on January 26, 200

Performance Unit Award Agreement, dated DecembgePQQ8, between Celanese
Corporation and David N. Weidman (incorporated éfgrence to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Current Report on Formr-K filed with the SEC on January 26, 200

Form of Time-Vesting Cash Award Agreement (for eoyples) between Celanese
Corporation and award recipient, together withteesltle identifying substantially
identical agreements between the Company and datshexecutive officers
identified thereon (incorporated by reference thigit 10.3 to the Current Report on
Form &K filed with the SEC on January 26, 200

Celanese Corporation 2008 Deferred Compensatian(Rleorporated by reference
Exhibit 10.6 to the Annual Report on Formr-K filed on February 29, 2008

Amendment Number One to Celanese Corporation 2@98ri2d Compensation Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to tlegRtration Statement on Form S-8
filed with the SEC on April 23, 2009

Celanese Corporation 2009 Global Incentive Placofiporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.4 to the Registration Statement on For®ffed with the SEC on April 23,
20009).

Form of Time-Vesting Restricted Stock Unit Awardragment between Celanese
Corporation and award recipient (incorporated bgremce to Exhibit 10.5 to the
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed with the SEC on July 29, 200!

Form of Performance-Vesting Restricted Stock Unita#d Agreement between
Celanese Corporation and award recipient, togetitbra schedule identifying
substantially identical agreements between Cela@esgoration and each of its
executive officers identified thereon (incorporabgdreference to Exhibit 10.6 to the
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed with the SEC on July 29, 200!

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreemeptween Celanese Corporation
and award recipient, together with a schedule ifiémg substantially identical
agreements between Celanese Corporation and ed#stegécutive officers identified
thereon (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.the Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q filed with the SEC on July 29, 200!
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10.7(d)

10.7(e)

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13*

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19*

10.20

Form of Long-Term Incentive Cash Award Agreemengether with a schedule
identifying substantially identical agreements kegw the Company and each of its
executive officers identified thereon (incorporabgdreference to Exhibit 10.8 to the
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed with the SEC on July 29, 200!

Time-Vesting Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, daigdil 23, 2009, between
Celanese Corporation and Gjon N. Nivica, Jr. (ipooated by reference to Exhibit
10.10 to the Quarterly Report on Formr-Q filed with the SEC on July 29, 200!

Celanese Corporation 2009 Employee Stock Purchaggdn (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Registration Staenhon Form S-8 filed on April 23,
20009).

Summary of pension benefits for David N. Weidmantdrporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.34 to the Annual Report on Formr-K filed on March 31, 2005

Offer Letter Agreement, dated June 27, 2007, batv@gdanese Corporation and
Sandra Beach Lin (incorporated by reference to likhD.3 to the Quarterly Report
on Form 1-Q filed with the SEC on July 27, 200’

Compensation Letter Agreement, dated March 27, 2@®%een Celanese
Corporation and Jim Alder (incorporated by refeeetaExhibit 10.31 to the Annual
Report on Form 1-K filed with the SEC on February 29, 20

Offer Letter, dated February 25, 2009, between @sa Corporation and Gjon N.
Nivica, Jr. (incorporated by reference to Exhitfita to the Quarterly Report on Fo
10-Q filed with the SEC on April 28, 200¢

Offer Letter, dated November 18, 2009, betweenizsa Corporation and Jacquelyn
Wolf.

Agreement and General Release, dated March 28, p@dBeen Celanese
Corporation and William P. Antonace (incorporabgdreference to Exhibit 10.4 to t
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed with the SEC on October 22, 200

Agreement and General Release, dated Septemb20@3, between Celanese
Corporation and Curtis S. Shaw (incorporated bgregfce to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed with the SEC on October 22, 200

Agreement and General Release, dated March 5, ped®een Celanese Corporation
and John J. Gallagher, Il (incorporated by refeesto Exhibit 10.1 to the Current
Report on Form-K filed with the SEC on March 5, 200¢

Restated Agreement and General Release, dated®,J2089, between Celanese
Corporation and Miguel A. Desdin (incorporated bference to Exhibit 10.9 to the
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed with the SEC on July 29, 200!

Agreement and General Release, dated August 3, P@88een Celanese Corporal
and John A. O’'Dwyer (incorporated by reference xaigit 10.1 to the Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q filed with the SEC on October 27, 200

Agreement and General Release, dated Novembef@8, Between Celanese
Corporation and Michael L. Summers (filed herewi

Change in Control Agreement, dated April 1, 20@8ween Celanese Corporation
David N. Weidman, together with a schedule idemyother substantially identical
agreements between Celanese Corporation and e#simafme executive officers
identified thereon and identifying the materiafeiiences between each of those
agreements and the filed Changed of Control Agre¢iiiiecorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on For-K filed on April 7, 2008)
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10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26t

10.26(a)

10.26(b)

21.1*
23.1*

31.1*

31.2*

32.1*

Change in Control Agreement, dated April 1, 2008veen Celanese Corporation and
Sandra Beach Lin, together with a schedule ideintifpther substantially identical
agreements between Celanese Corporation and e#stesécutive officers identified
thereon and identifying the material differenceseen each of those agreements
the filed Change of Control Agreement (incorporaigdeference to Exhibit 10.2 to
the Quarterly Report on Form-Q filed with the SEC on April 23, 200¢

Change in Control Agreement, dated May 1, 2008véen Celanese Corporation and
Christopher W. Jensen (incorporated by referen&extobit 10.1 to the Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q filed with the SEC on July 23, 200

Form of Long-Term Incentive Claw-Back Agreementietn Celanese Corporation
and award recipient (incorporated by referencexuaitiit 10.1 to the Current Report
on Form &K filed with the SEC on January 26, 200

Share Purchase and Transfer Agreement and Settié@gesement, dated August 19,
2005 between Celanese Europe Holding GmbH & Co. &Furchaser, and Paulson
& Co. Inc., and Arnhold and S. Bleichroeder AdvisdrLC, each on behalf of its ov
and with respect to shares owned by the investfoeds and separate accounts
managed by it, as the sellers (incorporated byeafe to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current
Report on Form-K filed on August 19, 2005

Translation of Letter of Intent, dated November 2806, among Celanese AG,
Ticona GmbH and Fraport AG (incorporated by refeesto Exhibit 99.2 to the
Current Report on Formr-K filed November 29, 2006

Purchase Agreement dated as of December 12, 2086cbgmong Celanese Ltd. and
certain of its affiliates named therein and Advesb (Cayman) Limited, Oxo Titan
US Corporation, Drachenfelssee 520. V V GMBH anddbenfelssee 521. V V
GMBH (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2%He Annual Report of Form 10-
K filed on February 21, 2007

First Amendment to Purchase Agreement dated Feb2A#r2007, by and among
Advent Oxea Cayman Ltd., Oxea Corporation, Dracklsaée 520. V V GmbH,
Drachenfelssee 521. V V GmbH, Celanese Ltd., Tiddolgmers Inc. and Celanese
Chemicals Europe GmbH (incorporated by referendextubit 10.6 to the Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q filed on May 9, 2007

Second Amendment to Purchase Agreement effectieé &gy 1, 2007 by and amo
Advent Oxea Cayman Ltd., Oxea Corporation, Oxealligs GmbH, Oxea
Deutschland GmbH, Oxea Bishop, LLC, Oxea Japan®kga UK Ltd., Celanese
Ltd., and Celanese Chemicals Europe GmbH (incotpdray reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Quarterly Report on Form-Q filed with the SEC on October 24, 200

List of subsidiaries of Celanese Corporal

Report on Financial Statement Schedule and Comnééntlependent Registered
Public Accounting Firm, KPMG LLI

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuamnt $ection 302 of the Sarban@siey
Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 200z
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32.2*

99.1*
101.INS
101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

* Filed herewith

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuamnt $ection 906 of the Sarban@siey
Act of 2002

Financial Statement schedule regarding Valuatiah@ualifying Account
XBRL Instance Documer

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

t Portions of this exhibit have been ondifpeirsuant to a request for confidential treatnfiged with the SEC
under Rule 24b-2 of the Securities Exchange Adi9if34, as amended. The omitted portions of thishéxave
been separately filed with the SEC.
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Exhibit 10.5(b

AMENDMENT TO NONQUALIFIED
STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT TO NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AGREEMHT is effective as of April 2,
2007, between Celanese Corporation (the “Compaaryd) (the
“Participant”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Company and the Participant have edtieto a Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement,
effective as of January 21, 2005 (the “Agreememtliysuant to which the Participant was granted ptio©
pursuant to the Celanese Corporation Deferred Cosgtion Plan, as from time to time amended (tharfBj and

WHEREAS, the Committee has determined that it wingldn the best interests of the Company and its
stockholders for the Agreement to be amended imicerespects.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideratibe receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,
the parties agree as follows:

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined leshiall have the meanings ascribed to such
terms in the Agreement for the Plan, as the casebma

2. Amendments to Agreement

(&) Section 4(a)(i) of the Agreement is heralnended in its entirety to read as follows:

0] Termination by the Company without cause, Termaraby the Participant with Go
Reason or Termination Due to Death, Disability etifRment. If the Participant’s
Employment with the Company and its Affiliatesasrminated (A) by the Company
without Cause, (B) by the Participant with Good staaor (C) due to the Participasit’
death, Disability or Retirement, the Participantyreaercise

(x) the Vested Portion of the Time Option for a peswodiing on the earlier of (1) the
later of (1) December 31 of the calendar year iictvifalls the first anniversary of
the date of such termination or (2) theti8lay of the third month immediately
following the month in which falls the first annigary of the date of such
termination and (ll) the Expiration Date; a

) the Vested Portion of Performance Option for ageeending on the earlier of
() the latest of (1) December 31 of the calendsaryin which falls the first
anniversary of the date of such termination, (2)1Bth day of the third month
immediately following the month in which falls tfiest anniversary of the date of
such termination and (3) 90 days following the dhtetotal Vested Portion of such
Performance Option is determined and (Il) the Eatn Date; ani

(b) Section 4(a)(ii) of the Agreement is hergloyended in its entirety to read as follows:

(i) Termination by the Participant without Good Readbthe Participant’'s Employment
with the Company and its Affiliates is terminatedthe Participant without Good
Reason, the Participant may exercise the VesteibRaf an Option for a period
ending on the earlier of (A) 90 days following tegte of such termination and (B) the
Expiration Date; provided, however, that if theadat such termination is on or after
December 31, 2010, then the Participant may exethis Vested Portion of an Opti
for a period ending on the earlier of () the latéf1) December 31 of the calendar
year in which falls the 9th day following the date of such termination or {2 15t
day of the third month following the month in whitalls the 90" day following the
date of such termination and (1) the Expiration&and




3. Agreement Remains In EffecExcept as modified hereby, the Agreement skeaflain in full force and
effect.

* % % % %

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been execatel delivered by the parties hereto.

CELANESE CORPORATION

Agreed to this day of
, 2007

[Name]



) Celanese Exhibit 10.1:

November 18, 200

Personal & Confidential

Ms. Jacquelyn Wolf
[Redacted]

Dear Jacquelyn:

On behalf of Celanese, | am pleased to confirmodfier for the position of Senior Vice President,rian
Resources. Your position will be based at our Caf@Headquarters located in Dallas, Texas andwibbe
reporting directly to David Weidman, Chairman artdef Executive Officer. We anticipate your startedavill be or
or before December 14, 2009.

Following is an outline of the compensation packagehave developed for you.

Base Salary
Your base salary will be $400,000 per year and lvalpayable on a bi-weekly basis in accordance tivith

Company’s normal payroll practice.

Annual Bonus

Your annual bonus opportunity at target will be 76@4our annual salary (the “Target”), with a “Stie”
opportunity of up to 140% of your annual salary u¥aill be eligible for a performance bonus oppoityieach year
according to the terms of annual bonus plan, wharhprises a number of financial and non-financiahsures that,
combined with your personal performance, determpoe actual bonus payout. Current individual perfance
modifiers also allow for an additional adjustmeatween 0% and 200% of your calculated bonus pagpoflect
your individual performance relative to your annaljectives. You must be employed by Celaneseestitine suct
payments are made in order to remain eligible ¢teive any bonus payout.

Sign-on Bonus
You will receive a one-time payment in the amour$200,000, less applicable deductions,, as a SigBonus

which will be payable to you with the first payrelfcle after your start date. Should you volunyaeihd your
employment with Celanese for any reason within ¢&)oyears of your start date, Celanese reservesgheto seek
a prorated repayment for this Sign-on Bonus.

Sign-on Equity Awards

You will receive a sign-on award of 17,500 Time+uss Restricted Stock units (Sign-on RSU Award) uyY &ign-
on RSU Award will vest as to 20% of the units ortgber 1, 2010, 30% of the units on October 1, 2G0% of the
units on October 1, 2012 and the remaining 20%®funits on October 1, 2013, subject to the temascanditions
of the Plan and your award agreements.

You will also receive a sign-on award of 30,000 Mualified Stock Options (Sign-on Stock Option AdjarYour
Sign-on Stock Option Award will vest as to 20% of theiops on October 1, 2010, 30% of the options oroBet 1
2011, 30% of the options on October 1, 2012 andahm®ining 20% of the options on October 1, 20LBjexct to
the terms and conditions of the Plan and your avagrdements. Your Sign-on Stock Option Award wéivé a
seven (7) year term.

Long-Term Incentive Awards

Celanese delivers Long-Term Incentive (LTI) compgios through annual grants of Performanesting Restricte
Stock Units (Performance RSU Award) and time-vesRSU awards. Annual LTI awards are planned to oicu
the fourth quarter of each calendar year and asecban a combination of contribution, individuatfpemance, and
market levels of long-term incentive compensative.

Upon joining Celanese, we will grant to you a “&tfgaward of 7,500 Performance RSUs. The Perform&gU
Award will vest in October 2012, where the actuadniber of Performance RSUs that vest may be maessithan
your target award based on the Comy's achievement of specific metrics/goals measurext a defined
performance period. Complete details of this awsitllbe included in your award agreeme




The complete terms of your Sign-on RSU, Sign-ortiSoption and Performance RSU Awards will be deteeth
on the grant date, which will be the later of & tihate your awards are presented and approvecydimpensation
Committee of the Celanese Board of Directors oyai)r first day of employment. Your Sign-on RSUgision
Stock Option and Performance RSU Awards will eaelgtanted pursuant to the Celanese 2009 Globahtivee
Plan and you will be required to sign appropriata@ agreements and the Celanese LTI Claw-bacleagget in
order to receive these awards. In order to remaibke to receive these awards, you must be algtigmployed by
Celanese at the time awards are granted

Stock Ownership Guidelines

In order to align our executives’ interests witbshk of our shareholders, Celanese expects seadereto maintain
equity ownership in the Company commensurate waighr fposition. We established a stock ownershipgine
equal to three (3) times your annual base salaryduor salary level (SL02) and you will have fiv8 ffears to meet
the guideline. Our stock ownership Guidelines idelthe value of any unvested RSU awards grantgdu@s well
as any Celanese stock that you beneficial ownarvérious Company and individual accounts. Detdithis
program will be provided upon acceptance of thipleyment offer.

Employee Benefits
During your employment, you will be eligible to gaipate in the Company’s employee benefit plansffact from
time to time, on the same basis as those benefitgemerally made available to other employeeb@ftompany.

We offer comprehensive medical and dental coverammpany paid group term life insurance and accaleteath
and dismemberment (AD&D) insurance (each equalttmés your annual base salary), a cash balanc@qreplan
to which the company currently allocates 5% ofiblggpay and 401(k) plan that currently matches% @ the first
5% of eligible employee contributions.

Executive Benefits

You are also eligible to participate in the CelanAsnual Executive Cash Perquisite Allowance progwehere you
will receive an allowance in the amount of $15,0@8s applicable deductions) for your salary l1é&12), which is
payable each year in January.

Additionally, you will be eligible to participate ithe Celanese Annual Executive Physical Progratndmg the
annual physical with the Baylor Personal Edge mogrYou will also be eligible to receive the BioBloal 250
blood screen every 5 years.

Relocation Assistance

Celanese will assist in your relocation to the Balrea under the provisions of our executive agioc policy for
new employees. Generally, this policy providestifgr shipment of household goods, home sale andhasec
assistance, a lump-sum payment to assist with waunitiscellaneous expenses associated with yowato, and
temporary living in Dallas for up to six months.eThome sale and purchase assistance can be utdizeg to one
(1) year after your start date. You will also bigible to receive a reimbursement for capital lpgs may incur on
the sale of your home in the amount up to $150,@80@re such amount will not be tax assisted.

Should you voluntarily end your employment with &wedse for any reason during the two (2) year pexitad you
relocate your home to the Dallas area, and withegetsto the loss on sale during the two (2) yeaiodeafter your
home is sold under the Home Sale Program, Celassseves the right to seek full repayment for thie® of any
relocation assistance provided to you.

Vacation
You will be eligible for four (4) weeks annual véioa. Vacation availability for remainder of thiggr will be
prorated based on your actual start date, in aeoeelwith the Company’s vacation policy.

Severance Benefits

You will be eligible to receive severance bendfitst provide for a payout equal to 1.0 times yourual base sala
plus target bonus (in effect at the time of sepangin the event of an involuntary termination lwaitit cause or a
voluntary separation for good reason (as such temmslefined in each agreement); or a payout équab times
your annual base salary plus target bonus (in effieithe time of separation) in the event of arolaktary
termination without cause or a voluntary separafiwrgood reason during the two-year period follogva
Change-In-Control (CIC) event (as such term isrdefiin the CIC agreement)

With respect to your Celanese Sign-on Equity antdwards, in the event of an involuntary terminatiaithout
cause, you will become immediately vested in tiga-sin RSU Award, and with respect to the SggnStock Optiot
and Performance RSUs you will become vested om@iad basis through your date of termination. piteeatec




Performance RSU Award will be earned as of the datermination, but will be settled on the plannvesting date
subject to the Company’s achievement of the perdmee metrics/goals as outlined in the grant agratriae
prorated Sign-on Stock Option Award will becometedon the date of termination and any vested stptibns
will be exercisable for a period of one year foliog/the date of termination.

The severance benefits will also include continpadicipation in the Celanese medical and dentaigfor a perio
of one year following the applicable separationrev€opies of these agreements will be providegbtounder
separate cover.

Confidentiality, non-compete and Nopsolicitation

As a condition of your employment, you will be régd to execute agreements (the “ConfidentialitpnNCompete
and Non-Solicitation Agreements”) with the Compaegarding protection and non-disclosure of confiidén
information, non-competition and non-solicitati@@opies of these agreements will be provided towmaler
separate cover.

This offer letter constitutes the full terms aneditions of your employment with the Company. Ipstsedes any
other oral or written commitments that may havenbmade to you.

This offer of employment is contingent upon thessattory completion of a background check andgmgloymen
examination including tests for substance abusmtiatisfactory completed, the offer will be ieded.
Arrangements for the drug screen will be coordiddteough Concentra Medical Services (instructiemslosed)
and should be completed no later than two (2) weeksre your start date.

As required by law, we will need to verify and downt your identity and eligibility for employmemt the United
States. Please review the enclosed material and thre appropriate documentation needed to comitlete9 Form
on your state date. Please do not complete thiedr® in advance since this must completed on vyiestrday of
employment with the company.

Jacquelyn, we are most enthusiastic about youingithe Celanese team. If these provisions aresafte to you,
please sign the enclosed copy of this letter andm¢o me by fax at (972) 443-44848 or before December 1, 20

Sincerely,

/s/ David N. Weidman

David N. Weidman
Chairman and CEO

Acknowledgement of Offer:
(Please check one)

O | accept the above described offer of employmetit ®elanese and understand that my employmensstatu
will be considered at-will and may be terminatedry time for any reason. Upon acceptance of tifés,d
agree to keep the terms and conditions of thiseseat confidentia

O 1 decline your offer of employment.

Signature:___/s/ Jacquelyn Wolf Date:_December 2, 2009
Jacquelyn Wol

Anticipated Start DateDecember 14, 2009
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AGREEMENT AND GENERAL RELEASE

Celanese Corporation, it's subsidiaries and itdiafs, (* Employer’ or “* Company”), 1601 West LBJ Freeway,
Dallas, Texas 75234 amdichael L. Summers, his heirs, executors, administrators, succesaosassigns (*

Employe€”), agree that:

1. Last Day of Employment (Departure Date). The last day of employment with Celanese is dolezl to be
March 31, 2010, or such earlier date as the Compaaydetermine in its sole discretion, but in nergearlier
than January 1, 2010, (the “ Departure DatéJnless otherwise expressly agreed to by the oy, if
Employee voluntarily resigns before the DepartuateDhe shall immediately be removed from the ghgral
forfeit all rights to the consideration set forthRaragraphs 2(b), (c) and (h) belc

2. Consideration. Each separate installment under this Agreemaeait s treated as a separate payment for
purposes of determining whether such payment iggstito or exempt from compliance with the requiesrns
of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code. Imsaderation for signing this Agreement and comm@with
the promises made herein, Employer and Employezez

a. Voluntary Resignation. Employee agrees to voluntarily resign from thepoyer effective on the
Departure Date. Effective as of the close of bussran such Departure Date, Employee will resigmfadl
positions he holds as a corporate officer of thex@any (including without limitation any positions an
officer, employee and/or director), and from alspions held on behalf of the Company (e.g., extkEboard
memberships, internal committee positions).

b. Separation Pay. The Company will pay an amount equal to his aitramnual base salary plus target
bonus, for a total payment of $612,000, less amjubdeductions. Such amount shall be paid in limsents
as follows; (i) the first installment in the amowft$306,000 (representing 50% of the total paymerit be
paid within 30 business days of the Departure Datd, (ii) the remaining $306,000 will be paid iirtéen
(13) substantially equal bi-weekly installmentstthagin within 30 days of the Departure Date.

c. Bonus. Employee will be eligible to receive a full ydaonus payout for 2009 and, if the Departure De
after January 31, 2010, for 2010, a pro-rata b@aysut based on the number of full months of servic
completed 2010. The 2009 bonus payout will be paitie Employee during the 2010 calendar yearirbut
no event later than March 15, 2010. The 2010 pt@{vanus payout, if any, will be paid no later tihday 1,
2010. The full year 2009 bonus and, if applicatiie,pro-rata 2010 bonus payouts will be based enditget
bonus for a salary level 2 employee (70% of anbaak salary), without modification for Company
performance or Employee’s individual performancé.@personal modifier). Accordingly, and subjexttie
foregoing, for purposes of the pro-rata bonus datimns under this section Employee will be credlite
$21,000 for each full month of service.

d. Equity and Long-Term Incentive Cash Awards. Except as otherwise set forth in this Sectior),2(d
Employee’s rights to any outstanding equity awandsonnection with his termination of employmenakh
continue to be governed by the terms of the agratsmursuant to which such awards were granted' (the
Equity Agreement$). For the purpose of the Equity Agreements, Emetshall be considered to have been
terminated without “Cause,” as such term is defiimeithe Equity Agreements. The amounts payable unde
such Equity Agreements and set forth in this sacii@ examples of the amounts to which Employeddvou
be entitled to receive assuming the Departure Batarch 31, 2010. If the Company agrees to change
Departure Date, the pro-rated amounts below sleadidjusted accordingly. Employee acknowledges and
agrees that he forfeits any and all rights to t@2LongTerm Incentive awards which were approved by
Compensation Committee of the Board of DirectorthefCompany on September 9, 2009.

-1-




Pursuant to the terms of the Employee’s time-veRestricted Stock Unit Agreement dated July 23,8200
100% of the remaining unvested ur(itk0,500 units) shall vest on the Departure Date.

Pursuant to the terms of the Employee’s Performd@ased Restricted Stock Unit Agreement dated J8Jy 2
2008 the Employee will vest in a prorated targeaaiof 4,125 RSUs (22/24ths) on the Departure Drte.
remaining unvested restricted stock units issuedyaunt to the Employee’s Performance-Based Re=drict
Stock Unit Agreement dated July 23, 2008 shalldreceled on the Departure Date with no additional
consideration.

Pursuant to the terms of the Employee’s Performafesting Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement date
December 11, 2008, the Employee will vest in aateat target award of 4,706 RSUs (16/34ths) thdtweit
on October 14, 2011 based on Company achievemgmrfifrmance metrics. All remaining unvested
restricted stock units issued pursuant to the Eygas Performance-Vesting Restricted Stock Unit Adva
Agreement dated December 11, 2008 shall be canoeltite Departure Date with no additional
consideration.

Pursuant to the terms of the Employee’s 2008 Loag¥incentive Cash Award Agreement dated
December 11, 2008, the Employee will vest in agtemt cash award of $170,588 (16/34ths) that will be
payable on or after April 15, 2010. The remainimgested cash award issued pursuant to the Empbyee’
2008 Long-Term Incentive Cash Award Agreement d&tedember 11, 2008 shall be canceled on the
Departure Date with no additional consideration.

e. Pension and 401(k) Plan Vestinglf Employee is eligible, the Employer will fulfiits obligations
according to the terms of the respective Plans.

f. Unused Vacation. Employee will be entitled to four (4) weeks vaoatfor 2010. The Employer will pay
to Employee wages for any unused vacation for 20tDany approved vacation carried over from 2009
under the standard procedure for calculating ayéhgaany unused vacation to separated employe&s. Th
gross amount due to Employee, less any lawful dezhs; will be payable within 30 days of the Depaet
Date; subject to the Employee providing the details of eacation days utilized during 2009 and 2010
through the exit interview process.

g. Company Benefit Plans Healthcare & dental plan coverage based on thegl@me’s current health &
dental plan elections will continue until the erfdl® month in which the Employee separates, i ¢thse
March 31, 2010 (assuming a March 31, 2010 Depafate). All other normal Company programs (e.¢g, li
insurance, long term disability, 401(k) contribuiép etc.) will continue through the Departure Date.

h. COBRA Reimbursement and Continued Medical PlarCoverage. If the Employee elects to continue
his coverage (and the coverage of his eligible flamembers) under the Employer’s medical and dental
plans for active employees pursuant to the requergmof the Consolidated Omnibus Reconciliation dfct
1985, as amended (* COBRA, the Employer will provide twelvé 12) months of Company-paid COBRA
health care coverage if elected by Employee.

Following the expiration of the Employee’s COBRAvetage, the Employee may continue his coverage (and
the coverage of those eligible family members waeehexhausted their COBRA coverage) under the
Employer’s medical plan for active employees uhiid Employee attains age 65 provided that the Epeglo
pays each required monthly premium no later tharthirtieth (30) day of the calendar month for vihsuch
monthly premium is due. The required monthly pramioar this continued medical plan coverage shalhg
greater of (i) the monthly COBRA premium under Braployer's medical plan for active employees or

(i) the monthly retiree premium under the Empldgenedical plan for retirees, as applicable tottfpee of
coverage elected by the Employee for each montheoEmployee’s continued medical plan coverages Thi
right to continue medical plan coverage beyondQdRA coverage period shall terminate as of thst fiey

of the calendar month for which the Employee faléimely pay the required monthly premium in full.

i. Return of Company Property . Employee will surrender to Employer, on his @&y of employment, all
Company materials, including, but not limited te Biompany car, laptop computer, phone, credit card,
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calling cards, etc. Employee will be responsiblerésolving any outstanding balances on the Compeatjil
card.

j- Withholding . The payments and other benefits provided undereement shall be reduced by
applicable withholding taxes and other lawful dddrcs.

No Consideration Absent Execution of this Agreemer. Employee understands and agrees that he wotld no
receive the monies and/benefits specified in Paragraph 2 above, unlesghgloyee signs this Agreement

the signature page without having revoked this Agrent pursuant to Paragraph 16 below and thelfidfiit of

the promises contained here

General Release of Claims Employee knowingly and voluntarily releases &véver discharges, to the full
extent permitted by law, in all countries, incluglibut not limited to the U.S., the Peoples Reputfli€hina
(PRC), U.K. and Germany, the Employer, its parempaoration, affiliates, subsidiaries, divisionsegecessors,
successors and assigns and the current and fompdoyees, officers, directors and agents theremfdctively
referred to throughout the remainder of this Agreetas “ Employef), of and from any and all claims, kno
and unknown, asserted and unasserted, Employews hasy have against Employer as of the date ofidi@t
of this Agreement, including, but not limited tmyaalleged violation of

Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as ameexd,
The Civil Rights Act of 1991
Sections 1981 through 1988 of Title 42 of the Ushigtates Code, as amend
The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1@&lamende(
The Immigration Reform and Control Act, as amen
The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as arded;
The Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1968, amendec
The Workers Adjustment and Retraining Notificatidet, as amendec
The Occupational Safety and Health Act, as amer
The Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002
The Texas Civil Rights Act, as amend
The Texas Minimum Wage Law, as amenc
Equal Pay Law for Texas, as amenc
Any other federal, state or local civil or humaghtis law, or any other local, state or federal law,
regulation or ordinance; or any law, regulatioroadinance of a foreign country, including but not
limited to the PRC, Federal Republic of Germany iredUnited Kingdom
» Any public policy, contract, tort, or common la
« The employment, labor and benefits laws and reiguiatin all countries in addition to the
U.S. including but not limited to the U.K. and Genny.
* Any claim for costs, fees, or other expenses irinly@ttorney’ fees incurred in these matte

Affirmations . Employee affirms that he has not filed, causeblet filed, or presently is a party to any claim,
complaint, or action against Employer in any forormorm. Provided, however, that the foregoing dioais
affect any right to file an administrative charg#étwthe Equal Employment Opportunity CommissioreEOC
"), subject to the restriction that if any such iwis filed, Employee agrees not to violate theficentiality
provisions of this Agreement and Employee furttgreas and covenants that should he or any othsomper
organization, or other entity file, charge, clasug or cause or permit to be filed any charge thithEEOC,
civil action, suit or legal proceeding against BEraployer involving any matter occurring at any timehe past
Employee will not seek or accept any personalfréilieluding, but not limited to, monetary awardcovery,
relief or settlement) in such charge, civil actisuit or proceeding

Employee further affirms that he has reported allrk worked as of the date of this release andées paid
and/or has received all leave (paid or unpaid),memsation, wages, bonuses, commissions, and/ofitseioe
which he may be entitled and that no other leaa@(pr unpaid), compensation, wages, bonuses, cssionis
and/or benefits are due to him, except as providéais Agreement. Employee furthermore affirmst e has
no known workplace injuries or occupational dissased has been provided and/or has not been damjed
leave requested under the Family and Medical Léate
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6. Confidentiality . Employee agrees and recognizes that any knoeledmformation of any type whatsoever
of a confidential nature relating to the busingsthe Employer or any of its subsidiaries, divisan affiliates,
including, without limitation, all types of tradeaets, client lists or information, employee listanformation,
information regarding product development, marlkgpians, management organization, operating pslioie
manuals, performance results, business plans,dialacords, or other financial, commercial, basimor
technical information (collectively “ Confidentitnformation”), must be protected as confidential, not copied,
disclosed or used other than for the benefit ofBhmployer at any time unless and until such knogdedr
information is in the public domain through no wgéul act by Employee. Employee further agrees oot t
divulge to anyone (other than the Employer or aengpns employed or designated by the Employer)jgtubr
make use of any such Confidential Information withihe prior written consent of the Employer, exdapan
order of a court having competent jurisdiction nder subpoena from an appropriate government ag

7. Non-competition/Non-solicitation/Non-hire . Employee acknowledges and recognizes the higypetitive
nature of the business of the Employer. Withoutekgress written permission of Celanese, for aopenf
(52) weeks, following the Departure Date (the “ fReted Period’), Employee acknowledges and agrees that
he will not: (i) directly or indirectly solicit sak of like products similar to those produced dd &y Employer;
or (ii) directly engage or become employed with anginess that competes with the business of Catane
including but not limited to: direct sales, supphain, marketing, or manufacturing for a produdgsroducts
similar to those produced or licensed by Celankesaddition, for (2) years, Employee will not ditkycor
indirectly solicit, nor hire employees of Celanéseemployment. However, nothing in this provisimall
restrict Employee from owning, solely as an investitmpublicly traded securities of any company \uhg
engaged in the business of Celanese if Employeée i)t a controlling person of, or a member of@ug whict
controls; and (ii) does not, directly or indirectywn 5% or more of any class of securities of sungh
company.

8. Governing Law and Interpretation . This Agreement shall be governed and conformeatcordance with
the laws of the State of Texas, without regardg@onflict of laws provision. In the event the Hoyge or
Employer breaches any provision of this AgreemEntployee and Employer affirm that either may ingétan
action to specifically enforce any term or termshi$ Agreement. Should any provision of this Agneat be
declared illegal or unenforceable by any courtahpetent jurisdiction and cannot be modified to be
enforceable, excluding the general release langusagh provision shall immediately become null aodl,
leaving the remainder of this Agreement in fullderand effect

9. Non-admission of Wrongdoing. The parties agree that neither this Agreementhefurnishing of the
consideration for this Release shall be deemedmstoued at anytime for any purpose as an admigsion
Employer of any liability or unlawful conduct of yakind.

10. Non - Disparagement. Employee agrees not to disparage, or make digpay remarks or send any
disparaging communications concerning, the Emplayereputation, its business, and/or its dirextofficers,
managers. Likewise the Employer’s senior manageiagmtes not to disparage, or make any disparaging
remark or send any disparaging communication coregfEmployee, his reputaticand/orhis business

11. Future Cooperation after Departure Date. After retirement, Employee agrees to make reasierefforts to
assist Company including but not limited to: assistvith transition duties, assisting with issueattarise after
retirement of employment and assisting with theedsé or prosecution of any lawsuit or claim. Thidudes
but is not limited to providing deposition testinypattending hearings and testifying on behalthef Company
The Company will reimburse Employee for reasongibie and expenses in connection with any future
cooperation after the Departure Date, at his cti@anual base pay, converted to an hourly rate of
$173/hr. Time and expenses can include loss obparging vacation time at a future employer. ThenBany
shall reimburse the Employee within 30 days of teantce by Employee to the Company of such time and
expenses incurre:

12. Consulting Services After the Departure Date, the Employer maytsrspble discretion, retain Employee as a
Consultant. If retained, the Employee will be pdif,2 of his current base pay or $30,000 for eachtmhe
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

provides consulting services. The Employer maytaedtonsulting engagement at its sole discretion by
providing him 60 days notice of ’ intent to terminate the engageme

Injunctive Relief . Employee agrees and acknowledges that the Eplail be irreparably harmed by any
breach, or threatened breach by him of this Agre®raed that monetary damages would be grossly qaate.
Accordingly, he agrees that in the event of a ieacthreatened breach by him of this Agreemeat th
Employer shall be entitled to apply for immediatginctive or other preliminary or equitable relia§
appropriate, in addition to all other remediesaat br equity

Review Period. Employee is hereby advised he has until Nover2BeR009, or forty-five (45) calendar days,
to review this Agreement and to consult with anraiey prior to execution of this Agreement. Employgrees
that any modifications, material or otherwise, malthis Agreement do not restart or affect in amnner the
original forty-five (45) calendar day consideration peri

Revocation Period and Effective Datt. In the event that Employee elects to sign atutmeio the Company a
copy of this Agreement, he has a period of seveddys (the “ Revocation Peridyifollowing the date of such
execution to revoke this Agreement, after whichetitimis agreement will become effective (the “ Efffiee Date
") if not previously revoked. In order for the renaiion to be effective, written notice must be reeé by the
Company no later than close of business on thensleday after the Employee signs this Agreementhéath
time the Revocation Period shall exp

Amendment. This Agreement may not be modified, alteredr@ged except upon express written conse
both parties wherein specific reference is madaigAgreement

Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreemetwden the parties hereto, and fully
supersedes any prior obligation of the Employgh&oEmployee. Employee acknowledges that he hahed
on any representations, promises, or agreememtsyofind made to him in connection with his decisio
accept this Agreement, except for those set forthis Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoings it
expressly understood and agreed that the Equitgekgents and the Long Term Incentive Award Claw Back
Agreement executed by Employee on or about Augs?@08 shall remain in full force and effect, epicas
such Equity Agreements are modified by Section &{dhis Agreement

HAVING ELECTED TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT, TO FULFIL THE PROMISES AND TO
RECEIVE THE SUMS AND BENEFITS IN PARAGRAPH “2” ABOKE, EMPLOYEE FREELY AND
KNOWINGLY, AND AFTER DUE CONSIDERATION, ENTERS INTOHIS AGREEMENT INTENDING
TO WAIVE, SETTLE AND RELEASE ALL CLAIMS HE HAS OR NGHT HAVE AGAINST EMPLOYER.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto knowinglg aoluntarily executed this Release as of the

date set forth below.

Employee Celanese Corporation:
By: __ /s/ Michael L. Summe By:___/s/ Steven M. Ster
Michael L. Summer Steven M. Steril
Date: November 11, 200¢ Date: November 16, 200¢



Name of Company

List of Subsidiaries of Celanese Corporation

Exhibit 21.1

Jurisdiction

1776461 Canada Inc
Acetex (Cyprus) Ltd.
Acetex Chemicals Limite
Acetex Chimie S.A.

Acetex Derivatives, SA!
Acetex Intermediates, SA
Acetyls Holdco Cayman Ltd
Alberta Ag— Industries Ltd.
Amcel International Co., Inc
BCP Holdings Gmbt

CAPE Holding Gmbt

Celanese (China) Holding Co., Lt

Celanese (Nanjing) Acetyl Derivatives Co., L
Celanese (Nanjing) Chemicals Co., L'

Celanese (Nanjing) Diversified Chemical Co., L
Celanese (Shanghai) International Trading Co., |

Celanese Acetate Limite
Celanese Acetate LL

Celanese Advanced Materials Ir

Celanese Americas LL
Celanese Canada In

Celanese Chemicals Europe Gm

Celanese Chemicals Iberica ¢
Celanese Chemicals In

Celanese Chemicals India Private
Celanese Chemicals S.A. (Pty) Lt

Celanese Chemicals UK Lt

Celanese Deutschland Holding Gm

Celanese do Brasil Ltdz
Celanese Emulsions B.
Celanese Emulsions Gmk
Celanese Emulsions Litc
Celanese Emulsions Norden /

Celanese Emulsions Pension Plan Trust
Celanese EVA Performance Polymers Corpore
Celanese EVA Performance Polymers |
Celanese EVA Performance Polymers Partnel

Celanese Far East Lt
Celanese Global Relocation LL

Celanese Gmbl

Celanese Holding Gmb
Celanese Holdings B.
Celanese Holdings LLt

Celanese Holdings Luxembourg S.é

Celanese Hungary Kf

Celanese International Corporati
Celanese International Holdings Luxembourg S.

Celanese Japan Limits
Celanese Korea Chusik Hoe

Celanese Ltd

Celanese Mexico Holdings LL
Celanese Polisinteza d.o.o
Celanese Pte. Ltc

Celanese S.A
Celanese S

Celanese Singapore Pte. Lf

Celanese Singapore VAM Pte., Lt

Canad

Cyprus

United Kingdon
Franct

Franct

Franct
Cayman Islanc
Canad
Delawart
German
German
Chine

Chine

Chine

Chine

Chine

United Kingdon
Delawart
Delawart
Delawart
Canad
German

Spair
Delawart

India

South Africe
United Kingdon
German
Brazil
Netherland
German
United Kingdon
Swedel

United Kingdon
North Carolini
Canad

Canad

Hong Kong
Delawart
German
German
Netherland
Delawart
Luxembour
Hungan
Delawart
Luxembourg
Japal

Koree

Texa
Delawart
Sloveni:
Singapor
Argentine
Belgiurr
Singapor
Singapor




Celanese US Holdings LL
Celanese Ventures USA |i
Celstran Gmbt

Celtran Inc.

Celwood Insurance Compa
CNA Funding LLC

CNA Holdings LLC

Crystal US Holding 3 L.L.C.
Crystal US Sub 3 Corg
Edmonton Methanol Compal
Elwood Insurance Limite
FKAT LLC

Grupo Celanese, S. de R.L. de C.V
HNA Acquisition ULC
Hoechst Italia S.p.A
InfraServ Verwaltungs Gmb
KEP Americas Engineering Plastics, LI
KEP Europe Gmbt

Majoriva GmbH

Methanol Holdco Cayman Ltc
Northern Mountains Celcan L
NutriCapital Inc.

Nutrinova Benelux S.A./N.V.
Nutrinova France S.a |
Nutrinova Inc.

Nutrinova Nutrition Specialties & Food Ingredie@sbH

Nutrinova UK Limitedt

Riomava Gmbt

Servicios Corporativos Celanese S. de R.L. de (
Synthesegasanlage Ruhr GmbH i.L**
Tenedora Tercera de Toluca S. de R.L. de (
Ticona Austria Gmbt

Ticona CR s.r.(

Ticona Fortron Inc.

Ticona France S.a |

Ticona Gmbk

Ticona Hungaria Kft.

Ticona Industrial Co. Ltd

Ticona ltalia S.r.L

Ticona Japan Ltd

Ticona Korea Ltd.

Ticona LLC

Ticona Norden Denmark A/

Ticona PBT Holding B.\

Ticona Polymers Inc

Ticona Polymers Ltde

Ticona Technische Polymere g/

Ticona Teknik Polimerler Sanayi ve Tic. Ltd.****
Ticona UK Limited

Transatlantique Chimie S.A

Tydeus Erste Vermogensverwaltungs Gnr
Tydeus Zweite Vermdgensverwaltungs G
US Pet Film Inc.

Varimajo GmbH

* Aggregate ownership is 76.0C
**  Aggregate ownership is 99.8¢
**  Aggregate ownership is 50.0C
*xx - Aggregate ownership is 99.95
T In liquidation

Delawart
Delawart
German
Delawart
Vermon
Delawart
Delawart
Delawart
Delawart
Canad
Bermud:
Delawart
Mexico
Canad
Italy
German
Delawart
German
German
Cayman Islanc
Canad
Delawart
Belgiurr
France
Delawart
German
United Kingdon
German
Mexica
German
Mexica
Austrie
Czech Republi
Delawart
Franct
German
Hungan
South Kore
Italy

Japal
Koree
Delawart
Denmarl
Netherland
Delawart
Brazil
Russi:
Turkey
United Kingdon
France
German
German
Delawart
German



Exhibit 23.1

Report on Financial Statement Schedule and Consent
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Celanese Corporation:

The audits referred to in our report dated Febrd@y2010 included the related consolidated fir@rtatement
schedule of Celanese Corporation and subsidiaties‘Company”) for each of the years in the threaryperiod
ended December 31, 2009 included in the Decemhe2(®O annual report of Celanese Corporation on

Form 10-K. This consolidated financial statemetiestule is the responsibility of the Company’s mamagnt. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thissmidated financial statement schedule based oauwdits. In our
opinion, such consolidated financial statement dates when considered in relation to the basic obaated
financial statements taken as a whole, presenty,fai all material respects, the information &&th therein.

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements on Form S-8 (Registratios.
333-122789, 333-128048, 333-158734, and 333-1583136¢lanese Corporation of our reports herein.

Our report dated February 12, 2010 contains exptapparagraphs related to the Company’s adoptidfirancial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Staff Positidn. 132(R)-1Employers’ Disclosures about Postretirement
Benefit Plan Assei(included in FASB Accounting Standards Codificat{®aASC") Subtopic 715-20Defined
Benefit Plan¢), during the year ended December 31, 2009, t€trapany’s adoption of FASB Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 153ajr Value Measurementincluded in FASB ASC Subtopic 820-1Bair
Value Measurements and Disclosuyeduring the year ended December 31, 2008, atftet@€ompany’s adoption
of FASB Interpretation No. 4&ccounting for Uncertainty in Income TaX@gluded in FASB ASC Subtopic
740-10,Income Taxe} during the year ended December 31, 2007.

/sl KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 12, 201



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 17 CFR 240.13a-14
PROMULGATED UNDER
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, David N. Weidman, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of @else Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or don#ttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimalight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport,
fairly present in all material respects the finahcondition, results of operations and cash floivihe registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitgs 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cbotrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actédul3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant hade:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedorre
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thggmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during theriod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopytwide reasonable assurance regarding the rétjabil
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisi
report our conclusions about the effectiveness@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of tHegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegint’s internal control over financial reportitigat
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgalrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethe case of an
report) that has materially affected, or is reabbnbkely to materially affect, the registrant'sternal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’s auditors and the audit committee ofstegnt’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cootrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recqgrtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inses\management or other employees who have a sim
role in the registrant’s internal control over fircéal reporting.

/s/ David N. Weidman

David N. Weidman

Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 12, 201




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 17 CFR 240.13a-14
PROMULGATED UNDER
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Steven M. Sterin, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of @else Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or don#ttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimalight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport,
fairly present in all material respects the finahciondition, results of operations and cash floithe registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actédul3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant hade:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedore
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thtgnal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during theriod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopyéeide reasonable assurance regarding the rétyabfl
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatemenrts for external purposes in accordarnte w
generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisi
report our conclusions about the effectiveness@efdisclosure controls and procedures, as of tHegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegint’s internal control over financial reportitiat
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgelrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartettie case of an
report) that has materially affected, or is reabbnbkely to materially affect, the registrant'sternal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’s auditors and the audit committee ofstegnt’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cootrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to reggutbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesmanagement or other employees who have a sagm
role in the registrant’s internal control over fircéal reporting.

/s/ Steven M. Sterin

Steven M. Sterin

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
Date: February 12, 201




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of CelanesepBmation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the ymeti
ending December 31, 2009 as filed with the Seasritind Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), I, David N. Weidman, Chief Executive @#r of the Company, hereby certify, pursuant tdJ18.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9€¢G&dbarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenftsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt
of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialétion
and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ David N. Weidman

David N. Weidman

Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 12, 2010

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to CelaneseoCaiipn

and will be retained by Celanese Corporation amdighed to the Securities and Exchange Commissids etaff
upon reques



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of CelanesepBmation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the ymeti
ending December 31, 2009 as filed with the Seasritind Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), I, Steven M. Sterin, Senior Vice Presitland Chief Financial Officer of the Company, lreertify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipnt$o Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act @22@hat:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenftsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt
of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialétion
and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Steven M. Sterin

Steven M. Sterin

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
Date: February 12, 2010

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to CelaneseoCaiipn

and will be retained by Celanese Corporation amdighed to the Securities and Exchange Commissids etaff
upon reques



Exhibit 99.1

CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Year Ended December 31, 200
Deducted from asset accour

Allowance for doubtful accoun
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass
Year Ended December 31, 200
Deducted from asset accour

Allowance for doubtful accoun
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass
Year Ended December 31, 200
Deducted from asset accour

Allowance for doubtful accoun
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass

Additions

Balance a Charged tc Charged tc
Beginning Costs and other Balance at
of Year  Expenses Accounts Deductions End of Year

(In $ millions)

16 6 — (4) @ 18
46C 27 33b) (20€) ()(c) 311
18 9 - (2 @ 25
311 11 33Ch)@) — 652
25 1 — (8) @ 18
652 (314 (4) © — 334

@ Includes foreign currency translation effects andallected accounts written off, net of recove
®) Represents amount charged to goodwill as a rebplirchase accounting and Accumulated other conemsitne

income (loss), ne

© Includes changes to valuation allowances associgitbcchanges in net deferred tax assets not iegutt net

expense or benel



